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FY 17/18 highlights

£2.2bn

(Fv 16/17: £2.1bn)

£2.2bn

(FY 16/17: £2.1bn)

4.0p

Dividervds per share
{FY 16/17: 4.0p)

£193.5m

Nat debt (s pasiod end)
{FY 16/17: £147.2m)

@ Positive adjusted revenue' growth

£77.1m
£89.6m
ey el

£4.5bn

{FY 16/17: £4.4bn)

£286.1m

Net dabt (sverage)
{F¥Y 16/17: £335.9m)

® Mdjusted operating profit™ in line with our expectations

® Good performance from Mitie’s mariet-leading core businesses
® Connected Workspace now in deployment

® Transformation programine progressing well

® Higher transformation cost savings, with assodated higher cost

of change

® On track to exceed three-year cost savings targets
® investments made in customer service and internal capability

* Commercial reorganisation and finance transformation largely
complete; IT and Engineering Services workflow technology

transformation begun

For further information
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Watch our latest content

1. To enable an effective comparison of our
performance, sdjusted revenus and adjusted
operating profit are presanted for both FY 17/18
shd FY 16/17 a3 Akernative Performance
Measures (APMES). FY 17/18 adustad nurabers
are presanted on pre-IFRS 15 basis. FY 26/17

djusted arep d as per last
year’s APM, for comirwiing operstdons.

2. Defore other items.

3. FY 17/48 reported on post-IFRS 15 basis and FY
16/17 on & reported basis,

4, The order book & presemnted in line with IFRS 15
requirenents for both FY 17/18 and FY 16/17,




Our purpose

Our expertise, care, technology
and insight create amazing work
environments, helping our customers
be exceptional every day.

Opportunities
il § 11
Free to make
decisions Our promise to A personal pride
our people in our work
Reward for A place to work where
great work you can thrive and be Closer working
your best every day . relationships
Trust and Our promise to
respect our customers Briliant
Atrusted partner focused on basics
adding valus to your bottom
line, while creating exceptional Intelligent use
enviranments for your of technology
customers and psople
insights that
make a difference

Our Vision and Values are built on the simple premise
of ‘The exceptional, every day’ — our overarching
commitment to both our customers and to our colleagues.

The exceptional, everyday | www.mitie.com 1
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We are
One Mitie

image removed

We work as one to deliver a

seamless, unrivalled service.

We are all in it together,

if we can help a customer
or colleague in any way, we
will. We are One Mitie.

Miriam
Reception Supervisor,
Front of House

The exceptional, everyday | www.mitie.com
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AT A GLANCE

Delivering the exceptional

through a range of services...

Delivering the basics brilliantly gives us the solid foundations
on which to create, build and tailor solutions that anticipate

and meet our customers’ needs.

Adjusted revenue FY 17/18

Property Management

£237.9m

Enginsering Services

£833.8m

Catering

£137.1m

Care & Cuntedy

£62.3m

Cleaning &
Erwvironmental Services

£405.5m

Professional Services

£90.8m

Security

| £431.7m

...to a blue-chip customer base.
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OUR INVESTMENT CASE

Six reasons to invest in Mitie

We work in partnership with organisations to deliver long-term savings, managing
and maintaining some of the nation’s most recognised landmarks for a range of
blue-chip public and private sector customers. We are the UK’s largest Facilities

Management company employing 49,000 people across the country.
We are changing the future of FM through the pioneering development
of Connected Workspace technology. We are ambitious for the future

and for those who work for us.
Exceptional clients and a Migh retention rates and Proactive Group
broad range of services significant order book management
* Broad client base across both the ¢ Long-berm relationships as & trusted » Creation of Ona Mitle through a
private shd public sectors partner supporting our single employing entity and the:
* Professional Services provide customers’ strategies simplification of the group structura
stratagic differentiation * NPS score of -10 sets the baseline - * Commitment to strong and
« Our abikty to self-deliver s » &+17 points improvement over past transparent finandal management
key strength 12 months o Strong covenant hasdeoom
* Intelligent use of smart technology * Stable order book at £4.5bn reparted * Realigned dividencs to
. No on any single o under IFRS 15 guideiines underlying performance
of customers
= 35%in public sector work and 65%in
privite sector contracts
innovation and Transformation Winning
technology capabliities programme culture
= Major investment In technology to « One year into three-year = New Purpose, Vision and Values to
undeypin next generation FM programme, progressing well deliver "The excaptional, every day’
» Data anatytics and insight enable and + Discovery done, now in + One Mitie approach to
enhance customer defivery phase doing business
workplace performance = Majority of badcoffice « A place to work where our
= Connected Workspace offering transformation wel advanced employses can thrive and be their
increasingly important to » investing to generate optimum best every day
austomer proposition oparating model * We recognise great work, reward and
s Pioneers in FM Innovation * c.£50m of overall run-rate savings by celebrate it
* Partnership with market leaders such March 2020 * A 10.7% improvement in staff

as Microsoft and Vodafone

T —

turnover in a transformational year

The exceptional, every day | www.mitie.com -]



Chalrman’s statement

Focused transformation
in a challenging market

Image rernaved

Derek Mapp, Chalrman

“It has been a year of good progress
at Mitie, though not without its

challenges.”

Dear Mitie Shareholder,

Overview

| am delighted to be presenting my first annual review to you as
Chalrman of Mitie Group pic (Mitie).

This has been a year of discovery, transformation and change for
Mitie, all set against a challenging and, at times, difficult market.
The outsourcing sector has been in the spotiight with the demise
of Carillion, and the challenges faced by many other firms across
the wider sector.

Outsourcing and, more specifically, Facilities Management, isa
refatively new Industry whare the early benefits derived from
economies of scale and expertise have now, largely, been eroded
away. Third, fourth and even fifth generation contracts have
resulted in low margins for providers and few cost give-aways for
customers. However, technology and scale remain opportunities
for the sector and what has become clear is that these need to
be delivered In tandem with a2 wholesale Industry-wide
correction In the pricing of risk; contracts need to correctly
account for price, quality, certainty and timeliness of delivery.
The collapse of Cariflion, the chalienges faced by almast every
other industry participant, as well as the failure of many other
individual contracts ta be delivered on budget, on time or at the
guality required, show that wholesale sector recalibration is
needed for the economics of FM to continue to be sustainable.
We are pleased to see that this s already happening; as we
engage with government, prospective customers and existing
clients, the focus is moving subtly away from just cost and
towards value.

6 www.mitiecom | The exceptional, everyday

Strategy

Mite is a strong resilient business, with a broad and diverse
client base, and a frontline workforce with specialist sklils,
expertise and experience. it is also now one year into 2 major
thwee-year transformation programme under the stewardship of
CEQ, Phil Bentley. Al discovery work has been completed and
the business is now firmly in execution and defivery mode.

The four-pillaved strategy launched in June 2017 is shaping the
direction of the Group and the business Is continuing to make
significant investments in technology, smart analytics and
data-led insight.

Operationally the business has made major steides forward in
the last 12 months, removing complexity, duplication, upgrading
and simpifying processes, professionalising and understanding
the true drivers and levers of the business.

The accounting review completed in June 2017, Recommended
changes to reporting and the control environment are
progressing and being monitored by the Audit Commities.

The Financlal Reporting Council's (FRC) Corporate Reporting
Review of the annual report and accounts of Mitie for the year
ended 31 March 2016 completed in November 2017, with no
further action required of the Company. Although the FRC
continue, under the Accountancy Scheme, to investigate
Members formerly involved with Mitie, including Deloitte (the
Company's former auditors), neither the Group nor current
managament are the subject of this investigation.

We have also provided extensive material for the Financial
Conduct Authority {FCA) investigation in connection with the
timeliness of a profit warning announced by the Company on
19 September 2016 and the manner of preparation and content
of the Corapany’s financial information, position and results for




the period ending 31 March 2016. We are continuing to
co-operate with the FCA, bur at this time have had no indication
as to when thelr investigation may be concluded.

People & Community

1 would like to acknowledge that this has been a challenging year
for many of the people working at Mitie, especially for those
interacting every day with our customers. Our own
transformation programme, the volatility in the share price and
wider sector turbujence have fuelled the uncertainty that comes
with change. Yet, despite this, the team at Mitle have
demonstrated an upwavering commitment to providing
exeptional customer— service and to going the extra mile, and |
would like to persanally thank them for their dedication and
hard work. The Board and | all joined the Mitie management
team in going ‘back-to-the-fioor’ for a shift in one of our
businesses, and we were incredibly impressed by the
commitment and passion our colleagues have in all they do.

The Mitie Foundation, our charitable operation focusing on
employability, has had a good year. We continue to excel in
getting those in our soclety that are hard %0 reach, with
disabiiities, with criminal corwictions and with significant barriers
to employment, back into work. For the communities in which
we work the Foundation plays a very important role, and our
peopie and our customers can see the major impact it can have,
both on the lives of the individuals finding a job and on thase
who are engaged in the process. During the year we have
extended our programme with Uoyds Bank pic in Scotland, we
have engaged with the Co-op and look forward 1o working in
partnership with them to support vainerable pecple, and we
have continued to work with a number of schools, prisons and
other charities. We belleve that the Foundation Is vitally
Important to the sustainability of our business and the
continuing role that we wish to play in our communities.

Results

Adjusted revenue grew by 2.8% - a solid result in the first year of
transformation, refiecting the good quality of our core business,
our market-leading positions and the strength of our broad
offering. Adjusted operating profit before other items, although
lower than the comparable FY 16/17 result, was in line with our
exapectations and guidance. We dellverad cost savings whilst
fnvesting back into our core capabliities and customer service,
We continue to operate comfortably within our debt covenants
and our order book Is strong.

Dhvidends

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 2.67p, taking
the tctal dividends for the year to 4.0p. Going forward we expect
the interim dividend to be approximately one third of the
previous full-year dividend. We expect to hold the dividend flat
until, at least, completion of the transformation programme
when we will review the dividend policy.

Board and Corporate Governance

Since the commencement of my role as Chalrman in July 2017,
the composition of the Board has been further reviewed, leading
to several key appointments during the year.

in July 2017, we announced the appointments of Jennifer
Duvalier and Mary Reilly as Non-Bxecutive Directors, joining the
Board In july and September respectively. In Novermber, we
welcomed Paul Woolf as Chief Financial Officer and Philippa
Couttie as a Non-Executive Director.

Additionally, as anncunced in February 2018, we appointed
Roger Yates as a Non-Executive Director with effect from

1 March 2018. Roger will succeed Larry Hirst as Senlor
Independent Director upon Larry’s retirement from the Board

at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) in July 2018 after more
than elght years’ service. | would like to thank Larry for his long
service to Mitie. Mark Reckitt will stand down from the Board at
the 2018 AGM after three years’ service. 1 would also like to
thank Mark for his contribution to Mitie. Mary Rellly will succeed
Mark as Chalr of the Audit Committee.

Our new appointments have significantly strengthened and
widened the areas of expertise and experience on the 8oard.

Outlook

it has been a year of good progress at Mitie, though not without
Its challenges. The magnitude of the internal restructuring and
the number of things that have needed to be ‘fixed’ are far more
significant than was eariler anticipated. However, much of the
heavy-iifting Is now complete, and we are moving through each
stage of our transformation methodically and systemically.

As the Facilities Management sector slowly steadies itself, t am
confident that Mitie Is increasingly well placed to be an active
and significant participant in the future of the Industry. Our clear
strategy, our focus, our strong managemert team, our scale and
our market leading positions all play to our sdvantage. We are
ploneers in the roll-out of technology, and this Is further
strengthening our leading positions in UK FM.

We expect to report modest top-ine growth {pre-IFRS 15) next
year and we remain committed to medium-term margin
Improvement t0 arcund 4.5%-5.5% in the future. We remain
confident in our ability to build shareholder value.

Derek Mapp
Chalrrnan

Further reading:

Market review on pp. 10-11

Our investment case on 9. 5
Defivering on our strategy on g. 15
Chief Exaqutive’s review on pp. 12-14

People & Community on pp. 38-41
Finance review on pp. 44-49
Board of Directors on pp. 60-63
Namination Committee on pp. B4-87
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Business model

How we deliver value
to our stakeholders

We take care of the essentials brilliantly, so that our
customers can deliver the exceptional every day.

WHAT SETS US APART FROM QUR PEFRS

WHAT WE DO

@ Our people and culture
@ Our specialist UK focus

@ Our nation-wide
reach and full range
of services

@ Our service self-delivery

@ QOur flexibility, offering
tailored services

Our proprietary
technology approach
te innovation

The breadth and diversity
of our client base

ML

We are the UK’s leading

FM business with market-
leading positions, scale

and a broad customer base.
Our expertise, care, technology
and insight create amazing
work environments, helping
our customers be exceptional

every day.

Care &

IERE

Management

O

Please see At a glance on p, 4 for the range of services Mitie
provides and Operating review on pp. 22-31 for information on
our operational performance during FY 17/18

Further reading:

Stamgyinactiononpp. 1818 KPkon pp. 165-17
frvestment case on pp. 5 Oulture and valuss on pp. 1and 38
Markit review on pp. 30-11 Risk on pp. 50-57

/
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Employees

We develop a great working ewironment where
our employees can thrive and be thelr best every day. We are proud
of our people, our diversity and the opportunities we offer for
career development,

Customers

We take care of the essentials brilliantly so that our customers can
deliver the exceptional every day. We save our customers money,
give them data-led insight and build close working relationships
with them.

Shareholders

We are a business In tumaround with strong management, an
excellent customer base and a clear strategy. We are committed to
strong financisl management and the creation of shareholder value.

Communities

Through the Mitie Foundation we provide opportunities for ieaming
and employment; we employ 49,000 people in the UK and are
proud of the scale and diversity of our worldorce and the breadth of
skills and expertise our employees offer to our dlients.

Suppliers

We are committed to the health of our supply chain;
through partnership, sustainabllity and the cpportunity
to share our values.

The exceptional, everydoy | www.mitde.com 9



Mariet review

A world of opportunity

We focus on self-delivery across the UK and are increasingly introducing
smart technology in our offering.

W,

10

KEY MARKET DRIVERS

HOW WE ARE RESPONDING

M industry

The UK remains Europe’s largest and most mature FM
market, as well as its most sophisticated. As growth slows,
new opportunities are becoming more limited and
confined to specialised services. Customers are focusing
on more flexible services and delivery options and are
showing a growing interest in technology, sustainabllity
and employee wellbeing. As a result, there remains a
significant opportunity in the UK FM sector with an
estimated addressable opportunity of £45bn.

The past 12 months have been turbutent for the FM
industry with the liquidation of Carillion, Caplta’s
announcement of s transformation programme, and
heightened scrutiny into public sector outsourcing
more generally.

Mitie is the UK's largest facilities manager but with only a

4% market share. We are leaders in the development and
application of Connected Workspace technology and are

pioneers of next generation FM services.

Outsourcing is typically shielded from economic cycles,
benefiting from increased customer cost-cutting focus in
time of economic slowdown, and from contract expansion
in economic upturns. We believe our national footprint
and multi-service propasition remain compeliing and a
clear differentiator.

Mitie has actively engaged with its customers and
stakehokders during the last 12 months, providing context
and assurances. We have seen limited impact on our
operational business as a result of competitor or industry
activity, and we remain fully focused on our transformation
programme and the execution of our strategy.

www.mitiecom | The exceptional, every day

UK economy

Brexit continues to generate uncertainty within the UK
economy. UK real GDP growth slowed from 1.9% in 2016
to 1.7% in 2017, the weakest since 2012 as consumer
spending slowed and businesses held back on irwestment.
The expected growth in 2018 ks 1.5%.

The Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development forecasts that economic growth in the UK
is to remain modest at 1.4% in 2018 and 1.3% in 2019,
owing to high uncertainties about the outcome of Brexit
negatiations. There is little slack in the economy following
years of strong growth, and unemployrment is projected
to remzin below 5%. inflation is projected to fall gradually
to slightly above the 2% target of the Bank of England by
the end of 2019.

Potential Brexdt impacts are expected to be minimal at
Mitie, though could be felt in wage inflation and we have
budgeted for increasing remuneration costs in FY 18/19, In
Catering, our only business-to-customer division, we have
seen some impact from food price inflation. We have
responded to these pressures by offiering menu variety
and a wellbeing focus.

More broadly, across the Group, we are reshaping our
business with a laser-focus on our key value drivers:
customers, tosts, technology and people. The transfonmation
programme Is beginning to deliver significant cost savings
and efficlency gains, which will help us protect our margins.

Public sector services constitute c.35% of Mitie's business,
with our biggest client being the Horne Office thiough

the recently won Detention & Escorting contract.

We believe there are further opportunities for Mitie

in the public sector.




Customer expectations

Customer expectations are evolving with a growing
interest in sustainabfity, wellbeing and technology,
reducing costs and improving the working environment
and emplovee satisfaction and health. Customers continue
to want different FM service options including single-line,
bundied, integrated and managed services.

Customers are Increasingly looking at flexible workspace
solutions and detmanding real-time data, analysis and
insights which potentially lead to improving the
performance of their estate as well as the performance
and wellbeing of their peaple.

We are developing and embedding acrass our own and
our customers’ businesses aur Connected Workspace
technology. This includes an open source platform which
can integrate with multiple systems and data sources,
perform advanced data analytics and deliver solutions
through easy-to-use customer interfaces. We are
future-proofing the business through technology and
have a number of Connected Workspace partnerships
already deployed.

Our nation-wide fiexible offering remains attractive and
the self-delivery model coupled with the smart use of
technology ensures that service expertise and consistent
delivery are at the core of every customer interaction.

We are ambitious for the future of the FM industry, our
customers and our employees. We have set out a clear
strategy to deliver growth and to pioneer next generation
facilities management.

Legislation

As a major employer, we have to comply with the
developing legal and regulatory frameworks in areas such
as taxation, the National Minimum Wage (NMW) and the
National Living Wage {(NLW), the Apprenticeship Levy and
the Modern Slavery Act.

The NLW for workers aged 25 and over increased by 4.4%
from £7.50 to £7.83 from April 2018. The NMW and NIW
are essential baseline protections for all workers, and the
government remains committed to ensuring that all those
who are due the NMW or NLW receive it.

The Apprenticeship Levy is required from UK employers to
fund new apprenticeships and charged at a rate of 0.5% of
an employer’s payroll. By law all employers must offer a
workplace pension scheme tn eligible employees.

Pressure on margins for our core UK FM business will
likely continue as labour costs increase {driven by rising
NMW, NLW, the Introduction of the Apprenticeship Levy
and increases in employer coptributions for pension
auto-enrclment). The majority of our existing contracts
already contain a change-of-law clause. However, going
forward all our new contracts will contain such a provision,
helping us protect our margins. We are looking to utilise
the Apprenticeship Levy for frontline staff training and
development. We are also moving beyond a 1abour-plus’
model towards more value-added services. At the same
time, technology plays an increasing role in Mitie’s future.

We pald £4m into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in
FY 17/18.

The impact to Mitie from workplace pension scheme was
£4m in FY 17/18 and in FY 18/19 it is expected to be £8m.

The exceptional, everyday | wwe.mitie.com



Chief Becutive’s reviaw

A year of discovery

and transformation

Image removed

Phil Bentiey, Chief Executive

Dear Mitis Sharsholder,

1 am very pleased to be updating you on my first full year as CEO
of Mitle Group pic. It has been a year of discovery, simplification,
transformation and significant change. And | firmily believe we
have made much progress in the last 12 months, building the
foundations that will ensure Mitie continues to be at the
forefront of the UK Facilities Management industry.

1 have two primary roles as 8 CEO. The first is to lead and inspire
an incredible Mitie workforce of 49,000 people the length and
breadth of the country. From gritiing the roads overnight when
the winter snows fall, to cleaning and polishing the floors of
some of the UK’s most loonic Institutions, to providing
sophisticated security schemes for high street retallers, to
feeding Britain’s hungry woridorce — | have been impressed,
and occasionally humbled in the last 12 months by ny Mitle
tolleagues going that extra mile.

The second Is to bulld a business that Is fit for purpose and fully
responds 1o the needs of our customers. We need to be true
partners to our clients, sharing in value creation, benefiting
together from advances in technology and together, asplring to
be truly exceptional in all that we do. That means me getting out
there talking with our customers and in the last year, | have
visited a huge number of them. So important is the work of our
frontline staff for our customers, that this year | tasked the
100-strong Mitle Group Leadership Team to each undertake a
frontline shift in our operations. Listening, leamning, hearing
about the ideas our staff and customers have for how we could
do better is invaluable in shaping our future.

| believe if the strategy Is right, our stff are engaged and our
customers are happy — we have the redipe for success. This will
then deliver long-term shareholder value.

2 www.mitie.com | Tha exceptional, every doy

“We are implementing a major
transformation programme,
addressing challenges and
opportunities as they arise, whilst
focusing on our medium-term
strategic goals.”

Strategy and transformation

The strategy that we set out this time last year has provided a
strong framework for our actions in the last year, We are
executing a wholesale transformation of the Group in a
challenging market. We are actively engaging with our private
and public sector customers, our regulators and our other
stakeholders to help bring about the changes our sector needs
to thrive, and there are a significant number of projects and
deliverables that we are driving forward. By using the four
strategic pillars of our overarching strategy — customer, cost,
technology and people — we have remained focused on the task
in hand and { am confident in our abiiity to deliver on

our ambitions.

P Putting our custonvers st tha heart of our business
We have put a major focus on our customers. Mitie has a diverse
and impresshve list of over 3,000 major clients and we firmiy
believe making them happy will drive our own business success.
Historically Mitle engaged with its customers in a somewhat
fragmented way, creating confusion for them and making cllent
servicing as well as cross-selling for us, more difficult. Yo address
this, we have undertaken a full audit of our customer portfolio;
we have centralised the commerctal and sales function so that
our customers have one primary point of contact with the
business; we have implemented one CRM system that gives us
valuable, accurate insight across our business units; and we are
deploying a standardised internal approach to engagement,
dataflow and reporting. We have also centralised our bid
processes and have Initisted a formal New Business Committee
for all commercial opportunities. And we have rolled out a
Group-wide Net Promoter Score programme to understand
what our customers really think. The outcome of this is that we
have more efficient, less castly, more customer-focused teams;




and our customers are increasingly enjoying simpler access, ease
of navigation around Mitie and greater visibility of their account
team. We have more still ta do but we expect to reap further
benefits from these actions in the year ahead. Our Net Promaoter
Score across our top 100 accounts grew by 17 points and the
revenue from our top 40 customers grew 9% year-on-year.

P Transforming our cost base

In june 2017, we taunched Project Helix, to kick start changing
the DNA of Mitie. This ambitious three-year programme involves
the simplification of our structure, the standardisation of
internal provesses, the rationalisation of our systems and the
removal of spans of management and layers of inefficiencies.
We knew that there was considerable work to be done, but we
also knew that it would deliver significant cost savings and
operational upside. The scale of the task Is larger than we
criginatly anticipated, but we belleve the upside will be
greater too.

We have aimaost completed the full transformation of our
Finance function, inciuding outsourcing our back-office
processes to Genpact in Kolkata. We are near compiletion of our
HR restructure with a new centralised HR onganisational
structure and a new Group-wide HR operational system {SAP),
replacing multiple legacy systems. We have fully collapsed the
highly fragmented ‘Mitle eam-out model’ and we are intending
to move from over SO legal entities towards one operational
reporting entity in FY 18/19, greatly simplifying our intemal
processes and systems, reducing internal recharging and
streamilining almost every aspect of the business. We have built
a small dedicated transformation project office, tasked with the
sequencing and coordination of the Group’s turnaround.
Working closely with the Executive Leadership Team, they will
focus in the year ahead on our IT and Engineering Services
technology transformation programmes.

As at March 2018, this programme has delivered annualised cost
savings of £13.2m, and we expect this to rise to annualised cost
savings of £50m by March 2020.

We are one year into aur three-ysar programme and we have
more to do here but our ambition remains to be the most
efficient, value-focused technology-led company in our industry.

P Building a winning culture and developing and
retaining our peopla

Mitie is a people business, and our alm is to bulld a company

whem:hdmnﬂrhwbeu\ebutthatmnn be,

every day.

We have launched our new “Vision, Purpose, Promises and
Values’ across the organisation under the banner heagline of
"The exceptional, every day’ This articulates and embodies who
we are, what makes Mitie great and where we are taking the
company. k recognises the importance of our people, our
culture, our customars, the role technology plays In our future,
and the journey we are on, They articulate the giue that binds
us. This is an important step forward as we seek to deliver ‘One
Mitie’. Looking ahead we will be embedding these new values in
all aspacts of our organisation, including our annual
performance review, our recruitment, in all our marketing and
customer communications and I our external engagement. You
can find further information on our new Vision, Purpase,
Promises and Values on pages 1 and 38.

In the last year, we relaunched our Group Leadership Team
Forum and we have overhauled our internal communications
programme. We were also delighted to partner with Salary
Finance, launching an innovative new loan scheme for our staff,
which has had a significant uptake with over 1,400 employees
benefiting, helping our people with financial management and
removing the need for staff to use pay day lenders. As part of
the HR transformation, we have appointed a leading third-party
provider to manage the end-to-end process for hiring temporary
resources. We expect efficiency improvements as well as cost
savings from using the new provider. Looking forward we witl be
rolling out a new Learning and Development programme, an
executive mentoring and development scheme and we will be
looking to simpiify reward and recognition across the Group.

In April 2018, we partnered with Aon Hewitt to run Mitle’s 2018
People Survey to set the baseline of our employee engagement,
| am pleased to say that the completion rate was 30% against
19% the year before — almost 15,000 Mitle employees have
responded to the survey. In a period of significant change,
employee engagement improved, but only marginally, and we
have much more to do here, We have evaluatad the results and
identiied the priorities and will be implementing action plans to
drive the change needed to become a great place to work.

Mitie champions apprenticeships, and this year we employed
555 apprentices across the Group, 540 of whom were supported
through the Apprenticeship Levy. We believe we are well

placed to offer exceptional opportunities for those seeking
apprenticeships in a wide variety of roles, and we are planning
to increase the number and variety of apprenticeships that

we offer.

P Investing in technology to make Mitie the saslest
company to do business with
Technology will be a core enabler for Mitie and its customers in
the future. The FM industry is yet to capltalise fully on the
benefits of better technology, but Mitie s at the forefront of
early adoption.
Our Connected Workspace technology — our ‘smart’ proposition
« helps buildings and peopie perform better. It ploneers the
combined use of sensors, data, expertise and inteRigent insight
to give our customers information that is imaluable, helping
them to improve the performance of their estates and their stafl.
In the last 12 months Connected Workspace has been part of
29 successiul Mitie bids and there are 44 further connected
wotkspace propositions in the pipeline. Becoming a technology-
enabled business through our Connected Workspace offering,
we belizve, will be transformational for Mitie. See more on the
Connected Workspace on pages 18 and 19,

Leadership

Our Executive Leadership Team Is now almost complete with the
appointment in the last year of a new Group CFO, Group HR
Director, Group Director of Corporate Affairs & lnvestor
Relations, Group Marketing & Strategy Director and new MDs
for our Engineering Services and Cleaning & Environmental
Services businesses. These appointments have brought valuable
biue-chip and change skills to the senior teamn. We have also
attracted a number of experienced senior managers to the
Group Leadership Team during the year and the business is
benefiting from their expertise, knowledge and diversity.

The exceptional, sverydoy | www.anitle.com 13



Chief Executive’s review continued

Business performance

This, undoubtedly, has been a year of significant change for
Mitie. We are implementing » major transformation programme,
addressing challenges and opportunities as they arise, whilst
focusing on our medium-term strategic goals. This has all been
set against the backdrop of a challenged industry in the
spotlight. Despite this, we have grown our revenues, reduced
aur average daily net debt position and won some major new
customers and oontracts.

We are part way on our journey and we are making good progress.
Adjusted revenue was 2.8% up at £2.2bn on the prior year,
although adjusted operating profit before other items reduced to
£77.1m from £82 Om. The order book grew 2% to £4.5bn and 5
reported under IFRS 15 guidelines which mandate us to include
only fbeed-term contracted work and exciude variable work.

Case & Custody has been the stand-out division this year, winning a
notable £525m 10-year contract to provide Detention & Escorting
services for the Home Office. Engineering Services and Security
have akso had a good year in terms of revenues and contract wins.
Cisaning & Ervironmental Sesvices, pleasingly too, has stabilised
sales after a recent decline. Property Management has not
performed as well as hoped, though this has in part been a resuit
of the distraction of 3 terminated sales process; the business is
beginning now to focus on key social housing opportunities.
Professional Services continues to win consultancy and project
management work, though this has in part been offset by the
ful-year impact of waste contract losses in the previous year.
Of particular note is the traction we are now seeing in our

Connected Workspace proposition, moving from pilot phase into
expansion of initial engagement with a number of customers,
such as a European financiai services comparw, an energy drink
company and a financial services group, Our Technology and
Remote Operating Centre in Bracknell opened this year and
provides a perfect forum to showcase our own smart, connected
technology to clients.

Balance sheet management has baen a core focus for us this year
and will continue to be going forwand. We are committed to
reducing our customer iwoice discounting, normalising debtor and
creditor days, asking clients for falr payment terms, streamlining
our billing processes and delivering faster cash collection, Our
«fforts have seen a notable dedline in average dally net debt and
we ane operating comfortably within our debt covenants.

Looking ahead

Change and transformation are never easy or without challenges.
Mitie is fundamentally a strong business, with great customers,
outstanding staff and a real opportunity ahead of k. We want to
be shaping the FM industry as it continues to evolve, using our
unrivalled expertise, our pioneering technology and our ambition
to propel ourselves forward. We have more to do, but we are on
track and | am pleased with the progress to date. With an uptick
In revenue, a normalising balance sheet, a good order book, a
forused execution plan and experienced leadership, | believe
Mitie ks weli positioned for growth in the upcoming years.

Phil Bentiey
Chief Executive

Net Promoter Score (NPS)

NPS overview

The NPS methodology uses direct customer feedback to measure
the willingness of customers to recommend a company’s
products or services to others, We are committed to delivering
excelient customer experience in support of our purpose to
help our customer be exceptional every day. in FY 17/18,

we started embedding NPS into our operations as one of our
primary customer-focused KPis.

Our approach

We conducted research between lanuary and March 2018
with our top 100 customers fwho account for over SO% of
our aggregate revenues), asking them to fill in a shert online
survey to help us understand their opinions and to capture
an NPS rating for Mitie overall.

How Ekely would you be to recommend Mitie to a friend or colleague?

NPS score 12
months ago

Year-on-year NPS
performance

+17 o Detractor

Our performance: overall Group NPS score

Our NPS Is 2 negative 10; however, it is an Improvement
of 17 points in the last 12 months - a meaningful shift in
customers’ views of Mite and a testament that we are on
the right track to have & positive Impact on our customers.

Outlook and next steps

We will roll out a more extensive programme to cover a wider
and deeper section of our customer base. We anticipate that
achieving improvements in NPS will become increasingly
challenging but It Is an essentlal part of our customer
engagement strategy. NPS will be built into our training plans,
ensuring our people are informed and empowered to
consistently deliver a great customer experience.

e Passive o Promoter
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Strategy

Delivering on
our strategy

Our four strategic imperatives frame our objective of growing customer lifetime value
by offering compelling propositions and delivering the basics brilliantly.

Customer

People

Image removed

* We put our customers at the heart of our
business and have introduced a Net
Promoter Score programme to track our
performance

* We bulld close working relationships with
customers to understand their needs and
defiver fifetime value

+ We deliver the basics brilliantly so we can
then cross-sell, create, bulld and tailor
compelling offerings for customers

Image rernoved

+ We are transforming Mitie into a place to
work where our employees can thrive and
be their best every day

» We offer opportunities for individual
leaming, development and progression and
reward great work

+ We empower our people to be free to make
decislons that improve our customer service,
every day

* Trust and respect among all our
employees irrespective of their senlority
are an essential cornerstone for aur success

Cost

Technology

Image removed

¢ Project Hellx is changing Mitie’s DNA to
make it the most efficient company in our
industry, with the lowest cost base

* We are embedding the Mitie Way of
doing things consistently across
the Group

= We are instilling the ‘One Mitie’ culture to
deliver an unrivalled service

Image removed

* We are creating standardised platforms
and applications across our business and
for our customers

* We are using predictive analytics and

algorithms in 2 unique way to generate

new Insights and opportunities for our
customers

We are focused on developing tailored

seamless customer interfaces

We are ploneers In the delivery

of next generation FM

The exceptional, everydey | www.mitie.com
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Key Performance Indicators

Monitoring our progress

Adjusted revenue® growth {3}

Description 2 S(y How we di it Outiook
Revenue growth reflects the . 0 We are one year into our three-year Our plan is to achieve
health of our order book, our £2140m £2,199m transformation programme to 3%-4% revenue growth in
abllity to upsell, pipeline of = “ re-engineer Mitie’s DNA. We are the mediumn term.
potential oppo:'tunlﬂes, our building a world-class commercial
win and retention rates and team, investing In customer service
our broader reputation in and technology to drive customer
the sector, retention and win rates. We are
FY16/17 FY17/18  embedding One Mitie approach to

working with our customers and

winning new business,
Adjusted operating profit™* margin (%)
Description 30b How we did it Outigok
The UK FM industry is a ps Our unwavering focus 5 on achleving Out medium-term plan &
mature Mmarket characterised 3.8% 3.5% internal cost savings through our o improve operating profit
by low margins. Historically, Project Hellx. In FY 17/18, whilst we margin to 4.5%-5.5%.
Mitie has not been disciplined achleved some of the cost savings we
mr:tsblddln;forcmtmctsor :;:;n:ted,weahohmdmed

owmm costs. ino customer sesvice
Internal capabilities.
FY16/17 ¥FY17/18

Average dally net deb® (Em)
Description _ £ 50 How we did it Outiook
Our balance sheet health is m We reduced the average dally net debt Proactive management
of paramount importance to by £50m due to the £24m benefit from will be an ongolng theme.
the long-term sustainability of higher average invoice discounting and Over the madium term,
our business. improved working capital performance. wa alm to continue to

ﬁ .
FY16/17 FY17/28

Net debt/EBITDA (x)

reduce our average daily
net debt.

Description
Period end net debt/EBITDA <3.00x
ratio is one of the debt 1.76x 198x
covenants used to assess our .
financial position. .

FY16/17 #1718

Howwedidit

The period-end net debt increased by
£46.3m to £193.5m as we focused on
normalising working capital and
reducing the use of invoice discounting
at the end of the financlal year. We
continue to operate comfortably within
our debt covenants.

1. Ravenus und opersting profit mangin sre presented on an APM basis: FY 17/18 pre-IFRS 15 and FY 16/17 per prior year APM.

2. Before other items.

Outiook

Our ohjective Is to bring
average net debt/EBITDA
to within 2x over the
medium term.

3. Order baok for both years reported undar RS 15 guidelines which mandate us to include only fixed-term contracted work and excude variable work.
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In the first year of our three-year transformation programme, the year

of discovery, we reviewed and identified relevant indicators to drive

the execution of our strategy and create value for ali our stakeholders.

Order book®* (Em)

Description 2 4(y How we did it Outiook

We are reporting the order . o The order book grew 2.4%: ES order We expect our order book

book under JFRS 15 guidelines £4,392m EAASSM book remained stable while the order o grow moderately

for both FY 17/18 and FY book within Care & Custody grew as we embed our

16/17. This requires us to significantly on the back of the Connected Workspace

include only fixed-tarm Detention & Escorting contract win, offering in bids and

contracted work and excludes These more than offset declines in contracts and drive our

variable work, such as catering order books in other divisions. core businesses forward.

point-of-sale. FY16/17 FY17/18

Net promoter score (index)

Description + 17 How we did It Outiook

NPS is a measure for gauging Movement of +17 points ks a sighificant This will be a core focus

the customer’s overall improvement and is testament to the and we will be further

satisfaction with a company's - significant investment we have made developing our CRM

product or service and the In our customers this year. programme, our customer

customer’s loyalty to -10 communications and our

the brand. engagement this year.

FY16/17 FY17/18

Staff turnover (%)

Description 10 70/ How we did it Outlook

We measure the number of - »/ /0 Ourvoluntary turnover has reduced In FY 18/19, we wil build on

employees jeaving us 27.5% year-on-year due to investment in our the work to date, introduce

voluntarily over a 12-month frontline managers; we are getting better technology to engage

period agalhst our 16.8% better at hiring to common standards with our employees, roll out

overall headeount. and introducing SAP Success Factors a new leaming platform to
has improved our onboarding oontinue to develop talent
experience ieading to 3 more Informed and streamiine hiring.

FY16/17 FY17/18  ingduction. We have launched new We will be reflecting our
common values, new values in a new set of
Mitie ‘behaviours’,

Leamning and development spend (£/per head)

Description How we did it Outiock

Our learning and development Using the Apprenticeship Levy We will use a “Levy First’

spend per head covers 3 we have invested more in our people approach to fund training,

combination of compliance year-on-year providing development utifising the new Learning

training and development opportunities aligned to our Hub to fadlitate dightal

training using internal and NOT career pathways. learning and ensuring we

external resources. AVARABLE

FY16/17 FY17/18

FY 16/17: Data unavailable.
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Stratagy in action

Shaping the future of a
technology-led Facilities Management

company

Technology, customers and the Connected Workspace

The world of Facllitles Management Is evolving fast. The sector
has faced a number of recent challenges, but with those
challenges we believe comes Immense opportunity as the
industry takes stock, recalibrates and moves forward. Mitie is
ambitious for its future, its customers and its employees and has
set out a clear strategy to deliver growth and to pioneer next
generation facilities management. The Group's strategy focuses
on four key pillars, customers, people, costs and technology. All
will play a critical role in differentiating our business. Mitie’s
vislon Is to deliver the exceptional, every day, through
outstanding customer service, supporting and motivating our
excellent people and, critically, the application of

advanced technology.

We strongly betieve that technology will be the cornerstone
upon which our business delivers long-term, sustainable value
for our shareholders and customers. By focusing on our
technology development, we are improving aur own efficlency
and systems, indirectly enhancing our service defivery as well as
developing leading-edge technology-enabled propesitions
directly for our customers. Mitie is proud to be at the forefront
of technology-enabled next-generation FM.

Our Connected Workspace philosoplw Is already being
embedded across aur own business and across our clent
proposition. We are beginning to see the Iinitial benefits of this
approach as the Connected Workspace has been a core
component of 10% of our significant IFM or multi-service wins.
And we are beginning to see how deployment of this smart
technology is dramatically changing our own, and our clients’
working environments. Connected Workspace IS helping
organksations create high performance work enrvironments by
Improving the performance of their buildings and the wellbeing
and performance of their people.

18 www.mitle.com | The exceptional, every day

At Its core, Connected Workspace Is 2 technology platform of

linked products and services. k includes:

* a‘data lake’ that collects, combines and processes data from
multiple sources and business functions, Advanced analytics
are then applied to this pool of data to proviie new insights,
improving bullding performance, people praductivity, the
working environment and cost to dellver. it is open sourced so
non-Mitie apps, portals and data sources can als0 be
oonnected to the platform;

= an analytical portal through which Information, analytics and
insights are managed, communicated and acted upon. This
provides real-time visibility and management of often large
compiex operational estates —~ in a way that has before now
not been possible; and

» user apps which provide the abllity for bullding users to
interact with thelr environments.

Mitie's development of the Connected Workspace technology
platform is market-leading. & is designed to allow connection to
any external data or workflows, is highly scalable, is purpose-
built for the specific needs of the FM and Corporate Real Estate
industries and has been developed with world-class technology
partners such as Microsoft.

By harnessing data, creating Insights and applying those Insights
to improve the performance of bulldings and people, the
Connected Workspace technology platform Is demonstrating
significant benefits for both Mitie and our customers thwough:

= Improving cost control and reducing downtime: decisions
become real-time, data-driven and predictive which reduces
the cost to serve and increases the performance and
resilience of factiitias;

« greater efficiency and higher productivity: previously hidden
cata and insights enable processes, systems and resources to
be fine-tuned to optimise efficiency and productivity;

« talent attraction and retention: peopfe are empowered to
adjust their working environments and services to sult their
own persona) preferences. Life Is made easier as friction Is
remaoved from everyday activity; and

+ Improved governance, compliance and reduced risk:
transparency of information radically improves governance as
Information, processes and performance are easy to locate,
ronitor and evidence,




image removed

in FY 17/18, Mitie was awarded a three-year contract with
the Co-op following a competitive tender process. Co-op’s
support centre in Manchester, One Anget Square, is one of
Europe’s most sustainable buildings and Is built to a
BREEAM ‘outstanding’ rating, achleving a record BREEAM
soone on opening. Demonstrating its commitment to
waorking with the Co-op, Mitie will make a significant
Investment in implementing its Connected Workspace
technology at One Angel Square. Co-op and Mitie will
collaboratively implement tailored technology to capture
and manage buikling usage data. This includes monitoring
a number of erwironmental elements such as temperature
and occupancy. Mitie will hamess this data and use the
insight to make both the Co-op’s bulldings smarter and the
working lives better for its employees, The inkiatives will
improve space utilisation for workstations and meeting
rooms, and enhance empioyee wellbeing through active
environment control and wellbeing monitoring.

Connected Workspace has been part of 29 successful Mitie bids
and there are 44 further Connected Workspace propositions in
the pipeline. Further, Mitie currently has nine dedicated pilots
deployed, with a further 14 in the planning stage. 5,000 sensors
have been Installed providing two million messages a day imo
the data kake.

Following the announcement in June 2017 that we were
working with Microsoft to defiver on Mitie's vision for the
Connected Workspace, the relationship has deepened.

Microsoft has provided the expertise, skills and technology
Infrastructure to support the development and roll-out of the
core Connected Workspace technologles. We have accelerated
the development of Mitie’s Azure-based data lake, the ingestion
of data from both Internet of Things (loT) devices and
operational platforms.

Mitle and Microsoft teams have coliaborated to ensure
Connected Workspace design and architecture are both open by
design and secure by design, enabling Mitie to integrate with
many buliding management systems and IoT device
manufacturers, as well as acting as an integration platform on
Azure. This strong and strategic collaboration will allow the
Connected Workspace to enable a safe secure dient experience
for all of our customers.

Becoming a technoiogy-enabled business through our
Connected Workspace offering, we belleve, will be
transformational for Mitie and for the industry as a whole. We
are committed to continuing to reckace costs for our customers,
improve thelr employee experience, reduce our own cost to
serve and improve the margin structure of our business. We are
excited about a technology-enabled FM sector, and we are
committed to being at the forefront of the future of Facllities
Management.
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We are built on
integrity and trust

Integrity and trust are at
the heart of all we do.

Our employees are the face
of the company. We treat
others as we would like to
be treated. Our people are
proud to work for Mitie.

Joshua
Groundskeeper,
Landscapes
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Oparating review

Operating review

To enable an effective comparison of our performance, adjusted
revenue and adjusted operating profit are presented for both FY
17/18 and FY 16/17 as Alternative Performance Measures
(APMs}. Fy 17/18 adjusted numbers are presented on pre-IFRS
15 basis. FY 16/17 adjusted numbers are presented as per last
year's APM, for continulng operations, restated to reflect
changes in management reporting implemented in 2018 for
certain business unit activities transferring between segments.
The order book Is presented for continuing operations in kne
with [FRS 15 requirements for both FY 17718 and FY 16/17,

Engineering Services

Mitie Engineering Services (ES) is a leading provider of
engineering services in the UK, delivering technical and buliding
malintenance services across a wide range of sectors and real
estate assats,

We focus on customer experience, providing the best
technology-integrated solutions and building long-term
customer relationships. To complement our core offering, the
division also supplies speclalist services in heating, cooling,
lighting, water treatment and buliding controls.

Performance

£m PATAR  FY16/17 Oange K

Revenue Reported® 840.7 789.1 6.5
Adjusted® 833.8 803.7 3.7

Operating profit/{loss)

before other hems Reportad® 458 (45} nm
Adjusted? 355 330 2.6

Orcler book® 2064220952 (15)

1. FY 17718 reported on post-IFRS 15 busis and FY 36/L7 on a raported basis.

2. Presented on an ARemitive Performance Messure (APM) basis: FY 17/18
Pra-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 par prior yaer APM.

3. Ovtler book for both yeirs reported under IFRS 15 puldelines which
mandate us to include only fed-term o work and exciud,
variable work

Key stats
* We look after 2.5m assets for our customaers.

« Wa handie c.1m reactive calls every year within ES.
» 2,700 angineers.
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Operational performance

InFY 17/18, we enhanced the quality and efficiency of the service we
provide to customers by creating more effective operational teams
and streamiining internal processes; in FY 18/19 we will be further
Investing in state-of-the-art technology to continue this programme,
As part of the overall re-shaping of the Engineearing Services business,
we have focused on retucing tayers and increasing spans of control.
As part of our One Mitie approach we have centralised owr Group
Sales team, who service our key nationad accounts, to ensure our
austomers receive the highest quality of care and sesvice.

During the year, we continued to invest in our key dient
relationships. We also Introduoed Client Operations Bxecutive roles
(alignad with the sales structure) to drive cdear accountability for the
owverall performance for our largest and most valuable customers.

To suppaort our growth strategy, we have embarked on a
mulktiyear transformation as part of the Mitie-wide Project Helix
programme and we are already beginning to see the benefits of
this. In FY 17718, we faced a number of chaflenges in our
operational delivery, but we are now starting to see major
Improvements In engineer utilisation and service defivery.

We have mada notable progress in the following focus areas:

clearly defining our core operational metrics;
« sharing best practice an-job planning for our mobile workforce;

= redesigning the arganisation for consistency and
standardisation; and

+ listening more to customer feedback.

Engineering Services in action

Image removed

We have seen impressive improvements within our Flest
operations, where we reduced our hire vehicles by 247,
resulting in a 33% cost reduction. We have seen cost savings
of £100,000 through rigorous monitoring and impravement
plans, which resulted in fewer accidents and insurance
daims. We won the ROSPA award \n 2017 for the health and
safiety record on two of our big contracts. We have aiso seen
2 20% reduction in RIDDOR Accident Incident Rate per 1,000
employees over the past 12 months.




As part of the Engineering Services transformation programme,
we launched Mitie Innovate, which was introduced at the end of
2017. A pllot reglon In London was chosen to test and improve
Initiatives before rolling them out to the rest of cur national
team. As part of the initial roll-out, we conducted 20+ ride-
alongs with our mobile and site-based engineers to understand
how they went about their day and how we could help provide a
better experience for customers and our frontiine teams. In the
eight-week period following the launch of Mitie Inhovate, we
saw significant improvements in operational KPis from the
frontline; for example, our engineers were 6% more productive
{completing more jobs per productive hour), with some
sub-reglons improving by 20%. Thelr travel time reduced by 12%
with some sub-regions showing a decrease by 30%; and the
first-time fix rate improved by 4% with some sub-regions
Improving the first-time fix rate by 13%.

The Irntegration of our core workforce has created a highly
flexible and skilled team with optimal support systems.
Workfiow management for scheduling, tasking and billing wil
start to be introduced in FY 18/19 and our engineers will neosive
enhanced training and tools to enable them to continue to
deliver the highest quality of sefvice.

In the future, technology wil be a key ensbler for Engineering
Services, it will be depioyed to link outputs to the Connected
Workspace, generating actionable data insights and providing
the most responsive and valued service In the market. By using a
combination of existing bullding systems and environment sensors,
along with energy, asset and workplace data, we are providing
tallored solutions to satisfy each dient’s unique requirements.

This vear, Engineering Services won a multi-year contract for i
Co-op’s corporate sites, a 5.5-year extension with Heathrow
Airpart and further work with the Scottish Government. We also
retalned a significant contract with an NHS Trust. These wins and
extensions offset the previously announced loss of a top-20
contract and of another, due to a merger.

Financial performance

The Engineering Services division reported adjusted revenue

of £833.8m, an increase of 3.7% on the prior year of £803.7m,
driven by good performances from both its core customer
contracts {growth of 39%) as well as growth in s projects
business. Adjusted operating profit before other ltems was
£35.5m (FY 16/17 £33.0m} reflecting revenue growth and higher
gross margins on net new contract wins versus losses. Cost
savings from Project Helbe were largely reinvested back into
improvement in customer service levels, staff training

and technology.

Notwithstanding the loss of an important top 20 contract, the
outiook remains positive. We achieved a number of contract
extensions and new business wins during the year, meaning the

order book remains relatively stable at £2.1bn {FY 16/17: £2.1bn).

The business Is also planning @ major investrment into its
workflow technology over the next couple of years which will
improve the experience of our customers whilst also simplifying
the business enabling a reduction In costs to serve.

Outlook

The significant focus within the Engineering Services division for
FY 18/19 will be on our ongoing transformation. We have
commenced the scoping phase, looking into asset and workflow
scheduling. We are coming to the end of the discovery phase for
the workflow transformation programime.

The objective of this stage of the transformation Is to fully

upgrade our end-to-end service delivery, from job recelpts to

billing, via process re-engineering, operational restructure and

technology implementation. This will:

« improve first-time fix and customer experience by having the
right detalis at enquiry;

» increase efficiency through better resource planning by
matching right-skilled resource to the job;

= protect revenue and increase hilling accuracy through
automating time-sheeting and proof of work;

= improve delivery through better engineering capacity
planning, upskilling labour and supply chain management; and

+ better engage, inspire and manage our people.

Security
The Security division comprises Security Management, Front of

House, Document Management, and our employee vetting
business, Procius.

Performance

(] FYLI/AB Y 16/17 Change, %

Revenue Reported! 4320 4037 70
Adjustec? 4317 4037 69

Operating profit

before other tems  Reported® 275 178 54.5
Adjusted® 252 216 16.7

Order book® 6408 7243 (11.5)

1. FY 17/18 reported on post-IFRS 15 basis and FY 16/17 on a reported basls.

2. Presented on an Altermative Pesformance Measure (APM) basis: FY 17718
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16717 par prior ysar APM.

3. Order book for both yaars reported under IFRS 15 guldelines which mendate
us 1o Inchude anly fomd-sarm contracted work and sciude vartably work.

Key stats

s We monitor 23,000 lone worker devices at MiTec.

* ¢.7m visitors welcomed by our Front of House teams.
» 13,000 security personnel.
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Dpersting review continued

Operational performance

Our Security bussiness is one of the market-Jeaders in the UK The
combination of seaxity-related businesses within a single division
allows us to develop our technalogy capabliities and solutions in a
coliaborative and integrated way. Our goal is to build upon and
strengthen our mariet pasition; continue to influence buying
behaviours; and develop longer-term strategic partnerships with our
customers through Innovative and technology-led operating modets.

Our strategy ks to provide a sustainable, high-quality service to our
customers that mitigates the risks they face through employing
highty skiled personnel, enhanced and supplemented by inbegrated
technologies. This enables our services to flex and be deployed to
meet our customers” inclividual risk profiles at any given time.

By providing innovative proprietary technology to drive 8
risk-based deployment model, we save management time and
increase efficiency. This results in effective front-line security
deployment, complemented by the latest tachnology. Our
clients benefit from a greater return on investment, excelient
customer servios and an improved risk frameworlk.

Wae are currently the second largest security services provider in
the UK with a ¢.12% market share. We integrate and deliver a
full suite of servioes and products, including security personned,
emergency mobile response solutions, fire and security systems
inclusive of CCTV/alarm installation, and maintenance and
remote monitoring from our convergence security operations
centre {MITec). This sulte of services is supported by a risk-based
approach and industry-leading risk tools. We are the market
feading provider in the Transport, Aviation and Retail sectors.

In FY 17/18, Mitle’s Security division has renewed or expanded
several major contracts, including with DP World Southampton,
a major transport sector client, a major London Alrport, Fujitsu,
Durham University, Springfields Fuels Limited and TNT. Customer
retention rate improved to 93.5% against 84% in the prior year.
Notable new contract awards in FY 17/18 include a UK retaller, a
giobal delivery services company and The Royal Academy of Arts.
Document Management has had another robust year with client
retefttion running at 98% and good organic growth. Key new
customers inciude a giobal investment bank and an international
law firm. We have seen the document management business
recognised with two national PFM awards for work with our
clients, PwC and Linkiaters. Document Management launched
two new product fines in FY 17/18: document production and
examiner services, both focused on servicing the lega! sector.
The husiness has continued to develop its national coverage and
now has a full-service offering ranging from managed print
solutions and outsourcing of mall room activities, to a complete
customised restructuring of document workflows and processes.

Our Front of House business, Signature, has had a good year,
refocusing Its market offering. The business has progressed
under new leadership and moved towards a closer alignment
with our wider security business, an example of this being the
award of The Rayal Academy of Arts contract. Our new identity,
Signature, signifies a clear change in both the culture and future
direction of the business and Is underpinned by several
impactful programmes to drive growth and sustainability,
particularly in new business wins and dient retention.
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Security Services in action

Image removed

in 2017, Procius, our vetting services busiess, compieted an
impressive number of checks for the Avistion industry customers,
vetting 736 pllots, 2,508 cabin crew and 925 ground staft

Procius, our employes vetting business, which i one of the UK's
{argest vetting providers, and the isader in the Transpart and Aviation
Sectors for pre-employment screening and criminal records checking
services, continues t0 deliver strong growth. in FY 17/18, we saw
increasing demand for our services acrass existing key customers.in
the Aviation Sector along with good contract wins, including 2
market leading logistics company, a leading company in the travel
and towrism sector and a Premier League foothall club.

The security market remains highly competitive. We continue to
focus on delivering sustainable growth through strong customer
engagement, the provision of a comprehensive service offering
and the promotion of the benefits of risk-based technology-led
solutions. We strive to attract and retaln our customers through
the provision of exceptional service.,

Financial performance

The Security division grew Its adjusted revenue by 6.9% in

FY 17/18 to £431.7m. This was achieved through new sales wins
and record low contract terminations (with a retention rate

of 93,5%). Adjusted operating profit before other items
increased 16.7% to £25.2m with operational efficiencies and the
growing use of technalogy adding to the impact of the improved
top-iine performance. Outside the main security businesses,
good performances from Document Management and Front of
House also contributed to the overall profit growth.

innovation remains a core focus in Security. in FY 17/18 we
developed and expanded our contract with a leading
supermarket chain, with the introduction of SMART risk

. technology and 5,000 lone worker devices, aiding the full

implementation of a risk-based deployrnent model.




Technojogy-driven accounts now make up ¢.12% of the business.
The order book is £640.8m, down from £724.3m, as the unwinding
of large multi-year contracts more than offset new wins,

Within the Security business, technology and the Connected
Workspace play an Increasingly important role for both our
existing and future customers. We have secured several excellent
technology-enabled contracts from developing existing and new
customers, including contract wins with an engineering company
and a major UK retailer. The control centre for the 10-year Home
Office Detention & Escorting contract won within Care & Custody
will be iocated at MiTec in Belfast. We saw continued growth of
contracts with legacy Fire customers, a telecommunications
company and a leading finandial services customer, and we also
secured new maintenance customers In the NHS and with Rexel,

Outlook

We are optimistic and ambitious for the year ahead. Our focus
continues to be on growing our Security business, offering
customers tallored solutions, increasing the use of technology to
ensure a safe environment and provide seamless operations and
utilising data and analytics generated through our proprietary
Connected Workspace offering.

Professional Services
Profesalona! Services (PS) brings together Mitie’s consultancy
services. This inciudes our Energy, Water and Sustainabiity
business, our Waste and Ervironmental consultancy and our
Corporate Real Estate and Risk and Resillence operations. It is also
develoning our Connected Workspace offering for the Group.

Performance

£m WIS FY16/17  Ghonge %

Revenue Reported* 902 966 (6.6)
Adjusted? 908 966 (60

Operating profit

before other items  Reported® 65 67 (30
Adjusted® 70 93 (24.7)

Order book® 755 815 {74)

1. FY 17/18 repurted on post-4FRS 15 basls and F¥ 16/17 on a reported badis.

2. Presented on on Alternative Performance Measure [APM) basls: FY 17/18
Pra-iFRS 15; FY 16/17 per prior yeir APM.

3. Order book for both years reported under IFRS 15 guldelines which mandate
s 10 inchude only fixed-term contracted work and exdude variable work.

Key stats

* Over 1000 customer bulldings connacted to ROC.

s Oyer 3,000 ehergy surveys conducted.
= £1.1bn-worth of energy bitls wiidated each year.

Operational performance

Energy, Water & Sustainability develop smarter ways to procure,
manage, comply, govern and optimise consumption. Waste &
Environmental focus on a sustainability-led ‘resource, not waste’
approach: understanding how waste is created and then looking
at how to avold producing it in the first place. Corporate Raal
Estate Services provide property and real estate services to
deliver exceptional, flexible working environments for our
clients. Risk & Resilience focuses on threat, risk and resllience
consultancy to help our clients manage their risks.

Connected Workspace customer solutions work to develop and

deliver tachnology that unlocks workspace potential by hamessing
data to make bulldings smarter and working lives better.

During the year, within our recently established Professiona!
Services {PS) division, the focus has been to bring together and
align a number of businesses and service offerings, combining
technical skills and teams to lay the foundations for future
growth. This has included bringing in new senlor leaders for our
Occupier Services, Risk and Resilience and Connected Workspace
businesses. In addition, we have added senior business
development staff 1o help drive sales actively across the division.

The division started FY 17/18 with the headwind of two contract
losses in Waste Management and the Immediate focus was on
replacing these revenues. Contract wins during FY 17/18, most
significantly with two major manufacturing clients ensured that
the Waste Management business revenue returned to growth in
2H 17/18. Notwithstanding the revenue impact from the prior
year, the Waste Management taam has delivened improved
operating profit through a drive to simplify its cost structure and
focus on profitable revenues.

The Energy component of our Sustainabliity business has
performed well with significant wins, including a contract with a
major telecommunications provider and a ground-source
heat-pump project delivering significant carbon and cost savings
to an engineering client. Consequently, it grew revenue by 16%,
also demonstrating growth in operating profit and margin.
Within the year we have brought our Water Management
business into the PS division to complement our Sustainability
offering. We are restructuring this business to retum It to growth
following the completion of a Mitie earn-out and the departure
of the previous management team at the end of FY 16/17.

We continue 10 win real estate consultancy and project
management work as demonstrated by the award of two new
significant international project management frameworks with
global technology businesses.

Our Connected Workspace offer has moved from aarly pilot into
deployment stages with a number of clients across Mitie and we
are plaased to report that we have opened our innovation
Centre in Bracknedl, Furthermore, we have agreed and
implemented strategic partnerships with various world-class
technology partners, including Microsoft and Vodsfone. Working
across the Group, the PS division continues to define, design,
trial and sell our Connected Workspace technology solutions and
capabilities to assist our clients in improving the performance of
their bulldings and people.
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Operating review continued

We have seen significant interest from existing and potential
customers In all areas of our business in our Connected
Workspace offering. We are now running nine live pilots at
tustomer sites, with another 14 currently in the pipeline. 5,000
sensors have been deployed providing us with two miilion
readings each day which are fed into our data lake informing
insight into building and peopie performance and offering
tangible solutions to our customers to improve results and
save money.

Mitle’s commitment to transforming and Improving customer
experience and service is further demonstrated by the
investment in consulting services and support by the PS division.
During the year, our professional services cofleagues werne
deployed to work with our account management teams to drive
Improvement in the customer experience and service for many
of our large PM clients. Given the work carried out to date, we
do not expect the same volume of investment in internatfy
focused engagement to be required in FY 18/19.

Financial performance

The two major Waste contract losses in the prior financial period
saw the PS division start the year from a lower base, and overall
the PS division reported adjusted revenue of £90.8m, down
6.0%. Adjusted operating profit before other ltems dropped to
£7.0m (FY 16/17: £9.3m), with good performances in Waste &
Sustainability driven by operational efficlency measures more
than offset by Investment in internal capabilities and in customer
service. During the year the business also bullt Real Estate, Risk
Management and Intemnational service capabilliities further
enhancing our consultancy offering.

The order book stands at £25.5m against FY 16/17 of £81.5m
with this reduction driven mainly by a re-evaluation of owr Water
Management order book and the unwinding of large multi-year
contracts, which have more than offset new wins.

Outlook

The division has recorded a number of contract wins at higher
mangins during FY 17/18 and, with an energised sales drive to
generate new business in the year ahead, the division has closed
the year with strong momentum. The revenue pipeline In our
Real Estate Occupier Services consultancy, Connected Workspace
and international service nes has begun to show encouraging
growth; and our technology-led Connected Workspace strategy
continues to support growth opportunities across Mitie,

This momentum has delivered fourth quarter FY 17/18 revenues
8.9% higher than those in the first quarter, providing a better
trajectory Into next year.

Our focus Is to act as a trusted partner to our dients, creating
exceptional environments for their customers and people and
adding value every day. With the provision of workl-class
professional services, ailied to intelligent use of technologles in
our Inchustry-leading Connected Workspace solutions, we create
Insights and solutions that make a difference.
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Connected Workspace in action

image removed

We are how running nine live pllots at customer sites,
another 14 currently in the plpeiine. 5,000 sensors have been
deployed providing us with two million readings sach day.

with

Cleaning & Environmental Services

We are one of the largest cleaning setvices providers In the UK,
offering a full sulte of cleaning services as well as specialist

services, such as pest control, landscaping and
healthcare services.

Performance

£m WAIIE PV 1817 Chanpe ¥

Revenue Reported® 4064 3956 2.7
Adjusted? 405.5 399.2 1.6

Operating profit

before other kems  Reported® 21.5 65 2308
Adjusted? 198 209 (53)

Order book® 661.3 7360 (10.1)

pn-lm:ls. FY 16/17 pur pillll year APM.
us tainciude onty femd-term contracted work end

.I. w;rmmummmuuﬂwmvm-w_
d of an Altermn {APM) basis: FY 17/18

3. Orer Sook for both years reported wndet IFRS 15 guidelinas which mandste

WO

Key stats

* Ten drone flight pliots across the country.
+ We supply 9.6m toliet rolls per year.

s 22,000 cleuning operatives.




Operational performance

Within Cleaning Services we offer commerdial and technical
deaning. Landscape Services comprise commerciaf grounds
maintenance, hard landscaping, interior plants and winter gritting.
Pest Control Services consist of pest management and control.
Healthcage Services include cleaning, retall catering, security,
reception and the provision of helpdesks at healthcare facilities,

This year the Claaning & Environmental Services {CES) division
has stabilised following a period of decline; though it continues
to face significant structural headwinds from sesvice
commoditisation, low barriers to entry and price competition.

" During the second haif of the year, we appointed a new
Managing Director for the division, Matthew Thompson, who
has wide industry leadership experience, induding eight years at
Compasy Group where he was Managing Director of the UK
Sports & Leisure business, covering sector services, from
catering to cleaning. The division Is undergoing a significant
restructuring, and we expect it to stabilise further this year and
see steady improvement thereafier.

Despite a difficult trading year, the business continued to secure
contracts with high-profile customers, Induding a new major
muiti-service contract with a major UK retafler and the West
Hertfordshire Hospital NHS Trust and taking on the cleaning
services from Carllion at Heathrow T5. This major contract was
mobilised smoothly at extremely short notice.

The new multl-service contract with the West Hertfordshire
Hospltal NHS Trust, worth £55m over a five-year term with an
optional extension of a further two years, bullds on Mitie’s
existing strong portfollo of NHS clients. As part of the contract
Mitie will be investing in new technology, including new digital
software to enable the helpdesk to communicate more
effectively across its four sites, we will also be utifising
‘Moptimus Prime’, the next generation in robot cleaning.

As part of the three-year integrated faciities contract with the
Co-op, Mitle will be providing cleaning and landscaping services.

Our chent retention rate for FY 17/18 was below expectations.
Our NPS score tells a similar story and, though showing an
improvemnent against the previous period, is still negative
overall. The margin challenge in Cleaning Services has been
exacerbated by an unfavourable change in contract mix during
the year, We lost some high-margin contracts and at the same
time mobilised material new contracts. In the short term this
had an impact on the overall profitabliity of the business.

In response to the challenging dleaning sector mariet
environment, we ane simplifying our management and overhead
structune; focusing on delivering our hasic service well; and
introducing improved technology for better workforce
management. We are in the process of implementing
Workplace+, a handheid-enabled, all-in-one operations portal
for scheduling, paysiips and supplies. The wide adoption of
Workplace+ wilt aliow the business to better communicate with
our employees, measure and analyse productivity patterns, and
enable rapid roll-out of best practices.

Financial performance

The CES division reported adjusted revenues of £405.5m [FY
16/17: £399.2m) and adjusted operating profit before other
itemns of £19.8m (FY 16/17: £20.9m}). After a period of decline,
overall revenue was up 1.6% versus prior year, but the operating
profit was down by 5.3%.

The industry backdrop for our core Cleaning business Is one of
general margin pressure. In FY 17/18, we saw this in several new
contract wins which, whiist revenue enhancing, were margin
dilutive. We expect to reverse this trend through Project Helix
cost savings together with improved exeaution under

new management.

Our Landscape Services business had a good year with both
adjusted revenue and adjusted operating profit inareasing.

The business retained existing contracts, and acquired new ones,
with particular success in the retall sector which has been a core
target over the past two years.

The Pest Control and Healthcare Services businesses also had a
solid year. Healthcare Services Is a multi-service Mitle business,
providing not just cleaning services, but portering, heipdesk,
In-patient and retall catering. During the year, the Healthcare
business addressed a number of difficult contracts, so we expect
it to show growth over the coming years.

The CES order book stands at £661.3m (FY 16/17: £736.0m) as
the unwinding of large multi-year contracts more than offset
new wins.

Gutlook

We believe that by focusing on the basics of defivery, simplifying
the division’s structure, implementing new technology that will
enable us to improve our overall efficiency and communicate
better with our frontiine, we wil{ further stabliise this business
over the coming year, We are focused on delivering profitable
growth in the future. Cleaning is a highly competitive low-marngin
miass-market business, but we believe that we can enjoy slightly
better margins than we have today. We also view cleaning as a
cormerstone of our FM offering in buliding our client
relationships and successfully introducing the breadth and depth
of our services, including our specialist services.
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Operating review continued
Care & Custody

Qur Care & Custody business delivers a range of public services
for vulnerable people in secure environments on behalf of the
UK Government.

Performance
im Y 17/18 16117  Chwange, %
Revenue Reported® 59.9 464 291

Adjusted? 62.3 45.4 M3

Operating profit

before other iterns _ Reported? 19 22 (13.6)
Ad]usted? 32 29 103

Order book® 6701 2104 2185

1. FY 17/18 reported on postdFRS 15 basis snd FY 16/17 on a reported basis.

2. Presented on an ANernative Pyrf M (APM) I FYi7faa
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 per prior year APML.

3. QOrder book for both yesrs reported under IFRS 15 guidalines which mendate
45 to inclade only fowd-term cantracted work and exchude variahle work.

Key stats
* 1,300 detainees In our care on any given day,

» Leading provider of FME services In England and Wales.
* 2,100 custody professionals, Incl. doctors and nurses.

Operational performance

Our services indude managing immigration removal centres for
the Home Office, Forensic Medical Examiner (FME) services,
custody support, sexual assault referral centres and liaison and
diversion services for police forces across England and Wales.
We also provide offender healthcare provision in two prisons on
behatf of NHS England and FM Services for the Ministry of
Justice in three secure facilittes.

In December 2017, we were pleased to repart that Care &
Custody had been awarded a 10-year Detention & Escorting

. contract with the Home Office to provide Imimigration services.

It is the largest ever contract for Care & Custody, worth an
estimated £525m. The award of such » significant contract
reinforoes Mitie's role as the largest supplier of immigration
detention services to the UK Governmemt and will double the
division’s size in FY 18/19.

Mitie will be responsible for escorting immigration detainees,
both within the UK and overseas. The contract, which started on
1 May 2018, also includes the management of a number of fixed
facliities throughout the UK, including airport halding reoms,
reporting centres and two shart-term holding facilities.
Technology development programmes wiil be at the heart of the
partnership with the Home Office, to transform the way that
immigration escorting services are delivered. This focus on the
use of new and emerging technologies will modernise working
and operational practices to improve efficiency and de-

risk removals.

28 www.mitiecom | The exceptional, every doy

in order to deliver high-quality services, Care & Custody needs to
attract and retain high quality and talented people; it is therefore
important we seek to create specific career paths and provide
access to training and education, For eample, we have created
a new nurse-led police Forensic Medical Examiner delivery
mode! where our lead nurses train to undertake over 90% of the
rale previously delivered by general practitioners. This opens up
an opportunity for great career paths for our nurses and at the
same time our police clients have highly qualified clinical
professionals located permanently at their custody suite sites.
This has the added bensfit of dramaticolly reducing the walting
time for detzinees before their healthcare needs are assessed,
creating better outcomes for the service user and the police.

The business has secured c.E520m of new orders in the year. As
well as the significant Home Office Detention & Escorting
contract win, Care & Qustody secured new contracts with several
police forces, incduding Cleveland, West Mercla, Warwickshire,
Staffordshire and Nottinghamshire, further cementing Care &
Custody’s pasition as the leading supplier of services in police
FME and related areas.

In FY 17/18, Care & Custody was awarded a three-year contract
by Nottinghamshire Police. Care & Custady will provide medical
SUppPOTt SErvices across two custody suites in the county. A 24/7
team will operate at both Bridewell and Mansfield sites, which
include over 100 custodial cells. The specialist Mitie team will
provide clinical assessments, address the immediate health
needs of detainees and provide patients with onward referral
pathways for ongoing health and weltbelng following custody.

Care & Custody already delivers these services to 13 police
forces across the UK. These include six Sexual Assault Referral
Centres and a Short-Term Holding Facility In Northemn ireland.
Care & Custody’s speclalist teams conduct over 180,000 madical
interventions every year in 62 police custody facllities. This
expertise was instrumental during the Nottinghamshire Police
tander process, with scenario responses and the overali value of
its proposition satting Care & Custody apart from

the competition.

Not enly does this contract build on the Care & Custody team’s
strong track record, this new work with Nottinghamshire Police
establishes an East Midlands hub of expertise as it borders with
another existing Care & Custody contract in Leicestershire,

In March 2018, two of Care & Custody’s employees were
awarded Butler Trust Awards at St James’ Palace. Dorothy
Coomber and Jackie Smart recelved certificates from HRH, The
Princess Royal. These awards recognise the achlevernems of
people working In prisons, probation, detention centres and
community and youth Justice settings across the UK,

Dorothy Coomber, Learning and Regimes Manager at Campsfield
House Iimmigration Removal Centre, was recognised for the
significant contribution she has made towards the mental and
emotional welibeing of detainees since joining Mitie in August
2013. Jackle Smart, Equality, Diversion and Inclusion Manager st
Coinbrook immigration Remaoval Centre, has been recognised for
the support she has given to detainees and officers since 2009,




Financial performance

Care & Custody had a good year, delivering growth of 34.3% in
adjusted revenue, up from £46.4m In the previous year to
£62.3m. This significant growth Is a result of a solid stream of
oontract wins in custodial snd Forensic Medical Examiner
services throughout the year, as well as the mobilisation of the
Home Office Detention & Escorting contract. As the contract
only went live in May 2018, the main benefits will be realised in
FY 18/19 and beyond.

Adjusted operating profit before other items grew to £3.2m (FY
16/17: £2.9m). The growth was driven by the new contract wins
whiist the operating margin was diluted by business
development costs as we invested in butiding future growth.

The order book increased significantly to £670.1m (FY

16/17: £210.4m) following the transformational Detertion &
Escorting contract which will double the size of the Care &
Custody division.

Outiook

Qur sales pipeline remains positive. There are major
opportunities with central government through the second half
of 2018 with decisions due in early 2019. Cane & Custody is well
piaced to secure further growth as our scale and reach increase
and with few experienced competitors in our markets.

The success of the business is bulit upon our ability to deliver
outstanding value-for-money public services to the people In our
care, whilst maintaining the confidence of our commissioners,
inspectors, regulators, government and the general public. Our
leadership team is highly experienced, well-respected in the
market and focused upon bulkiing long-term relationships,
ensuring we have a clear understanding of our clients’ needs, so
we can develop service design solutions that meet and exceed
their expectations. We recognise that our policles and processes
must reflect and respond to relevant legisiation, and actively
embrace external regutatory scrutiny. We underpin these
principles by promoting a culture of openness, transparency
and high performance.

Care & Custody in action

Irmoage removed

Mitie currently manages two iImmigration Removal Centres (IRCs)
on behalf of the Home Office, Campsfield House and Heathrow
IRCs. Together these currently have the tapacity to house over
1,200 detainees.

Catering

Our Catering division comprises Gather & Gather, our business
and industry catering brand, and Creativevents, our specialist
indoor and outdoor event catering business.

Performance

o I8 W 18/17  Change, X

Revenue Reported® 1371 1343 2.1
Adjusted® 1871 1327 33

Operating profit

before other tems  Reported 5.5 47 191
Adjusted? S.0 53 (5.7

Order book? 347 254 18.0

1. FY 17/18 raportad on post-iFRS 15 basis and FY 16/17 on 3 reported basis.

2. Presarted Oon an Ahernative Performance Maasure (APM) basis: FY 17/18
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 par prior yaar APM.

3. Order book for both yaers reportad under FRS 15 guidefines which mandete
us to inchade only fwd-tenm contrectd work snd exdude variable wark.

Key stats

* 150,000 customers per day.
* 147,000 litres of usad cooking oll converted into biofuel.
s We process 1m app purchases per year.
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Operating review continued

Operationhal performance

Gather & Gather provides compandes and organisations with
in-house catering services directly for employees, In restaurants,
coffee shops and within corporate hospitality settings —
enhancing clients’ workplaces through Its founding mission of
‘bringing food and people together’. Creativevents is a speclalist
venue and event catering business providing bars, restaurants,
café and hospitality services to a wide range of prestigious
clients across the UK.

Against the backdrop of continuing challenging sector dynamics,
including the continued impact of food price and labour
inflation, as well as a general reduction In discretionary spending
across the hospitality sector, our Catering division has delivered
solid revenue growth, developed its plpeline and secured some
key new contract wins during the period.

Gather & Gather continues to offer a differentiated proposition
within a market which has undergone further consofidation over
the last 12 months. We continue to be a distinctive quality
alternative to the large corporate caterers who dominate the
mass market. Specifically, our market-leading technology
continues to drive consumer behaviour in our contracts, and as
testament to this, we were delighted to be recognised with a
Best Use of Technology Award by the Restaurant Marketer &
Innovation Awands in January 2018. Gather & Gather & also
proud to have re-secured the maximum three-star rating from
the Sustalnable Restaurant Association, recognising our positive
progress in three areas of sourcing, soclety and the environment.

During FY 17/18, Catering won a contract with a major online
retaller in Ireland, as well as contracts within our integrated Fm
offerings, such as the three-year Integrated facilities contract for
all the Co-op’s corporate sites to provide tallored catering
through Mitie’s Gather & Gather business.

Mitie was awarded the three-year contract with the Co-op
following a competitive tender process. The contract covers
cleaning, landscaping, engineering services, security, front of
house, catering and waste. These services will be delivered ina
manner to filly reflect the Co-op’s commitment to sustainability
and employee wellbeing.

Gather & Gather offers a fresh approach to food, working closety
with independent and local suppliers to stay ahead of market
trends. its focus on sustainable sourcing and value for money
aligns with the Co-op's sustainability and diversity ambitions.
Gather & Gather will introduce pop-ups and food truck events in
partnership with local suppliers to bring innovation and variety
to lunchtime breaks. Further investments in technology will
enhanca the experience for Co-op colleagues purchasing
beverages on site with a launch of a pre-order service through a
mobile app, as well as a dally menu microsite.
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After two difficult years” trading, it Is notable that Creativevents
has been successful in re-securing some prestigious and
long-standing clients such as RHS Chelsea Flower Show and
Royal Ascot. The business unit was also successful in winning
some high-volume concert and festival work at the end of

April 2018,

Post the year-end the division won an exciting contract to
provide har and food services at BBC Music’s The Biggest
Weekend. Four festivals took place at four sites over the four
days of the late May Bank Holiday weekend {25-28 May 2018).
The Biggest Weekend saw BBC Radlo 1, BBC Radio 2, BBC Radio
3 and BBC Radio 6 Music stations bring live music to crowds of
over 175,000. The financial impact of this contract will be
reported in FY 18/19,

Financial performance

Adjusted revene grew by 3.3% to £137.1m (FY 16/17: £132.7m)
driven by the full-year impact of new contract wins in Ireland,
voluime increases in new events at Creativevents, partially offset
by a shortfall in Gather & Gather UK.

The gross margin remained stable after a series of cost saving
measures were taken to offset food and labour input price
inflation. These induded menu changes and tighter

staffing schedules.

Whiist the business tumed around and exited less profitable
contracts in Creativevents and Gather & Gather Ireland, the
division’s adjusted operating profit before other items decreased
by 5.7% to £5.0m (FY 16/17: £5.3m).

The order book for the Catering division increased from £29.4m
n FY 16/17 10 £34.7m in FY 18/19 driven by contract wins.

Outlook

Having atiracted some experienced new talent to the team,
momentum for the next 12 months is bullding. We continue to see
opportunities for organic growth through our customisable,
modern and high-quality offer, complemented by our mariet-
leading approach to welibeing and our unique understanding

of workpiace dynamics and the role of food and hospitality in
boosting staff morale, engagement and productivity. As a

key component of Mite’s Connaected Workspace strategy, the
insights and data we collect and receive are invalsable in helping us
understand how best to add value to our customers’ working day.




Property Management

The Property Management division provides a wide range of
maintenance services In the UK, predominantly to clients in the
social housing sector. It ks also the largest painting and
commercial roofing refurbishment provider in the UK

Performance

_E_lt Y LI/18 FY 16/17 Cwonge, %

Revenue Reported* 2374 2577 (7.9}
Adjusted? 2379 2577 (7.7)

Operating profit/{loss)

before other items Reported: 73 {45} »nm
Adjusted® 79 123 (35.8)

Order book* 348.7 5150 {32.3}

1. FY 17/18 reported on RostIFRS 15 basis and FY 16/17 on a reported basks.

2. Presented on an Alkertiative Performence Measure (APM) basis: FY 57/18
pre-IFRS 15; FY 16/17 ber prior year APM.

3. Order book for both yasry reportad under IFRS 15 guidalines which mandete
us to nchude only feed-tarm contracted work and echude variasble worlc

Key stats

* We ook after 250,000 local authority homes.
s UK's #1 cormmaevcipl roofing refurbishmeant business.
* UK’s #1 commercial painting business.

Qperational performance

FY 17/18 has been a challenging year for Property Management.
The management team’s attantion was diverted whilst the
division was considered for sale; it was later withdrawn from
sale in December 2017. Now back in the Mitie portiolio, we have
Included Property Management within our overall
transformation programme.

Within Its core maintenance services opetations the business
has focused on investing in people, and deltvering the best
guality service to customers at the right cost.

Over the course of FY 17/18, Property Management was
successful In winning a number of new contracts in Scotland,
expanding its oparational and geographical footprint. Of
particular note was a contract with was Aberdeenshire Council
as part of their Housing Improvement Plan, with a four-year
strategic objective to improve the housing stock in line with
Scottish Housing Quality Standards and the enengy improvement
objectives urder the Energy Efficiency Standard for Soclal
Housing. Mitie is focusad on delivering services worth £40m
over the four-year term, Other notable contract wins included:

» Maryhiil Housing Association in Glasgow. This contract will see
Mitie deliver a range of reactive repairs and malntenance
works over the thres-year comtract, which has an optional
two-year extension;

» Narth Lanarkshire Councll, with a contract valued at £3.1m
per annum;

= The renewal of a partnership with Oak Tree Housing
Association will see Mitie deliver the second phase of
maintenance services to 300 properties; and

= A Paisiey-based housing association, Wilamsburgh, and
Sanctuary Scotland adding to our growing list of social housing
customers. Willamsburgh is a four-year contract worth £2.8m.

Our goal is to differentiate our offering in a relatively
commaoditised market, by creating long-term, sustainable
partnerships that offer our customers innovative solutions and
services. We have identified four key focus areas based upon
client needs: tackling fuel poverty, fire safety, innovation, and
cost planning efficiencies.

Technology has been an integral part of our integrated and
partnership offerings, as it brings efficiency and decision-making
benefits to our dients. The focus is on leveraging the Group's
technology capabilities to support our unigue assat
management solution for Property Management, using it to
build bespoke solutions to reduce call handling requirements,
assodated costs and to improve customer experience,

Financial performance

Property Management repocted adjusted revenue of £237.9m
{FY 16/17: £257.7m}, down 7.7% year-on-yeas. This reduction
dropped through to adjusted operating profit befare other
items which was down 35.8% to £7.9m (FY 16/17: £12.3m).

In addition, there was a bad debt charge relating to a prior year
contract of £1.4m. The division was impacted by a shortfall in
capital spend by major clients and lower high-margin project
revenue.

In the post-Grenfell environment, one of our Jarge customers
has delayed planned investrnent In its housing stock with the:
expectation that funds will be diverted to risk and compliance
related improvements. This also impacted the

division’s performance.

Difficult trading conditions defined by continued spending
cuts by customers impacted the order book which declined to
£348.7m (FY 16/17: £515.0m}.

Qutlook .

Market conditions remain challenging and the main focus for the
naxt 12 months is to re-energise the business, get the basics
right, continue to lvest in our people, deliver the highest quality
service 1o customers — at the right cost — and to invest in the
communitles in which we work.

In FY 18/19, Mitie Property Management’s businesses,
comprising roofing, painting and soclal housing, will be
Integrated into Engineering Services, There are considersble
synergistic benefits to be achieved by combining Praperty
Management into Engineering Services which will enhance
efficiency and customer service.
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Our diversity
makes us stronger

We are very proud of our
rich and diverse culture

Image removed

and backgrounds. Our
diversity creates ideas and

insights. Everyone at Mitie
has a voice and is treated
as an equal.

Rebecca
Gallery Assistant,
Security
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Corporsts Responsibiiity and Sustainebility

Sustainability

We are one of the UK’s largest facilities management providers
with a nation-wide reach and a blue-chip customer base.

Our business provides facilities management, consultancy,
project management and a range of specialist services.
Iimportantly, we focus on self-delivery of our services, giving us
close control over quality and customer refationships.

More than five million people pass through the doors of the
workplaces we manage and maintain, and our colieagues work
hard each day to defiver the basics brilliantly giving us the solid
foundations on which to aeate, build and tailor soltions that
anticipate and meet our customers’ needs. Service that is
recognised time and time again by our dlients; the best of UK
public and private businesses.

Foreword

Image removed

The following repart outlines our approach to building a robust
and sustainable business, while embracing the contribution from
and Impact on our employees, our enviranment and the
communities in which we work.

Mitle has a strong heritage of entrepreneurship and
collaboration, and many aspects of sustainablity are integral to
the way we do business. tis a culture of shared values; of
putting customers at the heart of our business; of developing
and retaining the best people; of operational exceflence and
embracing innovation and new technologies that set us apart.

We employ 49,000 people, who engage with hundreds of
thousands of customers every day across the UK. We recognise
the potential of this reach, and whilst historically we have met
our sustainability goals, we recognisa that the opportunities to
drive these In the future are substantial. In Wasta, Energy,
Occupational Health and Safety in particular, our ambition is to
fead the FM industry.
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Mitie is one year into a three-year transformation programme.
As part of this we are undertaking a strategic review of our
sustainability offering and we have established a Sustainability
Working Committee that will be reporting into a Sustainability
Steering Committee mandated to critically assess Mitie's
performance against international best practice, including the
UN Sustainability Goals.

This review Is now underway and whilst we would like to have a
more detalled assessment for this report, our ambition is to set
truly achievable targets for our business, improve measurement
of our activities, utlitse latest technalogies to monitor
performance, and increase transparency.

Going forward, we will focus on positively influencing our people
- the driving force behind our long-term sucoess — our
customers and our communities, growing revenue, redudng cost
and mitigating potential risk.

To Mitle, sustainability is more than just an agenda add-on, it ks
integral to the way we do business. During 2017, we have
undertaken research to understand what our future
sustainability strategy will focus on. Our people, products and
services are integral to our ability to defiver long-term
sustainable solutions for aur business and our customers,

Our Sustainability Working Group was re-aligned in 2017 to
represent our diverse business and expertise, and inchades a
cross-functional group of subject matter experts with people,
environmental and operational skills. In FY 18/19, this group will
set and agree our ‘2030 Sustainability Vision”.

The Sustainability Working Group reports into the Sustainabliity
Steering Committee that will report directly to the Board and
ensure our plan is fully embeddex In and correctly resourced
within the business,

Mitle continues to measure and target our carbon footprint. in
2010, we made a commitmant to reduce our carbon footprint by
35% by 2020. To date our organisational carbon intensity has
decreased by 34.7% against our 2010 baseline year and a further
5.4% against prior year,

Climate change is one of the biggest environmenta! challenges of

our generation, and we are committed to ensuring that our
business faces these challenges and tackies our impacts.




Key initiatives undertaken in FY 17/18 were:

* we performed Climate Changs risk snd opportunities
assessment;

= we are reducing our impact on the environment. from our
traved, especially from our predominantiy diesel fleet;

+ we launched a SpendSmart campaign to challenge
unnecessary business costs and consider effident
resource management;

= we consolidated our real estate resources, specifically our
property footprint in London;

« we are delighted to have maintained the Carbon Trust
Standard for Carbon, achieving a qualitative score of 81% - an
improvement from 77% previously;

* we are currently implementing an 15050001 energy
management system within our Energy & Water business to
continually improve the carbon reduction initiatives and
Energy Management Standards and engage our people in our
Journey; and

* we are ensuring that our suppliers and our customers are
treated with respect. Operational sustainabliity and supply
chaln managament are important elements of our business
operations. Mitie is committed to being a reliable and
trustworthy corporate citizen and, spedifically, in relation to its
suppliers —to falr payment terms. We work with a large
number of small and medium-size enterprises across our
supply chaln, Integrity and trust are at the heart of all we do.

Climate Change risk and opportunities assassment
Following guidance from the Task Force on Climate-related
Fnandal Disclosures (TCFD), our Sustalnability Working Group
have developed a risk and opportunities assessment for our
business to ensure we tackle risks and plan for opportunities.
Our biggest risks are potential future besith impacts to our
pecple, especially those who work outdoors, as a result of
warmer summers and colder winters. We will therefore be
mitigating these risks, through control measures, re-design of
tasks and training and awareness. Similarly, increased incidence
of flooding and heat strain on assets we manage for our
Customers mean we need th adapt our business to
acommodate additional service requirements and upskill our
people to be competent to deliver these services safely.

Reducing the impact of gur fleet

Improving the sustainable credentials of the Mitie Fleet means
taking a multidisciplinary approach to both our vehicles and the
pegple who drive them. From consclidating and updating our
vehicle stock, to educating our drivers to improve safety, we alm
to reduce the fuel expenditure and poliutant emissions created
by our 6,300 vehicie fieet. In FY 17/18 we have looked into the
following areas:

¢ we are continually adding rmore fuel-efficient vehicles to cur
fleet, representing significant cost and environmental savings
for Mitle;

s we have undertaken a successful hydrogen vehicle trial and
are actively seeking business cases to extend our Electric
Vehicie (EV) ratio; and

» we have introduced telematics and tracking equipment to
ensure the safe performance of all our drivers,

Mitie vehicles operate on a rolling four-year lease agraement
through our strategic fleet partner. By outsourcing fleet
procurement, Mitie can take advantage of the mast efficlent
technology, resulting in notable fuel savings across the business.
For example, many of our mobile engineers operate out of
Vauxhall Astra estate cars. Since 2014, the fuel effidency of
these vehicies has improved significantly, with current

2018 modeis travelling spproximately 10,8% further with every
tank of fuel, whilst emitting 10% fess CO, emissions.

Within our company car fleet, we have sefimposed a vehicles
emissions cap of 130g/km of CO,, This applies to all non-
commercial vehicles. Most of our fleet delivers emissions figures
lower than this level, with some vehicles producing just 89g/km
of C0,. vehicles with iower emissions attract less taxation for
employees and lower natlonal insurance contributions for the
business, representing a financial incentive 1o reduce fleet
environmental impact. We continue to review our commercial
fleet, introducing the most efficient light commercial vehicles
available on the market. Our commercial fleet has also
expetienced significant ervironmental savings with new Vauxhall
Vivaro vans that are 11% more fuel efficient than the vehides
they replace. Using Start/Stop and Adblue technology, these
new vans cut NOx emissions by 72% over previous models,
aligning them to EURO 6 emissions legislation.

Mitie has explored fleet options beyond conventional fuel, with
elattrical vehicle and alternative fuel vehide trials run at
contract sites across the estate. Currently backed by government
grants, there are significant benefits to introduding EVs to our
business, including reduced taxation, fuel costs, and Scope 1
carbon emissions. Following a trial at a large International travel
hub, Mitie has ordered a full-time EV van, which should save
over 20% in fuel costs over the diesel vehiclke it replaces.

introduction of widespread driver education and telematics on
all our vehicles has resulted in a significant reduction in
Inefficient driving practices across both our commercial and
company fleet. With safer eco-driving technigues, we expect to
reduce our expenditure on fuel, whilst also reducing our
transport risk. A 20mph decrease in speed, from 70mph to
S0mph, can increase fuel efficiency by up to 20%, cutting
unnecessary resource waste, The number of traffic accidents
recorded for our fleet reduced by 18.7% in FY 17/18.
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Corporate Responsibiity and Sustainability continued

SpenuiSmart — campaign to reduce resources uss

Mitle has an overarching commitment to both customers and
colleagues to individually and collectively be the best we can be.
Our purpose s to create amazing work environments, helping
our customers and colleagues to be exceptional every day.

Spendsmart Is an intemal campaign that highligits the
importance of careful and considered spending. Launched

in March 2018 as part of 'One Mitie’, its aims are to challenge
unhecessary business costs and consider efficient resource
management_ In reducing the usage of resources and
operational costs, Mitie creates greater business value through
social, economic and environmental principles of sustainability
into ks business decisions.

Since launching the campaign in March 2018, Mitle Group has
seen a 33% reduction in employee expenses. This has been
supported by an updated expenses policy and regular expense
auditing. The most recent communications include targeting
unhecessary costs associated with travel and colour printing.

Initiatives include questioning the need for air and rall travel
when technology such as video conferencing and Skype would
be viable alternatives to reduce our carbon Impact on the
planet. As a result of the campaign, Mitie will also see
environmenta! benefits with a reduction in waste production,
energy consumption and carbon emissions.

The overarching aim of the Spendsmart campaign is to target
employee expenses by cutting £1 in every £10 to enable »
sustainable business. This equates to a 10% reduction of
employes expenses; however, the campaign Is not all about
stopping spend but aims to highlight opportunities to eliminate
unnecessary or avoldable spend, providing an opportunity to
invest elsewhere and remain sustainable — meeting the needs of
the business without compromising Mitle’s ability to

maintain profit.

The Sherd — consolidating our real estate portfolio

As part of our ongoing transformation programme we took the
decision to consolidate our London offices into one single city
hub based in The Shard. Historically we operated out of three
separate bulidings covering 45,000 square feet. A single more
efficient and flexdble 30,000 square foot office replaced this
estate, reflecting our ongoing business needs and that of

Our customers.

The Shard was chosen because It aligned with our sustainability
vision to minimise our organisation’s environmental impact and
provide an environment where our employees could thrive. A
particular draw was that the bullding itself achieved a BREEAM
‘Excelient’ sustainability rating for Its low carbon design and Is
expeched to use 30% less energy than a typical conventional
bstiding of its type. We have an ambitious target to reduce our
carbon footprint by 35% by 2020 and this move is a key step to
achieving this.

Our fe-out also incorporated a number of additional initiatives
which helped to further reduce carbon emissions and also have
a pasitive impact on the health and wellbeing of our people:

« all areas of the office are fitted with LED lighting and lighting
controls to reduce energy demand. We have incorporated
otcupancy, temperature and CO, sensors In desks and
breakout areas to optimise settings based on actual
occupancy and comfort levels. This forms part of our
Connected Workspace offering which uses advanced analytics
to identify efficencies;
the Installation of sit-stand desks for all fixed working areas.
These help to reduce sedentary behaviour which, as research
shows, presents a 2% Increased risk of all-cause mortality
{even after physical activity is taken Into account);
= active design — a circular walking route within the workspace
and the placement of particular social areas off this circuit
nudges pecple into conducting regular physical activity
throughout the day; and )
« maximum utifisation of the natural dayfight — the perimeter
glazing provides a high level of natural light. We designed the
space 10 ensure employees have maximum exposure to this.

Another key element of this move was to shift from a fixed desk
working model to a more fiexible hot desk approach, which
would encourage remote working and avold unnecessary
business travel when not essential. We have also invested In our
IT systems to improve remote working through conference and
video calling technology to allow staff to attend meetings,
workshops and training events from home.

From an operational perspective our energy use in the new
London hub fell by 76% when comparing corsumption against
the previous estate for the same period last year (1 January to
31 Marchj as denoted in the table below.

Lendon Hub — Lonon Hub —

varlous offices tha Shard Raduction Reduction, %
Energy consumption (kWh) 153,389 36,364 117,025 76%
Carbon emissions {tC0,e) 58.9 13.9 55.0 0%
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We wili continue to review our performance and provide further
updates on our savings once we have a full year’s worth of
consumption data. We are currently reviewing our UK-wide real
estate portfolio, looking at usage, sustainability and

operational efficiency.

Carbon Trust certification

The Carbon Trust provides independent verification and
certification services that recognise real achievements in
sustainabliity and identify improvement opportunities. This year
we renewed our certification for the external verification and we
are delightad to have cbtained the Carbon Trust Standard for
Carbon with a qualitative score of 81%. Mitie was able to show
an absolute reduction in greenhouse gas emissions of 5.7%
across the certification period - more than 2,400 tonnes of
carbon diaxide equivalent. This cartification renewal underpins
our commitment towards reducing our carbon footprint and
enhancing our sustainability journey.

Mitie has an ambition to be recognised as a sustainability leader
in the FM sectos, demonstrating the commercial value in
Improving erwironmental performance. Qur clients have
increasingly high expectations of us and they regularly ask what
environmenta! accreditations Mitie holds. We are proud to be
able to say that in addition to our ISO14001 certification we have
also been certified to the Carbon Trust Standard, a cestification
that recognises organisations for making real reductions in
carbon emissions.

Mitie continues to reduce its emissions through a number of
fleet intiatives, such as increased use cf telematics, encouraging
eco-driving and efficient vehicle selection. Several trials of
alternative fuelled vehicles such as plug-in hybrid, EVand
hydrogen are helping us to develop a future fleet strategy to
make further reductions in carbon for the Group.

Following on from this success, Mitie Is currently implementing
an 1SO50001 energy management system within its Energy &
Water business to continuatly implement the carbon reduction
initiatives and position Itself as a supplier of choice.

Engaging our people

We recognise that our people are our greatest assets and we
have g duty of care to ensure they are equipped to make the
best declsions at work or home. One of our core promises is to
our empioyees: to provide a place of work where they can thrive
and be thelr best every day. We have been bullding our health
and wellbeing capabilities and continue, for example, to equip
our people with mentat health awareness tools and fact sheets.

For a number of years, we have collaborated with sustainability
leamning specialists to deliver personalised tralning programmes
for our staff and customers. A core component of this
partnership Is the provision of the accredited ‘ResourceAware’

elLeaming platform. This programme helps organisations
manage resources more efficiently and effectively. The training
helps reduce carbon, waste and water usage and is accredited by
CPD UK, The Energy institute and The Future Water Association.

Effective behaviour change programimes are at the heart of high
performing sustalnability strategies. Mitie believes that benefits
can be substantial in environmental, sociat and governance
terms; from reducing or improving our impact on the
environment, to delivering financlal savings and enhanced profit
margins. Employee engagement programmes also create a sense
of community and inspire oollaboration amongst coleagues.
Mitie continues to promote the ResourceAware programme
throughout the organisation as part of its commitment to
consistently deliver tangible savings.

Mitie Foundation

Mitie has presence across the UK And as a responsible business,
we strive to create long-term benefits for the communities in
which we operate. The Mitie Foundation is central to our
commitment to engage with and positively influence our people,
our customers and our communities.

Employee engagement s an essential part of Mitie’s business
strategy — community involvement and volunteering play an
important role in our colleagues’ working lives. In addition, joint
volunteering opportunities with clients and supply chain
partners — supporting their community engagement and
corporate responsibiiity objectives ~ is a positive way to enhance
long-term relationships.

The Foundation had a very good year — existing programmes
with Lioyds Bank pic were strengthened and a new partnership
developed with the Co-op. Strong relationships with schools,
prisons and other charities were enhanced. The flagship
programme Ready2Work sustained its remarkable record of 70%
of work experience attendees being offered a paid Job over the
last five years.

During the year:

+ Mitle colleagues recorded over 850 voliunteering days;

= 24 perople found work through our Ready2Work programme;
and

+ the Foundation delivered 88 employability events,
supporting c.8,500 students, in partnership with 76 schools
and academies.

Mitie has 3 broad and diverse client base, and a frontline
workforce with specialist skills, expertise and experience. By
working in dose collaboration with Mitie, the Foundation is
strongly positioned to support people who are furthest away
from the job market, The Foundation will continue to play a vital
role in our own business sustainability and the major role that
we wish o play in society.
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Peopile & Community

Building One Mitie

The exceptional, every day

Our Vision and Values are built on the

simple premise of ‘The exceptional, every day’
= our overarching commitment to both our
customers and our oolleagues,

In 2017, we consulted with our colleagues on what makes Mitle
different and special. The output of these discussions became
our Vision and Values, and our Purpose and our Promises,
which we shared with everyone at Mitle:

* Our Vision and Values are built on the simple premise of
“The exceptional, every day’ — our overarching commitment
to both our customers and to our colleagues.

* Underpinning ‘The exceptional, every day’ Is our Purpose:
our expertise, care, technology and insight create amazing
work enwvironments, helping our customers to be exceptional
evary day.

* Our Promise t0 our people Is to create a place to work where
we at Mitie can af! thrive and be cur best every day. Our
Promise to our customers is to be a trusted partner creating
exxaptional environments for our customers and people,
adding value every day.

« Qur Values set out how we all should behave at Mitie,
what we should expect from our colleagues, and what our
customers can expect from us.

We view this as a differentiator for Mitie. This new mindset goes
well beyond delivering to the letter of the comract by focusing
on the ultimate outcomes — amazing environments and adding
value every day.

“What does ‘exceptional, every day’
really mean? it means individually and
collectively being the best we can be.”

Phil Bentiey
Chief Bcutive

] weww.mite.com | The exceptional, every doy

Our culture:
our core values and
how we behave

We are
One Mitie

We are built
on integrity
and trust

We go the :
extra mile

Our diversity
makes us
stronger

Our customers’
business, is
our business i




Developing a diverse
team

Mitie is a diverse organisation
that engages and develops its
people, at all levels, and
seeks to demonstrate the
benefits of its social value.

Our diversity Is a major part of who we are

= we all have different skills, insight, styles,
expertise and experiences to bring to the table.
We are beginning to share a common vision,

a common approach and a common language
through our new Purpose and Values and our

Gender pay gap reporting

In iine with mandatory requirements,

Mitle reported in March 2018 that as at

5 April 2017 it had a mean average gender
pay gap of 16% and a mean bonus gap of
71%. The bonus differential Is in part due to
the way in which boruises are classified
across the Group.

Mitie is a diverse and complex business, and
gender representation can differ depending
on job type. We also recognise that in many
of our businesses we have a higher
proportion of men inmore senior positions

and bonuses are more typically paid to those

® 49,

000

Employees

Women on the Board

4

15«

One Mitle culture. Together, we befieve that is a W on the ELT
powerful combination, in senlor roles.
Across Mitie’s 49,000 employees, we have over We recognise that there Is more to do across
130 nationalities; a diverse workforce carrying ~ the organisation and intend to put in place a
out a large variety of roles, Engender Is Mite’s  Brading framework that gives parity across 409/
programme to promote education and all backgrounds and helps Individuals to be C N b
awareness of diversity internally and across the  the best they can be.
industry, with four networks focused on LGBT, Female employees
disability, ethnicity and gender.
Mitie Group
Meding, Wean
Pay gap 00% ___ 160%
Bonus gap 77 4% 71.0%
S ‘Wortwmn
% employees recelving bonus 12% 10%
Employees by pay quartiie Wamy Womwm
Upper 75% 25%
Upper middie 66% 3%
Lower middie 58% 42%
Lower 45% 55%

Since June 2017, we have welcomed four women to our Board of Directors (women: 4; men: 7) and women now account for
15% of our Executive Leadership Team (up from 0% — women: 2; men: 11) and 24% of our Group Leadership Team {up from
20% — women: 23; men: 73) as at 31 March 2018. Across Mitie Group female employees acoount for ¢.40% of our workforce

{women: 20,100; men: 28,900).
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People & Commumity continued

30

Upload response rate

33%

Engagement score

Engagement

Mitie is a diverse organisation that engages and
develops its peaple, at all levels, and seeks to
demonstrate the benefits of its soclal value.
This yeas, we have partnered with Aon Hewitt to run Upload —
Mitle’s 2018 People Sirvey — to assess employee engagement.
30% of emmployees completed the survey and our engagement
score was 33%. Mitle Is one year into our three-year
transformation programme and, inevitably during such
challenging times, we need to work much harder 1o Isten to and
engage with our people. We are doing some things well, but we
certainly have work to do when & comes to employee
engagement. This year we have a ciear benchmark for
improvement and plans in place to work hard to drive positive
engagement with our employees. Our three key focus areas for
2018 wil be: leadership capability, reward and recognition,
efficiency and process improvement through

technological investment.

mitiefoundatio o

The Mitie Foundation was established In
2012 with a vision to support people
with barriers to employment and to
improve social mobility. its focus is on
employment, education and enterprise.
Move information can be found

at the Mitie Foundation website
www.mitlefoundation.com.

As a significant UK employer, Mitie seeks to support the physical,
mental and financial wellbeing of its workforce. December 2017
saw the successfut launch of an employee lpan scheme run in
parinership with Satary Finance. This schemne helps provide
education and support around the financlal wellbeing of our
frontline workforce. To date, more than 1,400 Mitle employess
have benefited from obtaining a loan from Salary Finance with
an average loan size of £2,200. As well as offering loan products
the Salary Finance hub provides financial education and finandal
tools to assist our colleagues.

Mitie belleves everyone shoulkd have opportunities to progress,
from working with amazing customers to individus! learning and
development. This year saw the creation of a ‘one stop shop’ for
all development at Mitie called ‘the Learning Hub, bringing
together a vast array of apprenticeship programmes, technical
accreditations and leadership training. in FY 17/18B, 555
apprentices were enrolled into a range of programmes from
business and administration, to digital and hospitality.

‘ Collaborated with 76
schools and academies to

employabiity prospects

Image removed

Image removed

Entrepreneurship lies st the heart of Mitie,
The Foundation goes beyond volunteering,
to engaging talent and enhancing long-term
relationships with our customers, our
supply chain and our communities.

Enterprise
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Policies

Mitie's Code of Conduct has been designed to
help employees understand our core values
and the behaviour expected of them to support
these values,

Our Code of Conduct applies to the Mitie Board, sentor
management and all employees, and aims to ensure that at
every level of the organisation, at all times, employees conduct
themseives in an ethical way. This includes their dealings
internally and externally with third parties to ensure the highest
standards of honesty, integrity and falrness and to foster an
environment based on such standards, as well as complying with
all related jagislation.

Tha Code amphasises that every Mitie employee must be
aligned to the achlevement of Group gaals. A copy of the Code,
as well as a full list of Mitie’s policies, is svallable for download
on the Company’s website www.mitie.com.

Mitie is undergoing a Group-wide GDPR readiness programme
and met its deliverables for the regulatory deadline. All business
units are engaged in the effort to ensure regulatory compliance
and sound data privacy practices. Mitle is committed to ensuring
privacy is at the forefront of our technologies and processes.
This is Instilied through policy, architectural design, controls

and assurance.

Our new, independent whistle-blowing hotline service was
introduced in September 2017. 139 reports were logged via the
sefvice. The majority of these related to HR matters or
grievances and were passed onto our HR teams for resolution.
Other reports are investigated by the Legal, QHSE, Internal Audit
or Emerprise Risk teams as appropriate.

; Z‘Mmﬂml Zlm'l cor) > Image removed
programme
o The foundation 4 Mie employees
image removed detvered 88 image removed complated 850
) employability events volunteering days
Mitie volunteers the time and Ready-to-work s Mitie's flagship
Education expertise of iur:vorﬂom:o support Employab'"tv programme that gives candidates
people of disadvartaged badgrounds eight-weeks of work experience within a

towards improved career chances,
through sharing skills in leadership,
resfilence and critical thinking.

Mitie or partner business, with the goal of
heiping them to secure full-
time employment.
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We go the
extra mile

Whether it’s keeping things
running smoothly in a safe
environment, looking for
new ways to do things
better or fixing problems,
going the extra mile for our
colleagues and customers
and keeping our promises is
in our DNA,

Zak
Barista,
Catering

The exceptional, every day | www.mitle.com 43



Fnance review

Finance review

Image removed

“Culturally and operationally we
are moving towards a One Mitie
way of delivering our products
and services.”

We are pleasad with progress one year into our three-year
transformation programme. Culturally and operationally we
are moving towards 3 One Mitle way of delivering owr products
and servioes. This has enabled us to simplify and streamiine
operational and financial processes across the organisation.
We have reduced ongoing costs by delayering management
infrastructures and centralising support functions such as IT,
Finance and HR.

Adjusted operating profit before ather tems wes Impacted by
the investment of transformation cost savings into improved
customer service levels, technology and intarnal capabliities.
These are the building blocks of our future growth plans.

To defiver these transformation changes we have incurred a
nmber of costs which are shown In other itemns, along with
various impairments and other one-off charges.

We are operating comfortably within our financial covenants,
In particular, our leverage ratio has remained below 2,
notwithstanding a material reduction in our customer
invoice discounting programme and an improvement in our
supplier paymem performance.

We have taken the decision to early-adopt IFRS 15, using the
cumutative retrospective method, which means we have
restated opening reserves rather than restating the prior
year comparatives.
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Foliowing on from the Accounting Review undertalatn last year,
Mitie implemented a series of measures to strengthen ks
financial control environment. Management now Operates a
structured process for identifying material accounting
Judgements and a number of new internal Group accounting
poiicies were put in place in areas such as trade receivables and
accrued income provisioning. As part of converting to IFRS 15,
Mitie has adopted a conservative contract asset acoounting
approach which will only enable certain strictly defined assets to
be recognised on the balance sheet, with the remainder being
expensed. We sre siso increasing the size of our internal sudit
taam to enable a broader selection of areas to be audited

each yaar.

During the year we have moved our finance transactional
processing operations to our partner Genpact. This entailed
the consolidation of activities in multiple locations acrass the
UK inmo a single operations centre in Kolkata. Genpact have
deep experience in improving efficiency, streamfining processes
and codifying controls for a global blue-chip customer base.

We expect to benefit from all these areas in the coming months
once the initial transfer is fully bedded down.




Reported financial performance
Reported revenue and reported operating profit are set out below:

Restated
£m FYiTiua FY16/17 Change, %
Revenue 22037 21234 38
Operating profit/{loss) before
other tems 29.6 {63} (1,522.2)
Other tems {979} (366) 1675
Operating loss (83) (a25) (80.7)

Reported revenue was £2,203.7m compiared with £2,123.4m in
FY 16/17. The Group reported an operating profit before other
Items of £89.6m compared with a loss of £6.3m In FY 16/17
which was a consequence of the Accounting Review carried out
that year.,

Note that the prior year comparatives have been restated due
to 2n accounting ervor In respect of an under accrusl of costs
with a corresponding increase in accrued income and revenue.
There was no impact on total net assets or operating profit.
We have disclosed the impact of the restatement in Note 1 to
the financial statements.

Reported balance sheet

£m FY17/18  FY16/17 Change, %

FY 17/18 APM: Mitie has adopted the IFRS 15 revenue recoghition
aooounting standard from 1 Aprit 2017 using the cumulative
retrospective method. This leads to an adjustment to reserves on the
date of adoption rather than a restatement of the comparative
perkods presented. As a consequence, unless otherwise stated, al
figures presented in the Strategic Report and Govemanoe sections of
this Annual Report and Accounts are presented pre-iFRS 15 adoption,
In ovdet to retaln comparability with prior year results. We have
disclosed the impact of IFRS 15 for each line item in the financial
statements in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statemests on
pages 14010 142. The FY 17/18 APMS adjust for the impact of IFRS 15.

FY 16/17 APMs: as a result of the Accounting Review in FY 16/17,
which led to asset write-downs of 2 non-necurring nature, the FY
16/17 APMs have been provided to facilitate a comparative
assessment between FY 17/18 and FY 16/17, The FY 16/17 APMs
adjust for one-off ttemns.

Adjusted financlal performancs

£m FY17/18 FYi6/17 Chinge, %
Revenue 21991 2,1400 238
Operating profit before

other fterns 771 820 {6.9)
Operating morgin 2.5% 3.8% [(0.3ppt)

Goodwill and Intangible assats 3429 3971 {12.4)

Property, plart and aquipment 336 323 4.0
Working capital batances (1982) (152.0) 304
Net debt (1935) (147.2) 315
Retirement benefit kabifities (568) (742) (235)
Deferred tax 359 211 701
Other net gssets 71 12.7 {44.1)
Total net (Kabilities)/sssets (240) 898 (126.7)

The Group had reported net liabilities at 31 March 2018 of
£24.0m (2017: net assets £89.8m). The £113.8m reduction is
primarily driven by the adoption of IFRS 15, which is explained in
more detail later in this review.

Basls of comparatives - Alternative Performance
Measures [APMSs)

To enable an effective comparison of our year-on-year
performance, FY 17/18 is shown pre-IFRS 15 and FY 36/17 is
shown for continuing operations on the previously reported
APMSs, per last year’s published Annual Report and Accounts, as
restated. The APMs are referred 10 as ‘adjusted revenue’,
‘adjusted operating profit’, adjusted other items’, ‘adjusted net
assets” and ‘adjusted cash flows’. Further details can be found in
Note 1 to the financial statements on pages 136 to 142 and the
Appendix on pages 204 and 205.

Adiusted revenue was £2,199.1m {2017; £3,140.0m),
representing growth of 2.8% during Mitie’s first year of
transformation. Adjusted operating profit befor other iterms of
£77.1m represents a drop of 6.0%. This reduction is
consaquence of investment in custorers, technology and
capability more than offsetting growth in the profitability of
contracts and cost savings from the transformation programme.

Adjusted balance sheet

£m FYi3/a8  FYi6/17  Change. %
Goodwill and intangible assets 3489 3971 {121}
Property, plant and equipment 3.8 323 46
Working capital balances (838} (1520) {449}
Net debt {393.5) (147.2) 318
Retiremernt benefit labilities {568} (74.2) {23.5)
Deferred tax 169 211 (19.9)
Other net assets 43 12.7 {66.1)
Total net assets 9.8 89.8 (22.3)

The Group’s adjusted net assets reduced at 31 March 2018 to
£69.8m (2017 £89.8m). The £20.0m reduction fs primarily driven
by impairmeant and amortisation of goodwill and other intangible
assets of £58.5m and an increase In net debt of £46.3m, partly
offset by intangible asset additions of £10.1m, a working capital
movement of £68.2m, and a reduction in the net deficit on
defined benefit pension schemes of £17.4m. These movements
are explained In movre detail later in the report.
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IFRS 15

NO SMPACT KEY AREAS OF ADJUSTMENT

To Metime revenue or * Derecognition of accrued income assets previously recognised on long-term complex contracts
iifetime profitabilivy following the elimination of percentage of completion accounting

of contracts * Derecognition of mohbilisation assets not meeting the more stringent criteria under IFRS 15

« Derecognition of work in progress assets where control of output is yet to pass to the customer
on contracts where revenue i recognised over time
To cash flows of contracts * Higher deferred income necognised from customer payments made in advance of delivering
contract outcomes and where significant contracted discounts including extension discounts have

been offered

The Group has sarly adopted IFRS 15 effective from 1 April 2017
in line with iis goal to simpiify the business and improve
transparency. The adoption of IFRS 15 improves the alignment of
financlal results with the cash fiows of contracts. The effect of
adopting IFRS 15 is a reduction of £108.2m In the apening net
assets as at 1 April 2017 and an Increase of £12.5m in reported
operating profit before other ttems for Fy 17/18.

Our adoption process followed the principles set out in the
standard’s five-step mode!:

* identify the contractis) with a customer;

« [dentify the performance obligations in the contract;

= determine the transaction price;

» allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract; and

= recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its
performance obligations.

This process identified the following six key areas of adjustment

discussed In more detail below:

* percentage of completion accounting:

* mobiisation assets;

« design and development and other upfront figes;

* contract assets;

= wark in progress; and

« contracted discounts including extension disoounts.
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IFRS 15 gives rise to changes in the timing of revenue and cost
recognition but does not impact the fifetime profitability or the
cash flow of contracts. The main changes for Mitie from the
adoption of the accounting standard are on &s long-term
contracts. In particular:

* revenue is more evenly matched over the fife of contracts In
line with the delivery of outoomes to clients and, consequently,
the timing of profits is re-profiled;

+ Incertain cases, there will be lower profits, or even lasses, in
the early years of contracts where there are significant upfront
restructuring or mobilisation costs, with a compensating
Increase In profits in later years;

« the overall impact on the income statement at Group level ks a
function of the balance of contracts in the early or bate stage of
thelir ifecycle. For FY 17/18, the impact Is a £12.5m increase in
operating profit before other items;

+ a number of contract related assets have been derecognised,
comprising of the accrued incomne balance associated with
percentage of compietion accounting, work in progress where
control Is yet to pass to the client and cannot be reiably
estimated, and the elimination of certain deferred mobilisation
costs that do not meet the more stringent criteria of
recognition as an asset under IFRS 15;

« the Groug’s balance sheet under IFRS 1S includes limited
contract assets created in the process of mobilising and
transforming services;

¢ there is an Increase in the level of deferred income in relation
to contracts where advance payments have been received
from chients to undertake work prior to the recognition of
revenue and planned outcomes being delivered. Deferred
income will unwind over the Iife of contracts; and

« due to the changes in the pattarm and timing of revenue and
©0st recognition under IFRS 15, and the resulting adjustment to
opening reserves on 1 April 2017, the principles of IAS 12 give
rise to & movemnent in deferred tax, primarily an increase in the
deferred tax asset recognised.




The impact on reported net assets as at 1 April 2017 and on the
reported revenue and reported operating profit before other
ikems recognised for the year ended 31 March 2018 for the
Group are a5 shown in table 1.

Divisional breakdown of adjusted financial performance
The Group’s adjusted revenue increased in the year, from
£2,140.0m to £2,199.1m as shown in table 2. This was principally
due 10 good revenue growth in Security, Care & Custody

and Engineering Services offset by significant volume

declines In Property Managemernt and a smaller reduction

n Professlonal Services.

Adjusted operating profit before other items felf by 6.0% in the
year from £82 Om to £77.1m as shown intable 3, reflecting
investments made to enhance customer services, westment in
technology and capability in Professional Services and corporate
centre, and the volume dedlines in Praperty Management, partly
offset by solid growth from both the Security and Engineering
Services divisions.

Adjusted other items before discontinued operations
Adjusted cather items before tax total £103.0m {2017: £36,6m).
£34.6m (2017: £15.0m) relates to knpainmment of the Property
Management goodwilt which is Rurther described below. £47.3m
(2017: £14.9m) Is related to organisational change, to support the
Group’s cost efficlency and transformation programmes, and
specifically relates to consultancy and project management for
the change process, redundancy and double running costs,
property closure costs, and assets written off as a function of the
transformation programme. Of this, £34.7m relates to Project
Helbx. £8.4m (2017: £6.7m) relates to the amortisation of
acqusisition related intangible assets, business acquisition costs
and costs associated with the aborted disposal of Proparty
Management. Other exceptional iters of £12.7m include £3.3m
for settiement of a contractual dispute, £3.1m in relation to
contract terminations and extensions, £2.3m in relation to costs
assodiated with various regulatory enquiries, £1.9m relating to
pension curtaiiments, £1.3m for property dilapidations, and
£0.8m of IERS 15 adoption costs. The tax credit on other items
was £11.7m (2017: £4.1m) resulting in other tems after tax of
£91.3m (2017: £32.5m). As noted above, a3 » result of the
Accounting Review, a number of one-off kems In the FY 16/17
financial statements were included in the loss before other items
rather than in other items, and adjusted through the APMs to
provide 3 more meaningful comparison.

Table 1
Operating
Net profit
asgets before
1April | Revenue other Rems
£m 017 | Frizie  Friras
Pre-FRS 15 898 | 21991 771
IFRS 15 adjustments:
Percentage of completion (50.2) 76 7.6
Mobilisation assets {24.9) {0.6} 44
Design and development and {30.1) 31 33
Accrued income and contract - - 10
Waork in progress {26.5) {6.1} (4.6)
Contracted discounts {1.5}) 0.6 0.8
Tax 25.0
Total IFRS 15 adjustments (108.2) 4.6 125
As reported under IFRS 15 (184)] 22037 896
Table 2
Adjusted revenue, £ra FY17/18  FY16/17 Change, %
Engineering Services 8338 803.7 a7
Security 4317 403.7 69
Professional Services 90.8 96.6 {6.0}
Cleaning & Emvironmental 405.5 399.2 16
Care & Custody 62.3 454 343
Catering 137.1 132.7 33
Praperty Management 2379 2577 {77
Total 2,199.1 2,1400 28
Table 3
Adjusted opevating profit/{ioss)
befory othver tems, £m FY17/18  FY16/17 Change,®
Engineering Services ss 3390 76
Security 252 216 16.7
Professional Services 7.0 9.3 (24.7}
Cleaning & Environmental 198 209 (53)
Care & Custody 3.2 289 10.3
Catering 50 53 5.7
Property Management 79 123 (35.8)
Corporate centre (265) (233) (13.7)
Total 77.1 82.0 {6.0)
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Tax contribution

The Group manages both direct and indirect tanes to ensure that
it pays the appropriate amount of tax in each country whilst
respecting the applicable tax legislation, where appropriate
utilising any legislative reliefs avallable. The strategy is reviewed
regularly and is endocsed by the Board.

Mitie is a significant contributor of revenues to the UK Exchequer,
paying £481.2m in the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
£534.4m). This comprised £492.8m of Indirect taxes including
business rates, VAT and payroll taxes paid and collected, less an
£11.6m refund of UK corporation tax. The tax refund was due to
the utlliisation of losses resulting from the accounting
adjustments in the prior year's acoounts. As Mitie’s business is
primarily based in the UK, the effective tax rate should track the
UK statutory tax rate. Losses reported as a consequance of the
adjustments to the balance sheet following the adoption of IFRS
15 wili reduce the Group’s corporation tax payments over the
next few years,

Discontinued operations

Following a strategic review of the operations of the Group
earfier in the year, a sale process was inftiated in connection with
the Property Management business. It was therefore classified as
a discontinued operation in the half-yearly financial report for the
six months ended 30 September 2617, On 5 December 2017,
Mide confirmed that it had withdrawn the Property Management
business from sale, as none of the indicative offers received were
atan acceptable level.

It has therefore been classified as a continuing operation as at 31
March 2018 and will now be Integrated into the Engineering
Services division.

On 28 Febyuary 2017, the Group completed the sale of its
Healthcare dvision following the Board's decision to withdraw
from the domiciiary healthcare markat. As 3 resuilt of the
disposal, the Hea'thcare businass was classified as a discontinued
operation for the year ended 31 March 2017,

Dividends

The full-year dividend is 4.0p per share (2017: 4.0p per share),
comprising an interim dividend of 1.33p per share and a final
dividend recommended by the Board of 2.67p per share.

Mitie Model

As previously signalied, the Group has ceased its past practice of
creating Mitie Mode! jointly held companies, with specificeam
out targets, and all remaining minority shareholder interests have
been bought out during the year.
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Adjusted goodwill and intangibla assets

Adjusted goodwill and other intangible assets of £348.9m
{2017: £397.1m) were held on the balance sheet at 31 March
2018. As part of lts annual review of Impairment the Group has
updated its estimate of the recoverable amount of the Property
Management cash-generating unit (CGU}, principally due to
changes in broader market conditions, which has resulted in
an impairment charge of £34,6m being taken in other items,

In addition, other intangible assets impairment charges, mainly
relating to software development assets that are no longer

in use, were £10.4m, and other intangible assets amortisation
was £13.5m.

Other goodwill balances have been maintained and there were
no acquisitions during the year giving rise to goodwill.

Adjusted cash flow

The Group took steps to strengthen iks balsnce sheet during the
year, including normalising s working capital position. Utilisation
of non-recourse involce discounting was reduced at the year-end
and suppller payment performance was improved. Afthough this
negatively iImpacted cash fiow during the year, it resulted in a
stronger underiying balance sheet position and an Improved
position for suppliers.

The adjusted operating cash inflow, before movements in
working capital, was £49.6m (2017: £9.1m). This includes a cash
outflow of £27.5m relating to other kems charged to the income
statement in FY 17/18,

Adjusted cach used In operations during the year was £6.6m
(2017: cash generated £151.1m), as a result of a working capital
outflow of £56.2m (2017: inflow £142.0m). The working capital
movement is explained in more detall below.

After paying interest of £13.5m (2017; £12.7m) and corporate tax
receipts of £11.6m (2017 paid £15.3m) the adjusted net cash
outflow from operating activities was £8.5m (2017: inflow
£122.8m). Capital expenditure reduced by £0.8m compared to
the prior year, 10 £26.1m {2017 £26.9m). Dividends of £4.8m
were paki In the year (2017; £37.4m), Other net cash outfiows
totalled £6.9m, including the setiement of amounts owed in
connection with the disposal of Healthcare of £9.7m (2017:
£27.4m, indluding share buybacks of £24.4m).

Owerall, this resulted in an increase In the Group’s net debt of
£45.3m (2017: £31.1m decrease) to £193.5m (2017: £147.2m).




Adjusted working capital

As highlighted above, the Group took steps to normalise ks
working capital balances as part of a series of measures to
strengthen its balance sheet. There were two main drivers
explaining the working capital movemnent of £56.2m in FY 17/18.

Firstly, the Group reduced {ts non-recourse custorner invoice
discounting by £34.4m to £76.3m. The invoice discounting
facilities are netted off against trade and other receivables within
the balance sheet and therefore led to a working capital outflow
from receivables of £34.4m (2017: £28.5m Inflow). Excluding the
impact of invoice discounting, there was an undsHying decresse
in receivables of £4.3m and total working capital Increased

by £21.8m.

The second factor was the measures taken to improve our
supplier payment performance at the year end. Total payables
reduced by £30.3m over the year as the Group improved its
supplier payment days to 58 days (2017 72 days).

Net debt

The Group’s net debt increased by £46.3m to £193.5m as at

31 March 2018 (2017: £147 2m). However, average borrowings of
£286.1m were £49.8m lower than the prior year {2017: £335.9m),
of which £23.6m can be attributed to higher average invoice
discounting (in contrast to the lower year-end position). As noted
abowve, this Increase In net debt can be attributed to the measures
taken to reduce the year-end use of invoice discounting and to
mprove supplier payment performance. The Group s focused
on continuing to drive further sustainable improvements to its
average borrowings.

Liquidity and covenants

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had £466.5m of committed
funding arrangements (2017: £526.8m), compared to net debt
of £193.5m (2017; £147.2m). The £275m muliti-cumency
Revolving Credit Facility {RCF) matures in July 2021, The £191.5m
of US Private Placement notes are spread over three maturities:
December 2019 £40.0m; December 2022 £121.5m; and
December 2024 £30.0m. in December 2017, £60.2m of US
Private Placermnent notes matured and this was funded as
anticipated through existing faciltties.

Mitie’s two key covenant ratios are leverage (ratio of net debt to
covenant EBITDA 1o be no more than 3 times) and interest cover
{ratio of covenant EBSTDA to net finance costs to be no less than
4 times}. At the year end, we were operating comfortably within
these ratios at 1.98 for leverage and 6.8 for interest cover.

Mithe's intention s 10 consistently maintain adequate headroom
within its committed facilities. In addition to ks committed
funding, the Group utilises ancillary facilities, including involce
discounting of £76.3m (2017: £110.7m). The Group's trade
creditors include amounts due to UK suppliers which make

use of supply chain finance arranged by Mitle of £45.1m

{2017: £39.5m).

Retivement benefit schemes

The net defined benefit pension liability at 31 March 2018

was £54.8m (2017: £70.7m) for the Mitie Group scheme.

The reduction in the deficlt Is principally due to a2 5bps Increase
In the discount rate driven by improvements in corporate bond
rates since 31 March 2017. On 14 November 2017, the Group
dosed the final salary section of the maln Mitie Group scheme
to future accrual and the resulting annualised savings to the
Group from FY 18/19 are expected to be in the region of £0.8m
per annum. The fatest valuation of the Mitie Group scheme

as at 31 March 2017, indicated an actuarial deficit of £46.6m
{31 March 2014: £6.0m}, largely due to & fall In discount rates
sinoe 2014. The Group has negotiated, subject to final approval,
a deficit recovery plan with the Trustee totalling £58.0m over
10 years, of which £3.0m was pald in FY 17/18.

The Group also makes contributions to customers’ defined
benefit pension schemes under Admitted Body arrangements as
well as to other airangements in respect of certain employees
who have transferred to the Group under TUPE. At 31 March
2018, Mitie’s net defined benefit pension liabilRy in respect of
these schemes, which it is committed to funding. amounted to
£2.0m {2017: £3.5m).

In addition, the Group also participates in four industry multi-
employer defined benefit pension schemes, induding the
Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK industry Pension Scheme.
These schemes are accounted for as defined contribution
schemes, either because the assets and liabilities cannot be
apportioned among emplayers or the amounts involved are not
significant. Contributions to these schemes for FY 18/19 are
expected to be approximately £0.1m. The Group is exposed to
Section 75 employer debts in respect of two of these schemes.
These liabilities crystafise when the Group ceases to have any
active employees in the schemes. Further detalls can be found in
Notes 34 and 37,

Condlusion

In %ine with recent Financial Reporting Council guidance, we will
continue to simplify our operational and financial processes as we
increase transparency and improve our intemal control erwironment.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risks and uncertainties

We have performed a robust and systematic neview of those risks that we bekeve could seriously affect Mitie’s performance, future
prospects, reputation or its abifity to defiver against its priorities, Our process for identifying and managing risk is set out in more
detail on pages 69 and 70 of the corporate governance report. The following table and subsequent pages set ot our principal risks
and examples of controls and mitigating factors.

The risks identified do not comprise all of the risks associated with our business and are not set out in priority order. Additional risks
not presently known to management, or currently deemed to be less material, may also have an adverse effect on the business.

. Cotmgory ik

1 Strategic ineffective bidding for contracts and poor mobilisation and delivery processes, resulting In onerous
contract terms, finandial loss and damage to our customer relationships

2 Strategic Uncentainties in the economic, palitical and regulatory tandscape which may have a negative
impact on the demand for our services and our acosss to resources

3 Strategic Poor sentiment towards the cutsourcing sector could lead to fewer opportunities, increased
scrutiny and an adverse effect on our reputation

4 Strategic Faiiure to deliver our transformation programime leading to iower benefits than anticipated,
higher costs and weaknesses in operational processes

5 Operational Fallure to maintain appropriate controls in and availability of critical IT systems leading to major
contract delivery issues

6 Operational Inadequate controls over confidential and customer data and/or failure to comply with data
protection legislation could lead to reduced confidence in our abilides to protect data and fines
from regulators

7 Operational Fallure to adhere to sufficiently high standards in heaith, safety and environmental management
resulting 'n harm to our employees, fines and damage to our reputation

8 Operational Inabiiity of our business to attract and retain sufficient talented resources with a resultant
detrimental effect on our operational and financial performance

9 Operational inabliity to maintaln access to sources of funding due to concerns over out financial strength could
have a significant impact on our performance and client relationships

10 Financial Failure of a significant coumerparty {e.g. supplier, banker} to defiver contractual requirements
resuiting in financial penalties and reputational damage

11 Regulatory Non-compliance with emerging legal and regulatory frameworks leading to fines, prosecutions and

damage to our reputation




Risk Number: 1

Ineffective bidding for contracts and poor mobilisation and
delivery processes, resulting in onerous contract terms, financial
loss and damage to our customer relationships

Impacts on:

@ customer

@ con

ttis critical to our business mode! that we are able to develop
competitive and profitable bids, and mobitise and deliver on a
variety of contracts which are often over long periods and highly
complex. In order to do this, we need to have a compelling and
differentiated market offering, and balance the cost and margin
préssures that are an important factor in gur Industry. Fallure to
do 50 would impact our ability to retain clients and secure new
contracts, with a detrimenta) effect on our financial performance.

We need to fairly balance risk and reward, as well as contractual
terms In our bids, and have sultable monitoring mechanisms to
ensure this is achieved. it IS important to make sure we can
deliver the services In a contract, by fully understanding the risks
Involved and having the appropriate skills and resources
required. Incorrectly assessing the risks may result in onerous
contracts, penaities and early termination of contracts.

Faiiure to properly mobiiise a contract may result in breaches of
terms and conditions, additional unanticipated costs and
problems with operational performance. in addition, the
delivery of each contract must be closely monitored so that we
understand our performance against the contract obligations
and Key Performance Indicators (KPI), and that any changes are
properly assessed and monitored.

If we are unable to deliver the services as agreed in the contract,
this could have a negative impact on our customer relationships
and reputation and lead to legal disputes with our customer and
termination of the contract. We have a number of Jarge
integrated contracts and major service spedific contracts, the
loss of any of which would have a significant financial Impact.

Controls and mitigations

* Strategic account managament

* Revised group-wide Sales & Bkl process rolled out

» Centralisation and standardisation of pricing models

* Executive management bid committee approval for complex bids

¢ New Sales and CRM teams In place

s Development of Connected Workspace and capability in
professional services

= {se of speclalist mobilisation teams for complex contracts

Detailed contracting guidelines developed and rolled out

Revised and reissued delegated authorities register

Risk registers in place for large-scale contracts

KPI/SLA formal reviews with customers

improved CRM capabifities with active refationship management

Focus on Net Promoter Score

Future plans

* Ongoing review to redefine and optimise the way we use our

CRM tool {SalesForce}, to ensure best practice is shared across
all client teams

* Introducing new Sales Acadermny

Risk Number: 2

Uncertainties in the economic, political and regulatory landscape
which may have a negative impact on the demand for our
services and our access to resources

Impacts on;
@ customer @ reople
@ cCo @ Technology

The performance of our business may be affected by general
economic conditions and other financial and political factors
outside its control. A downturn In the economic cycle usually
resuilts in decreased project work and discretionary spend by
customers, which can lead to a fall in our financlal performance.

Mitle drives most of its revenue from a client base in the UK,
with limited exposure to the wider giobal economy, We continue
to monitor the results of negotiations resufting from the dedsion
of the UK to exit the European Unlon, commonly referred to a5
“Brexit’. This may result in changes to the regulatory framework
in which we operate, and could place restrictions on the mobiitty
of individuals and hence avallability of resources.

We need to be able to respond to variations in particular sectors
by providing service solutions that are competitive and
profitable. Our diverse husiness portfolio also helps provide
resifience to economic uncertainty.

Controls and mitigations

» Mix of long-term contract portfolio in both the public and
private sectors

» Development of professional services, Connected Workspace
and new and innovative solutions

« Focus on higher margin growth opportunities

= Regular reviews of the sales pipeline

« Increasing spread of client base, reducing reflance on
individual customess

= Strategic account management

* Project Helix transformation programme

Future plans

» Continue to source Connected Workspace technology
platform to provide next generation FM services that increase
customer stickiness, improve win rates, increase retention and
provide opportunities for higher margins

« Significant increase in our customer retention focus through
better understanding customer needs (NPS), improving
operational efficlency and developing expertise and capability
withih cur commercial function

« Build 2 tustomes focus, demand Jed marketing and
communication programme to better engage our customers
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Risk number: 3

Poor sentiment towards the autsourcing sector could lead to
fewer opportunities, increased scrutiny and an adverse effect on
our reputation

Mitie’s reputation may be affected by the activities and resuits of
other companies operating in our sector, as well as any negative
publicity for our business. This has been particularly heightened
since the liquidation of Carilflon picin January 2018. This has
resulted in increased scrutiny of companies in the outsourced
facilities management sectol, regarding thelr financial health,
operational performance and long-term prospects. In addition, it
has increased debate, predominantly in the public sector, about
the benefits and viability of outsourced contracts. We also
operate a number of government comracts which attract very
high levels of media scrutiny, for example immigration

removal centres.

If we are unable to demonstrate our ability to deliver the
obligations in our existing contracts and financlal performance in
line with market expectations, we may be unable to retain
existing clients or secure new contracts. In addition, any negative
publicity in respect of our petformance on public-sector
contracts may have a negative impact on our financial
performance and reputation,

Controls and mitigations

« Regular engagement with both public and private sector clients

+ Strategic account management and increased cross selling to
current customers

+ Project Helix transformation programme

* Long-term contract postfolio and spread of client base

« Strong refationships with financial institutions

» Regular financial performance and balance sheet reviews

Future plens

+ Continue to source Connected Workspace technology
platform to provide next generation FM services that increase
customer stickiness, improve win rates, increase retention and
provide opportunities for higher margins

« Significantly increase our customer retention focus through
better understanding customer needs (NPS), improving
operational efficiency and developing expertise and capability
within our commercial function

s Bulld a customer focus, demand led marketing and
communication programme to better engage our customers
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Risk number: 4

Failure to deliver our transformation programme leading to
lower benefits than anticipated, higher costs and weaknesses in
operational processes

impacts on:
@ Customer @ Pecple
.Cost @ Technology

To ensure that we develop and grow our business in line with
the new operating model, our transformation programme
(Project Helbx) has been running throughout the year. The
programme contains multiple projects designed to improve and
optimise business processes, controls and operating structures,
with major projects In areas such as Finance, IT, HR and our
Engineering Services division.

The changes being introduced are vital to the future success of
the business, and fallure to adequately manage the programme
of work, identify and manage interdependencies, develop
appropriate solutions and implement the changes and ensure
they are sustainable, could severely imit the pace st which these
changes are defivered. Additionally, the investment required to
implement the projects needs to be closely monkored, to
ensure we deliver the expected operational and financlal
benefits and savings in overheads.

Controls and mitigetions

» Board and Executive Leadership Team (ELT) sponsorship and
regular monitoring of the transformation programme

» Highly experienced progranwne managers brought in to
establish an overall programme management office, with
effective governance, controls, monitoring mechanisms and
reporting. This ensures regular oversight with clear visibllity of
progress and early waming of any challenges.

» Experienced individuals within the business dedicated to the
individual projects to allow focus on the transformational activity

+ Regular communication of progress and awareness of the impect
of changes being introduced to minimise business disnption

« Dedicated risk management and assurance procedures within the
programme to ensure internal controks are operating effectively

Future plans

+ Develop a training programme for change management to
bulld and enhance internal capability

+ Create a permanent Enterprise PMO capability to govern,
manage and control all change management activities
post-Transformation




Opuratinn

Risk number: 5
Fallure to maintain appropriate controls in and availability
of critlcal IT systems leading to major contract delivery issues

@ technology

Technology is becoming Increasingly critical to the success of our
business in meeting customers’ expectations. This is particularly
important where we are responsible for looking after data and
critical infrastructure on thelr behalf, and any fallure could not
only impact our abillty to operate, but also the

custamery’ business.

We are continuing to increase the use of technology with
customers, especially as we develop our Connected Workspace
offering, and need to ensure we have effective controls and
monitoring in place.

In addition, we are seeking to automate processes and improve
systems across our business to improve efficiency and control. A
number of these initiatives are being delivered through our
transformation programme (Project Helix); a key system change
already delivered &s a work management system in our Cleaning
& Specialist Services division (also utilised by our Security
division). Other signficant planned changes inclucie the
implementation of improved HR solutions and a planning and
scheduling sofution for Engineering Services,

Investment in technodogy Is critical to delivering on our contract
obligations and to delivering operational improvements. As our
dependency on IT solutions increases, we will need to continue
to invest to minimise system fallures and have adequate
business continuity and disaster recovery plans,

Controls and mitigations

» Standardisation and rationalisation of cperational and ERP
systems and infrastructure

+ Recruitment of highly skilled IT professionals who are famillar
with the new technologles and can use these to de-risk the
current estate

= Improved cyber and operational controls for existing systems
and included in all new systam developments

= Development and testing of effective business continuity and
disaster recovery plans

+ Investment strategy and support for technology development

Future plans

* The praposed outsource of routine IT operations to 3 partner
organisation which has the scale and depth of skills to run this
more effectively and with lower risk

= The continued migration from the legacy estate to leverage
new technologies, such as Al, big dats, API management,
open systems et to improve scatability, performance and
resilience

Risk number: 6

inadequate controls aver confidential and customer data and/or
failure to comply with data protection legislation could lead to
reduced confidence in our abilities to protect data and fines
from regulators

Impacts on:
@ customer
. Technology

There has been an increase in the regulations and penalties for
falling to adequately secure the data we hold regarding our
customers, suppliers, employees and others. As with all
organisations we face increased risk of cyber-attacks, malware
and internal breaches, which could affect our operational
performance and cayse damage to our reputation. it is
important that we maintain adequate security controls to
prevent the loss or theft of data we hold.

in particular, we have a programme of work and dedicated team in
place to ensure we are compliant with the General Data Protection
Regulation {GDPR), which came into force in May 2018,

Information is an important asset for the business and needs to

be protected at all times from disciosure or misuse. We handle
information in many forms and have formal secure technical and
procedural controls in place to mvitigate risks to the information. The
secure processing, maintenance and transmission of sensitive and
confidential data is achleved through the Inkegrity, confidentiality and
avalabllity of our systems. Appropristely applied information secury
helps to ensure business continuity and minimise disnaption by
preventing or minimising the Impact of security breaches, Fallure to
do this would raise questions about how we handie information with
care, rechuce confidence In our abilities and potentially expose us to
significant fines from regulators.

Controls and mitigations

« Centralised information security team in place and
experienced new Chief Data and Security Officer recrulted

» Information Security Management System (ISMS) in place and
certified to ISO/IEC27001:2013 for key information assets

« IT security controls in place to proactively test, monltor,
identify and respond to cyber threats

« Cyber Essentials accreditation

+ Cyber Insurance policy

» Ongoing Security Awareness For Everyone (SAFE) programme

« Information security considered for all new critical activities
and products

Future plans

= Adoption of new, and optimisation of existing, security
functionality to respon to the evolving cyber threat landscape.

* Further embedding the principies and procedures of Privacy
by Deslgn Into core BAU activities

+ Transition of legacy emall gateway functionallty into the
strategic toolset

» implementation of Single S$ign-On (SSO), delivering security
and end-user experience benefits

» Redesign of Joiners-Movers-Leavers controts in line with new
HR transformation activities and toolsets
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Risk number: 7

Faliure to adhere 1o sufficiently high standards in health, safety
and enwironmental management resulting in harm to our
employees, fines and damage to our reputation

impacts on:
@ Customer
@ People

The nature of the services we perform for our clients means that
there is potential for aur employees, our partners and members
of the public to be exposed to health and safety risks, and for
environmental damage. It is essential that we maintain very high
health, safety and environmental (HS8:E) standards to manage
these risks.

We are compietely committed to ensuring owr people operate in
safe conditions, hard is not caused to others who may be
affected by our activities and prevention of damage to the
environment. Effective management of these risks ks essential to
the success of our business. Fallure to do 3o could lead to
significant harm to individuals and the erwironment and result in
prosecution, action by regulators, fines and substantial damage
10 OUr reputation.

Controls and mitigations

= A professional and skilled HS&E team

* New Director of QHSE appointed and revised operational
model Intraduced with clear roles and responsibiiities

¢ Regular training and communication defivered at appropriate
levels throughout the company

= Improvements in incident recording, monitoring and reporting

» Certified HS&E management systems to OHSAS 18001 and
15014001

+ Clear and sandardised KPis introdkiced to monitor progress
and improvements

* HS&E performance reviews conducted at divisional and
Board meetings

Futurs plans

* implementation of QHSE Culture program (LiveSafe)
specifically designed to develop QHSE cultural maturity across
the organisation

* Implementation of systems and processes which ensure
effective sharing of QHSE learnings across the organisation
and industry
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Risk number: 8§

Inability of our business to attract and retain sufficient talented
resources with a resultant detrimental effect on our operational
and financial performance

Impacts on:

@ customer

@ Peopie

To achieve our objectives and operate successfully we must

attract, develop, motivate and retain talented individuals. if we

fail to maintain a skitful workforce there wili be an adverse

Impact on our operational and financial performance, and

customer satisfaction.

It is Important to have a variety of views and experience within

the business and to attract specific technical expertise to

enhance our customer offering. It Is also essential that we

develop and support the current and future ieaders in our

business. This will help ensure we have the right culture in the

business to maintain high standards of working and an effective

system of governance and control.

Controls and mitigetions

* Launch of Vision and Values

¢ Updated and improved training portal developed and
deployed during the year

+ Competitive remuneration, terms arxi conditions

» Parsonsl development plans related to annual performance
appraisals

* Succession planning and talent management

= Regular employee cormmunications and offers

Futuve plans

= Partnership with 3aaa developed to utilise the Apprenticeship
Levy to bulid capability and attract talent

* Implementation of employee and manager selserve
technology to enhance employee experience

« Digital leaming suite to be rolled out

* Action planning from engagement survey results

= Creation of resourcing centre of excelience to enhance
candidate experience




Financial risks

Risk number: 9

Inability to maintain access to sources of funding due to
cancems over our financial strength could have a significant
impact on our performance and client relationships

Impacts on:
.Cusmmar
@ rechnology

it is important that we maintain a range of suitable sources of

finance, including banking facilities, private placements and

supply chain funding, In order to maintain a strong liquidity

position. Fallure to do so woulkd restrict our ability to grow either

organically or through acquisition, and affect our ability to meet

our financial commitments, We need sufficient funds to be

avallable to pay our suppliers, invest in our business and, most

importantly, pay our staff on time, as this Is cur most

significant cost.

We continue to pursue initiatives to improve our financlal

position and given the concem about the viability of companies

operating in our sector, We need to continue to demonstrate

guad financial discipline to maintaln access to appropriate

sources of funding.

Controls and mitigations

* Maintenance of strong banking, debt and equity relationships

* Committed long-term funding facilities

* Focus oh appropriate payment terms with customers and
supply chain

« Strong focus oh and monitoring of cash collection

s Daily monitoring of bank batances

* Regular forecasting of cash flow

* Regular financial performance and balance sheet reviews —
which have been enhanced during the year

* Regular monitoring of working capital

* Policy on provisions

Future plans

* Streamlbine our order to cash process

& Introduce incentives linked to cash collection

Risk number: 10

Failure of a significant counterparty (e.g. supplier, banker) to
deliver contractual reguirements resutting in financlal penalties
and reputational damage

Impacts on:
.Customer

To meet our contractual commitments and succeed as a
business, we are refiant on our ability to manage our
relationships with third parties including insurers, suppliers and
banks. Poor performance or falure of one of these
countarparties could have a significant impact on our
operational and financial performance, and damage our
reputation and client refationships.

It is important that we maintain effective ongoing relationships

with our significant counterparties and monitor their

performance, and develop contingency plans as necessary.

Controls and mitigations

+ Ongoing credit monltoring of significant counterparties

« Annual material counterparty risk reviews and Board approval

* Regular contact with external finandal and commercial
markets

« Business continulty plans developed

+ Maintenance of sufficient committed debt facllities to
minimise the impact of any adverse financial conditions
caused by counterparty fallure

Future plans

« Exercise continued vigiance in monitoring and managing key
counterparty relationships
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Risk number: 11
Non-comphiance with emerging legal and regulatory frameworks
leading to fines, prosecutions and damage to our reputation

Impacts on:
@ customer
@ Pecpie

The Group is subject to a wide variety of laws and regulations.
These include employment, and anti-bribery and corruption
laws, National Minimum Wage and the Appremticeship Levy.
Fallure to comply with applicable legal and regulatory
frameworks may result in significant fines, prosecutions,
debarment from public sector contracts and revocation of
licences, as well as damage to our reputation. This could harm
our prospects of winning future bids and retaining

existing customers.

Itis important that we maintain strong governance and oversight
1o ensure we continue to comply with iegal and reguistory
frameworis and that we respond to any changes that are
Introduced. It Is also necessary to communicate the
requirements to our employees to ensure they are fully aware
and can demonstrate compliance.

Controls and mitigations

* Group functions {including Company Secretariat, QHSE,
Finances, Legal and HR} monitor requirements and assess the
Impact on the Group

« Training and awareness Is provided to employees for changes
In lsws and regulations

= Ongolng compliance monitoring is undertaken and
management & required to confirm compliance

» Management oversight by Group and divisional leadership teams

« External experts consulted for specialist advice

= Code of conduct maintalned and deployed to employees

+ External regulatory audits

= Whistieblowing service launched and externally hosted

+ Tax reporting framework in place to ensure compliance with
the Senlor Accounting Officer rules

» Group-wide policies and processes maintainad in the Business
Management System (BMS)

Future plans

* Revised Group risk governance architecture will be rolied
out during 2018

« Digital leaming sulte to be rolled out

= Recrultment of additional subject matter experts to
Group functions

* Ongoing review of BMS to update policies and process
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Viability statement

The Group’s principal markets and strategy are described in
detail in the Strategic Report [pages 1 to 56), The key factors
affecting the Groupy's prospects are:
» Mitie is the leading FM business in the UK with 4% of the market;
* the outsourcing market is relatively Insensitive to sconomic cycles;
+ Mitle has a dear vision for its technology centric growth strategy;
= Mitle is making good progress in its transformation
programme; and

» Mitie has a diverse porticlic of biue-chip and public sector
clients, the largest of which constitutes only 7.4% of revenue.

In accordance with section €.2.2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016, the Directors have assessed the
prospects of the Group over a three-year period to March 2021,

Tha Directors believe that a three-year period Is appropriate for
their viability assessment as it is supported by Mitle's strategic,
budgeting and business planning cycles and is relevant to the
duration of the Group's existing contracts with customers which
Is around three years on average. It therefore represents a
timeframe aver which the Directors belleve they can reasonably
forecast the Groug's performance.

In making this statement, the Directors have carried out a robust
assessment of the princips) risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or liquidity. This included the availability
and effectiveness of mitigating actions that could realistically be
taken to avoid or reduce the impact or occurrence of the
undertying risks. in considering the likely effectiveness of such
actions, the conclusions of the Board's regular monitoring and
review of Hsk management and internal comtrol systems, as
described on pages 69 and 70, were considered.

In adopting IFRS 15, Mitle reported net labliicies of (£24m)

at FY 17/18. This change does not affect forecast cash flows,
liquidity, or the ability of the Group to meet its obligations as
they fall due in the future and therefore does not Impact

this analysis.

In undertaking its viabliy assessment, as a base case, the Board
used the agreed budget for FY 18/19, which Includes analysis of
the forecast performance of the Group’s existing contract base,
expectation for future growth including sales targets and
expected win rates, and overhead cost base. Based on this
budget, further projections for viabliity purposes have been
made using prudent assumptions:

* modest revenue and margin growth beyond FY 18/19;

= no major changes in working capital;

* custormner involce discounting continues to decrease over time;
« future dividends in line with current policy;

* no changes to Group structure; and

« no additional capital beyond current committed debt facilities.

The resulting financial model assesses the ability of the
Company to remain within the financial covenants and Kquidity
headroom of its existing committed facilities. During the forecast
period, £4Dm of the US Private Placement notes mature and the
model assumes these are not refmanced. The Group also utilised
£76m of invoice discounting at 31 March 2018, which the Group
s not dependent upon for liquidity, covenant compliance or
viability purposes In the base case scenario.

A range of scenarios that encompass the prindpal risks were
applied to the base case and are set out in the table below,
The analysis also considered a reverse stress-test scenario to
lllustrate the reduction in operating mangin required to cause a
breach of Jeverage covenant, in combination with the reduced
revenue and operating cash scenarios.

Privcipal
Scanerk risls
1 Lossof major contract — lost revenue and 1,4,5
operating profit in all future periods
2  Mgjor dient insolvency — lost revenue, 10

operating profit and cash flow, plus one-off
costs equivalent 1o three months’ revenue

3 Catastrophic working capital outflow — £100m 9

4 10% revenue reduction 3,4,6,7
] Margin erosion 1,7,8,
1l

nfa

6  Reverse stress test — revenue loss, margin
erosion and working capital outflow In
combination to covenant breach

In each of scenarios 1-5, the Group would be able to continue
operating within debt covenants, Hiquidity headroom and
maintain dividends in line with current policy. Scenaric 6
required such an extreme set of factors In unison thatit s
considered to be a very remote likellhood and therefore does
not represent a realistic threat to the viabllity of the Group.

The Directors considered mitigating factors that could be
employed to counter the negative effects of the gystallisation
of each of these risks. The maln actions included the short-term
scaling down of capital expenditure, asset disposals, reductions
in cash distributions or raising equity.

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue In operation
and meet its Habilities as they fall due over the three-year
period considered.
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Our customers’
business, is our
business

We are a partner, trusted for
our expertise and for putting
our customers at the heart
of everything we do.

Hyun
Workplace Consultant,
Professional Services
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Board of Directors
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Derek Mapp Phll Bantley Paul Woolf
Non-Executive Chalrman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Board Commitess Board Committess Board Commitises
Chairman of the Nomination Committee Chairman of the Results and investment Member of the Nomination, Results and
Data of appointment to the Board Committees investment Committees
May 2017 Member of the Momination Committee Date of appointment to the Board
Other current sppolntiments Dats of appointment to the Board November 2017
Derek is chalr of Informa pic and November 2016 Othar current appointmants
Huntsworth plc. He will step down from Other current appointments None
his role as chaiman, and from the board, None Past roles
of Huntswarth plc once a sultable
replacerent is found. Derek is chair of Past roles Paul was previously CEO of Vingin Active
Imagesound Limited, 3aaa and Salmon Phil was the group chief executive officer  Health Clubs, and prior to that he
Developments Limited, which are all of Cable & Wireless Communications Pic ":;f“’"”‘d‘ wills, CFO/CO0 of
privately held cornpanies. Derek also hasa  from January 2014 unti Its sale to Liberty  © Eye iglo Group and CFO of the
number of other business interests. Global pic in May 2016. From 2007 to Automobile Association.
Past rok 2013 he was managing director of British  Skills and experience
Gas and was on the board of Centrica plc o Ahighly-regarded leader with
CEQ of Tom Cobleigh PLC, chakr
mnfm:g;yNurs:’rllhsLl‘.:l'tnmdgmruf from 2000 10 2013, having held the roles experience across a broad range of
The East Midiands nt Agency, of group finance director {2000-2004) and Industry sectors.
chair of Sport England and chairman Oft;’li :‘:x?t:inmm 'cmmﬁmaou Idmlwm ’I.Jk * A proven track record in operational,
British Amateur Boxing Association. from October 2012 toDecember 2014 and e o'l STAAEIC Ovesight and
Sidlls and expetionce Kingfisher plc (2003-2010). * Extersive tumaround experience.
* E'qu’"""m‘ chairman and entrepreneur.  Syifls and expesience o Qualified as a chartered accountant
* Extansive career in ownership, » Executive and non-extcutive experience  with a degree from Oxford University in
managerial, W?:wwu with FTSE 100 public companies for Phiosophy, Politics and Economics.
commercial roles stries. over 15 years.
. mﬁm ofcnmmer:ar:r SOVEMANCE o sitegic and commercial experience,
rience within sectors. at both national and gicbal level,
. :ﬂ";mms“;b;:tm":em'“d'“"m" * Extensive exscutive and leadership

experiance from across Industry,

« Extensive financiai, audit and risk
management systems experience.,

« Accountant by profession, with a master’s
degree from Oxford University and an
MBA from INSEAD, Fontainebleau.
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Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat Jack Boyer, OBE Philippa Couttie
Independent Non-Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director independent Non-Executive Director
Board Committees Board Committees Board Committess

Member of the Audit and Nomination
Committees

Date of appointment to the Board
June 2017

Other current appolntments

Chief executive, Infrastructure Services &
Cloud Services UK, Ireland and Northern
Europe at Capgemini SA, a French publicly
listed muttinational corporation, and a
member of its UX management board.

Past roles

Senior roles at Capgeminl SA; head of
Enterprise Solutions, EMEA and head of
London Development Gentre at Infosys
Technologies Ltd. Prior to joining Infosys,
Nivedita was a consultant in the corporate
finance division at KPMG India.

Skilis and sxperience

» Significant international management
experience having worked across the
UK, Europe, the US and indis.

® Vast experience in advising clients
on technology solutions with a view
to enabling them to Increase
shareholder value.

o Several years of IT consulting and IT
outsourcing experience managing large
compiex contracts.

= Strong sales orientation having sold
global technology and digital solrtions
to global dients.

+ Qualified as a chartered accountant
with a degree In Economics.

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
June 2013

Other anTent appointments
Non-executive director and member of
the nomination, remuneration and audit
committees of TT Electronics PLC. Board
member of the Sir Henry Royce Institute
for Advanced Materials. Chalrman of
Academies Enterprise Trust.

Past roles

Formes chairman of Hika pic; non-executive
director and chairman of the remuneration
commiittee of Laird PLC; deputy chairman
of the Advanced Materials Leadership
Coundil (BEIS); council member of the
Engineering and Physical Sciences
Research Council and the Inncwate UK
Energy Catalyst. Previously founded and
was chlef executive officer of companies in
the engineering, tefecommunications and
biotechnology sectors. Investment banker
at Goldman Sachs and strategy consultant
at Bain & Co.

Skills snd sxperience

* Director of FYSE 250, AIM and private
companies, and chalirman of AIM
companies and private companies.

= Chief executive and entrepreneur with a
track record of steering successful
corporate innovation, growth and
globalisation in multiple sectors.

» Significant experience in mergers and
acquisitions, IPOs and financial markets
in the UK, US and Asia.

s MBA.

Member of the Audit and Nomination
Commitiees

Data of appointment to the Board
Novemnber 2017

Other current appointmants
Member of the House of Lords, party whip
and member of the Polling and Digital
Media Selact Committee,

Past roles

Philippa spent five years leading
Westminster Coundil, prior to which she
served as the cabinet member for Housing
and the cabinet member for Finance. She
wa$ 850 the deputy cabinet member for
Children's Services. She joined the Council
in 2006. Before progressing her career in
public service, Philippa was a director at
Chigroup Capital following its takeover of
Schroders, where she headed up its
principal finance business. Priot to joining
Schrodars, she was chief exacutive of
Comerstone Communications, a
subsidiaty of Birkdale Group pic.

Philippa has served as a non-executive
director on a number of boards since
2006. These include the Royal Parks, the
London Local Enterprise Partnership
Board, chairing the West End Partnership,
and sitting on the governing body for
imperial College-whiist also chalring its
audit committee,

Skills and axperience

* Extensive experience in both the public
and private sectors at the most senicr
leved.

* Ennobled and joined the House of Londs
In 2016,

* A degree from the University of St
Andrews in Psychology.
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Jennifer Duvalier farry Hirse, CBE Mark Reckitt
Independent Non-Executive Director Senlor Independent Director Independent Non-Executive Direcbor
Board Committees 8oard Committees Soard Conunittees
Member of the Remuneration and Member of the Remuneration and Chairman of the Audikt Committee
Nomination Committees Nominatlon Committees Member of the Nomination Committee
Date of appointmeant to the Board Date of appointment to the Board Date of appointment to the Board
July 2017 February 2010 July 2015
Other current appointments Othar current appoltments Other current appointments
Non-executive director at GMG pic, the Chairman of the Imperial College Data Non-executive director and chairman of
body which govems strategy and Science Institute Advisory Board. tha audit committee at both Cranswick plc
commerdial operations of the Guardian Community imterests include acting as an and Mill & Smith Holdings plc.
Media Group. She Is also amember ofthe  ambassador to Everywoman and Black

Councl of the Royal College of Art, and
chair of its remuneration committee.

Past roles

Unstil March 2017, Jennifer was executive
vice president, People, for ARM Holdings
plc, the global technology business, and
was an executive committee member with
responsibility for People and Intemnal
Communications activity. From August
2007 to August 2013,

she was Group People and Culture
Director at UBM pic, and was Group HR
Director at Emap pic from October 2003
to August 2007.

Skilis and experience

« Skill areas Include leadership
development, talent management and
succession planning; mentoring: HR
strategy; organisation development
and change management; empioyee
engagement; international
communications; corporate soclal
responsibiiity and partnerships;

o MA (Hons) from Oxford University in
English and French.

British Business, Member of the National
Research Coundil for Cyber Security.

Past roles

Until his retirement from 1BM in 2010,
Larry was chalrman of IBM (EMEA} and
held a number of other senior positions
during his 33-year career with IBM.

He represented IBM before the European
Commission and othar authorities.
Chairman of the Transition to Teaching
Committee; a commissioner for the
Government’s Employment and Skills
Councit; chalrman of the UK Trade and
investment: Executive Board; chairman of
w-skills, the Sector Skills Council; member
of the British Alrways Inte mational
Advisory Board; @ private sector Business
Ambassador, appointed by the theh Prime
Minister; member of the South African
President’s Advisory Council.

Until September 2016, Larry was 2
non-executive director and chairman
of the remuneration committee of
ARM Holdings plc.

Sidiis and experience

» Served on both government and private
sector boards at senior level.

* Significant expertise in the global
information technalogy Industry, in
particular in retation to defining and

executing the strategies required to
drive business success.
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Past roles
Non-executive director and chairman of
the audit committee of J D Wetherspoon
pic; group strategy director, Smiths Group
pic; divisioral president, Smiths
Interconnect; interim managing director,
Green & Black’s; chief strategy officer at
Cadbury pic. Mark also held 8 range of
strategy and finance roles at Cadbury
since joining in 1989, inchuding finance
director of Cadbury UK. Prior to joining
Cadbury, Mark spent six years in
Investment banking and retailing.

Skills and axperience

= Significant intermnational strategic
experience.

* Experienced non-executive director and
audht chair at FTSE 250 companies.

« Finance leadership of lerge scale
complex divisions whilst at Cadbury plc.

» Extensive strategic leadership at both
Cadbury pk and Smiths Group pic,
implernenting large scale change
programmes.

» |n depth experience in mergers and
acquisitions across multiple
intemational and product markets.

e Chartered accountant.
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Mary Rellly Roger Yates Pater Dickdnson
independent Non-Exacutive Director Independent Non-Executive Director General Counsel and Company Secretary
Board Committees Baard Committess Board Committees
Mernber of the Audit and Nomination Member of the Nomination Commitiee None
Committees Date of appointment to the Board Date of appointment
Dste of sppointment to the Board March 2018 March 2017
September 2017 Other current appointments Other current appointments
Other current appointments Nor-exacutive director of Jupiter Fund None
Non-executive director of Essentra pic, an  Maragement pic, JPMorgan Elect plc and Past roles

intermational supplier of specialist plastic,
fibre, foam and packaging products. She is
also non-executive director and chair of
the audit committee of Travelzoo, a US-
listed publisher of travel, entestainment
and local offers, and of Ferrexpo Pic, an
iron ore mining company.

Past rolas

Mary was a non-executive director and
chair of the audit & risk committee of

the Department of Transport In the UK, of
Crown Agents Ltd, an international
development company, and of Cape pic, a
global industrial services company.

Mary was also a partner at Deloitte LLP
for over twenty years, inchuding as audit
partner, Uk Manufacturing, and Head of
Outsourdng, She has also served 85 a non-
executive director on a number of boards
since 2000,

Sidils and experience

* Accounting, finance and international
management experience.

* Chartered accountant with a degree
from University College London in
History.

St James’s Place pic, where he Is also chair
of the remuneration commiitee.

Past roles

Roger started his career in asset
managemant at GT Management in 1981
and heid positions of increasing seniority
at Morgan Grenfeil, LGT and Invesco. He
served as chief executive of Henderson
Group pic from 1999 to 2008 and as chief
executive of Unicredit’s asset
management arm, Ploneer investments.

Roger's non-executive roles have included

F&C Investments, IG Group pic and Electra

Private Equity plc.

Skills and experience

s Substantial board experience, a strong
business track record and extensive
knowiedge of the finance and
investrment community.
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Peter was a partner at the global law
fum Mayer Brown International LLP
(and Its predecessor firm) between 1995
and 2017.

from 2015 until March 2017, Peter
co-headed Mayer Brown's global
Technology Transactions practice.

Between 2005 and 2015, Peter was the
head of Mayer Brown's Corporate practice
in Loandon and, in addition, between 2008
and 2015, Peter was the co-head of Mayer
Brown's giobal Corporate practice, with
specific responsibliity for strategy.

Skills and sxperience

o Substantial experience advising on
corporate advisory,
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures
and other significant commercial
transactions including fange scale
multi-jurisdictional outsourcing
projects.

= Qualified solicitor with a degree in law
from Southampton University.



Chairman’s introduction to Corporate Governance

Chairman’s introduction to
Corporate Governance

Image removed

Derek Mapp, Chairman

As a Board, we are dedicated to delivering and maintaining the
highest levels of governance. The Board ks continually seeking to
adapt and respond to meet Its responsibilities to shareholders
and other stakeholders for the Group's activities and its long-
term success,

The Board is kept up to date an all matters of key governance

by way of a comprehensive neport prepared by the Company
Secretary for each 8oard meeting, and communication during the
periods between meetings with both the Company Secretary and
the wider teams where necessary.

There have been many corporate govemance consuftations,
updates and maodifications released during the year, including the
Financial Reporting Council's review of the UK Corporate
Governance Code {the Code). Proposed revisions to the Code
remains high on our governance agenda and the Board will
continue to monitor the changes and adapt where necessary to
maintain complianoe.

Statement of compliance with the Code

The value of goodl governance is clearly recognisad by the Board
as an anea of great importance.

| can confirm on behalf of the Board that the Group has complied
throughout the year with all of the ptinciples and the relevant
prowvisions set out in the April 2016 edition of the Code, which
can be found on the Financial Reporting Council's website at
www.fre.org uk. Details of how we have applied the principles
and complied with the provisions are explained throughout the
Annual Report and Accounts. In this section, we explain how the
Code Is implemented via Mitie’s governance framework.
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Board composition

Since my appointment as Chalrman in July 2017, the composition
of the Board has been further reviewed, leading to several key
appointments during the year, External advisors were engaged to
assist and supporct the process, further details of which are set out
on pages 84 to B7 as part of the Nomination Committee report.

following the appointrment of Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat

in June 2017, in luly 2017, we announced the appointment of
lennifer Duvalier and Mary Reilly as Non-Executive Directors
Joining the Board in July and September respectively. in November,
we welcomed Paul Woolf as Chief Financial Officer and

Fhitippa Couttie as a Non-Executive Director.

Adkitionally, as announced in February 2018, we appointed
Roger Yates as 2 Non-Executive Director from 1 March 2018.
Roger wiil succeed Larry Hirst as Senfor independent Director
upon Larry's retirement from the Board at the Annual General
Meeting (the AGM) after more than eight years’ service.

Mark Reckitt will stand down from the Board at the 2018 AGM
afver three years’ service. Mary Reilly will succeed Marik as chair
of the Audit Committee,

During its neviews of the compaosition of the Board and succession
planning, the Board is mindful of both the Hampton-Alexander
review and the Parker review. Further detalls on these, and of the
Group’s policy on diversity, are incladed in the Nomination
Committee report on pages 84 to 87,

The new appointments have significantly strengthened and
widened areas of expertise and experience on the Board, Full
blographical details of each member of the Board are set out on
pages 60 to 63.

An overview of the activities and the effectiveness of each of our
Board Committees is explained further on pages 72 to 109.

External auditor change

During the year the Board carried out a competitive tender
process for the provision of audit services. As a result, Deloitte
LLP resigned as the Company’s auditor with effect from

19 September 2017, and the Board appointed BDO LLP to fill the
casudl vacanty until the forthcoming AGM, when shareholders
will have the opportunity to vote on their appointment.

Further detall can be found in the Audit Comimittee report

on pages 72 to 83.




Regulatory update

As announced in August 2017, the Company Is subject to an
ongoing review by the Financial Conduct Authaority (the FCA) in
connection with the timeliness of a profit warning announced by
the Comgany in September 2016 and the manner of preparation
and content of the Company’s financlal information, position and
results for the year ended 31 March 2016. The Company is fully
cooperating with the FCA, and will update the market on
completion of the investigation.

In November 2017, we announced that the Company had been
advised that the Financial Reporting Council's Corporate
Reporting Review team’s review of the annual report and
accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016,
which was initiated in October 2016, had been concluded and
that they did not intend to pursue the matter further.

Remuneration policy review

The remuneration policy was approved by sharehoiders at the
AGM in 2015, and In accordance with the Code we will present an
updated remuneration policy to shareholders for approval at the
2018 AGM. Further information ks Included on pages 88 to 109,

in condusion

Although there have been challenges during the past year,
Including in the outsourcing sector in general, significant steps
have been made towards delivering on our strategy, and the
Board remains committed to delivering shareholder value in the
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The Board

Board members

Every company should be headed by an effective Board.

Al Diractors are expected to aliocate sufficient time to the
Company to discharge their responsibilities effectively and,
whene possible, attend all Board meetings and the AGM.

Any time commitment matters are addressed by the Chairman
with the Director concemed.

The members of the Board are set out below and their
accompanying biographies are set out on pages 60 to 63.

Chalrman Derek Mapp (from 26 July 2017}
{Non-Exscutive)  Roger Matthews funtil 26 july 2017)
Board members Phil Bentley
{Executive) Paul Woolf (from 13 November 2017}
Sandip Mahajan (untli 13 November 2017}
Board members Nivedita Krishnamurtivy Bhagat
{Nor-Executive) {from 1 June 2017)
Jack Boyer
Philippa Couttie (from 15 November 2017)
Jernifer Duvalier (from 26 july 2017)
Larry Hirst
Mark Reckitt
Mary Reilly {from 1 September 2017)
Roger Yates {from 1 March 2018)
Note:

1. Derek joined the Board as Non-Executive Chalrman-elect on 9May 2017 and
becasvrs Chalrraan on 26 july 2017,

Ky purpose of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible and accountable to
shareholders for the sustainable long-term success of the
Company. The Board provides leadership and direction to
management within a framework of controls enabling risk
to be adequately assessed and managed.

The Board reviews and agrees the strategy for the Group
proposed by the Executive Directors on an annual basis and
reviews aspects of the strategy at Board meetings during the
year. When setting Group strategy, the Board conslders a

wide range of matters including, but not imited to: finance;
shareholder returns; the Group’s torporate structure; market
trends; competitive environment; private/public sector approach;
Iinternational aspects of the business and opportunities; and
peopie and talent.
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Key responsibilities of the Board

The formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board was
reviewed and adopted by the Board in March 2017, and can be
found at www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance. The
schedule sats out in detall the key matters and responsibilities
that are set aside to be deal with exclusively by the Board,
which include:

« setting the Groups long-term objectives and commercial strategy;

* approving material changes to the Group’s corporate, capital
and control structures;

+ approving the Half-Year Report and the Annual Report
and Accounts;

+ approving business plans and budgets and monlitoring
performance against them;

= ensuring thata sbund system of imternal controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management systems, is maintained;

» reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of those risk and
control processes, with the assistance of the Audit Committee,
through intemal audit;

+ approving material acqulsitions, disposals and business start-
ups (induding any material transactions outslde the normal
course of business);

* agreeing changes to the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and ensuring adequate succession
planning for the Board and senior rnanagement;

« undertaking a formal and rigorous review annually of
its own performance and that of its Commitbees and
Individual Directors;

+ determining the division of responsibilities between the

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and approving the

terms of reference of Board Committees;

making arrangements for dialogue with shareholders and

carvassing sharcholder opinion;

= approving resokutions and corresponding documentation 1o

be put forward to shareholders at general meetings;

approving Group poficies relating to share dealing, the code of
conduct, health and safety, corporate social responsibility
ethical trading; and :

* approving new materia] banking faciiities, the appolntment
of principal praofessional advisors, the annuat renewa! of the
Group's insurance arrangements, and material changes to the
rules or statement of Investrment principles of the Group's
pension schernes, as well as considering the level of funding
required for these schemes.

The Directors continue to be mindful of their legal duties to act in
8 way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote
the success of the Company for its shareholders, having regard
als0 to other stakeholders,

*




Frequency of Board meetings
During the year ended 31 March 2018, there were 12 scheduled
Board meetings.

Attendance
Number of scheduled meetings in the year: 12
Derek Mapp® 10/10
Roger Matthews? 6/6
Phil Bentiey 11/12
Paul Wool® 3/3
Sandip Mahajan® 9/9
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat® 5/9
lack Boyer 11/12
Philippa Couttie® 33
lennifer Duvakier’ 5/6
Laery Hirst 12/12
Mark Reckitt 10/12
Mary Rellly* 5/5
Roger Yates* 1/1
Nebos:

1. Derek Mapp was appainted to the Soard on 9 May 2017.

2. Roger Matthews resignad from the Board on 26 July 2017.

3. Paul Waolf was appolmed ¥ the Boerd on 13 Novamber 2017-

4. Sendip Mahajen resigned fram the Board on 13 Novamber 2017.

5. Nivedita Krishnamusthy was appoiniad 10 the Bosrd on 1 June 2037,

6. Philppa Couttie wes appoiried 10 the Bosrd on 15 Novernber 2017.

7. Jerwifer Dualier wes appointed to the Bosrd on 26 July 2017,

8. Wiary Relty was sppoiried to the Boavd on 1 September 2017,

9. ROger Yates was appointed 1o the Board on 1 Merch 2018

The Board wishes to clarify that, due to the changing
environment during the year, several Board and Committee
dates were rescheduled at short notioe resulting in Mark Reckitt
and Jack Boyer being unabie to attend one Board meeting each.
Mark was absent from one further Board meeting due to iliness.
Jennifer Duvahier was unable to attend one Board meeting due to
a longstanding commitment preceding her appointment to the
Mitie Board.

As atvisad In September, Phil Bentley was absertt from the
business for a period of time due o Iiness which resulted in his
nor-atiendance at the September Board meeting. Peter Dicldnson,
General Counsel and Company Secretary, ocospied the role of
acting Chief Executive Officer during Phil's absence.

in addition, two ad hoc Board meetings were held during the year, wo
consider various matters including the appointment of the Chalrman.

Key areas of business

In addition to the key responsibilities described above, during the
Year the Board spent time discussing:

* developments in corporate governance;

* the Market Abuse Regime;

= whistleblowing;

* the delegated authority register and contracting guidelines;
* principal risks and viahility;

* risk management;

¢ funding and liquidity;

* gender pay reporting; and

» the FCA’s investigation in connection with the timeliness of a
profit waming announced by the Company in September 2016
and the manner of preparation and content of the Company’s
financial information, position and results for the year ended
31 March 2016.

Division of responsibilities of the Chairman and the

Chief Executive Officer

Whilst the Chairman and Chief Exacutive Officer are collectively

resporssible for the leadership of the Group and for promoting

the highest standards of Integrity and governance, there Is a

clearly defined and effective division of accountability and

responsibility between them.

They have an open dialogue and meet regularly between Board
meetings to enture a full understanding of business issues and
faclitate efficient decision making.

The document setting out this division of responsibilities is avallable
on the webslbe at www.mitie.com/investons/corporate-govemance.

The Chairman
The Chairman ks a Non-Exacutive Director and ks responsible for:

+ chairing the Board and ensuring its effectivenass in al| aspects
of Its role, including the regularity and frequency of meetings;
« linising with the Comparry Secretary to set Boand agendas, taking
into acoount the issues and concermns of all Board members;

= ensuring there is an appropriate delegation of authority from
the Board to the executive management;

+ managing the Baard 1o ensure sufficient time is allocated to
promote healthy discussion and open debate, supported by
the right leve] and quality of information to assist the Board In
reaching s decisions;

« fadlitating the effective contribution of Non-Executive
Directors snd encouraging active engagement by all members
of the Board;

= ensuring constructive relations between the Executive and
Non-Executive Directors;

« ensuring that new Directors participate in a full, format and
tailored Induction programme;

+ ensuring that the performance of the Board, its Committees
and individual Directors is evaluated at least once a year, and
acting on the results of such evaluation; and

+ maintaining suffickent contact with major shareholders in
order to understand thelr issues and concems, in particstar
in relation to governance, strategy and remuneration, and
ensuring that their views are communicated to the Board as
awhole.

The Chairman holds meetings with the Non-Executive Directors,
without the Executive Directors being present.

During Phil Bentley's absance due to finess, the Chairman
provided support to Peter Dickinson in his role as acting
Chief Executive Officer and to the Executive Leadership Team
and others by joining seversi operational meetings, attending
the head office in London on a regular basis, maintaining
consistent dialogue with senior management and making
himself avallable as required.

The Chairman is also available to consult with shareholders
throughout the year and will be available at the 2018 AGM.
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The Board continued

Thé Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for all aspects of the
operation and management of the Group and its business within
the authorities delegated to him by the Board. Ha is specifically
responsible for:

¢ developing Group objectives and praposing and implementing
strategy, having regard to the Group’s responsibilities to its
shareholders, customers, employees and other stakeholders;

= recommending to the Board an annual budget and strategic
and financial pfan and ensuring their achievement foflowing
Board approval;

+ optimising the use and adequacy of the Group’s resources;

+ sxamining all investments and major capital expenditure
proposed by subsidiary companies and recommending to the
Board those which, in a Group context, are material in either
nature or cost;

* evalusting, approving and executing material contracts,
investments including technology investments, acquisitions,
dispasals and new business opportunities;

+ ensuring at all times that the Group’s risk profile, including
the health and safety performance of the business, Is in line
with the extent and categories of risk idertified as acceptable
by the Board;

+ making recommendations on remuneration policy, on other
remuneration related matters and in respect of the
appointment of Executive Directors to the various Board
Committees (other than the Nomination, Audit and
Remuneration Committees);

» getting Group HR policies, induding managerent development
and succession planning for senior management and approving
the appointment and termination of employment of members
of that team; and

» ensuring the effective implementation of Board decislons, and
regularly reviewing the operational performance and strategic
direction of the Group's business.

The Chief Financlal Officor
Tha Chief Financial Officer is nesponsible for:

= leading, directing and overseaing all aspects of the finance and
accounting functions of the Group, including financial
reporting, tax, treasury, strategy, performance anafysis and
financial planning, financiel systems and the development of
the back office snd management information of the Group,
and managing the processes for financlal forecasting, budgets
and consolidated reporting;

= evaluating, approving and advising the Board and the Executive
Leadership team on the financial and commercial impact of
material contracts and transactions (including mergers and
aoquisitions), technology investments in support of the
development of the Group, long-range planning assumptions,
Investment retum metrics, risks and opportunities and the
Impact of changes In accounting standards;

* overseeing and directing the Group’s Risk, Insuranoe, Pensions,
Intemal Audit and Assurance functions and managing the
relationships with the external auditor, key financial
institutions and advisors to the Group;

+ ensuring that effective internal controls are In place and that
the Comparny complies with appropriate accounting
regulations for financial, regulatory and tax reporting; and
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« providing an underpin to all aspects of the Group’s governance
framework, the application of its delegated authorities and Its
investment activities.

The Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Dinectors review proposals for the strategic
direction of the Group, constructively challenging and probing
proposals presented by the Executive Directors based on their
breadth of knowledge, experience and Individual skills and
contributing to the formutation and development of strategy.

They are responsible for monitoring high level corporate
reporting and satisfying themselves as to the ntegrity of financial
Information and the operation of key controls. They are required
to maintain an effective understanding and oversight of the
Group’s principal risks and the assurance in place relating to
those risks, including the results of the internel audit prograrmme.

The Non-Executive Directors play a key role in detenmining the
remuneration policy for the Chalrman, the Executive Directors,
the Company Secretary and members of senior mansgement and
take a primary role in Baard succession planning. They have a
responsibility to exercise their independent skill and judgement in
carrying out their duties,

The Senior iIndependent Director

The role of the Senlor independent Director includes actingas a
sounding board for the Chalrman, serving as an intermediary for
the other Directors when necessary, conducting the Chalnman’s
annual performance evaluation and leading any new Chairman
appointment process, The Senior Independent Director also
acts as chairman of the Board, In the absence of the Chalrman,
where necessary. The Senior independent Director s available
a5 an alternative point of contact for sharcholders should

they have concerns which have not been resolved through

the normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive Officer or
Chief Financlal Officer, or for which such contact Is inappropriate
in the circumstances.

Evaluation of the performance of the Board and Its
Committess

A performance svatuation of the Board and its Committees is
carried out annually to ensure they continue to be effective and
that each of the Directors demoristrates commitment to his/her
respective role and has sufficient time to meet his/her
commitment to the Company.

In fine with the Code recommendations for an externaliy-led
independent evaluation every three years, the performance
evaluation of the Board was externally facilitated during 2017,
During 2018 the Chalrman conducted a Board performance
evaluation, which Invoived one-to-one meetings with each of the
Directors, facilitated by a questionnalre devised by the Chairman
and completed by each Director in acvance.

The Chalrman shared his conclusions with the Board at its
meeting InJuhe 2018.

The evaluation of the Chalrman was facilitated by the Senior
Independent Director in conjunction with the General Counsel
and Company Secretary,




Director election and re-election

The perforrmance of each Director is reviewed as part of the
annual Board evaluation process and the Board s satisfied that
each of the Directors continues to operate effectively and to
demonstrate dear commitment to his/her role. Pac! Woolf,
Jennifer Duvalier, Mary Rellly, Philippa Couttie and Roger Yates
will stand for election at the 2018 AGM.

Phil Bentiey and the remaining Non-Executive Directars, except
for Larry Hirst and Mark Reckitt, will submit themselves for re-
election at the 2018 AGM.

The terms of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors and the
Executive Directors” service contracts are avallable for Inspection
at Mitie’s registered office, Mitie’s head office in London and at
the AGM.

Director induction process and training

All Directors recelve a personally tallored induction to Mitie which
intludes:

* meetings with the Executive Directars and other kay members
of the senior management team;

* a review of the Group’s govermance polides, structure and
business, including details of the risks and operating issues
facing the Group;

¢ visits to divisional offices and key client sites; and

+ 2 briefing on key contracts.

In order Lo ensure that Directors” skills and knowleuge aie

regularly updated, briefing notes are circuisted on matters such

as changes in the regulatory and govemance environment. Visits

1o differemt business sites and offices are arranged in order to

heip all Board members gain 3 deeper understanding of the

business. lhe Board also receives reguiar updates and

management presentations on the strategic development,

operational and financial performance of the Group.

Members of the Board are given access to an online board portal

which, as well as holding copies of all recent Board and

Committee reports and minutes, has a reading room where the

Directors can access a Board Handbook containing essential

Information about the Group, including:

» the Company’s curment Articles of Association;

« the latest Annual Report and Accounts;

* Board and Committee terms of reference;

« guidance on directors’ statutory duties;

+ govermnance and regulatory guidelines;

» the Group's approved delegated authorities; and

* an overview of the Group’s directors’ and officers’ liabilty
insurance armangements.

The Handbook was last reviewed and updated in early 2018 and
will continue to be subject to annual review.

Each Director has access to all available e-learning modules via
Mitie's Learning Management System, is actively encouraged to
complete relevant modules and is notified when new modules
become avallable. E-lsaming ts available for matters such as
the Market Abuse Regime, Bribery Act, Data Protection and
Modern Slavery.

Board accountability and assurance explained

Risk management approach

During the year, the Board has continued to oversee the
improvements being iImplemented by the management team to
address the undertying issues raised during the comprehensive
review of the Group’s balance sheet conducted in the prior year,
and the approach to governance, risk managemeant and internal
control. These have included simplification of the organisational
structure, diasity of reporting lines for the central functions,
notably HR, Legal and Finance, cessation of the ‘Mitie Model
amangements, outsourcing of the back-oifice finance
transactional processes to Genpact and continued
standardisation and simpification of processes and procedures in
the Group. In addition, » new Group-wide delegated authority
register (DAR) has been deployed which darifies the
accountabilities and authority to take declsions on specific
matters within defined financial imits, at levels from the Board to
divisional leadership. This heips to disseminate the Board's risk
appetite. Similarly, authority registers are also being
implemented n each division, whikh follow the same principles
as the DAR. This structure showid ensure a consistent approach to
acceptance and management of risk across the business. The
whistiebslowing line, provided by an external party, has been
aunched during the year, with all reports being reviewed and
investigated. This also enhances the identification of risks.
tmprovernents in IT systerms have continued 10 bring the business
onto consistent platforms, with improving management
information and visibility of common risks and effectiveness of
controls. The Internal Audit function has targeted Its work at
areas of the business where risk management and internal
controls are suspected of requiring improvement, which has
helped to improve the risk and control frameworks.

The Group’s approach to risk ks set out in more detall below. The
approach to risk management has been evolving in the past year,
and rowntiniies tn he reviewed and developead by the Board and
Beaacutive Laadership Team, in line with the business structure
and risk profile. The Board understands that effective risk
management and a sound system of intermal control are essential
to the achievement of the Group’s strategy and supporting
objectives. The Audit Committee has continued to focus on its
review of the risk management framework to Increase its
understanding of the nature of the risks faced by the Group and
how they are addressed.
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The Board continued

Risk cufture

it s recognised that the risk management cuiture within the
business is equally as important as an effective risk management
framework. [n support of this, the ‘One Mitie” Vision and
Values have been developed and launched, and are being
communicated to all employees. As well as helping to achieve
common ways of working and clarity of approach for customers
and employees, they also help set out, together with the code
of conduct (One Code), the framework upon which Mitie’s risk
culture Is built. Emphasis Is placed on the importance of
embedding risk management into all key decisions, such that
opportunities to grow the Group are effectively balanced with
effective risk management decision making. This means that
opportunities may continue to be exploited, provided risks have
been properly identified and the right controls established or,
In some cases, potential opportunities are declined if they sit
outside the Group's tisk appetite.

One Code sets out the expected behaviours for all employees and
supply chaln partners and establishes zero tolerance In specific
areas as part of an established ethical business frrmework. The
Group continues to review and reaffirm its code of conduct with
empioyees and supply chain partners to ensure awareness of the
vision, values and expected behaviours i maintained.

Risk management processes

The Group’s risk management framewark provides a flexible and
adaptable approach to the identification of risk across all areas of
tha business, to meet the demands of the dynamic and fast
evolving erwironment in which the Group continues to operate.
Ultimate responsibliity for risk management lies with the Board,
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer, who further delegates it
o the Executive Leadership Team, with accountability and
respons|bility assigned to specific risk owners. The Group risk
prufile is reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer and General Counse! in advance of formal review and
approval by the Board. This information is captured in risk
registers at busimess and functional level, as well as for large
contracts, which are subsequently consolidated Into strategic,
operational, financial and regutatory risk categories within the
overall Group risk register maintained by the Group Risk function.

Risk identification and assessment

When considering the risks that pose a threat to the achievement
of the Group's strategy, the Board takes both Internal and external
perspactives into account to ensure a thorough identification
process occurs. The internal view takes into account factors such
as the changing and developing business profile, operational
processes, technology and peopile, while the external view incudes
the economic position, political factars and sector and geographical
risks. A top down and bottom up approach ensures the systematic
identification of significant risks to the business. Once identified,
risks are assessed using standard impact and likefihcod ratings to
quantify the risk to the achievement of business ohjectives. The
Group employs risk management software to helip defiver its
enterprise risk management agenda as well as enhancing risk
reporting and oversight. Risk registers are formally reviewed twice
a year and approved by business unit managing directors.

Risk assessments are based on a *5 x 5 scale ranging from minima!
10 catastrophic, with any risks falling into the Group's upper imits

having mandatory mitigation plans with the expectation that these
risks are managed down to acceptable levels.
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Risk mitigation

Each identified risk has a defined control owner who is
responsible for developing and implementing a risk mitigation
plan. As part of the risk review process, each control Is required
to be reviewed and formally assessed for its effectiveness in
mitigating risk. in order to strengthen the oversight of risk
management and internal control, audit and risk governance
meetings have been Introduced at business unit level.

The terms of reference for the operation of these meetings are
aligned with the Audit Committee’s objectives, and once the
process is fully operational, summary reports of the matters
reviewed will be provided to the Audit Committee. The agenda
requires businass units to review their top-level risks and the
progress of associated mitigation plans as well as assess any
changes to the external environment and thelr consequent
impact on business units’ risk profile. In addition, reports from
the internal Audit function and other internal or external
assurance providers are discussed, with the objectives to share
best practice and identify common or emerging risk themes.

Assessment of the effectiveness of the control environment Is
undertaken at both business and Group fevel, with the Audit
Committee formally reviewing parformance throughout the year
and advising on the effectiveness of the risk management system
in place.

Risk monitoring and review

Principal risks to the business and associated mitigation plans are
presented to the Audit Committee and are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The risk management framework ks designed to manage, rather
than eliminate, the risk of failing to achieve the objectives and
strategles of the Group and can therefore only provide
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material risk and
loss. The Board, through the Audit Committee, considers the
nature and extent of significant risks in setting the Group's
strategy. Details of the principal risks of the Group are sat out on
pages 50 to 56. It should be noted that other risks are identified
as part of the risk management process, but these do not have a
material impact on the Group’s overall ability to achleve business
objectives. These risks are managed via the existing risk
management prooess,

The Audit Committee confirms that this risk management process
has been in place throughout the reporting year and remains In
place up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts. However, as described, the process is continuing to
evoive and will be subject to review and improvement.




Whistleblowing

in September 2017 Mitie launched its new independent
whistieblowing service to enabie employees, suppliers and third
parties t0 report any concerms of wrongdaing anonymously without
any fear of retaliation. The service, which s managed by an
independent third party, can be acoessed via a freephone number,
a free online app or through the service provider’s website.

Detalls of the new service were communicated to employees via
Mitie’s intranet, emadl, paysfip notes and posters, to suppllers via
Mitle's sourcing portal and to other thind parties via www.mithe com.

The service and related internal procedures are structured to
ensure that all reports are reviewed and investigated
independently from the area of the business to which they refate,
thereby minimising the risk of conflicts arising.

All reports are copled to the Group Legal function, which Is
intended to improve transparency and ensure any trends across
different divisions and functions can be identified and addressed.
An update on whistleblowing activity is provided to the Executive
Leagiership Team as appropriate and 1o the Board at each

Board meeting.

Internal control and assurance

Mitie operates a ‘three lines of defence’ model incorporating
intemal controls, risk management and functional oversight,
and intemal audit, The implementation of the system of internal
control is managed by the leadership of each business unit.
Group functions (such as Finance, Legal and HR) collaborate with
business units’ teams to promote continuous improvement and
ensure that controls are operating effectively. Mities policles
and procedures are available to management and employees
through an intranet portal. A formal review of the internal control
ervironment is undertaken by the Head of internal Audit with
engagerment from business units’ leadership teams on an annual
basis. An internal control assessment exercise which previously
operated in the Group s curvently being revised to ensure it
reflects the changes to the business structure and risk profile,
and focuses on the key intemnal controls which manage the risks
faced by the business.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of internal
controls through this process, through recelving updstes from
specific functions, and via the independent testing undertaken
by the Internal AudR function as part of its work. During the

year there have been a significant number of internal control
weaknesses reported to the Audit Committee In reports
produced by the Internal Audit function. This has partly been a
result of the internal audit work plan being targeted at areas
known or suspected to have weak or ineffective internal controls.
The remediat action plans developed by management to address
these weaknesses are monitored by the Audit Committee to
ensure timely closure of the actions.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function’s authority and responsibilities are
defined in Its charter, approved in May 2017, The internal Audit
function operates independently, reporting directly to the Audit
Cormnmittee and administratively to the Chief Financial Officer.
This reporting line offers independence from the audited activities
and allows it to achieve objectivity. The chairman of the Audit
Committee oversees the appointment and removal of the Head
of Internal Audit and assesses the function’s performance against
the internal audit objectives. The annual internal audit plan and
budget are approved by the Audit Committee. Any significant
deviation from the approved annual intemnal audit pian is
communicated to the Audit Committee through perindic activity
reposts. The results of each internal audit are documented in an
audit report for internal distribution and action.

The chairman of the Audit Committee and the external auditor,
BDO LLP, have acoess to all internal audit reports that are lssued
during the year and the Audit Committee receives a quarterly
detailed update reporting on internal audits completed in

the pericd.

The Audit Committee also receives regular reports from BDO LLP
arising from Its audit work, contributing a further independent
perspective on the Group’s internal financial control systemns.

Committeas of the Board

The Board has five formally constituted Committees: the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Results Committee and the Investment Committee,
the scope of which are set out on the following pages.

The Company aiso has an informal Bid Committee which Is
comprised of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Finandlal
Officer, the General Counsel and Company Secretary and
members of Mitie's sales taam. The Bld Committee meets each
week to consider all material bids being submitted.
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Audit Commitiee

Audit Committee

Chairman’s introduction

Image removed

Mark Reckitt, Audit Committee Chairman

The FY 17/18 year was one of transition for Mitie in ways
described elsewhere in the Annual Report and Accounts. Three
new members, Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat, Mary Reilly and
Phifippa Couttie, were appointed to the Audit Committee, BDO
LLP was appointed as external auditor following 3 tender process
held in September 2017 and a new Head of Internal Audit was
appointed in kine 2017,

Accounting Review

As noted in the previous annusl report KPMG had been
appointed in January 2017 as independent accountants to
review and report on the most material judgements made on
the balance sheet amounts in relation to long-term complex
contracts, accrued Income, work in progress and mobilisation.

In addition, KPMG provided support to management in their own
review of the remaining areas of the balance sheet. This work
was undertaken between January and May 2017 and reviewed
by the Audit Committee during the period up to the approval

by the Board on 12 June 2017 of the acoounts for the year ended
31 March 2017.

As part of that work, management made various recommendations
on the changes required to ensure that Mitie’s financial reporting
and control eavironment would meet the standards required.
These necommendations wene reviewed and supported by the
Audit Committee during the early period of the current year and
the progress made in their Implementation has been reported

to the Committee during the year,
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The ongoing Project Helix transformation programme invoives
simpiifying legal structures, standardising processes and
rationalising systems. As part of this programme, the Finance
function has been restructured. Management has implemented a
standardised bidding process across the Group and ssued updated
commerndal standards and customer comracting guidelines.

The Legai function was centralised to ensure greater consistency
of application of the Group's minimum commercial standards.

Core accounting poficies were updated and kssued, including the
policies in relation to long-term complex contracts, mobilisation
costs, accrued income, work In progress, capitalisation and
amortisation of intangible assets and amounts raceivable

from customers.

As a further result of the review, the Intemal audit plan was
reassessed and work programmes were updated to include
business unit reviews, review of specific controls and a sample of
key contracts and processes. The Audit Committee considered
and agreed the scope of the updated plan. An assessment of
communication of values and key messages as part of culture was
included in internal audit work programmes and there was
reguiar engagement with the business leaders to ensure that the
audit plan covered current and relevant risks, and findings were
closed promptly and effectively.

Overall, good progress has been made in strengthening the
finance team at the centre of Mitie, including the appointment of
Paul Woolf as CFO in November 2017, and in ensuring that
detalied and clear accounting policies and practices have been
commuri to the finance teams in all parts of the Group.
Additionally, a start has been made on strengthening the Internal
Audit team with new leadership and tighter standards for the
work undertaken and the reports made by that team. ks
apparent that further work is required to Implement the
recommendations in all parts of the Group and the Committee
asked that the Internal Audit team focus on areas which were felt
to be at higher than average risk of control weakness, with
consequent adverse impact for the accuracy and timeliness of
intarnal reporting and safeguarding of assets.

As noted elsewhere in this report, management have
implemented a plan to improve the effectiveness of the finance
back office by engaging Genpact to undertake much of the work
previously castied out by the finance teams at Mitie. The Audit
Committee reviewed and supported the implementation of this
project in the belief that the professionalism of Genpact would
enhance the accuracy and timelfiness of a significant part of the
financial reporting across the Group.




Bxternal auditor

in the previous annual report, the Audit Committee reported that
it was satisfied with the improvements made by Delokte, the
external auditor at that point, following the findings made by the
Audit Quality Review team at the Financial Reporting Councl
(FRC). The Audit Committee aiso concluded that Deloitte had
been effective in their role as external auditor for FY 16/17.

However, because of the issues encountered during the financial
year it was concluded that a formal tender should commence
such that a new external auditor could be appointed during the
financial year ending 31 March 2019 and, that Deloitte should be
re-appointed as external auditor for FY 17/18.

In July 2017, the Company was informed by Deloitte that they
woulkd resign as auditors na later than 30 September 2017 as a
resuit of being informed by the FRC that thelr audits of Mite for
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 2016 would be the subject of
investigation. Defoltte acknowiedged that Mitie were obligad by
law to appoint an external audior at the AGM on 26 July 2017
and consequently consented to being put forward for election as
external auditor at that AGM, but on the basis that they would
resign by 30 September 2017. As a result, the Audit Committee
agreed to acoelerate the plans, aiready In place, for an audit
tender process in order that a new external auditor could be
appointed by 30 September 2017.

At the AGM on 26 July 2017 the reappointment of Deloitte LLP as
external auditor was passed, but with 29.4% of votes against the
resclution, as well as a significant proportion of votes withhekl.

The tender process was completed at meetings of the Audit
Committee and Bosrd on 13 September 2017, when the Audit
Committee recommended to the Board that BDO be appointed
as external auditor with effect from 19 September 2017, The
detailed tender process can be found on page 81

Accounting judgements

During the review of the half-year financial report and the
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit
Committee focused on the treatment of long-term complex
contracts and claims made by customers, the disclosure of the
atemative performance measures, the valuation and accounting
treatment of Property Management {which was the subject of a
sale process that was subsequently terminated), the adoption of
IFRS 15 and judgements assoclated with the recoverability of
trade receivables and accrued ncome, provisioning and
contingent llabilities.

In relation to Property Management the Audit Committee
considered management’s assessment of the sale process and
the number of bidders at that stage of the process in mid-
November. It also compared the value of the bids to the assessed
value of the prospects of the business together with the value of
clalms being made by curment and previous dients of the business.
The Committee chalienged a number of the assumptions being
made within the process of valuetion of the business and the
provisions for the claims. At the half year, the valuation for
Property Management was reduced resulting in an impairment of
£10.0m against the goodwill. On 5 December 2017 it was
announced that the Board had considered all indicative offers
received for the Property Management business, and concluded
that none were at a sufficient level with which to proceed.

The Audit Committee has considered the valation of the
Property Management business at meetings held In May and
June 2018, reviewing and challenging management assumptions
about the level of future revenues, profit and cashflow together
with updated assessments of the claims previcusly assessed in
lune and Novemnber 2017. Whilst the Audit Comemittee
acknowledges that this remains a profitable business with
potential for profitable growth, it also believes that the dimate
for outsourcing within the social housing sector has deteriorated
during recent months and consequently asked management to
use a mezch more cautious forecast for the future profit and cash
generation of the business. This has resulted in a further
reduction in the valuation of the Property Management business
and a consequent further impairment of goodwill of £24.6m

(2 total of £34.6m for the year ended 31 March 2018).

As part of the year-end procass the Audit Comumittee has also
reviewed and considered the other material accounting
judgements made by management In the preparation of the
financial statements.
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Audit Committee continued

Adoption of IFRS 15

A key part of the work of the Audit Committee during the year
has been to assess the work undertaken by management to
adopt IFRS 15, which is concerned with the accounting for
revenue and in particular affects businesses which capitalise costs
incurred in the course of long-term complex contracts as well as
other contracts. Management undertook a substantial amount of
work to provide an assessment and quantification of the Impact
of adoption of iFRS 15, which was supported by a team from EY,
Inciuding resource which had direct experience of this from other
companies, and overseen by a steering group which Induded
Mary Reilly, 2 member of the Audit Committee, who had
extensive relevant experience from over 20 years as an audit
partner at Deloitte.

FRC reporting review

As detailed in the previous annual report, the Corporate
Reporting Review team of the FRC had raised questions relating
to the impairment testing of Healthcare goodwill and treatment
of accrued income in the Annual Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31 March 20161 am pleased to report that the
Company received confirmation in November 2017 that this
review had been completed by the FRC and that, having taken
Into consideration the various disclosures and acocounting
adjustrnents made in the Annual Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2017, no further action was required. To
date the Corporate Reporting Review team have not sought any
Information from Mitle.
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Conclusion

The Audit Committes has considered the control environment,
particulardy in Nght of the perspective brought by new audiors,
both external and internal and, challenged management to
ensure that the higher standards now being applied in some parts
of the business are put in place across all parts of the business,
and that appropriate and consistent accounting judgements

are made.

This has been an important year for Mitle as It seeks to embed
higher standards of intemal control and more accurate financial
reporting. The Audit Committee supports management in this
activity and has asked it to ensure that sufficient financial
resource s made avallable to enable this.

| have baen a non-exacutive director of Mitle andl chairman of
the Audit Committee since July 2015 and | beliave that a chair of
Audit Committas who can bring a fresh perspective will bast
serve the interests of shareholders and the business.

Accordingly, | have decided not to seek re-glection at the AGM on
31 July 2018 but will be avallable t answer any questions that
shareholders may wish to raise 2t or before the AGM.

Detalls of the Audit Committee’s work can be found on the
following pages.

Mark




Audit Committee members

Mark Recidtt has been Chairman of the Audit Committee since
July 2015. Mark continues to be deemed by the Board, as at the
date of this report, to have significant, recent and relevant
financial experience through his qualifications and ongoing
pasitions. Mark’s biography ks included on page 62.

Mark witl stand down as chair of the Audit Cornmittee and the
Board at the 2018 AGM after three years’ service. Mary Redly wilt
sucoeed Mark as chalr of the Audk Committee, Mary has a
wealth of experience as a non-executive director and chairing
audk and risk committees, She has extensive relevant and recent
acoounting, finance and international management experience.
Mary’s full biography can be found on page 63,

At the date of this report the Audit Committee comprises
independent Non-Exetutive Directors who are all considered
appropristely experienced to fulfil their duties.

Chairman  Mark Reckint
Committee  Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat (from 1 June 2017)
members

dack Boyer (until 26 July 2017)
Philippa Couttie (from 22 May 2018)
Larry Hirst (until 26 July 2017)
Mary Reilly {from 1 September 2017)

Principa) rasponaibiitias of the Audit Committee

Key purpose of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides effective govemance of the
appropriateness of the Group's financial reporting and the
performance of both the internal Audit function and the external
auditor. The Audit Committee also supports the Board in meeting
ks responstbilities in respect of overseeing the Group’s internal
controd systems, business risk management and refated
compliance activities.

The Audit Commitbee also meets with the external auditor and
the Head of internal Audit without the Execyutive Directors
present. As chairman of the Audk Committee, Mark will be
avallable at the AGM to answer any questions about the work
of the Audit Committee,

Key areas discusesd and reviewad during yowr

Reporting and external audit

* Monltoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Company,
preliminary results announcements and any other formal announcements
relating to its financial performance, reviewing and reporting to the Board on
significant financlal reporting Issues and estimates and judgements having

regard to matters communicated to it by the external auditor,

* Reviewing the external auditor’s audit plan, nature and scope of work and

ovenall summary of key issues and Judgements.

¢ Assessing the effectiveness of the external auditor including the
approprizteness and skills of its audit team and the quality of its services,

» Agreeing the audit fee for the year.

= Results, commentary and announcements.

+ Key accounting judgements, induding contract
margins and impairment reviews.

+ Changes to actounting policies and procedures.

* Going concern and the viability statement.

» Fair, balanced and understandable assessrment
in relation to the Annual Report and Accounts.

+ External auditor effectiveness.

= External auditor reports on planning and
executing their half-yearly review and

* Reviewing summary financial statements, significant financial returns to

reguiators and any financial information contained in certain other documents,
such as announcements of a price sensithve nature.

Reviewing the Ha¥-Yaar Report and Annual Report and Acoounts, including the
fair, balanced and understandable statement, statements conceming internal
controls and risk management, all other material information presented with
the financial statements including the strategic report, the viability statement,
the corporate govemance statements (insofar as they relate to the audit and
risk management), and recommanding the same for Board approval.
Reviewing and challenging, where necessary, acoounting poficies and key
areas of accounting Judgement.

Corsidering and making recommendations to the Board, to be put to
shareholders for approval at the AGM, in relation to the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the Group’s extermat auditor.

Reviewing and monitoring comgliance with the non-audit services policy

and maintenance of external auditor independence

full-year audit, including their final opinion
and remuneration.

» Responses to audit findings and
recommendations for control improvements,
including reviewing the axternal auditor’s
management letter.
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Audiit Committee continued

Principai responsibiiitias of the Audit Committes

Kay sroas discussed and reviewsd during year

Risk and imtermal control

o Keeping under review the adequacy and effectivenass of the Group’s internal
financial controls and intamal control and risk management systems (being the
systems established to identify, assess, manage and monitor financial and
other risks).

* Providing advice an how, taking into acoount the Company’s position and
principal risks, the Company’s prospects have been assessed, over what period,
why the period Is regarded as appropriate and whether there is 3 reasonable
expectation that the Company will be able to continue in operation and meet
its liabilities as they fall due over the said period, drawing attention to any
gualifications or assumptions as necessary.

& Reviewing the Group’s consolidated risk register prior to its approval by
the Board.

* Reviewing the adequacy and security of the Group's arrangements for its
employees and business partners to ratse concams, in confldence, about
possible wrongdoing in finandal reporting or other matters (ensuring that
these arrangements allow proportionate and independent investigation of
such matters and appropriate follow up action).

s Reviewing the Group’s procedures for detecting fraud.

- Wﬂn&wp’smmdmrﬂrokfordnmmmafbm.

» |dentification of the Group's principal risks and
movement in exposures.

* Status of key risk Indicators including any
breaches of thresholds.

* Review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems,
Inciuding the effect of the migration of certain
finance functions and processes to Genpact.

* Fraud risk assessment.

* Cyber security.

+ Whistieblowing procedures,

Intemnal audit

+ Monitoring and reviewing the role and effectiveness of the Group's Internal
Audit function, reviewing the internal audit plan and ensuring the Intemnal
Audtt function has adequate resources and appropriate access to information
to enable it to perform its work effectively.

* Reviewing key intemnal audit reports and findings.

+ Considering management’s response to any major intemnal or external audit
recommendations.

= Monltoring the effectiveness of the external auditor and risk managament
systerns and functions.

» Apnualinternal audtt plan, including
consideration of its alignment to the principal
risks, consideration of emerging areas of risk,
coverage across the Group and review of the
Group’s processes and controls,

+ Review of the execution of the internal
audit plan and the resultant audit reports
and findings.

* Internal audit effectiveness.

o Annual intemal controls overview.

Othwer

= Ensuring the Group’s compliance with the Competition and Markets
Authority’s Statutory Audit Services Ordey, in particular with regard 10
audit tender.

« fffectiveness of the Committee.

The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference are avallable at www.mitie.comy/investors/corporate-govemance.
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Frequency of Audit Committee meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Audit Committee met
nine times. Invitations to attend meetings are normally extended
to the Group's external auditor, the Chairman, the Senior
Independent Director, the Chief Exeautive Officer, the Chief
Financial Officer, the Director of Group Finance and the Head of
internal Audit.

Attendance
Number of scheduled meetings in the year: 9
Mark Recidtt 9/9
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat? 6/6
Jack Boyer a/a
Larry Hirst® 4/a
Mary Reilly! 5/5

Notes:
1. Nvadita Krishnamurthyy Bhaget was sppointed to the Committee on 1 June 2017,

q. M“anhMmiWﬂ?
Phifippa Couttie was 1ot appalnted to the Committes unill 22 May 2018

The role of the Audit Committee — financial reporting
The primaty role of the Audit Committee in relation to financial
reporting ks to review with both management and the external
auditor the appropriateness of the Half-Year Report and Annual
Report and Accounts, concentrating on, amongst ather matters:

* the consistency of, and any changes to, significant accounting
policies and practices both on a year-on-year basis and across
the Group;

= the clarity and completeness of disclosures and the contextin
which statements are made;

« the methods used to account for significant or unusual
transactions where different approaches are possible; and

o whether the Annual Report and Accourts, taken as a whole, is
fakr, batanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
performance, business mode! and strategy.

To aid the review, the Audit Committee considers reports from
the Chief Ananciat Officer and also reports from the external
auditor on the outcomes of the half-year review and independent
year-end audit.

Significant issuas considered by the Audit Committee

during the year

The Audit Committee pays particular attention to matters it
considers to be important by virtue of their size, complexity, leve!
of judgement required, or potential impact on the financial
statements and wider business madel, and matters pertaining to
governance. identification of the issues deemed 10 be significant
takes place following open, frank and challenging discussion
between the Audit Committee members, with input from the
Chief Financial Officer, the external audhtor, the Head of Internal
Audit and other relevant Mitie employees.

The Audit Committee considered the following significant matters
during the course of the financlal year. In all cases, papers were
presented to the Audit Committee by management, setting out
the material matters of accounting estimates and the judgements
associated with each ftem. The external auditor provides a paper
that sets out views on each area of judgement,

The Audik Committee discussed the papers with management
and sought the views of the external auditor on each matter and
for each area of judgement concurmed with the treatment
presented by management In the Annual Report and Accounts.
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Audit Commiittee continued

ssus How addresead
Adoption of The Audit Committee received regular updates from the projact team and steering group and supported the
IFRS 15 Revenue  recornmendation from the steering group and management that Mitie adopt IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts
from contracts with customers” with effect from the year ended 31 March 2018, using the cumulative effect method. The project
with customers’  team was supported by a team from EY, including resource which had direct experience of this from other
Considerationof  companies and all the work was reviewed and audited by the xternal auditor,
theprocessand  The adoption of IFRS 15 has led to significant changes to the Group's revenue recognition policies, a significant
disclosures for restatement of the opening equity position as at 1 Apri 2017 and the creation of new categories of contract assets
the adoptionof  and abilities. The impact of such early adoption is a reduction of £108.2m in the opening net assets of the Group
{FRS 1S as at 1 April 2017. Further detall on this significant change is disclosed within the Finance Review on pages 46 and
47 and Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group’s acoounting policy for revenue has been rewritten to reflect the adoption of IFRS 15. This new policy is
induded In full in Note 1(a) to the consolidated financlal statements, The new policy alse includes the treatment of
acoounting for contract fulfilment assets, pre-contract costs and deferred income.
The stearing group reviewed the material judgements applied by management as part of the year-end close
process. In the contaxt of IFRS 15, the steering group reviewed the key judgements applied to how revenue is
recognised on long-term contracts; from discounts, variations or other scope changes, where significant
Judgement needs to be exercised by management due to uncertainties over contractual terms and ongolng
negotiations with clients; snd to the appropriste phasing and recognition of upfront payments from customers,
Including design and development fees. in addition, the steering group reviewed the key judgements applied by
management in the recognition of contract assets 2s part of the transition ta IFRS 15,
The new revenue recognition policy Includes disciosure of the significant judgements and estimates in relation to
s application and the Audit Comumittee ks satisfied that thesa have been properly disclosed. The Audit Committee
Is satisfied that the disclosures given within the accounts are sufficient to gein a proper understanding of the
methodology of accounting for revenue across the Group.
2017 sccounting  In January 2017, the Audit Committee asked management to conduct a detalled balance sheet review with
review Independent expert support. The Audit Committee engaged KPMG to review and report on the most material
Update and judgements made on the balance sheet amounts in relation to long-term complex contracts, accrued income,
implementation  Work In progress and mobilisation. In addition, KPMG provided support to management, who carried out a review
of findings of the remaining areas of the balance sheet.

At the conclusion of the review in June 2017, management made a number of recommenciations on the changes
required to ensure that Mitie's financlal reporting and controt environment meet the standards requined,

Since June 2017, members of the Audit Committee have been briefed by management on the progress of these
changes as necessary.

The ongoing Project Helix transformation programme involves simplifying legal stnuctures, standardising processas
and rationalising systems. As part of this programme, the Finanoe function has been restructured. Management
has implernented a standardied bidkding process across the Group and issued updated commercial standards and
customer contracting guldeiines. The Legal function was centralised to ensure greater consistency of application of
the Group's minimum commerdal standards. Core acoounting policles were updated and issued, including the
policies in refation to long-term complex contracts, mobilisation costs, accrued Income, work in progress,
capitalisation and amortisation of intangible assets and amounts recelvable from customers. Twice-yearly contract
Issues reporting and impairment review processes have been formalised and carried out.

As a further result of the review, the internal audit plan was reassessed and work programmes were updated to
include business unit reviews, review of specific controls and a number of key contracts and processes. The Audit
Committee considered and agreed the scope of the updated plan.
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tesue How addressed
Tha valuation The Group has made a number of acquisitions in previous periods and carries goodwill as an intangible asset on its
of goodwill batance sheet In respect of the businesses acquired {see Note 14).
Reviewing the The Group considers the carrying value of all goodwill on at least an annual basis, or when an indicator of
camrying value impairment has occurred. The valuation and impalrment review of goodwill is assessed for each individual cash-
of goodwill, generating unit (CGU) and considers the balance sheet vaiue of the goodwill compared to the net present value of
withafocuson  the post-tax cash flows that are expected to be generated by that CGU. The approach involves an estimation of
Property the future cash flows expected to be derived from each (GU and the selection of appropriate discount rates,
Management in  which are then applied to the cash flows to cakculate a net prasent value,
the context of The assumptions Underpinning the review of the carying value of goodwill were considered by the Audit
the terminated Committae. The cash flow forecasts used in the review were derived from the most recent OGU budgets which
sale process, have been reviewed and approved by the Board and the long-term business plans of the Group. The assumptions
underpinning the review and the sensitivity of changes in key assumptions were considered by management and
presented to the Audit Comimittee.
At the half year the Audit Committee considened a paper regarding the carrying value of the Property
Management goodwill and concurred with the conclusion that an impairment of £10.0m should be made. When
this paper was prepared there was an active sale process for Property Management resulting in the business being
disclosed as a discontinued operation and therefore the carmying value of goodwill was considered with reference
to the offiers received from potential purchasers. Subseguently, the business was withdrawn from sale and the
sale process was terminated on 5 December 2017.
For the year ended 31 March 2018 the Audit Committee has considered a further paper regarding the carrying
value of the Property Management goodwill, including sensitivitles, and concurred with the conclusion that an
additional impairment of £24.6m should be made. In the absence of an active sales procass for the business this
paper considered the carrying value of the goodwill on a value in use basis resulting in a total impalrment charge
of £34.6m for the year {Nots 13),
The Audit Committee noted the substantial change In the forecasts for the Property Management business since
the half-year, driven by general negative sentiment in the sodal housing sector and the reduction in local authority
work following the tragedy at Grenfell Tower.
Use of The Company’s performance measures continue to include some measures which are not defined or specified
Alternative under IFRS. in particular management have introduced measures referred to as ‘profit before other tems’,
Performance ‘adjusted revenue’, ‘adjusted operating profit’, ‘adjusted cashflows” and ‘adjusted net assets’ as key measures to
Measures review current performance against the prior year by removing the impact of the adoption of JFRS 15 In FY 17/18
(APMS) and of the prior year adjustments In FY 16/17, as wall a5 asset write-downs of a non-recurring nature, which
include those identified during the 2017 Accounting Review.
The Committee noted the guldance kssued by the FRC In relation to the use of APMs and, supported by the
challenge of the external auditor, considered whether the performance measures used by management provided
a meaningful insight for shareholders into the results of the Group.
The Audit Committee then also reviewed the treatment of items considaned for separate disciosure,
With the support of the external auditor, the Autiit Committee reviewed the proposed disclosure of APMs in the
Annual Report and Accounts ahead of their approval by the Board.
The Audit Committee also continued to support the judgements made by management regarding the Rems
considered as being exceptionsl and nequiring separate disclosure, The Audit Committee concluded that clear and
meaningful descriptions had been provided for the APMs used. It was also concluded that the relationship
betweern these measures and the statutory IFRS measures was clearly explained, supported the considered
understanding of the financial statements and that the Audit Committee had considered that they had been
accorded equal prominence with measures that are defined by, or specified under, IFRS.
Pobentisl impact  The Group will be required to comply with the reguirements of IFRS 9 Financiel instruments’ for the year ending
of WS 9 and 31 March 2019 and IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ for the year ending 31 March 2020.
RS 16 The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management in respect of these accounting standards and the
Consideration of  discosures made in Note 1t the consolidated financial statements.
the disclosures  The Audi Commities concurs with management's assessiment that IFRS 9 will have no significant impact on the Group's
made Inrespect  financial statements and that 5FRS 16 will result in a substantial change in the presentation of the Group's income
ofthe Impactof  Staternent and Statement of Financial Poskion, however pending further detalied analysis a quantitative disciosure In
IRS9and MS 16  respect of IFRS 16 i not appropriate at the present time.
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Audit Committee continved

lmus How addressed

FRC guidance The Audit Committee has considered guidance issued by the FRC in January 2018 following Carillion plc entering
Consideration Kquidation and have reviewed the conclusions reached and disclosures made by management in the context of
of the sector- this guldance.

specific guidance  The Audit Committee concurs with management’s conclusion that the disclosures presented in the Annual Report
issued by the FRC  and Accounts are consistent with this guidance.

following the

collapse of

Carillion plc.

Accounting for Following the conclusion of the Accounting Review in June 2017, management have put in place detalled
material accounting policies and procedures for the Group which improve cansistency and reduce the latitude for the
contracts application of accounting judgernents to routine matters.

The Group For the year ended 31 March 2018 management operated a structured process for identifying the materiat

operstes a broad  accounting judgements made in amiving at the results and reported these to the Audit Committee for
portfolio of its consideration.

complex In refation to material contracts the Audit Committee has considered papers prapaned by management in respect of:
contracts; the * PFI lifecycle surpluses;

accountingfor  « provisioning for commercdal settiements/disputes;

“'“:'em‘m * disdlosures in respect of contingent flabifities;

mrphmdbr * the need for provisions in respect of potentlally onerous contracts; and
assumgtions or * the recoverability of trade recelvables and accrued income,
judgements

made by

management in

respect of the

outcome of

future events,

Other material In relation to other acocounting judgements the Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
accounting in respect of:

Judgements + contingent labilities refated to compliance with National Minimum Wage legistation;

Thejudgements < contingent kabllities refated to the Group's participation in multi-employer pension schemes;

assoclted with & provisions related to indemnities provided as part of the disposal of the Healthcare business; and

provisioning, « disdasure of other Items.
liabilities, and The Audit Committee reviewed the information provided by management as well as the views axpressed by the
disclosure external auditors. The Audit Committee challenged management on a number of matters relating to the

matters. contingent labilitles and was satisfied that such matters had been comectly accounted for.
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How addressed

Appointment
of an extemal
auditor
The process and
governance
assoclated with
the appointment
of BDOLLP as the
Company’s

- external auditor.

Following Deloitte confirming in july 2017 that it would resign as the Group's auditor no later than 30 Septernber
2017, 2 tender procass was started and an auditor Selection Committee was formad.

The Selection Cormmittee was led by the chairman of the Audit Committee, Mark Reckitt, and comprised the other
members of the Audit Committee, the Chief Finandial Officer and the Director of Group Finance.

Consistent with the FRC ‘Audit Tenders Note on Best Practice’ Issued in February 2017 the tender process was not
limited to the ‘Big 4. Deloltte was not invited 1o tender.

During luly and August, Mark Reckitt, together with senior members of the Mitie team, met audit partners at PwC,
EY, KPMG and BDO in order to assess whether they were able to participate in the audit tender process. Both PwC
and EY declined to participate, as, due to the nature of non-audit work carvied out for Mitle during FY 16/17 and
FY 17/18, they were not deemed independent under EU rules. Both KPMG and BDO confirmed that they were
independent and willing to partidpate in the process.

The Selection Committee reviewed and approved Request For Proposal documentation and a data padk to be
Issued to both participants, which provided detailed information to support the submission of quality and accurate
bids by participants.

Both particpants then had the opportunity to spend time with various management stakeholders to obtain a
more detalled understanding of the Group and existing management processes and challenges to better inform
their tender submission. These meetings induded time with the Chief Financial Officer, Group Finance, Tax,
Treasury, Internal Audit, Risk, General Counsel and Company Secretarial, [T, as well as the managing director and
finance director of each of the operational businesses.

The bids submitted were subject to review by the Selection Committee. Both firms then met with the Selection
Committee to present thelr proposals with 8 question and answer session then led by the members of the Audit
Commiitee present.

The Selection Committee reviewed the tender submissions and scored them independently based upon the
quality and relevant sector experience of the proposed team, depth of the tearn and the wider organisation
relevant to the Company, cultural fit, proposed approach to the transition plan and wider audit and potential for
audit effidency and effectiveness,

The Selection Committee recommended BDO LLP as the preferred external auditor for the Company. The Board
ratified the decislon of the Selection Committee and announced the decision to the London Stock Exchange in
September 2017,

Review of the
Group’s
going eoncem

viability

The Audit Commitiee considered the evidence that supports the ability of the Directors to condude that the
Group has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and can prepare its
financial statements on a going concem basls, The Audit Committee considered the future prospects and
performance of the Group Including: the future business plans of the Group; the potential impact of acquisition
activity and possible changes to the composition of the Group; the projected future cash flows of the Group; the
availability of core and ancillary financing facilities and compliance with related covenants; the projected drawn
pasitions and headroom available on the core committed financing fadilities; and those matters reviewed in
connection with the Viabllity Statement. It also reviewed and considered the disclosures on the matter of going
concern and viability in the Annual Report and Acoounts and considered them to be appropriate, Detalls of the
conclusions arrived at by the Directors in preparing the financlal statements on a going concemn basis can be found
in the Directors’ report: other disclosures on pages 113 and 114, as can the details of the condlusians arrived at by
the Directors in assessing the viability of the Group. The more detailed assessment of the Group's long-term
viability s set out in the Viabllity Statement on page 57.
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Audit Committee continued

internal audit During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed and challenged the scope of work undertaken by the Intermal

development Audit teamn and resources available to it, following a review undertaken by the new Head of Intemal Audit. The

Review of the focus of the internal audit work has been on areas of high risk and where intemal controls are suspected to be

focus of the weak. The audit work has also focused on areas identified in the Accounting Review of the balance sheet as well

Internal audit as on the quality of intarnal controls in Group-wide processes. The plan is kept under regular review to ensure it

workplan and reflects the risk profile of the business.

resources The Audit Committee also requested that the Internal Audit team expand its coverage, with an increased number

available to of audits Included as part of the plan which was approved for the year ending 31 March 2019. Audits of the

the team commercial process and accrued income are also planned in the coming year. The Internal Audit team has started
to increase Its resourcas In terms of both numbers and skill-set, with recruitment stili ongoing due to a competitive
market for internal auditors, and continues to use Grant Thomton resource to support the delivery of the internal
audit plan,
The Head of iInternal Audh also outlined plans to introduce a programme of bringing taiented managers from all
parts of the business in to assist with specific audits and for longer-term secondments. This will help to improve
the understanding of the importance of effective risk management and internal controls across the business. The
Audit Committee also received regular updates on developments in the intemali control environment and
assoclated improvement activity.

Review of An assessment of communication of values and key messages as part of culture was included in internal audit work

intemal audit programmes and there was regular engagement with the business leaders to ensure that the audit plan covered

findings current risks and that relevant findings are closed promptly and effectively,

Consideration The Intermnal Audit function inchuded an Increased number of contract audits in the FY 17/18 plan, covering bids,

ofthe financial and operational performance. This included the approach to contract risk management, evidence that

conclssionsand  financlal models have been appropriately réviewed and approved, and reviews of sty financial Improvernent plans to

recommendations  ensure they had sufficient evidence to support the assertions and had been properly reviewed and approved. As part

arising from of the contract audits, thare has also baen an enhanved foous on contract obligations, vaniations, work in progress

the intarnal audit  and amounts recognised in relation to long-term complex contracts. Further reviews were undertaken specifically on

work conducted  bid management.

during the period A significant number of intarnal audits reported to the Audit Committee were rated as either unsatisfactory or
requiring significant improvement. The Audit Committee reviewed these and sl other internal audits reporbed to the
Audit Committee in six meetings held up to and including June 2018 and challenged management to ensure that all
recommendations made in the reports are implemented on a timely basis. It Is clear that further work s needed
to ensure that all finance st31f across the Group ane properly trained and managed and support the actions of the
CFQ 1o ensure that the Group provides suffident resource to implernent all remaining recommendations.
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Extermal audit

Each year the Audit Committee reviews the performance of the
external suditor in respect of audit related services and non-sudit
related services and is committed to ensuring the independence,
effectiveness and objectivity of the external auditor,

Tendering of extemnal audit services

R was reported in the Annual Report and Accounts 2017 that the
Committee had decided to commence a formal tender for a new
external audior to be in place for the year ending 31 March 2018.
The detalled tender process followed can be found on page 81,

The Audit Committee confrns that the Group Is In compliance with
hmmmhmpmmm
Investigation (Mandatory Lise of Competitive Tender Process and
Audit Committee Responsiblitties) Order 2014,

Bxtamal suditor effectiveness
The Audit Committee monitored the conduct and effactiveness of
the external auditor through its assessment of:

* the experience, expertise and perceptiveness of the auditor;

* tire planning and execution of the agreed audit plan and quality
of audit reports; and

* the conduct of the auditor including the Audit Committee’s
experience of interaction with the auditor, which included
meetings held in the absence of managerment.

Noo-audit services provided by the extermal auditor

The Audit Committee has approved a non-sudit services policy that

ensures the external auditor remains independent and objective

throughout the provision of their independent, audit services and

when formulating thelr audit opinion. In order to retain the

flexibility of utfiising the external auditor to provide non-audit

services, the following criteria must also be met.

These are such that the external auditor does not:

= audit its awn work;

* make Mmanagement decisions for the Group;

* create a agnflict of interest; or

e find itself in the role of advocate for the Group.

The non-audit services policy identifies the various types of

non-audit services which might be required and determines

the analysls to be undertaken along with the level of authority

required before the external auditor can be considered for such

work. Further, the policy Is consistent with the FRC's ethical

standards policy.

When consldering the appoirtment of the extemnal auditor for non-

audit services, the following factors are taken into account:

* the qualiity of work provided by the external auditor;

= representations provided by the external auditor negarding
independence and objectivity, along with intemal controls
implementad by them when providing non-sudit services;

* the level of the external audtor's undesstanding of the Group;

* the nature of the work being performed; and

» the commerdial and practical circumstances of particular types of
work required.

Non-audit services provided to the Group for the year endad

31 March 2018 Included tax and other audit related services.
Further details can he found In Note 6 to the financial stataments.
mmmmmﬁmmmm
and the external auditor, none of which raisad conosms about
auditor independence.

A summary of the fees pald to the external auditor is given in
Note 6 10 the financisl statements. The Audit Committee
confirms that the requirements of the non-audit services policy
have been met throughout the year.

Assurance

¥n accordance with internal Control: Guidanoe for Directors and
section C.2.3 of the Code, the Baard performs a formal annual
assessment of the operation and effectiveness of the system of
Intemal control, covering all matertal controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and updates this assessment
prior to the signing of the Annual Report and Accounts.

These activities are monitored at executive level to ensure that
control changes are implemented appropriately and that they are
effective. The Head of internal Audit oversees the apphication of
control anwironment improvements and athends Audit
Committee meetings to provide regular updates on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls and the resuks of
the internal audit process.

Features of the intemal control and risk management systems that
ensure accuracy and refabllity of financlal reporting include: a
cukture of good governance, intagrity, competence, faimess and
responsibility; Geoup level policies and procedures to support the
business by providing an operational internal control framework;
and dearly defined respansibilities, delegated in accordance with
the Group's delegated authorities and authorisation registers.

Accountabliity for internal control and risk management systams i
devolved into each division and any control weaknesses within
divisions are investigated and resolved. Management and the
Committee seek to ensune that thelr cause is understood and
itigating actions are taken to Mmit the potertial for necurnence. In
view of the work of the Intematl Audit function, management and
the external auditor, It Is considered unlikely that a weakness within
4 particular division woukd have a significant Impact on the Group,
As noted above the Group has taken significant steps to improve
the efficiency and effectiveness of its back-office activities. Whilst
this project Is In progress, there is an inherent increase in risk and
therefore additional controls are in place to monitor this.

Review of whistieblowing procasses

Part of the Audit Commitbee’s role i§ to ensure that appropriate
procedures are in place In relation to whistieblowing and t review
on an annual basls the Group’s whistieblowing policy.

To ensure that whistieblowing arrangements remained effective
and independent of management across the business, Mitie
outsourced Is “Speak up’ service to an independent third-party
provider. The new service was launched in September 2017, and
can be acoessed via a freephone numbser, a free onfine app or
through the service provider’s website. Further detail can be fourd
on page 71.
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Nomination Committes

Nomination Committee
Chairman’s introduction

Image removed

Devek Mapp, Nomination Committee Chairman

Nomination Committea members
At the date of this report the Nomination Committee comprises:

Chalrman  Derek Mapg (from 26 July 2017)
Roger Matthews (until 26 July 2017)

Committee Phil Bentley (from 26 July 2017}
members  paul Woolf {from 14 March 2018)
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat (from 14 March 2018)
Jack Boyer {from 14 March 2018) *
Phifippa Couttie {from 14 March 2018)
Jennifer Duvalier (from 14 March 2018)
Larry Hirst
Mark Reckitt (from 14 March 2018) *
Mary Reilly {from 14 March 2018}
_Roger Yates (from 14 March 2018)

* Mark Reckitz and Jack Boyer stood down from the Slominelion Commities on
26 July 2017. Both re-joined the Commities on 14 March 2018 per the Chairman's
dedsion that all Board members should form part of the Nomination Comminee.

Kay purposs of the Nomination Committes

The Nomination Commithee evaluates the composition,
experience, knowisdge, skills and independence of the Board
and ity Committees. This aliows appropriate balance to be
maintained and ensures the continued effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Commitiee also ensures that appropriate
succession plans for the Non-Executive Directors, Executive
Directors and the Group's senlor management are also kept
under review, taking into account the chalienges and opportunities
facing the Group, and the skills, expertise and diversity required
for the future.
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The role of the Nomination Committee is to ensure the Board is
appropriatety balanced in terms of its composition, considering
matters of skills, experience and diversity.

| finmly believe that the responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are matters for all Boand members to consider.

Accordingly, the Nomination Committee is now comprised
of the whole Board and, in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Code), membership continues to be

a majority of independent Non-Executive Directors, alt of
whom are considered to be appropriately experienced to
fulfil their duties.

Key responsibilities of the Nomination Committes
The key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

« making recommendations to the Board regarding succession
planning for Directors and other senior exacutives, and in
particular for the key roles of Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer;

« reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
{including its skills, knowledge, experience and diversity)
and making recommendations to the Board with regard to
any changes;

= keeping under review the leadership needs of the Group in order
1o ensure t cominues to compete effectively in the marketplace;

» making recommendations to the Board concering the following:
» potential candidates to fill Board vacancies when they arise;
» membership of the Board Committees;

* candidates for the role of Senior Independent Director;

* appointment of any Director 10 executive or other office;

+ reappointment of any Non-Executive Director at the
conclusion of their specified term of office {particularly in
relation to those being re-elected for a term beyond six years);

* appointment of the Company Secretary; and

* any matters relating to the continuation in office of any
Director; and

» reviewing the results of the Board performance evaluation
process that relate to the composition of the Board.

‘The Nomination Committes’s Terms of Reference are available at

www.mitie.oom/investors/corporate-governance.




Key activities during the year

The Nomination Committee reviewed the composition and
chalrmanship of the Board and each of its Commlttees.

The Nomination Commitiee is satisfied that the Board's
composition and diversity has been appropriate throughout
the year, having regard in particular to the integrity, skills,
knowledge and experience of its Directors and the size and
nature of the business,

The Nomination Commiittee recognises the importance of
planning for the future and the succession planning process.
During the year, the Nomination Committee continued to
consider its ongolng succession planning and refreshing of the
Board. As announced on 13 November, Paul Woolf was
appointed to the Board as Chief Financial Officer with immediate
effect, in place of Sandip Mahajan, who held the role of Chief
Financial Officer from February 2017 until his resignation from
the Board in November.

Paul's previous experience as a chief executive officer, chief
financial officer and chief operating officer in both public and
private companies brings additional skills to both the Board and
the Executive Leadership Team. The ongoing ability to attract
high-caiibre executive talent to Mitie refiects the Board's
conviction that, locking to the future, there are significant
operational and growth opportunities for the Group.

in accordance with the Code, Paul will stand for election at the
2018 AGM.

The Nomination Committee worked with executive search firms
JCA Group and Russell Reynolds Associates to find additionat
Non-Executive Directors with key skill sets to complement those
of existing 80ard members.

Nelther search fim has other connections with the Company.

Work with the JCA Group resulted in the sefection of Jennifer
Duvalier, Mary Reilly and Roger Yates as potential Non-Executive
Directors and the search with Russel! Reynolds Associates
resulted in the selection of Philippa Couttie.

Afver careful consideration, the Nomination Committee
recommended the appointment of each candidate to the Board.
The appointment of lennifer was announced on 18 July with
effect from 26 july 2017, the appointmeant of Mary on 25 July
with effect from 1 September 2017, the appointment of Philkipa
on 8 November 2017 with effect from 15 November 2017,

and the appointment of Roger on 23 February with effect from
1 March 2018,

sennifer, Mary, Philippa and Roger will stand for election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, in accordance with
the Code.

Frequency of Nomination Committee meetings
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Nomination
Committee met three times.

Attendance

Number of scheduled meetings in the year:

Derek Mapp* 2/2

Roger Matthews? o1

Phil Bentiey® 2/2
1/1
33

Jack Boyer*
Larry Hirst
Mark Reckitt®

Notes:

1. Derek Mapp was appointed to the Commiktes on 26 July 2017.

2. Roger Metthews resigned from the Board on 26 july 2017.

3, Phil Bentley was sppointed to the Committes on 26 July 2017.

4, Juck Boyer s300d down from the Committee on 26 July 2017.

5. Mark Reckitt siood down froem the Committee on 26 July 2017,

Mambers sppolmed 10 the Nomination Commitiee on 14 March 2018 do not appear
in the phove table a6 there were no further scheduled meetings in the yesr ended
31 March 2018,

Roger Matthews did not attend the Nomination Committee
meeting in May 2017 as the meeting considered the appointment
of his successor.
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Nominaton Committee continued

Diversity and inclusion Board
Mitie has a Group-wide Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy
that clearly statas its commitment to the inclusion and diversity Female

of all employees at all levels, up to and including Board level. 36%

The Board retains a key focus on diversity of skills, gender and
expariance in ts membership, and the Nomination Committee
considered the voluntary recommendations provided in the
Parker Report into Ethni Diversity and the Hamgton-Alexander
Review on Women in Leadership Positions during the year.

On appointment, the Chairman made it an objective of the
Board to increase femnale representation on the Board.
Accondingly, both )CA Group and Russell Reynolds Associates
focused their search on finding the highest calibre female
candidates whilst remaining cognisant of the skills, knowledge
and experience required to ensure that the Board remains
approptiately balanced.

The Committee is pleased to report that as at 31 March 2018 36%
of the Board are female. Further, 15% of the Executive Leadership
Team are female.

The Board ensures that the Group’s employment practioes and Enecutive Leadership Tesm
policies are designad to recruit, motivate, retain, traln and
deveicp the very best people, recognising that this can be Female
achieved oniy through offering equai opportunities regardiess 1 5%
of gender, race, religion, age, disability, ssxauial orientation or

any other aspect of diversity.

Mitie is very proud of Its rich and diverse culture and
backgrounds —these create ideas and insights. Everyone has
a voice and Is treated a5 an equal.

An employee diversity network strategy was documented in
January 2018, with network leads elected to represent ethnic,
gender, LGBT and disabifity diversity. The networks formally
launched In Q1 2018-19, with a face-to-face and virtual events
calendar — in addition to an online network platform on which to
inmteract and share ideas. The purpose of the networks is to
champion diverse policies and practices and to support Mitie's
aim to create a place to work where everyone feels included and
valued, The networks will work closely with the Mitie Foundation
to execute the principat strategies of increasing apprenticeships
and applications from diverse hackgrounds, particularly into front
line operational and delivery roles. The network will also work
dosely with the HR function to advise on enhancements to key
policies including matemity and parental leave, transgender
integration snd disability.
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Further details of the Group’s commitment to diversity and the
diversity of Mitie’s people can be found in the sustainability
section of our website at www.mitie.com. A breakdown of
employee diversity as required by the Companles Act 2006 can
be found on page 39 of this report.

Derek Mapp
Chalrman of the Nomination Com

Results Committoe

Overview and purpose

The Results Committee assists the Board in approving
matters such as haif-year and preliminary results
announcements, other routine, non-material
announcements and shareholder communications.

The Results Committee, which comprises the Chief
Execautive Officer, as chair, and Chief Financial Officer,
met twice during the year ended 31 March 2018.

investment Committee

Overview and purpose

The Investment Committee faciltates the internal
approvals process by approving matters as delegated
by the Board and referring recommendations for Board
approval. The investment Comrmittee, which comprises
the Chief Executive Officer, as chalr, and Chief

Financial Officer, did not meet during the year ended
31 March 2018.
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Directors’ remuneration report

Statement from the Remuneration
Committee Chairman

Imoge removed

Chalrman’s introduction
On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors’

remuneration report for the year endad 31 March 2018, It is
split into three main parts:

+ Executive remuneration at a glance. This setsouta
summary of our approach, including how we intend to
operate under the new policy and remuneration outcomes
during the year.

* The remuneration policy. Our existing policy has been in
place since it was approved by 94%, of shareholders at the
2015 AGM. We are therefore presenting the new policy for
approval at the 2018 AGM. The policy review and the main
changes are described below.

* The annual report on remuneration, This detalls how we
implemented our current policy in FY18 and how we
intend to apply the new policy in Fy19,

The Remuneration Committee has addressed a number of
issues during the year. | have described below the approach

the Commiittee has taken, together with the context in which
key decisions were made.
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Remuneration review and new policy

Over the last year, the Committee has reviewed the
remuneration afrangements for Exacutive Directors and the
management team, to make sure they best support the Group’s
business strategy, reflect best practice and are aligned with
shareholders’ interasts. This included consulting with major
shareholders and investor bodies. Their input from the 2017
AGM and during recent consultations has been incorporated into
the development of the new policy.

The Committee believes in an approach 1o executive pay which
aligns with value creation for shareholders. If the value created
for shareholders ks below aur expectations, we believe that
executives should receive reduced or no variable pay. Conversely,
¥ shareholders enjoy strong retumns, we believe it is right that the
executives responsible for creating that value should share in
those retums too.

Given the Committee's actions in recent years In setting
stretching targets, holding executives to acocount for achieving
those targets and exercising negative discretlon in lapsing awards,
we feel we have a strong track record In taking a responsible and
appropriate approach to executive pay.

This approach informed how we reviewed the poficy and the
main outcomes of the review are set out below:

* No increase in guantum. Maximum incentive opportunities
remain the same for the next policy cyde. No increase in
salaries for FY19.

* Deferral provisions strengthened, 50% of the annual bonus is
to be deferred. Previously, the bonus was delivered in cash up
to 100% of salary, with only any excess deferred.

= Incorporation of best practice features. We are enhancing the
post-vesting helding period to two years for LTIP awards,
strengthening malus provisions and intreducing dlawback
pravisions across the Company’s incentive plans.

= Simplification. Reduction in the number of LTIP performance
measures from four to two, with FY19 awards based 50% on
adjusted EPS and 50% on cash conversion.

Further detail is provided in the Executive remuneration at a
glance section after this statement, and the naw policy is
provided in full in our policy report.

Chief Finandal Officer succession

As announoced an 13 November 2017, Paul Wool, former CEO of
Virgin Active Health Clubs, joined Mitie as Chlef Financlal Officer
and was appointed to the Board with immediate effect. Sandip
Mzahajan, who had held the role of Chief Financial Officer since
February 2017, stepped down from the Board. Our single figure
table includes details for Paul and Sandip in relation to their
respective times in the role.




Full detalis of Paul's remuneration arvangaments ~ which comply
with the Company's existing remuneration policy — are provided in
this report. In surmimary, they include: (i} a base salary of £430,000
which will not be increased in FY19; (if) an annual bonus
opportunity of 120% of salary; and {§i) regular annual LTIP awards
of 150% of salary. Note that Paul’s FY18 LTW award was 75% of
salary.

Sandip Mahajan ceased to be a Director on 13 November 2017
and is expected t6 remain an employee until November 2018. His
July 2017 LTIP award will vest at the usual time, subject to the
performance conditions, pro-rated for his period of employment.

Remuneration decisions and outcomes

Salary

With regard to fixed pay, it has been agreed that salarias for the
Executive Divectors will not be increased for FY19 and so will
remain £900,000 for Phil Bentiey [since appointment in
Novermnber 2016} and £430,000 for Paul Woolf (since
appointment in November 2017).

Voluntary walver of FY18 bonus

FY18 bonus outcomes would have ordinarily resulted in pay-outs of
38% of the maximum {arising from operating profit, revenue,
customer performance and strategic objectives). Notwithstanding
this, both Phil Bantiey and Paul Woolf expressed in advance their
wish to voluntarily waive any FY18 banus, prior to award.

interaction with November 2016 LTIP award

Following his appointment, Phil Bentley received an LTIP award in
November 2016. This award vests subject to the extent to which
the annual bonus targets that apply for FY18, FY19 and FY20 are
met and a bonus pald. In the event Phil earns a bonus in one of
these years, 25% of the award vests, with 67% vesting if a bonus is
earned in two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is eared in all
three years. In any event, no vesting will actually occur untit 2020.

In light of the voluntary waiver discussed above, for the purposes of
performance assessment under the Novernber 2016 LTIP award, it
is deemed that the annual bonus targets that applied for FY18 have
been met and therefore a bonus in ohe of the three years has been
achieved to date.

Bonus opportunity for FY19

For FY19, Phil Bantley’s maximum bonus opportunity will remaln
at 160% of salary and Pau! Woolf's maximum bonus opportunity
will remain at 120% of salary.

The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are all
Non-Executive Directors. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the Committee met three times,

Attendance
Chairman Jack Boyer 3/3
Committee members  Larry Hirst 33
Jennifer Duvalier! 1/2
Roger Matthews? 11
Mark Reckitt® 11

Notes:

1. Jennifer Duvalier was appointad to the Committes on 26 July 2017,

2. Roger Matthews resigned from the Board on 26 July 2017,

3. Mark Redkitt stood down from the Committee on 26 July 2017.

The Committee has responsibifity for determining the remuneration
of Mitie’s Exacutive Directors and the Chairmnan, taking into account
the need to ensure Exacutive Directors are properly incentivised to
perform In the interests of the Cormpany and its shareholders.

The Committee’s terms of reference are available at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance/

The Committee regularly consults with the Chief Executive and
the Group HR Director on various matters refating to the
appropriateness of rewards for the Executive Directors.

However, the Chief Executive and other Executive Directors are
not present when matters relating directly to their own
remuneration are discussed. This is also the case for other
executives attending Committee meetings.

The Company Secretary attended the meetings as Secretary to
the Committee. The Chief Executive and Group HR Director
attended the meetings by invitation only.

Corporate governance devslopments

The Committee is mindful of wider developments in corporate
governanoe best practice. Mitie’s gender pay gap disclosures are
available on the government portal, as well as on the website.
We are also mohitoring the renewal of the UK Corporate
Governance Code with interest, and our Intention is to comply
with the revised provisions when they are finalised, particularly
with reference to pay ratlos.

Condlusion

We will be seeking approval for the Directors’ remuneration
raport [advisory vote) and the policy report {binding vote) at the
2018 AGM. | wekcome your views and feedback on either item,
which can be emailed tc me at jack.boyer@mitie.com.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration at a glance

Key principles of the policy
Mitie’s remumeration policy is based on a number of principles:
Reward should be aligned with The performance-related incentive arrangements are desigred to align the
the sharehoider experience interests of executives with those of shareholders and to promote the Group’s Jong-

term success

The majority of the package At Executive Director and senlor management levels, the majority of reward

should be performance-related opportunity is provided through performance-related incentives linked to the
Group’s strategic goals and taking account of the Group's attitude to risk; reward
under these incentives is Knked to both individual and Group performance

The policy should be The overall remuneration policy is designed to be comprehensive without becoming

comprehensive and simple overcomplicated and 10 encoyrage exacutives to concentrate on profitable growth

Excecutive incantives and link to strategy

The following table sets out how the intended measuires across the incentive plans for FY19 support the Group's strategy and KPis:

Link tp Sustained and renewad Strong cash-generative Focus on people Customers at the heart
strategy profit growth business Quality cllent base and culture of u_ve_bt_uhﬁs
Annual ¥ 35% operating ¥ 35% organic v 10% employee v 10% Net Promoter
bonus profit revenue growth engagement Score
v 10% individual
objectives
LTI ¥ 50% adjusted ¥ 50% cash
EPS conversion

The table below highlights the key features of the new policy and cur approach which aligns the Executive Directors’ remuneration

arrangements with the shareholder experience:

Our philosophy — “The Committee belleves in on approach to executive pay which is
commensunate with valie creation for shareholders.”

Our track record in

taking a responsible s";‘m"m i “‘:“" s
and . salary in
approach to executive conjunction with
pay (6.5, exercise of enhanced malus and
tive discration) clawback provisions
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Bonus deferral - 50% of
the bonus into shares
for at least two years

LTIP holding period of
two years —five-yaar
time horizon for
@xecutives




All empioyee incentive amrangements
The Company also operates SAYE and SIP amangements, allowing employees to participate in share ownership and to share in
corporate success over the medium term.

Summary of the new policy and how we intend it to operate
This table summarises remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors (Phil Bentley as CEO and Paul Woolf as CFO) for FY18 under
the current policy approved by sharehalders at the 2015 AGM, alongside how we intend to apply the new policy in FY19, subject to

shareholder approval at the 2018 AGM.

A2 fance FY18 operation under current policy FY19 operation under naw policy
Base salary CEO: £500,000 CEO: £900,000
CFO: £430,000 CFO: £430,000
Maximum bonus Policy maximum: 160% of salary for CEO and 135%  Policy maximum: 160% of salary for CEO and 135%
opportunity for other Executive Directors for other Executive Directors
FY18 operation: FY19 operation:
CEO: 160% of salary CEO: 160% of salary
CFO: 120% of salary {pro-rata) CFO: 120% of salary
Bonus deferral Bonus delivered wholly in cash up to 100% of satary  50% of bonus deferred into shares which vest after at
with the remainder deferred into shares which vest  least two years —i.e. enhanced deferral provisions
after two years
Bonus performance Current policy is for financial to be the majority New palicy is unchanged.
measyres — mix (>50%) and strategic the remainder FY19 mix: 70% financial, 30% strategic
FY18 mix: 70% financial, 30% strategic
Bonus performance Financlal: operating profit and revenue Financial: organic revenue growth, operating profit

Strategic: as disclosed later in our Annual Report

on Rermmuneration

FY18 mix; 50% operating profit, 20% revenue, and
15% each on NPS and individual strategic objectives

Strategic: Net Promoter Score (NPS), employee
engagement, individual

FY19 mix: 35% organic revenue growth, 35%
operating profit, and 10% each on NPS, employee
engagement and individual strategic objectives

Maximum LTIP Policy maximum: 200% of salary Policy maximum: 200% of salary
opprtunity FY18 operation: FY19 aperation:

CEOQ: 200% of salary CEO:; 200% of salary

CFO: 150% of salary {pro-rata) CFO: 1509% of salary
LTIP performance FY18 mix (granted in July and November 2017): 30%  Simplification to two measures, adjusted EPS and
maxsures cash conversion, 25% EPS, 25% strategic and 20% cash conversion. Policy still to allow for flexibility on

relative TSR measures and weightings.

FY19 mix: 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion

LTIP holding period Practical operation of post-vesting holding period, Enhancement of post-vesting holding period to

of two years after vest

but no specific period defined within policy
FY1B operation: 50% released after three years, 25%
after four years and 25% after five years

two years and formal incorporation into policy
FY19 operation: shares released after five years
(three year vesting plus two year holding period)

Share ownership 200% of salary 200% of salary

requirements

Malus and dawback Malus pravisions in place Strengthened malus provisions and introduction of
provisions clawback provisions
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Directors’ remmuneyation report continued

Summary of remumeration outcomes for the year ending 31 March 2018

The following provides a summary of incentive outcomes and the single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors. Full
details can be found later in our Annual Report on Remuneration.

Annual bonus in respect of FY18

Phil Bentley and Paul Woolf both voluntarily waived thelr annual bonus in respect of FY18. Notwithstanding this, the measures and
targets are set out in the table below, together with a commentary on the amounts which would otherwise have been determined on
a formulaic basis and an assessment of the strategic objectives, had the bonuses not already been waived.

The table below reflects the notional out-tum of 38.0%. As the financial performance ranges excluded the impact of IFRS 15, the
formulaic out-turn has been assessed on FY18 results before the impact of IFRS 15:

Performance

measure Weighting Performance range Out-turn

Operating 50% of the award  £85.8m threshold The cut-turn was £77.1m resulting in a hypothetical outcome of 0% of

profit £95.3m target the maximum for this element, being 0% of the maximum bonus
£100.0m maximym  Opportunity.

Revenue 20% of the award  £2.00bn threshold The out-tum was £2.199bn resulting in a hypothetical cutcome of
£2.23bn target 65% of the maximum for this elament, being 13.0% of the maximum
£2,33n maximum  bonus opportunity.

Custormer Net  15% of the award  +1pts threshold The out-turn was +17pts resulting in a hypothetical outcome of

Promoter Score +3pts target 100% of the maximum for this element, baing 15% of the maximum
+5pts maximum bonus opportunity.

Strategic 15% of the award - The Committee set strategic objectives relating to: customers; costs;

objectives financial; people; technology, gavernance; and processes as set out in the

Annual Report on Remuneration. The Committee consiiered that the
objectives had been substantially met and that 10% out of a passible 15%
of the award wouki otherwise have been awarded to the CEQ and CFO.

2015 LTIP awards vesting in 2018

Neither Phil Bentley nor Paul Woolf were granted 2015 LTIP awards, as these awards were made prior to their appointments. As such,
they have no LTIP awards vesting in 2018,

Single figure for FY18
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors and former Executive Director for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018 and their comparative figures for the financlal year ended 31 March 2017.

Yeur Salsry Benefits  Annual bonus Lne Pension Totad
Phil Bentley 2018 £900,000 £22,549 - - £180,000 £1,102,549
2017 £375,000 £29,073 = - £75,000 £479,073
Paul Woolf 2018 £166,136 £686 - - £16,614 £183,436
2017 - = - - - -

Former Director
Sandip Mahajan 2018 £197,576 £10,140 - - £39,515 £247,231
2017 £44,000 £2,063 - - £8,800 £54,863
Total remuneration 2018 £1,533.216
2017 £533,936

Further information on the above Is provided in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
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The Company’s remuneration policy

This report

We have presented this Directors’ remuneration report in accordance with the Large and Medium-sized Companles and Groups
(Accounts ahd Reports} (Amendment} Regulations 2013. The report aiso describes how the Board has complied with the provisions set
out in the September 2014 edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code relating to remuneration matters,

At the 2018 AGM two resolutions relating directly to this report will be proposed: 2 binding vote on the revised Directors’
remuneration policy as set out in our policy report below and an advisory vote on the Annual Report on Remuneration.

The independent Auditor has reported on certain parts of this report and stated whether, in his opinion, those parts of the report have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. Those sections of the report that have been subject to audit are
clearly Indicated.

Directors’ remuneration policy report

Changes ta the policy

The following tables and accompanying notes in this section of the report set out the remuneration policy for Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors. The policy Is intended to apply, subject to approval by shareholders, for three years from the 2018 AGM.

Following a review in which major shareholders were consulted, changes have been made to the policy approved by shargholders at
the 2015 AGM, as detaiied in the Statement from the Remuneration Committee Chairman above. These include the strengthening of
bonus deferral provisions, introduction of clawback provisions and formal incorporatian into the policy of an enhanced post-vesting
holding period for LTIP awards. For the avoidance of doubt, there has been no increase in maximum Incentive opportunities, Minor
drafting changes have also been made to clarify the Committee’s intentions for the operation of the poiicy.

The key principles of the policy

The remuneration policy promotes and embeds the Company’s remuneration principles. The key principles of this policy are:

Shareholder aligned The performance-related incentive arrangements are designed to align the interests of
executives with those of shareholders and to promote the Group’s long-term success

Performante-refated At Executive Director and senior management levels, the majority of reward opportunity is

provided through performance-related incentives linked to the Group's strategic goals and

taking account of the Group’s attitude to risk

Reward under these incentives Is inked to both individual and Group performance
Comprehensive and simple The overall remuneration policy is designed to be comprehensive without becoming

overcomplicated and to encourage executives to concentrate on profitable growth
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The Company’s remuneration policy continued

The policy
The key elements of the policy, to be approved at the 2018 AGM, are set out bejow.
Purposs and
Wnk to strategy Qperation Opportunity Performance metrics
Base salary Salaries are generally reviewed Base salary increases wili be broadly N/A
Set at levels to annually, effective from 1 April. The  in iine with the average increase for
attract and retain review is influenced by: the salaried non-contract UK
indwviduals of the + the individual's role, experience  employees whose salarles Mitie
calibre required to and performance; determines, although on occasion
drive the visionand = business performance and the other specific circumstances such as
direction of Mitie, wider market and economic changes of responsibilities,
conditions; progression In role, experience, or a
« the range of increases across the  Snficant increase in the scale of
Group; and the ';" :w"d:f °;fér value and/ l:;
+ anexternal comparatorgroup ~ SOMPE roup may a
comprised of sector comparators be taken into ¢onsideration,
and skze adjusted FTSE 250
comparator organisations.
Benefits The Group provides a range of Benefits are set at a level which the  N/A
TFo ald retention benefits which may Include a Lommittee considers:
and be competitive  company car/car allowance, private  + is appropriately positioned
within the fuel, private health insurance, ife against comparable roles in
marketp!aoe. assurance and annual leave. companies of a simitar size and
Benefits are reviewed periodically complexity in the relevant
against market and new benefits market; and

may be added and/or amendedas  « provides a sufficient level of
required to support the attraction benefit based on the role and

and retention of key talent. individual circumstances {for
Additional benefits may be awarded  example, relocation).

in certain reqruitment The Committee ratains discretion
drcumstances which may include 1o approve a higher cost than
relocation expenses, housing currently incurred where factors
allowance and school fees. Other outside the Company’s control have
benefits may be offered if changed materially (e.g. medical
considered appropriate and inflation) or in exceptional
reasonable by the Committee. dincumstances (e.g. relocation).
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Purpose and

fink 1o strategy Operation Opportunity Performance metrics
ANl Employee Executive Directors are eligibleto  N/A N/A
Share Schemes participate in any all-employee
To provide share plan operated by the
oppartunities for Company, In ine with HMRC
the Directors to guidelines currently prevailing
voluntarily invest {where relevant), on the same basis
Inthe Companyon  as other eligible employees.
the same terms as
other employees.
Pension Executive Directors will be eligible  The pension cash allowance for N/A
To aid retention and 1o participate in the defined Executive Directors will be
provide competitive  contribution pension scheme or determined based on the
retirement benefits.  to receive a cash allowance in Committee’s assessment of

fieu of a pension contribution. competitive levels needed to attract

and retain such individuals, but will
be capped at 20% of salary.

Annuasl Bonss Plan ~ Measures and targets are set Maximum bonus opportunity is Bonuses are based on stretching
Toincentiviseand  annually and pay-out levels are 160% of salary for the Chief financial and strategic objectives as
recognise execution determined by the Committee after Executive and up to 135% of salary  setat the beginning of the year and
of the Company’s the year end based on parformance  for any other Executive Director. assessed by the Committee at
strategy on an against those targets. the end of the year, with the
annual basis. The Committee may, in underlying aim of encouraging
Rewards the exceptional circumstances, amend and rewarding the generation
achievement of the bonus pay-out shouki this not, of sustainable returns
annual financialand  in the view of the Committee, to shareholders.
strategic goals. reflect overall business performance The Committee has discretion
Deferral provides or individual contribution. to determine the appropriate
alignment with SO% of the bonus Is compulsorily weightings each year depending
shareholder deferred into shares which vest on business priorities. The financial
interesty, after a minimum of two years measures will represent the

{normally subject to continued majority of the bonus, with any

employment). strategic chjectives representing

Dividends are accrued on deferred
shares and paid in cash.

Malus and clawback provisions (as
detailed below this table) will apply
to bonus awards made after the
2018 AGM.

the balance. These elements
are additive.

For the strategic elemert of the
award, payment at threshold
performance Is zero. At the
threshold performance level
under the financial element, a
bonus of no more than 60% of
salary is payable.
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The Company’s remuneration policy continued

Purpose and
link t0 strategy Operation Opportunity Performance metries
Long Term Annual awards {in the form of Awards may be made upto a Performance over at least three
Incentive Plan nil-cost aptions, conditional share  maximum level of 200% of salary financlal years Is measured against
To motivate and awards or cash settlements) are for any Executive Director. stretching objectives set at the
incentivise delivery  made with vesting dependent upon beginning of the performance
of sustained the achlevement of performance period which have the underlying
performance and conditions aver three years, aim of encouraging and rewarding
provide alignment  Award ‘evels and the framework for the generation of sustainable
with sharehokder determining vesting ane reviewed returns to shareholders.
interests. annually to ensure they continue to Vesting under the LT depends on
support the Group’s strategy. the achievement of performance
The Committee has the discretion to conditions. Awards attributable to
decide whether, and to what axtent, each performance condition vest at
targets have been met, and, if an 25% on achievement of the
exceptional event occurs that minimum performance threshold,
causes the Committee to consider rising to 100% for achievement of a
that the targets are no longer defined upper performance level.
appropriate, the Committee may
adjust them.
Awards will be subject to an
additional holding period of at
least two years.
Dividend ecpsivalents are paid in
cash an or after the date shaces
are received.
Malus and clawback provisions
{as detalled below this table) will
apply to LTIP awards made after
the 2018 AGM.
Share ownership Executive Directors are required, N/A N/A \
To ensure alignment  over time, to bulld and maintain a
of interests between minimum shareholding in the ‘
Executive Directors  Company worth 200% of sakary.
and shareholders, They are required to retain half of
the post-tax shares vesting under
the LTIP and other share schemes
until the guideline is met.
Chairman and Fees are normally reviewed every  Fees are set at a level which: N/A
Non-Execitive three years. » reflacts the commitment and
Director fees The fee structure is as follows: contribution that is expected
To attract and + the Chairman is paid an al- from the Chairman and the Non-
retain high~calibre inclusive single fee for all Executive Directors; and
Individuals. Board responsibilities; « is appropriately positioned
Non-Executive « the Non-Executive Directors are against comparator roles in
Directors do not pald a basic fee, plus additional companies of a simiiar size
participate in any fees for chairmanship of and complexity in the
incentive schemes. committees; relevant market.
+ fees are currently paid in cash but  Actual fees are disclosed in the
the Company may choose to Directors’ remuneration report for
provide some of the feesin the relevant financlal year.
shares; and Aggregate fees/value of benefits are
» benefits, including expenses, can  capped at the amount set out in the
be provided K considered Company’s Articles of Association,
necessary on a case-by-case basis.
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Mbalus and dawback provisions

The malus and dawback provisions under the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP may be operated if it comes to light within two years that
information used to determine performance was materially inocgurate and resulted in a2 material ovorstatomant of the award or in the
event of any act/omission by an individual that would give grounds for summary dismissal (with no time limit). For the avoidance of
doub, the clawback provisions apply to any cash payments made and/or any vested shares under bonus deferral or the LTIP in respect
of awards made after the 2018 AGM.

Clawback provisions are such that:

¢ cash bonus amounts can be reclaimed for a period of up to two years after payment; and

¢ vested share awards under the deferred element of the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP can be reclalmed for a period of up to two years
after vesting (effected through the cperation of makus provisions during the holding period),

Malus and clawback will apply in four main circumstances:

* misstatement of results or an error in the calculation of performance;
* misconduct;

* reputational damage; or

= failure of risk management or control.

Discretions retained Iin operating the incentive plans

The Committee will operate the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP according 1o their respective niles and the above policy table. The
Comimiuee retalns discretion, consistent with marked praclice, in @ number of respects, in relation to the operation and adribiislrathon
of these plans.

These discretions include, but are not limited to, the following:

» the selection of participants;

¢ the timing of grant of an award/bonus opportunity;

« the size of an award/bonus apportunity subject to the maximum limits set out in the policy table;

« the determination of performance against targets and resultant vesting/bonus pay-outs;

s discretion required when dealing with a change of control or restructuring of the Group;

¢ determination of the treatment of leavers based on the rules of the plan and the appropriate treatment chosen;

+ adjustments required in certain circumstances {e.g. rights Issues, corporate restructuring events and special dividends); and

» the annual review of performance measures, weightings and targets.

In relation to both the LTIP and Annual Bonus Plan, the Committee retains the ability to adjust the targets and/or set different
measures if events occur (e.g. material acquisition and/or divestment of a Group business) which cause It to determine that the
wonditions are no longer appropriate and the amendment Is required so that the conditions achieve their original purpose and are not
materially kess difficult to satisfy. Any use of these discretions would, where relevant, be explained In the Directors’ remuneration
report and may, where appropriate and practicable, be the subject of consultation with the Company’s major sharehoiders.

In sddition, for the avpidance of doubt, in approving this policy report; authority is given 1o the Company to honour any scommitments
entered Into with current or former Directors Under previous polickes. Detalls of any payments tu fulmer Directors will be set out in the
relevant report as required by reporting regulations.
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The Company’s remuneration policy continued

Remuneration scenarios for Exacutive Directors

Under the Company’s policy; a significant proportion of remuneration is linked to performance. The charts below shaow how much
the Exccutive Directors could carn under Mitie’s remuneration policy (as datalied aboeve) under different perfermance scenarios.

The following assumptions have been made:

» minimum performance {below threshold) — foced pay only, comprising salaries effective as at 1 April 2018 and the full year effect of

ongoing benefits and cash allowances in leu of pension contributions;

* on-target performance —fixed pay plus an on-target bonus and 25% of the maximum possible LTIP award vesting. On-target bonus

for FY19 represents 50% of the maximum bonus; and

s madmum performance —fixed pay plus maximum bonus for FY19 of 160% of salary for the Chief Executive and 120% for the
Chief Financial Officer (structured 70% financial targets and 30% strategic/other) and maximum LTIP awards (of 200% of salary

for the Chief Executive and 150% for the Chief Financial Officer).
The scenarios do not include share price growth or dividend assumptions.

Phil Bentley, Chief Executive

Pau) Woolf, Chief Financial Officer

{E£'000) {£'000)

Minkmum Minkrum

On-target On-target

Maximum Mudmuam

| — 1 'l L L p—| L i e, 'y

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5000 0 s00 1,000 1,500

i Fixed [ ] Bonus Jll LTP Il Fixed [] Bonus I LTP

Compasition of Compasition of

package package

%) Fixed Bonus LTP Total (%) Fixed Bonus ne Total
Minimum 100% - - 100% Minimum 100% - - 100%
On-target 48% 32% 20% 100%  On-target 53% 29% 18% 100%
Maximum 25% 33% 42% 100% Maximum 29% 32% 39% 100%
Value of package Value of package

{£'000) Axed Bonus P Tota)  (£000) Fixed Bonus TP Yot
Minimum 1,1025 - - 1,1025 Mmnimum 4746 - - A474.6
On-target 1,102.5 720.0 450.0 227285 On-target 4746 258.0 1613 893.9
Maximum 1,102.5 14400 1,800.0 43425 Makimum 474.6 516.0 645.0 1,635.6

Bxecutive Directors” service contracts

All Exccutive Directors are sppointed Gn rolling service contracts but are subject to annual re election at the AGM In accordance with

the Code.

Under the service contracts, the Company is required to give 12 months’ notice of termination of employment; Phil Bentley is required

to give 12 months’ notice and Paul Woolf is required to give 6§ months” notice.

For Executive Directors, if notice is served by either party, the Cxecutive Director can continue to receive basic salary, benefits and
pension cash atiowance for the duration of their notice period during which time the Company may require the individual to continue

to fuffil their current duties or may assign a period of garden feave.
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With respect to the current Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer’s contracts, the Company has the right to make a psyment in
lieu of notice equivalent in value up to 12 months’ salary payable either in monthly instalments or as a kimp sum. The Company will
also pay for any benefit for which the individual would have been eligible until the date of cessation had full notice been given.

The Executive Directors’ service contracts are available for inspection at Mitie's registered office, Mitie’s head office and at the AGM.
There are no ather provisions for compensation on termination of employment set out within the contracts of the Executive Directors.

For future Executive Directors, notice periods will not exceed 12 months, save in exceptional circumstances; should a notice pericd
longer than 12 months be necessary the Committee would expect this to reduce to 12 months over tire.

The effective dates of the service contracts of the current Executive Directors are set out below:

Date of agreement
Phil Bentley 9 October 2016
Paul Woolf 13 Novernber 2017

Extermal appointments

The Board recognises that the appointment of Executive Directors to non-executive positions at other companies can be benefidal for
both the individual director and the Group through the broadening of their experience and knowledge, and individuais are entitled to
retain any fees earned in respect of these appointments. The Executive Directors did not hald any non-executive positions at other
companies during FY18.

Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration and appointment terms

The Chairman and Non-Execuitive Directors receive an annual fee which is paid in monthly instalments. The Chalrman's fee is set by the
Remwneration Committee and the fees for the Non-Executive Directors are approved by the Board, on the recommendation of the
Chairman and the Chief Executive. The Non-Executive Directors are pald a basic fee with an additional fee for the Senior Independent
Director and for chalring a Committee, together with expenses incurred in carrying out their duties on behalf of the Company. Non-
Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any of the Company’s share schemes, Annual Bonus Plan or the pension scheme.
They do not receive any anclilary benefits.

The terms of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are available for inspection at Mitie'’s registered office, Mitie’s head office
and at the AGM. The Non-Executive Directors are engaged for an initial term of three years which is terminable on either three or six
months’ notice and thereafter on a rolling term, They are also subject to annual re-election at the AGM in accordance with the Code.

Non-Executive Directors’ engagement tarms
The engagement terms of the current Non-Executive Directors are set out below:

Dewol  comred  Notke

Additional duties commencement term period

Derek Mapp Chairman; Chalrman of Nomination Committee 9 May 2017 3years 3 months
Larry Hirst? Senior Independent Director 1 February 2010 Syears 3 months
Jack Boyer Chairman of Remuneration Committee 1June 2013 dyears 3 months
Mark Reckitt? Chalrman of Audit Committee 1 July 2015 3years 3 months
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat 1 June 2017 3years 3 months
Jennifer Duvalier 26 July 2017 3years 3 months
Mary Reilly 1 September 2017 3years 3 months
Philippa Couttie 15 Novemmber 2017  3years 3 months
Roger Yates! Senior Independent Director-elect 1 March 2018 3years 3 months

Notes:

1. Larry Hirst is scheduled to retire from the Board at the 2018 AGM on 31 July 2018 and it Is intended that Roger Yates will become Senlor independent Director at that date.
2. Mark Reckitt will stind down from the Board at the 2018 AGM sfter three ysars” sarvice. Mary Reltly will succeed Mark as chalr of the Audit Cormittes.

How the executive pay policy differs from that for other Mitie employess

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors is more heavily weighted towards variable pay than for other employees, ensuring
that the greater part of their pay is conditional on the successful delivery of the Group’s business strategy. This helps create a clear link
between the value created for shareholders and the remuneration received by the Directors. The LTIP is limnited to the most senior
employees. For employees below this fevel, variable pay may consist of share-based awards and annual bonus (both of which will be
based on role), and UK based employees (and Irish based in the case of SAYE) have the opportunity to participate in the SAYE and SIP
share schemes,
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The Company’s remuneration policy continued

How employment conditions elsewhere In the Group are taken into acoount

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for overseeing the remuneration policy for the Group as a whole and is mindful of pay
and employment conditions in the wider workforce within the Group and externally when determining executive remuneration. When
considering base salary increases, benefits and pension provision, the Committee reviews overall levels and Increases offered to
employees across the Group. The Committee also reviews information with regard to share awards made 1o other senlor management
of the Group, noting that: (i) all UK based employees (and (rish based in the case of SAYE) can participate In the SAYE and SIP share
schemes; and (1) participation in the LTIP is limited to a selection of senior executives. However, consistent with general practice, the
Committee does not consult with employees in preparing the policy or its implementation.

How shareholder views are taken nto account

The Committee is committed to a continuing discussion with major shareholders and obtains their views when any significant changes
to remuneration arrangements are being proposed.

Policy on loss of office

The rules of the Annual Bonus Plan and LTIP set out what happens to awards if a participant ceases to be an employee or Director of
Mitie before the end of a vesting period, with the relevant service contracts also determining the general treatment of Executive
Diractors on cessation.

Regarding the annua! bonus, in the event that the participant ceases to be an eligible employee before the date the bonus is paid oris
subject to notice of termination of employment on the bonus date, all entitlement to the bonus in respect of that financlal year shall
be forfeited, unless the Committee in ks absolute discretion determines otherwise. Deferred shares will vest in full on the date of
cessation for ‘good leaver reasons, othenwise the shares will lapse on cessation of employment.

Generally, any outstanding LTIP awards will lapse on cessation of employment, except in certain clrcumstances. Specifically, if the
Executive ceases to be an employee or Director as a result of death, Injury, disabllity, redundancy, retirement, the sale of the business
or company that employs the individual or any other reason at the discretion of the Committee, then they will be treated as a ‘good
leaver’ under the LTIP rules in which case awards will vest either on cessation or, for leavers within the first three years, the first normal
vesting dates subject to the performance conditions and, if the Committee determines, 8 pro-rata reduction. A good leaver has 12
months to exercise thelr vested awards structured as options following the cessation of employment.

In addition, and censistent with market practice, in the event of termination of an Executive Director’s employment, the Company may
settle any claims that may arise and pay a contribution tawards the individual’s legal fees and fees for outplacement services as part of
a negotiated settlement. Any such fees would be disclosed as part of the detail of termination arrangements. Should it become
necessary to make additional payments in respect of such professional fees that were not ascertained st the time of reporting, the
Company may do so up to a level of a further £10,000. For the avoidance of doubt, the policy does not include an explicit cap on the
cost of termination payments.

Policy on the recrultment of a new Director |

For a new hire, the Committee will typically align the Executive Director’s remuneration package to the above remuneration policy.
However, where appropriate, the Committee retains discretion to make decisions outside of policy to facilitate hiring key talent as set
out below,

Base salary will be set based on the individual's role and experience, with consideration given to internal equity.

Benefits will be provided in fine with those offered to other employees at the similar level, with relocation expenses/arrangements |
provided if necessary. In the case of new Executive Directors, individuals will be given a cholce of either participation in a defined ‘
contribution pension scheme or a cash allowance in lleu of pension. |
|
|

The maximum leve! of variable pay that may be offered on an ongoing basis and the structure of remuneration will be in accordance
with the approved policy detalled above (i.e. for the CEO an aggregate maximum of 360% of salary — 160% annual bonus and up to
200% for LTIP, for the Chief Financial Officer an aggregate maximum of 335% of salary — 135% annual bonus and up to 200% for LTIP).
This limit does not include the value of buyout amangements.

The above policy applies to both internal promations to the Board and external hires. For external hires, if it Is necessary to buy out
existing incentive pay or benefit arrangements (which would be forfeited on leaving thelr previous company), this would be provided
taking into consideration relevant factors such as the commerdal value of the amount forfeited from the previous emplover, the ’
performance conditions (¢.g. the [ikelihood of achieving those) and timing (e.g. where the award is in the vesting cycle). Buyout :
awards, if used, will be granted using Mitie’s existing share plans, akthough, i necassary, additional buyout awards may be made on f
more baspoke terms regarding matters such as vesting and performance conditions as permitted under the Listing Rules {pravision !
9.4.2.). The Committee has placed a maximum limit on any such buyout awards which it may be necessary to make; these will not
exceed the commercial value of the amount forfeited from the previous employer.

In the case of an internal promotion to the Board, any outstanding variable pay awarded in relation to the individual’s previous role will
be allowed 1o pay out according to its terms of grant.

On appointment of a new Chairman or Non-Executive Director, his or her fee will be set taking into account the existing fee structure.

100 wwermitie.com | The exceptional, every doy




Amnual Report on Remuneration

Bxacutive Director remuneration (subject to audit)
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors and former Executive Director for the
financial year ended 31 March 2018 and their comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Yesr Salary Senefits  Annual bonus Lne Pension Total
Phil Bentjey 2018 £900,000 £22,549 - - £180,000 £1,102.549
2017 £375,000 £29,073 = - £75,000 £479,073
Payl woolk 2018 £166,136 £686 - - £16,614 £183.436
2017 - — - - - —
Former Director
Sandip Mahajan 2018  £197,576 £10,140 - - £39515 £247.31
2017 £44,000 £2,063 - — £8,800 £54,863
Total reruneration 2018 £1,533,216
2017 £533,936
Notes:

:::‘MmhtammdBolrdl:diefﬁnandulﬁﬁ'lcsmﬂqunbamlThelnfamaﬁmhﬂmh&mmmmhﬁsmmm
this date.
SﬂthlhnjanMMnMﬂanBNMmbuM?,hNubemeﬂ!BﬁldmmF&mm‘:’.MlWhht&hmm
his earning; between these dates a5 an Executive Director.

Benefits relate to the cost 10 the Company of private medical cover, car allowance and financial/tax planning advice.

Bonus payahis in respect of the financial year indudes any deferned element st face value st the date of sward. Further information about haw the ievel of the award for the
year ended 31 March 2018 was determined & provided on pages 102 and 103.

The persion benefit discosed sbove comgrises cash 3%owances in fieu of pensi ibutions for Pl Bentiey and Sandip Mahajen at 209 of salary and for Paul Woolf at 10%

of Slary.

Non-Executive Director remuneration {subject to audit)

The fees for the Non-Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and thelr comparative figures for the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 are set out below:

W7

s

£000 £'000
Derek Mapp? 201 -
Roger Matthews® 62 185
Larry Hirst 50 59
Jack Boyer 60 60
Mark Reckitt 60 60
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat* 43 -
Jennifer puvalier® 35 -
Mary Rellly® 30 -
Philippa Couttie” 20 -
Roger Yates® 5 -
Total 575 364
Notes:

L ANl araounts were paid in cash and ra ather benefits were recelved in the year.

2. Derek Mapp Joined the Board on 9 Misy 2017 as Chairmanrelect and took over as Chalrmnan and Chairman of the Nomination Comemittes at thes AGM on 26 July 2017.
3. Roger Matthews stepped down as Chairman & the AGM on 26 July 2017.

4. Nivedits Krishnamurthy Bhagst joined the Bosrd on 1 fune 2017,

S. lennifer Duvalier joined the Board at the AGM on 26 luly 2017.

£. Mary Reilly joined the Board on I September 2017.

7. Philippa Couttie Joined the Board on 35 Novernber 2017.

2. Roger Yates joined the Board on 1 March 2018 as Senior independent Director-slect.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Basa salary and benefits
Commencing 1 November 2016, and to be first reviewed in April 2020, the annual base salary for Phil Bentley Is £300,000.

Commencing 13 November 2617, and to be first reviewed in April 2018, the annual base salary for Paul Woolf was £430,000.
The review of Paul Woolf's base salary in April 2018 resulted in no change in base salary.

Commencing 18 January 2017, the annual base salary for Sandip Mahajan was £320,000.
A review of Non-Executive Director fees was undertaken by the Board In March 2018 which resuited in no change to fees.

019 s
£000 £'000
Chairman fees? 225 225
Non-Executive Directer core fees® 52 52
Additional fees:
Senior Independent Director 7 7
Chairman of a Committee B ]
Notes:

1. The core fees of £52,000 per annum paid to each Non-Executive Director {inchuding the Chairman) will sotsl £399,000 for the year ending 31 March 2015. Total fees ncluding
additional duties are expected t amount 1o £537,000 for the year ending 31 March 2019 (£575,000 actual for the year ended 31 March 2018).

2. The Chairman’s fee I Inclusive of the Non-Exeoutive Director core fee and no additional fees are pald to the Chairman where he Is 3 chairman or is a member of other
Cormittees. The fee sthown for 2018 was the snnual fee for Derek Mapp.

3. For Nor-Executive Directars, individual fees comprise the core fee and additional supplemental fees for the Seror Independent Director and for chairing Commilttees where
greater responsibility and time commitment are required.

Benefits are as described In the remuneration policy table. No changes are planned for the year ending 31 March 2019.

Annual Bonus Plan

Awards in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 were considered under the Annual Bonus Pian. Phil Bentley was eligible for a
maximum bonus opportunity of 160% of base salary, On joining the Company In November 2017, Paul Woolf became eligible for a pro-
rata bonus for a maximum opportunity of 120% of base salary. Sandip Mahajan was originally eligible for a maximum bonus
opportunity of 100% of base salary but following his stepping down as Chief Financial Officer in November 2017 & no longer eligible to
recelve a bonus under Mitle's Annual Bonus Plan for the year ended 31 March 2018. He may be eligible for an alternative discretionary
bonus at a reduced level for his contribution to the Company since stepping down from his role as Chief Financial Officer.

The awards were structured by reference to performance against a blend of financial (70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic
targets {the remaining 30%). At the threshold level of performance, 30% of the maximum bonus opportunity is due, 70% of the
maximum bonus opportunity is due at the target level and 100% at the maximum level. Between these points the out-turn is
determingd on a lnear sfiding scale basis.

Whilst Phil anvd Paul were eligible to receive a bonws, mirkdful of sharehokders’ experience over the year, they requested that they
should not be considered for bonuses and this waiver was accepted by the Committee. However, for the purposes of the performance
assessment under the November 2016 LTIP award made to Phil Bentiey, it I deemed that a bonus has been achieved in respect of the
year ended 31 March 2018 and therefore bonus in one of the three years has been achieved to date.

The table below therefore reflects the out-tumn of 38.0% which would otherwise have been determined as the outcome had it not
been for the bonus wakver, As the financial perfermance ranges exduded the impact of IFRS 15, the formulaic out-turn has been
assessed on FY18 results before the impact of IFRS 15:

Performance

Mheasune Weighting Performance range Out-turn

Qperating 50% of the award  £85.8m threshold The aut-turn was £77.1m resulting in a hypothetical outcome of 0% of

profit £95.3m target the maximum for this element, being 0% of the maximum bonus
£100.0m maximum  Opportunity.

Revenue 20% of the award  £2.00bn threshold The out-turn was £2,199bn resulting in a hypothetical outcome of
£2.23bn target 55% of the maximum for this element, being 13.0% of the maximum
£233bn maximum _ bonus opportunity.

Customer Net 15% of the award  +1pts threshold The out-tum was +17pts resulting in a hypothetical outcome of

Pramoter Scare +3pts target 100% of the maximum for this element, being 15% of the maximum
+5pts maximum bonus opportunity.

Strategic 15% of the award - The Committee set strategic objectives relating to: customers; costs;

objectives financial; people; technology; governance; and processes as set out

below. The Committee considered that the objectives had been
substantiatty met and that 10% out of a possibie 15% of the award would
otherwise have been awarded to the CEO and CFO.
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The strategic objectives set for the CEQ and CFO were as foliows:

CEO
Strategic objectives
Customers Launch ‘Beyond FM’ strategy and win shareholder support for portfolio rationalisation; and
complete lfetime value analysis by customer and agree segmentation/strategic acoount management approach.
Costs identify a £50m run rate on savings by leading the transformation of the Group’s cost base.
Financial Restore balance sheet debit/equity financing strength.
Pecple Rebuild new Executive Leadership Team; inculcate new team values and culture and replace Mitie earmout Model.
Technolagy Launch technology salutions (i) within Mitie office footprint to showcase Mitie's credentials; (il) to simpiify
Mitie’s Internal processes to improve customer service; and {ili) to build a ‘Connected Warkspace® capability.
CFO
Strategie objectives
Governance Create reputation for strong control environment and robust guardianship; and
ensure capltal structure is robust, sustainable and can underpin the wider strategy.
Processes Establish “Single Mitie Way’ procass madels and implement them with high levels of compliance.
Costs Identify a £12m run rate on savings by leading the transformation of the Group’s Finance function.
People Recrult and promote the best available finance talent; ensure they are highly engaged and demonstrate
continious improvement.
Technology Establish a coherent finance technology/systems landscape that has a low cost of running and is robust.
The bonus structure and assessment reflecting the wahver was as follows:
Financial performance Non-finendal performance Total bonus peyable
%of %af % of % of % of %of
salary salary salary % of salary salery salary % of Total Deferred
peyable at paysbie ¢ payable at salary paymble st piyable mt payable st salery bonus Cath shares
threshold targt maximum  paysble  threshald target madmum  paysbie £000 £000 £4000
Phil Bentley 336 784 1120 o 144 336 48.0 0 0 0 ]
Paul Woolf? 25.2 588 84.0 0 108 252 36.0 0 [+] 0 0
Sandip Mahajan 21.0 49.0 70.0 4] 9.0 21.0 300 1] [+ 4] 0
Note:

L Paul Woolf's salary percentages reflect his bonus apportunity before pro-rating.

The Annual Bonus Plan wil be operated on similar terms for the year ending 31 March 2019. Phil Bentley’s maximum bonus
opportunity for FY19 will remain at 160% of base salary and Paul WoolP's at 120% of base salary. Awards will be payable by reference
0 performance against a blend of financial {70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets (the remaining 30%). However, if none
of the financial targets have been achieved, no bonus will be payable by reference only 1o the strategic targets. 50% of any bonus
entitiement wiil be deferred. The targets are at prasent commercially sensitive and so are not disclosed In this report. However, as
above, details of the targets will be disclosed in next year’s report.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

LTW awards granted in 2017

Awards granted in 2017 were subject to the same structure as the LTIP awards made in July 2016. The awards will vest In 2020
depending on performance. The performance conditions applicable to the 2017 awards are as follows:

Performance Vesting of partion of the award

medsure Weighting Performance range {performance period three years ending 31 March 2020)

Earnings Per 25% af 5% —10% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as

Share (EPS) the award appropriate, Is less than 5% pa. If EPS growth is equal to 5% pa, 25%
growth of the award will vest. If Mitie achleves 10% EPS growth pa, all the

awards will vest. Between these two points the proportion of
awards vesting will be determined on a linear sfiding scale basis.

Relative Total 20% of Qutperformance against Zero vesting if Mitie’s TSR growth is less than the median of the
Shareholder the award the Business Support  Benchmark. If Mitie’s TSR growth is equal to the median of the
Return (TSR} Services subsector of Benchmark, 25% of the award will vest and if it exceeds the
the FTSE 350 Support  Benchmark median TSR by 10% pa or more, all the awards will vest.
Services index (the Between these two points the propertion of awards vesting will be
Benchmark} determined on a linear sliding scale basls. An underpin condition for
underilying financial performance also applies.
Strategic objectives  25% of the Zero vesting if the strategic objectives are not met. Straight line
award vesting between 2erp and maximum based on Remuneration
Committee assessment of performance against objectives.
Cash conversion 30% of 75% — 85% pa Zero vesting if cash converzion Is less than 75% pa. At 75%, 25% of
the award the award wit] vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achleves 80%.

Full vesting for this portion will occur if 85% pa is achieved. Between
75% and 80% and 80% and 85%, the proportion of awards vesting
will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

The strategic objectives are linked to the Company's strategy and include objectives relating to: customers; costs; financial; people; and
technology. Financial perfonmance targets for the 2017 LTI award were set before the Company adopted IFRS 15 with effect from 1
April 2017. To reflect the impact of IFRS 15, the Committee will consider adjusting EPS and cash conversion targets appropriately,
ensuring that they are not materially easler or harder to satisfy than the original targets. Any amended targets determined by the
Committee will be disclosed to shareholders in the next Directors’ remuneration report.

What was granted In 2017 {subject to audit)

Nember  Face value Pesformance % vesting st
Award Type of shares (F000) %ofsalary conditions Performance period dweshold
Phil Bentiey Performance Nil-cost 669,393! 1,800.0 200%
LTiPJull7  options performance .
PauWoo¥  Performance  Nilcost 143269¢ 322§ 75%  conditions are set T""“"";f‘“' 255
LNIPNov17  options out in the table 31"&:" encing
rch 2020
Sandip Mahajan Performance Nil-cost 148,754% 400.0 125% above

LTIP Jul 17 options

Notes:

1. Number of shares was calculated based on the sverage ciasing share grice for up to five business deys preceding the date of grant giving » share price of 268.9p.

2. Number of shares was caloulated based on the average dasing share price for up to five business days preceding the date of gramt giving a share price of 225.1p.

The performance conditions that are to apply to awards made in 2018 will be simpiified to two measures: (i} EPS; and (i} cash
conversion, each accounting for S0% of the award. The grant of these awards to the Executive Directors will be made following the
2018 AGM. Target ranges for 2018 LTIP awards will be set by the Committee and disclosed in our stock exchange announcement
detalling the grants. All Executive Director awards will be subject to a post-vesting holding period of two years,
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Details of LTI vesting in July 2018 (2015 award)

As disclosed In 2017's Annual Report on Remuneration, in accordance with the rules of the relevant LTIP, accelerated vesting applied
1o the 2015 {and 2016) LTIP grants for Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter. The Comsittee determined that these awards
should lapse in their entirety foowing exercise of negative discretion by the Committee. No current Executive Director has 2015 LTIP
awards.

The Commiktee assessed the outcome of the 2015 LTIP awards {based on FY18 results before the impact of IFRS 15) granted ta senior
management Under the plan in operation at the time against a basket of performance measures:

Performance Vesting of portion of the awsrd

measure Weighting Performance range {performance period thres years ending 31 March 2018)

Earnings Per 20% of I%—-8%pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as

Share (EPS) the award appropriate, Is less than 3% pa, If EPS growth Is equal to 3% pa, 25%
growth of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves 8% EPS growth pa, all the

awards will vest. Between these two points the proportion of
awards vesting will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

Relative Total 20% of Outperformance against Zero vesting if Mitie’s TSR growth is less than the median of the
Shareholder Return  the award FTSE 350 Support index. If Mitie’s TSR growth is equal to the median of the index, 25%
(TSR} Services index of the award will vest and if it exceeds the index median TSR by 10%

pa or more, all the awards will vest. Between these two points the
proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear shding
scale basis. An underpin condition for underlying financial

performance also applies.
Organic revenue 30% of the 3% — 6% pa witha Zero vesting if organic revenue growth is less than 3% pa. If organic
growth award financial underpin revenue growth is equal to 3% pa, 25% of the award will vest. If
based on the Mitie achieves 6% organic revenue growth pa, all the awards will
achievement of vest. Between these two points, the proportion of awards vesting
target margin will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis. Entire portion of
of 5.5% pa award is subject to Mitie achieving an average 5.5% margin in
the performance period.
Cash conversion 30% of 75% - 85% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than 75% pa. At 75%, 25% of
the award the award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achieves 80%.

Full vesting for this portion will occur if 85% pa is achieved. Between
75% and BO% and 80% and 85%, the proportion of awards vesting
will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

The Committee determined that the 2015 awards should lapse In their entirety following exercise of negative discretion by the
Commiittee.

Loss of office payments (subject to audit)

On 13 Novembar 2017, Sandip Mahajan ceased to be a Director of Mitle Group pic and took up the role of Chief Financial
Transformation Officer. Sandip is expected to remain an employee until 12 November 2018. A summary of 5andip’s departure terms
was made avallisble on the Company’s website in the relevant Section 430({28) Companies Act 2006 statemerd.

For the period to 12 Novernber 2018, Sandip will recelve his salary and contractual benefits. Sandip will not be eligible to receive a
bonus under Mitie’s Annual Bonus Plan for the year ended 31 March 2018 (which afforded him a maximum bonus opportunity of
100% of base salary). He may be ekgible for an alternative discretionary bonus at a reduced level for his contribution to the Company
since he stepped down as Chief Financial Officer. Options over 148,754 shares awarded under the LTIP will be pro-rated by reference
to his period of total employment and vest subject to performance conditions and the rules of the LTIP. Sandip will not be eligible to
receive further grants under Mitie’s LTIP. Legal fees of up to £1,000, excluding VAT, will be paid directly to Sandip’s legal advisors. If
Sandip or the Company elects to terminate his employment before 12 November 2018, then he will recelve salary and contractual
benefits in lieu of notice to that date subject to mitigation In the event that Sandip takes up a remunerated executive position
elsewhere prior to 12 November 2018. No other payments will be made.

The emceptional, everyday | www.mitie.com 105



Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Payments to past Directors {subject to audit)

Int last year's report, the Remuneration Committee noted that, as a consequence of prior year adjustments to the accounts for the
financial year ended 31 March 2016, it would determine what rights might be avallable to the Company to recover the bonus and
other awards made to each of Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter In respect of FY16. The matters which gave rise to the

prior year adjustments are now the subject to the ongoing investigation by the Financial Conduct Authority {FCA}, which the Company
disclosed in its announcerment on 29 August 2017. In that announcement, the Company reported that the FCA had commenced an
investigation in connection with the timeliness of a profit warning announced by the Company on 19 September 2016 and the manner
of preparation and content of the Company’s financial information, position and results for the period ended 31 March 2016. The
Company has been advised by its external lawyers that as any claim against Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter would cover
the same matters, facts and circumstances which ace the subject of the FCA investigation, any formal steps to recover bonuses or
other awards should be deferred until after the FCA have reached their findings. it Is currently anticipated that the FCA will condude its
investigation during the course of FY19,

No payments have been made to past Directors other than as previously disclosed in last year's report. A total contribution of £76,00C
and £70,000, excluding VAT, was paid to Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter respectively in respect of legal and outplacement
fees incurred in connection with their departures.

Change In CEO pay for tha ysar compared to UK salaried employees
The table below sets out the change in remuneration of the Chief Executive and Mitie's UK salaried non-contract population, which s
considered the most appropriate group for comparison purposes.

% Salary Benafits Bonus
Chief Executive? 0.0% -24.9% 0.0%
Average pay based on Mitie's UK salaried non-contract employees® 4.2% 11.3% 2.2%
Notes:

1. Pril Bertley becarne Chief Executive from 12 December 2015. To faciitate 2 yeor-on-year coinparison, the change In CED percentage shown bs the charge in Phil Bertiey's
salary, benefits and borws between FYA7 and Y18 on an annualised Basis.

2. Reflects the change In average annual pay for salaried non-contract UK employees employed throughout the two finencial years ended 31 March 2018. Salaried non-contrsct
employees are those who are employed directly by Mitie Group and whose roles are not dedicated to the provision of dient services.

3. Wndudes car/car sllovance, privite medicsl benefit snd private fuel,

Relative spend on pay

The table below shows the total cost of remuneration in the Group, compared with the dividends distributed and share buybacks.

Year ended  Year ended
31 March 31 March

2018 amz
£m £m Change:
Aggregate employee remuneration 1,119 1,174 4.79%
Equity dividends and share buybacks 5 62 -91.9%

Assessing pay and performance

The table below provides a summary of the Chief Executive’s single figure remuneration over the past nine years, as well as the
pay-out and vesting ievels of variable pay plans in relation to the maximum opportunity. The chart below shows the historical
TSR performance over the same period. These indices (FTSE 250, FTSE 350 Support Services and FTSE 350) have been chosen as
they are widely recognised and Mitie has been 3 member of these indices during the period:
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2010 011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

2017

Phit
Smith! Bantjey? 2018

Single figure remuneration  £1703,031 £2,324443 £2431,773 £2105131 £1447,266 £1,525824 £2,448,161

£530628 £4795,073 £1101546

Annual bonug element

{artual 35 2 % of max) 100% 100% 100% as% 90% 50% 73K 0% walved walved
LTIP element (actual

vesting as a % of max) 100% 100% B87.2% 57.2% % 25% 69.5% 0% wa s
Note:

1 mmwwmpgddumaameunmmwmmmumumMm her 2016 and d the position of

Chiaf Executive on 12 Dettmber 2016. The figanes above indude Phil Bersthey’s remuneration from 1 November 2016,

The reporting requirements state that the time period for the above TSR chart shou(d be lengthened to ten years over time and we

have therefore included a ten-year chart below:

300
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— gt wmm FTSE2S) = FTSEISOSS w=mme FTSESO
Share ownership (subject to audit)
Number of Percantage Percentage
sheves value of salary of tanget
ownaed as at of wrget Target heldasat  achieved 83 0t Compliance with
31 March 2038 holding sharsholding 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 share ownership guidelines
Phil Bentley? 1,852,656 £1,800,000 926,328 400% 200% Achleved
Paul Woolf 48,967 £860,000 400,037 24% 12%  Notachieved but compliant
Sandip Mahajan* 0  £540,000 297,702 0% 0% Not achieved but compliant

Notes:
L Inchdes shares d by tonnected

z V&!dwmhﬁthMufbmahryfaMIw Inaccordance with Phil Bertiey's service contrart, he acquired shares worth 400% of salary on 21 November

2016. His target shareholding ks the valua of his target holding divided by the share price of 194.3p on 21 Novemnber 2006

3 anmwucﬂnw;mmm Paul Woolfis required to bulld and maintain, through the retention of vested share options, 3 sharsholding of
200% of bese salary. His target shareholding ts calculated using the sverage cosing share price of 215.0p for the five business days prior to the start of the financlal year

ended 31 March 2018.

4. Value of target holding 1s 200% of bate salary far Sandip Mahajan. His target shareholding is calautated using the average share price of 215.0p for the five business days prior
10 the start of the financial year ended 31 March 2018, Sandip resigned from the Board on 13 November 2017; his shareholding abowe: is at that date.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Directors’ outstanding share Interests {subject to audit)

The following tables provide the outstanding share interests for the Executive Directors:

Directors’ Interests In nil-cost options granted under the Mitle Group ple 2015 Long Term Incentive Plan

Options Options

outstanding outstanding Earhest

a5t asat normal

Yesrof 31 March  Gramted in tapsed Exercisedin 31 March Enercise exerciee

gam 2017 year? In year year 2018 price date?

Phil Bentley Nov 2016' 879,077 - - - Br3 QT Nilcost May 2020

Jul 2617 - 669,393 - - 569,393 Nil-cost  Jui 2020

Paul Woolf Nov 2017 - 143,269 — - 143,269 Nilcost Nov 2020

Sandip Mahajan® Jul 2017 - 148,754 - - 148,754 Nilcost  Jul 2020
Notes:

1 The performance criteria apphcable to the November 2016 award run 1o 31 March 2020 and are inked to the achievernent of » honis payment in the three financlal years
ending 31 March 2020. ¥ Phil eama a borws in one of these years 25% of the awargl vests, 67% vests ¥ 2 borus & earmed in two of the years and 100% vests i o bonus ks

eamned in all three years,

The parfornsance criteria applicable to the 2017 awards are provided on page 104,
The market price of the Company's shares 3 &t 31 March 2018 was 159.0p. The highest and lowest prices during the year were 257.2p and 148.6p respectively.

2.
3.
4. Awards pre subject 40 an additional
S.

holding pesiod.
Sanciip Mahafan resigned frorm the Board on 13 Navember 2017; his outstanding share interests above are at that dine.

Directors’ share ownership
Numbaer of esdinary shares Number of ordinery
owned shares benaficially owned
as st 31 March 2018 a3 ot 31 March 2017
{or date of cessation I earller) {or date of appointment H later)
Executive Directors
Phil Bentley 1,852,656 1,852,656
Paul Woolft 48,967 0
Sandip Mahajan® 0 Q
Non-Executive Directors
Derek Mapp® 140,000 0
Larry Hirst 15,000 25,000
Jack Boyer 5,000 5,000
Mark Reckitt 4,000 4,000
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat* 1] 0
Jennifer Duvalier® 18,469 18,469
Mary Reillfy® 0 0
Philippa Couttie” 0 0
Roger Yates® ] 0
Roger Matthews’ 100,000 100,000
Notes:
1. Paul Woolf was sppointed 1o the Boerd on 13 Novernber 2017,
2. Sandip Mahajan resigned from the Board on 13 Novemnber 2017; his shareholding above is shown at that date and at 31 March 2017,
3. Derek Mapp was sppointed to the Board on'9 May 2017,
4, Nivedita Krishramurthy Bhagat was appointed to the Baard on 1 June 2017.
5. Jennifer Dunalierwas appointed to she Board at the AGM an 26 July 2017,
6. Mary Reilly was appointed to the Bosrd on 1 September 2017.
7. Philippe Coutlie wes appointed to the Board on 15 November 2017
8. Roger Yates whs appcinted 10 the Board on 1 Mardh 2018.
9. Roger Maithews resigned from the Board on 26 July 2017; his shareholding above is shown 3t that date and =1 31 March 2017,
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Share dilution

The Company manages dilution rates within the standard guideines of 10% of issued ordinary share capital in respect of all employee
schemes and 5% in respect of discretionary schemes. In calculating compliance with these guidelines the Company allocates avallable
headroom on a ten-year flat-ine basis, making adjustments for projected lapse rates and projected increases in issued share capital.

LTiP and deferred bonus awards are satisfied through the market purchase of shares held by the Mitie Group pk Employee

Benefit Trust. The potential dilution of the Company's issued share capital is set out below in respect of all awards granted In the last
ten years under the Company’s equity-based incentive schemes which are being satisfied through the aflotment of new shares or
treasury shares.

Share dilution at 31 March 2018

Dilution
Al share plans (maximum 10%) 65.5%
Discrationary share plans (maximum 5%} 3.2%
Shareholder voting

Mitle remains committed to ongoing shareholder dialogue and takes an active interest in voting outcomes. Where there are
substantial votes against reselutions in relation to Executive Directors’ remuneration, the Group seeks to understand the reasons for
any such vote, and will detail here any actions in response to it.

A resolution to approve the Directors’ remuneration policy as set out In the Company’s Annual Report for the year ended

31 March 2015 was passed at the Company’s 2015 AGM. The Company’s revised remuneration policy as set out on pages 93 to 100
will be put to the Company’s 2018 AGM. At the Company’s 2017 AGM, & resolution was passed to approve the 2017 Directors’
remuneration report {(excluding the summary of the Directors’ remuneration policy). The results of the votes on these resolutions were
as follows:

Voses in Votes votss

Number of votes fvour agairat withheld*
2015 Directors’ remuneration policy — 2015 AGM 205.1m 14.0m 21.4m
93.6% £6.4% -

2017 Directors’ remuneration report — 2017 AGM 246.3m 21.2m 9.7m
92.1% 7.9% -

MNote:
1. Viates withheld are not counted in the calaulation of the proportion of vates for or against a resalution.

Remuneration Committee and Its advisors

The Remuneration Committee seeks and considers advice from independent remuneration advisors where appropriate.

FT Remuneration Consultants {FIT) were appointed by the Committee in Dacermnber 2013 to provide independent advice

on executive remuneration. Following a retender process and the resignation of Deloitte LLP as Mitie’s auditor, the Committes
appointed Deloitte LLP as independent remuneration advisors in September 2017. The advisors attended Committee meetings and
provided advice and analysis of executive remuneration. During their tenure, the advisors provide no other services to the Company
(save in relaticn to services connected to executive remuneration and share plans) and also comply with the Code of Conduct for
Remuneration Consultants. The advisors’ total cost of advice to the Committee for the year was £88,752, being £30,252 for FIT and
£58,500 for Deloitte LLP (such fees being changed in accordance with their standard terms of business).

The Committee specifically considered the position of the advisors and was satisfied that the advice the Committee received was
objective and independent, given that no other services were provided to the Company.
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Director’s report: other disclosures

The Directors present their annual report, together with the
audited finandal statements of the Group and the Company,
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The following information Is incorporated into the Directors’
report: other disclosures by reference:

= Strategic report on pages 1 to 57;

* The Chairman’s introduction 10 corporate governance on
pages 64 and 65;

= The Board report on pages 66 to 71;

Audit Committee report on pages 72 to 83;

Nomination Commitbee report on pages 84 and 87;

Directors’ remuneration report on pages BS to 109;

Directors’ responsibllities statement on page 116; and

Notes to the financial statements as detailed in this section.

For the purposes of compllance with paragraphs 4.1.5R(2) and
4.1.8R of the Disclosure Guldance and Transparency Rules of the
RAnancial Conduct Authority, the strategic report and this
Directors’ report: other disclosures {Including the sections of the
Annual Report and Accosmts incorporated by reference)
comprise the management report.

Principal Group activities

The Company is the holding company of the Group. The principal
activity of the Company Is to provide management seivices to the
Group. The Group’s activities are focused on the provision of
stratagic outsourcing services. The detailed strategy for the
Group can be found on page 15 of the Strategic report. Further
details of the subsidiary undertakings of the Company are listed
in Note 40 to the financial statements,

The Group operates in the UK, the Republic of treland,
Guernsey, Jersey, Germany, France, Finland, Norway, Sweden,
the Netherlands, Spain, Poland, Switzeriand, Belgium, Nigeria,
Kenya, Ghana and the UAE.

Shares and shareholders

Share caphtal and powers of shareholders

The Group is financed through both equity share capital and debt
Instruments. Details of the Company’s share capital are given in
Note 31 to the financial statemnents and the detall of its debt
instruments is set aut in Note 26 to the financial statements,

‘The Company has a single class of shares being 2.5p ordinary
shares {'Ordinary Shares’). Ordinary Shares have no right to any
fixed Income and each Ordinary Share has the right to one vote
per share at general meetings of the Company. Under the
Company’s Articles of Association {the ‘Articles’), holders of
Ordinary Shares are entitled to participate in any dividends pro-
rata to their holding.

in accordance with the Articles, the Board may propose and pay
interim dividends and recommend a final dividend for approval
by the shareholders at the AGM. A final dividend may be declared
by the shareholders in a general meeting by ordinary resolution,
but such dividend cannot exceed the amount recommended by
the Board,

The Articles can be amended in accordanoe with their provisions,
the Companies Act 2006 and related legisiation. A copy of the
Articles is available at www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-
governance,

2 " & 8 @

o wwwanitie.com | The exceptional, every doy

Powers of the Company to issue or buy back its
own shares
At the 2017 AGM, shareholders authorised:

s the Directors to aliot Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £3,001,210, representing one-third of
the Issued share capial {exchuding treasury shares) as at
7 June 2017, and up to a further aggregats nominal amount
of £3,001,210, in connection with an offer by way of a
rights issue;

= the dis-application of pre-emption rights over aliotted shares
up to an aggregate nominal value equal to £450,1£1, equating
1o 5% of Mitie's issued share capital {excluding treasury shares)
and 4.88% of the Issued share capital inchuding treasury shares,
eachas at 7 June 2017;

s the dis-application of pre-emption rights over aliotted shares
up to an aggregate nominal vaiue of £450,181, equating to 5%
of Mitie's Issued share capital {excluding treasury shares) and
4.88% of the issued share capital including treasury shares,
each as at 7 June 2017, in connection with the financing (or
refinandng, if the authority ks to be used within sbx months of
the original transaction) of an acquisition or specified capital
investment; and

+ the Company to make market purchases of its own shares
up to a total of 36,014,523 Ordinary Shares {

10% of the ksued share capital as at 7 June 2017 (excluding
treasury shares)).

These standard autherities will expire on 30 September 2018 or
at the conclusion of the AGM in 2018, whichever Is the earller.
Furthar detalls of these authorisations are available in the
notes to the Motice of 2017 AGM and shareholders are referred
to the Notice of 2018 AGM, which contains similar provisions in
respect of the Company’s share caplital (avallable at

www._mitie com/investors/shareholder-information).

The Company acknowledges that, whilst the following resolutions
were passed, a significant number of votes were received against
each of them at the 2017 AGM as follows:

* directors’ authority to allot (32.92%)

= disapplication of pre-emption rights (23.18%)

= additional authority to disapply pre-emption rights [20.25%).
Shareholder consultation was undertaken during the year, and
the Company continues to engage with those shareholders who
either withheld their vote, or voted against these resohutions, to

imgrove understanding and, if possible, aliay any such concemns
for the future.

Further, at the 2018 AGM, the Directors intend to seek authority
to allot shares up to an amount representing 10% of the issued
share capltal {excluding treasury shares) only.

During the year, the Directors utilised the above authorities to
aliot 4,593,089 Ordinary Shares to an aggregate nominal amount
of £114,827 to minority shareholders in consideration for shares
purchased in connection with Mitie Model investments (further
Information ks contained in Note 33 to the financial statements).

The Company chose not 1o undertake any market purchases of ks
own shares during the year,




Following the exercise of awards under the Mitie Group pic 2011
Save As You Earn Scheme and the Mitie Group pic 2001 and 2011
Exacutive Share Option Schemes 1,531,985 Ordinary Shares were
distributed from treasury. The total number of Ordinary Shares
heid by the Company In treasury as at 31 March 2018 therefore
reduced 10 7,748,108 {representing 2.1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 March 2018).

Significant interests in the Company’s share capital
As at 31 March 2018, the Company had been notified of the

following significant holdings of voting rights in its Ordinary
Shares under the Disdosure Guidance and Transparerncy Rules:

% of share

capital at the
Numnber of date of
Ordinary Shares natification
Siichester International

Investors LLP 62,210,238 17.00%

Aggregate of Standard Ufe
Aberdeen PLC 39,937 487 10.91%
FMR LLC 18,792,147 5.14%
Harris Associates LP. 18,393,003 5.12%
Brandes Invastment Partners LP 18,117,242 5.05%
Heronlﬂgn 18,366,728 5.000%

Changes that have occurred between the end of the period under
review and S June 2018, the latest practicable date before
approval of the report, are as follows:

% of share

capital at the

Number of date of

Ordingty Shares notification

FMR LLC 19,684,002 5.28%

Detalls of the Directors’ Interests in the Compary's share
capital are sat out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages
107 and 108,

Restrictions on the trading of Miltie shares

Certain Ordinary Shares issued in consideration for the
acquisition by the Company of shares held by minority
sharehoiders in subsidiaries of the Group under the Mitie Mode!
have contractual restrictions placed upon tham. These
restrictions prevent recipients from selling those Ordinary Shares
and/or attach claw-back provisions, which typically apply for a
maximum period of two years from aliotment.

There are nop specific restrictions on the size of any shareholding
or on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the
provisions of the Articles.

The Dinectors are not aware of any agreements entered Into by
Company shareholders that may result in restrictions on the
transfer of securities or on voting rights. No person has any
special rights of controt over the Company’s share capital.

The Group operates a Share Trading and insider Dealing
Pracedure which provides a framework to identify persons who
may have access to inside information relating to the Company
and explains the rules applicable to them for dealing in Company
shares. individuais who may have access to such information are
nformed individually and required to read, understand and
follow the procedure.

Employes share schemes and plans

Detalis of empioyee share schernes and long-term incentive plans
are set out in Note 36 to the financlal statements. Detalls of
awards made during the year to, and held by, Executive Directors
are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 104
and 108.

Shareholder engagement

The Board ks committad to an ongolng, proactive dialogue
between the Company and Its sharehokders. A full programme,
led by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer with
support from the Investor Relations team, of formal and informal
events, institutional investor meetings and presentations is hekl
throughout the year in order to maintain regular dialogue. This
programme aims to ensure that the performance, strategies and
objectives of the Group are clearly communicated to the
investment community and provides a forum for institutional
shareholders to address any corporate govemnance issues.

The Board recelves an iiwestor relations report at each Board
meeting detaling corporate news, share price performance, sell-
side coverage, investor relations activity and major movements in
the share register. The Board Is also regularly updated and is
provided with investor feedback, stockbroker updates and
detalled anatyst reports following the half-year and full-year
results presentations. The Chalrman is responsible for ensuring
that tha Board is made aware of the issues and concemns of the
major shareholders.

The Chalrman and Senior Independent Director are available for
additional meetings with sharebolders upon request. The Board
encourages an ongoing dialogue between the Directors and
investors and all Directors were present at the 2017 AGM.

Latest Group Information, financial reports, corporate
governance and sustainability matters, half-year and full-year
results presentations, major sharehoider Information and all
announcements are made available to shareholders via the Mitie
webstte (www.mitle.com) which has a specific area dedicated to
Investor relations.

Significant agreements — change of control

There are a number of agreements with provisions that talee
effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the
Company, such a3 bank facility agreements and other financial
arrangements and employee share scheme nules. None of these
are considered to be significant in terms of their likely impact on
the normal course of business of the Group. The Directors are not
aware of any agreements between the Company and Its Directors
or employees that provide for compensation for loss of office or
employment that occurs solely because of a change of control.
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Director’s report: other disclosures continued

Directors

Board of Directors

The members of the Board, and their biographical detaifs
{including details of Committee chairmanships and other
positions held), are set out on pages 60 ta 63. To comply with the
UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code), the Directors with
the exception of Larry Hirst and Mark Reckitt will submit
themselves for election or re-election at the AGM on 31 July 2018
and details are provided in the Notice of AGM which s available
at www.mitle.com/investors/shareholder-services.

During the year, Non-Executive Director independence was
considered by the Board. The Board determined that, as at

31 March 2018, all Non-Executive Directors were Independent.
in mind and jJudgement and free from any material relationship
that could interfere with thelr ability to discharge their duties
eftectively.

Director development

The Chalrman meets with both the Executive and Non-Executive
Diractors to discuss specific director development and training
néeds. The annual Board evaluation also addresses these
requirements and ensures that the appropriate level of
knowledge, understanding and expertise Is maintained on

the Board.

Director appointments

With regard to tha appointment and replacement of Directoss,
the Company is governad by its Articles, the Code, the Companies
Act 2006 and related legisiation.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

The Board has a formal policy on the declaration and
management of Directors’ conflicts of interests, in accordance
with the Articles, which has operated effectively during the year.
Any potential situation or transactional conflict must be reported
as soon as possible to the Chalrman, the Chief Exeautive Officer
and the Company Secretary. Where a potential conflict is
asthorised {under the statutory powers and powers granted
under the Articles to the Board), such conflict is kept under
ongoing review.

Director indemnities

The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ Kability insurance,
providing appropriate cover for any legal action brought against
its directors and/or officars. The Articles extend the protection
provided to directors in respect of any ftigation against directors
reiating to thelr pasition as a director of the Company, and
specifically provide that the Company may indemnify directors
against any kability incurred In connection with any negligente,
default, breach of duty or breach of trust in refation to the
Company and that the Company may fund defence costs.

Accordingly, in line with best practice, deeds of indemnity have
been executed indemnifying each of the Directors and the
Comparyy Secretaty in respect of their positions as officers of the
Company, in addition to the directors’ and officers’ iInsurance
cover. The indemnities, which constitute a qualifying third-party
indemnity provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companies
Act 2006, remain in force for all current Directors and the
Company Secretary.
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Indemnities of the same, or similar form have also been executed
Indemnifying a number of directors of the Group’s subsidiaries.

individual Directors would stiil be liable to pay damages awarded
to the Company in any action against them by the Company, to
pay any aiminal or regulatory fines imposed against them and to
repay their defence costs (to the extent funded by the Company)
if thelr defence was unsuctessful.

Executive Directors are permitted to accept appointments
outside the Group provided permission is sought from the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer and that the additional
appointments do not interfere with the Director's ability to
discharge his duties effectively. Nelther Phil Bentley nor Paul
Woolf held any non-executive positions at companies during

FY 2018.

Bxecutive Directors are entitied to retain fees eamed from any
external appointments. The commitments outside the Group of
the Chairman and each Non-Executive Director are detalled on
pages 60 to 63.

Staternent of the Directors In respect of the Annual
Report and Accounts

As required by the Code, the Directors confirm that they consider
the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, to be fair,
balanced and understandable and that it provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s
position and performance, business model and strategy. When
arriving at this position the Board was assisted by a number of
processes including the following:

» the Annual Report and Accounts is drafted by senjor
management with overall co-ordination by the General
Counsel and Company Secretary to ensure consistency across
the relevant sections;

* & review is undertaken to assess whether the Annual Report
and Accounts is falr, balanced and understandable using a set
of pre-defined indicators {such as consistency with internally
reported information, investor communications and relative
performance in the Industry);

« comprehensive reviews of drafts of the Annual Report and
Accounts are undertaken by the Executive Directors and other
senlor management;

» an advanced draft is reviewed by the General Counsel and
Comipany Secretary and external advisors; and

o the final draft Is reviewed by the Audit Committee pror to
consideration by the Board.

Empioyess and communications with employees

Details of Mitie’s employment policies, consultation practices and
how it communicates with its employees are induded in the
Sustainability and People sections of our website.

Disabled persons

Detalis of the Group's approach to employing, tralning and
developing the careers of disabled people can be found in the
Sustainability section of our website,

Future developments
The Strategic report sets out the Board's view on the future
development of the Group.




Research and development
Given the nature of the Group’s activities, it does not carry out
any material research and development work.

Political donations

The Company intluded a rasolution In its 2017 Notice of AGM in
relation to the ability to make political donations. Although
Mitie’s long-standing policy of not making any political donations
will continue, it Is possible that certaln routine activities (including
charitable donations) undertaken by Mitie might unintentionally
fall within the wide definition of payments constituting political
donations and expenditure as set out in the Companies Act 2006.
The resohution, which was duly passed, granted the Company the
relevant statutory authority until the 2018 AGM subject to a total
aggregate cap for Mitie and its subsidiary companies of £50,000.

Finance

Financial results and dividends

A detailed commentary on the operational and financial results
of the Group for the year is contained within the strategic report,
including the Finance review on pages 44 to 49,

The loss before tax from continuing operations for the financlal
year is £24.7m (2017: £58.2m boss).

The Directors deciarad an interim dividend of 1.33p per Ordinary
Share {2017: 4.0p) with a total value of £4.3m (2017: £14.1m)
which was paid to shareholders on 7 February 2018, The
Oirectors recommend a final dividend of 2.57p per Ordinary
Share with a total value of £9.8m {2017: £nil) based upon the
number of shares in issue as at 5 June 2018. The final dividend for
the year will be paid on & August 2018, subject to shareholder
approval at the 2018 AGM, to shareholders on the register on

22 June 2018. The total dividends per Ordinary Share for the year
endead 31 March 2018 Is 4.0p (2017: 4.0p).

The Company operates a Dividend Re-Investment Plan (DRIP)
which allows shareholders to build thelr holding by using the cash
dividend to purchase additional ordinary shares in Mitie. Further
details on the operation of the DRIP and how to apply can be
found In the Shareholder information section and are available
from Mitie’s Registrar.

During the year, the trustees of the Company’s Employee Benefit
Trust walved dividends on Ordinary Shares held by the trust.
Financing fiabilities

The Group's financial instruments include bank borrowing
facilities, finance leases, overdrafts, US private placement loan
notes and performance guarantees, Various derivatives are
used to manage interest, currency and other risks when
necessary or material.

The principal objective of these instruments is to raise funds
for general corporate purposes and to manage financial risk.
Further details of these instruments are given In Note 27 1o
the financial statements,

Disdosure of iInformation under Listing Rule 9.8.4

The annual report is requined to contain certain formation
under Listing Rule 9.8.4. Where this information has not been
cross-referenced within the Group financial staterments, it can be
found in the following sections:

Details of iong-term * Directors’ remuneration

Incertive schemes report on pages 88 to 109 and
Note 36 to the financial
statements

Director’s voluntary waiver of  * Dinectors’ remuneration

emoluments report page 102

Shareholder walvers of * Directors’ report: other

dividends and future dividends  disclosures on this page

In respect of shareholder walvers of dividends and future
dividends, in addition to the agreement by the trustees of the
Mitie Group pic Employee Benefit Trust to waive dividends
payable on the Group’s shares it holds for satisfying awards under
various Mitie Group pk share plans, in accordance with Section
726 of the Companles Act 2006 no dividends can be paid to the
Company in respect of the shares it holds in treasury.

The remaining disclosures required by Listing Rule 9.8.4 are not
applicable to the Company.

None of the shareholders Is considered to be a Controlling
Shareholder {(as defined in Listing Rule 6.1.2.A}.

Going concem

The Directors acknowledge the Financial Reporting Coundl’s
‘Guidance on Risk Management, internal Control and Related
Financial and Business Reporting’ issued in September 2014,
The Directors have considered principal risks and uncertainties
affecting the Group which are described on pages 50 to 57.

The Directors have considered the Group's finandal position with
reference to latest forecasts and the actual performance for the
period, The Group benefits from a well-diversified portfolio of
service offerings and has a broad, diverse customer base.,

The Group currently operates well within the financial covenants
associated with its committed funding lines. These include
£191.5m of US Private Placement debt maturing in December
2019, December 2022 and December 2024, The Group ako
benefits from a committed multi-currency revolving credit facility
of £275.0m, which will mature in July 2021, Together with the US
Private Placements, this gives the Group total committed funding
of £466.5m, of which £219.3m was urkirawn at 31 March 2018.

The Group’s US Private Placements and bank debt contain certain
financial covenants. The primary ratios are net debt to EBITDA
and EBITDA to net finance costs. These covenants are tested on a
roling 12-month basis as at the March and September reporting
dates. At 31 March 2018, both covenant tests were passed. The
Group Is forecasting to remain within its banking covenants over
the next twelve months and has stress-tested these calculations
for reasonable possible adverse variances in trading and

cash performance.

Afver making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue
in aperational existence for at least twelve months and the
foreseeabie future. Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt
the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the condensed
consolidated financial staternents.

The exceptional, every day | www.mitla.com 3



Director’s report: other disclosures continued

Viahility statement
This statement is detailed in full on page 57.

In accordance with provision C.2.2 of the 2016 edition of the
Code, the Directors have assessed the viablfity of the Group over
a three-year period to 31 March 2021 taking into account the
Group’s current poslition and the potential impact of the principal
risks set out in the Strategic report. Based on this assessment the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group is and
will continue to be viable.

Discdosure of information to the auditors

Each of the Directors in office as of the date of approval of this
Annual Report and Accounts confirms that:

* sofar as he/she is aware, there is no relevant audh information
{being information required by the Company's auditors in the
preparation of their report) of which the Company’s auditors
are unaware; and

= he/she has taken 3l the steps that hefshe cught to have taken
as a Director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant
audtt information and to establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of such information.

This confirmation is given, and should be interpreted, in
accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

Gresnhouse gas (GHG) emissions

Cufture

Mitie has appointed a new executive management team and
adopted a new strategy. As part of that strategy, a new ‘Mitie
Way' of doing business and “One Mitie” unitary approach to
working with our dients has been developed, The Mitle Way has
many elements including purpose, vision, culture, values and
branding, The vision has heen defined and launched and seeks to
Instil One Mitie and Mitie Way approaches to everything we do at
Mitie and for our clients, The new culture covers all aspects of the
businass, from ‘who we are’ to ‘what we do’ and ‘how we do it’
and incorporates the elements of Mitie's extsting One Code which
intludes health and safety, sustalnability, diversity and equality,
bribery and corruption, conflicts of Interest, and financial and
non-financial accounting and reporting. The Mitie Way purpose
and values are being rolled out across the organisation in 2018.

Mitle is committed to reducing its carbon emissions and environmental impact; we believe that to achieve this effective reporting is
key as it improves transparency and drives environmental performance.

The Group has continued to report total GHG emissions anaually using the financial control approach. Mitie’s methodology afigns with
Defra's Environmental reporting guldelines and uses the govemment’s GHG reporting conversion factors to quantify emissions.

Absolute emissions reductions have been achleved of 16.4% against our 2010 baseline and 5.7% against previous year.
Our organisational carbon intensity has atso decreased by 34.7% against our 2010 baseline year and 5.8% against previous year.

Further information can be found below:

Absolute emissions
% Change % Change
2009/10 againat against
Emissions {Baseline} 2016/17 01714 baseline  previous year
Total Scope 1 (tC020)° 41,343 7,923 35974 -13.0% S51%
Emissions from fuel combustion across fleet 40,277 37,128 35272 -12.4% S.0%
Emissions from gas combustion at occupled buildings 1,066 795 702 -34.1% -11.7%
Total Scope 2 [tC0,e) 3,490 2,248 1,54 -56.3% -32.2%
Emissions from the purchase of electricity across .
occupled buildings 3,450 2,248 1,524 56.3% -32.2%
Total Scope 1 & 2 {tCOze) 44,533 40,171 22,048 -16.4% £.7%
Intensity
% Change % Change
agalrat againg?
Emnlssions ratio 2009/10 2016/17 2017/18 base yaar  previous year
tC0e/£m revenua (Scope 182) 26.07 17.99 17.02 34.7% « 5.4%

*  Refrigarsnvk data hiv heen waciuded due b dMiaRties Gbtaining sctursts data on lendiord managed sites, however, this dais & not considered matariat,

90% of total scope emissions can be attributed to the fieet; over the last few years Mite has focused on improving vehicle efficiency
through the use of more efficient vehices, the instaliation of telematics and the provision of driver training. Across its bulidings the Group
has atso procured 100% renewable electricity tariffs and made a number of improvements such as the instaliation of LED lighting.

Further information on these calculations can be found in the GHG Methodology statement available on our website ww.mitie.com.
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Environmental data
Further details on the Group's ervironmental performance can be found In the table below:
% Change % Change

2009/10 ngainst against

{Baseline) 2016/17 017/18 baseline  previous year

Electricity consumed across oocupled buildings (kWi) 9,091,141 6,624,127 5,540,091 -39.1% -164%
Gas consumed across occupied buildings (kwh) 7980,537  5493,067 4,949,461 -38.0% 9.9%
Fuel used by fleet for business travel (kWh) 184,088,382 168,213,139 154,681,158 -16.0% -8.0%
Total organisational energy consumption (kKWh) 201,160,060 180,330,333 165,170,710 -17.9% B.A4%
Water consumed across accupied bulidings (m3) 29,306 45,214 40,012 36.5% -11.5%
Total waste generated acrass occupied bulldings (tonnes) 1,436 861 877 -38.9% 1.9%
Total waste to landfill {tonnes) 989 349 336 -56.1% 3.9%
Total waste recycled (tornes) 447 512 542 21.2% S5.9%
Racyching rate 31% 59% 62% +30.7% +2.3%

Current reporting period
01/04/2017 — 31/03/2018

Mitie depends on Its local communities to provide the engaged and talented people it needs to deliver great service and in returm Mitie
supports them through a wide range of initiatives. Over the past year, Mitie has donated time and money, raised awareness and funds,
and hosted a range of events for local people to participate in and enjoy.

AGM
Mitle’s AGM will be heid on 31 July 2018 at 11:30am at Mayer Brown Intemational LLP, 201 Bishopsgate, London EC2M 3AF,
By order of the Board
N Doctes
Pater Dickinson
Company Secretary
6June 2018
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Director’s report: statement of Directors’ responsibilites

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report, the remuneration report and the
finandal statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that faw the Directors are required
to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and applicable law and have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial statements in accordance with Unived
Kingdom Generally Acoepted Acoounting Practics (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable faw) including FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under company law the Dinectors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affsirs of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss for the Group for
that period.

In preparing these financial staternents, the Directors ane required to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

o make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» for the Group financial statements state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Unlon, subject 1o any material departures disclosed and explained In the financial statements;

« for the Parent Company financlal statements, state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the Parent Company financlal statements;

» prepare the financial statements on the golng concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group or Parent Company
wii continue in business;

= prepare a Directors’ report, 2 strategic report and Directors’ remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006,

Tha Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company’s
transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy ot asty time the financial position of the Parent Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of
the IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Parent Company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other Irregularities. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the annual report and
accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced, and understandable and provide the information necessary for sharehoklers to assess
the Group's performance, business model and strategy. :

Website publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and the financial statements are made available on a website. Financial
statements are published on the Parent Company’s website in acoordance with legistation In the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of finencial statements, which may vary from legislstion in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and
integrity of the Company’s website is the responsibiiity of the Directors. The Directors' responsibility also extends to the ongoing
integrity of the financial statements contained therein.

Directors’ responsibliities pursisant to DTR4.1
The Directors confirm to the best of their knowiedge:
= the Group financial statements have been prepaned in accordance with intemational Financlal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as

adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the |AS Regulation and give a true and fair view of the assets, Nabillties, financial
position and profit and loss of the Group; and

» the annual report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the financial position of the Group
and the Parent Company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face,

wgrdthem mc\ @\

Phil Bentley Paul Woolf
Chief Boacutive Officer ChiefFingndal Officer
& June 2018 6 June 2018
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independent auditor’s neport to the members of Mitle Group plc

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Mitie Group pk (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) for the year
ended 31 March 2018 which comprise the Consofidated income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,
the Consolidated and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting poficies. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent
Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted Acoounting Practice, induding FRS 101
‘Reduced Disclosure Framework” {United Kingdom Generally Acocepted Acoounting Practice).

In our opinion except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for qualified opinion paragraph the financial statements:

» give 3 true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2018 and of the Group’s loss
for the year then ended;

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

¢ the Parent Company finandal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Acceptad
Accounting Practice; and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and, as regards the
Group financial staterents, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Basis for qualified opinion

The financial staternents have been qualified on the basis that they do not agree with the requirement contalned in 1AS 1 to presenta
third batance sheet for the year ended 31 March 2016, Subsequently we have been unable to determine the financial impact of any
line em reclassification adjustment that may have arisen from this re-presentation to the income statement for the year ended

31 March 2017. Notwithstanding the foregoing, as described within Note 1 to the basis of preparation for the financial statements,
had these adjustments been presented in accordance with IAS 1, they would have had no impact on the reported net assets for the
year ended 31 March 2016 or the reported loss for the year ended 31 March 2017,

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our resporsibilities
under those standards are further described In the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company In accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public Interest entities and we
have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basks for our qualified opinion.

Condusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement
We have nothing to report in respect of the following information In the annual repart, in refation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to
report to you whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

¢ the disclosures in the annual report set out on pages 50 to 56 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated;

¢ the Directors’ confirmation set out on page 7C In the annual report that they have carriad out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

« the Directors’ statement set out on page 113 In the financial statements about whether the Directors considered it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the finantial statements and the Directors’ identification of any material
uncertainties to the Group and the Parent Company’s ability to continue to do 5o over a period of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the financial statements;

* whether the Directors’ statement relating to going concem required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3)
is materially inconsisternt with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

* the Directors’ explanation set out on page 57 in the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what period they have done 50 and why they consider that period to be appropriate and their statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its labilities as they fall due over the period of
their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assurngtions.
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Mitie Group pic continued

Summary of audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters for the current year and level of judgement are as below:

Transition o IFRS 15 Revenue from conlracts with customers
Contractual disputes and provisions

Appropriateness of revenue and profit recognition
Recoverablitty of aged or disputed debtors and accrued Income
Impairment of goodwill In the property management division
Presentation of ‘cther ftems” in the consolidated income statement

L .

The level of judgement and impact on the financial statements is as follows:

Materiality We based materiality on profit before other items at £3.4m

Scoping The scope of Group audit incorporated all component divisions with limited exceptions where
desktop review procedures were performed. Our audit testing covered 95% of Group revenue
and 95% of Group total assets

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These matters, which are detalled below, included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall sudit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financlal statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Transition to IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

Matter identified

How we addressad the matter

As detalied in Note 1 to the Group financial statements the Group
has early adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers.

The adoption of IFRS 15 has resulted in significant changes to
revenue recognition policies and the recognition of contract
fulfilment assets such as mobiksation.

The Group has elected to apply the cumulative adjustment
approach and therefore the cumulative impact of the prior
year restatements is reflected within opening reserves to the
current year.

The adoption of IFRS 15 requires significant judgement over the
recognition of revenue and contract fulfilment assets, This
requires interpretation of complex contractual terms inckuding
considerstion of performance conditions.

There Is a risk that the adjustments to the opening reserves are
misstated or incomplete and akso that the disclosures made to
the Group financial statements do not adequately explain the
mpact of the adoption of IFRS 15.

As part of the work on transition to IFRS 15 the Group engagad
third party experts to provide support to management.

The Group also put in place a detailed control framework and
quality control procedures, supported by the third party
specialists and internal audit,

The contracts were divided into four distinct categories based on
size and complexity - the focus of the third party spedialist was
on the first two categories which contained the largest and
highest risk contracts. The third category was reviewed by the
divisional tearns through the use of questionnaires designed to
identify the key attributes that may result In an adjustment. The
first three categaries accounted for appraximately 80% of the
Group’s revenye.

The remaining category was subject to review based on
identifying characteristics that would result in an adjustment to
revenue recognition.

With support of our internal technical specialists we have
addressed the matter as follows:

Control environment - We reviewed the process undertaken,
control environment and quaiity control procedures in place in
respect of the process to adopt IFRS 15. We ensured the
procedures were appropriately structured to obtain all necessary
information and calculate the adjustments required. We afso
attended a number of IFRS 15 steering conwmittee meetings.

Work of experts - We assessed the work pesformed by the third
party experts through reviewing their work and holding a number
of meetings with them. Following the completion of these
procedures, we considered the reliance we were able to place on
their work as an expert.

Testing - We substantively testad a sample of the contract reviews
{including those where no adjustment was recorded) from each of
the four categories, we cormoborated the key points to contracts,
beld meetings with the necessary finance and contract
management team members to challenge assumptions and
judgements made. We tasted a sample of the remalning contract
fulfliment assets recorded on balance sheet after the IFRS 15
adjustments had been recorded to ensure completsness of
adjustments and that appropriate audit evidence was in place to
support the assets.

Reliabilty of data — We tested the extraction of contract related
data from original source usad to derive the adjustment made to
the opening reserves.

Disclosures — We have reviewed the adequacy of the disdosures
including completing the required audit work under previous
revenue recognition standards to reflect the disclosure
requirements of the cumulative approach.

Annual report narfative — The use of the cumulative approach
provides no directly comparative basls for assessment against prior
year, we reviewed the annual report narrstive in respect of
performance for the year to ensure It ks falr, batanced and
understandable.

Accounting policies — We reviewed the acoounting policies
established by the Group by reference to the requirements of
IFRS 15.

Discussion with Audit Committee — We discussed with the Audit
Connittee the judgernents being applied and the representations
being sought from the Board. We also atvended a nurmber of
stesring committee meetings which were attended by
managerment and a member of the Audit Committee.

Observations: We are satisfied that the transitional adjustments to IFRS 15 are materially complete and acourate.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Mitie Group plc continued

Contractual disputes and provisions
Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

The Group s subject to certain contractual disputes as well as a
material legal clalm which are ongoing at the year-end and
require specific consideration as to whether provisions or
contingent Hability disclosures are required.,

The Group is also subject to the Plumbers pension scheme, which
Is a complex multi-employer pension scheme, The trustees of the
scheme are currently unable to caiculate the liabllity that relates
to the Group, including the impact of orphaned Sabdlities and also
whether a Section 75 kabiiity has been crystalised.

The Group operates a number of low margin and previously
identified onerous contracts; there is a risk that the provision for
onerous contracts is not compiete.

There Is 3 risk that provisions and contingent Rabllity disclosures
are not complete or accurate (see Notes 28, 34 and 37}

In respect of the contractual disputes and egal clalm we have hekd
discussions with in-house counsel and where necessary external
legal counsel.

We have read appropriate internal and external documentation
to evaluate contractual claims and disputes, Including reviewing
management’s material dispute register and the material
Judgements and estimate papers prepared by management.

As part of our proceduras we also assessed the controls over
the preparation and completeness of the papers.

In respact of the Plumbers pension schems we have reviewed
correspondenca and publicly available information In respect of the
Plumbers pension scheme and challenged management as to
whether a provision s required and to the completeness of the
disclosures given.

In respect of potentially bnerous contracts we Inspected a sample of
fow margin and new large contracts 1o determine whether onerous
contract provisions should be recorded —this included critically
assessing the assumptions over future costs and project inltatives,

For all matters we have reviewed the disclosures included in the
financial statements to ensure that they are complete and are fair,
balanced and understandable.

Observations: We are satisfied that the provisions recorded and disdosures made are complete and accurate.

120 www.onitlecom | The exceptional, every doy




Appropriatenass of revenue and profit recognition
Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

Auditing standards require us to make a rebuttable presumption
that the fraud risk from revenue Is a significant risk. Management
incentives, bonuses and market consensus increases the fraud risk.
The risk s compounded by the adoption of IFRS 15 in the year ~the
impact of which in the current year is disclosed within Note 1.

A significant proportion of the Groug’s revenue ks derived from long
term contracts. The contractual tesns underpin the measurement
and recognition of revenue and profit and the Group Is therefore
required to make operational and financial assumptions.

Judgements include:

* Interpretation of complex contract terms;

= Mobilisation and pre contract costs capable of being capitalised;
s Allocation of revenue to performance conditions; and

» Combining of obligations where the services are related.

The nature of the Group's activities also gives rise to significant
smount of variable work which is recorded as accrued unbilied

income with a commesponding profit recognition. Accrued unbiiled
income at the 31 March 2018 and totalled £129.3m.

There is a risk that revenue may be recognised even though itis
not probable that consideration will be collected which could be
due to uncertainties over contractual terms and ongoing
negotiations with customers.

We have tested the operating effectiveness of the key controls
over the conmtract process including contract monitoring, biflings
and approvals, the general IT controfs over certain of the systems
used to generate the information and management’s review and
approval of the contract accounting applied.

We have akko completed the following audit procedures:

+ Reviewed the basis of revenue recognised against the
requirements of IFRS 15 and challenged the key judgements
made by management;

* Obtained a sample of contracts to confirm that revenue had
been appropriately recognised and for a sample of foed revenue
contracts recalculated the expected revenue for the year;

= Tested a sample of contract relatad assets to supporting
documentation;

+ Tested a sample of accrued income batances to supporting
documentation which included assessing proof of works,
customer acceptance, neviewing customer correspondence
where necessary and ensuring cut-off had been appropriately
applied.

We abso challenged management over the disclosures inciuded In

the financlal statements and the dear distinction between billed

and unbilled amount to ensure that they are complete and are fair,
balanced and understandable.

Recoverabllity of aged or disputed debtors and accrued income

Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

Material amounts of the billed and unbilled work remain
outstanding for mare than three months as resolution of open
issues remains ongoing on various contracts.

The aged nature of these balances increases the risk of
recoverability, particularly where there is disagreement
or dispute,

Trade debtors and accrued income are disclosed in Note 19 to
the financial statementy. Credit risk assoclated with trade debtors
is disclosed In Note 28 tg the financial statements.

There is significant management judgemnent involved in assessing
the recoverabillty of these balances, taking into consideration the
Group’s contractusl rights, available evidence of work performed,
a3 well a5 the status of ongoing commercial negotiations.

This judgement is compounded by system limitations which
require 3 manual ageing of unbilled accrued income balances,
increasing the risk of error.

In the current year the Group has recognised a bad debt provision
of £17.3m in respect of aged and disputed billed batances which
has been recorded in administrative expenses.

For a sample of aged balances at the year-end we have challenged

the valkiity of the recorded debtors and accrued iIncome as well as

the compieteness of the bad debt/accrued income provision by a

number of methods incuding:

» Confirming aged balances to post year-end cash receipts;

« Obtaining extemnal confirmation of the balances;

* Reviewing client approval of works orders or contractual
commitments;

» fReviewing evidence of work performed and status of
negotiations;

* Manually testing the accuracy of aging of accrued income;

« Completing analytical procedures

* Reviewing customer correspondence; and

s Reviewing in-house legal counsel reports.

+ Completed analytical procedures to consider consistency in the
provisioning methodology compared to the prior year.

Observations: We are satisfied that the carrying value of trade receivables and accrued income is materially correct,
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independent auditor's repost to the members of Mitie Group pk continued

Prasantation of ‘ather items’ in the consolidated income statement

Matter identified

How we addressed the matter

Consistent with the prior year management have presented
profit before other items in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The presentation is intended to show the
financial results in a way that reflects the underlying profitability
of the Group and therefore exciudes the results from items such
as restructuring, impairment and other costs and income
cansidered exceptional in nature. A detaiied breakdown of other
tems together with explanation is included in Note 4 to the
financial statements,

There is judgement in evaluating whether a transaction meets
the definition described in the Group‘s accournting policy and
whether Its presentation is ‘fair, balanced and understandable’,

Fallure to disclose clearly the nature and impact of material
‘other kem' eamings may distort the reader’s view of the
financial result in the year,

We have asssssed the design and implementation of relevant
controls over the financial statement review process by
management and the Audit Committea.

We have benchmarked the items induded within other items by
reference $0:

+ Industry peer Group;

* The guidance published by the Financlal Reporting Council In
their thematic review; and

* The guidance included in the “Guidelines on Altemative
Pedformance Measures”, issued by the European Securities and
Markets Authority {(ESMA).

Having regard to the benchmarking we have:

+ Understood the composition of other tams identified by
management;

« Agreed a sample of items to supporting documentation;

+ Challenged management’'s rytionale for the inclusion of certain
tams particularly around the areas of higher judgement such as
restructuring and dua) running costs;

» Determined whether the costs recognised as ‘other itams” meet
the criteria of the accounting policy and are consistent with the
prior year;

= Reviewed the income statement for any material credits that are
considered to meet the Group policy of being classified as an
other item;

+ Challenged the appropristeness of disckosure of thesa batances
both in note 5 and in the remainder of the annual report; and

» Consulted with our intemal technical specialists.

Observations: We are satisfied that the other items are not materially misstated and that the disclosunes given in Note 5 and the
reméainder of the annual report are fair, balanced and understandable.
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impairment of goodwill in the property division
Matter identified How we addressed the matter

in accordance with IAS 36 Impoirment of Assets the Group is With the assistance of our valuation specialists, we have challenged
required to Catry out an annual impairment test of the Group’s  the reasonableness of management’s key Judgements and our

goodwill which had a brought forward balance prior to work inclksded:
impalrments of £343 9m. Of this amount £70.2m Is recorded in Evaluating
. management’s historical forecasting accuracy;

the property management division cash generating unit (CGU). | o ins ne off items which management has identified as
The property nanagement division has perforned below budget  |mpacting the cument year and the risk of these items being
in the current and prior year. Set against a backdrop of an petvasive in the business;
increasingly challenging market place foliowing a high profile + Benchmarking growth rates to applicable mariet data;
corporate failure as wefl other challenges arising from the public | ¢4 )langing the discount rate applied;
sector the goodwill has been impaired by £34.6mW £35.6Mm= | (. ying the acruracy and methodology of management’s
see Note 13 for more detalls. discounted cash flow model;
Theve Is inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting the + Challenging the forecast revenue and margin assumptions by
future cash flows of the division and calculating the net present reference to cwvent performance, available market data and
value, including: accuracy of prior year forecasting;
= Profit margins; » Reviewing the aflocation of certral costs;
+ Revenue growth; « Assessing whether the forecasts adopted in the impairment
» The Impact of changes in market condiions; review were Board approved and are consistent with those used
+ The uncertainty around final account settiements, commercial 1 the going concer and longer-term viability assessment; and

daims and pension provisions; and . & mpleting sensitivity analysis and ensuring completeness of
* The selection of an appropriate discount rate. disclosures In the financial statements.

Observations: We are satisfied that the Impaimment is not materially misstated and that the disclosures adequately disclose the
Inherent risk and uncertainties,

The previous auditors report in respect of the financisl statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 alsa Included key audit matters
that have been removed in the current year In respect of: effect of potential prior year restatements, haalthcare division disposal and
management override of controls. New arvd recurring risks when compared to the previous auditor’s report are also identified above.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit snd in evaluating the effect of misstatements. We
consider matertality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of
reasonable Users that are taken on the basls of the financial statements. Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not
necessarily be evajuated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified misstatements and the particulsr
circumstances of their occurrence, when evahsating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the Group financial statements to be £3.4m and for the parent
company to be £2 6m. Performance materiality was colculatad based on 65% of our materiality, W determined this percemtage: by
reference to the number of components, the errors identified in the prior year and due to this being our first year as auditors. This
compares to £3.8m materiality applied In the prior year by the previcus auditor.

The materialty we appiied in respect of the Group financlal statements equates to 5% of profit before other iterns and tax. We
consider this to the be mast appropriste performance measure for the basls of determining materlality as it remaves the Impact of
non-recurring items Impacting the underlying profit of the Group. The adjustment removes the impact of “other items” detalled in
Note 5 to the Group financial statements.

We set component materiality between £0.7m and £1.4m (2017 - £1.9m and £2.7m - as determined by the previous auditor) based on
the overall size and respective risk of each component.
We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee atl audit differences in excess of £170,000, as well as

differences balow that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds, We also report to the Audit Committee
on disclosure matbers that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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independent auditor's report to the members of Mitie Group pk continued

An overview of the scope of our audit
As detalied elsewhere in the annual report we accepted appointment as statutory auditors in September 2017,

We wene aware, a5 we entered the tender process, of the ongoing FRC regulatory Issues refating the to Group, both In respect of the
FRC's assessment of the 2016 financial statements {which concuded in November 2017) and the launch of an investigation by the FRC
into the predecessor audit finm's audits in 2015 and 2016.

We were also aware of the independent balance sheet review commissioned by new management in the prior year, which resulted in
significant prior year adjustments to the 2016 financial statements. During the course of our tender the FCA launched an investigation
inta the timeliness of profit wamings during 2015/16 which remains ongoing.

As part of our procedures in considering appointment, during the course of the tender we were provided access to relevant
docurmentation in nespect of the prior year audit and in particular we considered the independent balance sheet review. We also met with
key management and certain members of the Board to understand both the business in the context of an audit and also to understand the
changes being made > address financial reporting and control emvironment matters. Over fifty hours of individual meetings were beld and
attended by the lead and supporting audit partner, in addition to the time assessing information provided.

During the tender meetings heid, In light of the high level of judgement required in respect of percentage of completion accounting
and the well-publicised issues within the outsourcing sector relating to this area, we discussed with the business thelr intent to early
adopt {FRS 15 Revenue from contract with customers.

Following our appointment, the FCA announced in November 2017 that it had closed its review of the 2016 financial statements and as
a resuit opened an investigation under the Accountancy Scheme into thelr preparation, and in January 2018 the FRC issued guidance
to boards of companies In the support services sector In the light of the collapse of Carillion. As part of our appointment we were
entitled to, and took up, the opportunity to review the previous auditor’s files.

Al of the above Information was used as part of our risk assessment in setting our audit approach in this first year of our audk of the Group,

The Group operates through a number of legal entities which form reporting components — the reporting components are consistent
with the segmental analysis as disclosed in Note 3 to the finandial statements. Audits were performed over all components with the
exception of certain non-significant parts of the components, including overseas entities, whith were disaggregated and subject to
desktop review procedures.

The sudit procedures were carried out pver 95% of Group revenue and S5% of Group total assets.

Total revenue Total assets

Desktop review | | Fll audic ' Déshrop review J ' Full sudit
5% ogs" 5% ogs,‘

The Group audit team set component materiality levels as detailed above with work on all components being performed by the Group
auditors under the direction and supervision of the Group engagement partner. With the exception of the non-significant components
the Group engagement partner visited all component locations and attended various telephane conference meetings through the
planning, fieldwork and compiletion stages of the audit.
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Other information

The other information comprises the information Included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon. The directors are responsible for the ather information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the

other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the finandal statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information ts materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there s a material risstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the ather information. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude thet there is a material misstatement
of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

Other than the matter identified in the Basis for qualified opinlon section above, we have nothing to report in this regard.

In this context, we also have nothing to report in regard to our responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other

Information and to report as uncorrected material misstatements of the other information where we conclude that those items meet

the following conditicns:

« Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 112 — the statement given by the Directors that they consider the annual report
and financial statements taken as a whale is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy, Is materially inconsistent with our knowledge
obtained in the audit; or

« Audit committee reporting set out on pages 72 to 83 — the section describing the work of the Audit Commitbee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit committee; or

+ Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out on page 54 —the parts of the Directors’
statement required under the Listing Rules relating to the company’s compllance with the UX Corporate Governance Code
containing provisions specified for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not property disclose a
departure from a relevant provision of the UK Corporate Govemnance Code.

Opinions on ather matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be auditsd has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006.

In our gpinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the Directors’ report for the financkal year for which the financial statements are
prepared s consistent with the financlal statements; and

* the strategk report and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent comparny and its environment obtained In the course of

the audit, other than the matter identified in the Basls for quafified opinion section above, we have not identified material

misstaternents in the strategic report or the Directors” report.

Other than the matter identified in the Basis for qualified opinion section above we have nothing to report in respect of the following

matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, of returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

» the Parent Company financial staternents and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns; or

= pertain disclosures of directors’ remuneration spedfied by law are not made; or

¢ we have not received all the Information and explanations we require for our audit.
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indapendent auditor’s report to the members of Mitle Group plc continued

Responsiblilties of directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 116, the Directors are respansible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satished that they give a true and fair view and for such intemal control as the Directors determine s
necessary 10 enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or enor.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability 1o continue
a5 a going concem, disclpsing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going conoem basis of accounting unless the
Directors elther intend to iquidate the Group or the Parent Compary or to cease operations, or have no reslistic akernative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibllities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
risstaterment, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
leve! of assurance, but s not a guarantee that an awdit conducted In accordance with I5As (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when k exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to Influence the ecanomic decisions of users taken on the bask of these financlal statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the finandlal statements is located on the Financlal Reporting Council's
website at: www fre.ong.uk/siditorsresponsibiliities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other matters which we are required to address
Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee on 19 September 2017, we were appointed to audit the financlal statements
for the year ending 31 March 2018 and subsequent financial periods. This is the first year of our engagement.

The non-audit sesvices prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company and we
remain Independent of the Group and the parent company in conducting our audit.

Qur audit opinlon is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Commitiee,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as s body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companles Act

2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s merribers those matters we are required '
1o state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by bw, we do not accept or assume [
responsibifity to anyone other than the Parent Company and the Parent ry's members as a body, for our audit work, for this ‘

repont, or for the opinions we have formed. J'-/if |

Scott McNaughton (Senlor Statutory Auditor]

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London ‘
6 June 2018 .
BDO LLP is a Bmited llability partnership ragistered in England and Walas (with registered number 0C305127).
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Consolidated income statament

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Restatad
2088 mn
Rl Other Belore Othey
other items o Towal  other ems Themgt Toeal
Notes £m £m fm £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 3 2,203.7 - 22027 2,1234 - 2,1234
Cost of sales (1,894.8) - {L894.8) (1893.6) ~ __ (1,8936)
Gross profit 08.9 - 089 2298 -~ 2208
Adrministrative expenses {220.1) (979} (318.0) {2367} (36.5) {2733)
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 15 0.8 - o8 06 - 06
Operating (loss\/proft 36 C D) 3) (63)__ (366)  {429)
Investment revenue 8 0.2 - 0.2 - - -
Finance costs 9 {166} - {16.6) {15.3) ~ {153}
Nat finance costs (16.4) - {164) {15.3) - {153}
{Lows)/profit before tax 3 732 87.9) (4.0 {21.6) (36:6) {58.2)
Tax 10 {12.0} 10.7 (13) 33 a1 74
{Logs)/profit from continuing operations
afver tax 612 1872) (2601 {18.3) (32.5) {50.8)
Discontinued operstions
Loss from discontinued operations 5 - - - (11.4) {121.0) (132.4)
{Lows)/profit for the ysar §12 87.2) {26.0) {29.7} {153.5} (183.2)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 60.1 (87.2) 27.1) (30.5) (153.5) {184.0)
Non-controlling interests 1.1 - 11 08 - 08
612 (872) {26.0) {29.7) {153.5) {183.2}
{Loss)/eamnings per share (EPS) attributable to
squity shareholders of the parent
From continuing operations:
basic 12 168p (rsip {5.5)p (14.7)p
diluted 12 16.8p (r.6)p {5.5)p {14.7)p
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic 12 1638p (1.6 (87 {S2.4)p
Dikted 12 16.8p osp 8.7)p {524
m

1. Other lems are as described in Note 4.

2. The Group has spplled IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the companstive information is not restated. Sae Note 1.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2018

17

Loss for the year

Blst

(183.2)

Ioarns that will not ba reclassified subsequently to profik or loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit pension llabllity
Income tax {charge)/credit relating to items not redassified

37 19.7
(34)

(35.4)
55

8

(29.9)

tems that may be reclasified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Gains on hedge of a net investment taken to equity

Net gains/{losses) on cash flow hedges arising during the year
Incorme tax credit relating to iterns that may be reclassifled

0.1
0A
0.1
0.1

o1
{4.8)
03

0.7

(3.1}

mmwmwzmmfmmw

12.0

{33.0)

Total comprabansive expense for the financlal year

{216.2)

Attributable to:
Egpuity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

(10.4
11

(217.0)
08

Note:

1. The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the ative Info kot
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 March 2018
Restated

] nr
. Nates £m Em
Non-current assets
Goodwill 13 3096 3439
Other intangible assets 14 383 532
Property, plant and equipment 15 336 323
Interest in joint ventures and associates 16 os 0.6
Derivative financial instruments 27 61 -
Trade and other receivables 17 - 50.3
Contract assets? 20 18 -
Defarred tax assets 21 367 22
Total non-current assets 4269 502.5
Qumrant assets
inventories 2 69 68
Trade and other recelvables 17 3860 3956
Contract assets? 20 04 -
Derbvative finandial instruments 27 - 358
Current tax assets 63 121
Cash and cash equivalents 23 59.8 129.1
Total current assats 4594 5794
Total assets ) 8863  1,081.9
Current Kablities
Trade and other payables 24 {456.%) (574.5)
Deferred income 25 {46.2) -
Financing liabilities 26 (0.3} (310.8)
Prewisions 28 (25.2) {20.4)
Total current fiablikies (569.0) {905.7}
Net cuevent Eabilites {109.6) {326.3)
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 24 - {3.4)
Oeferred income 25 (188) -
Financing labilities 26 (258.6) 1.3}
Provisions 28 {63) (6.4)
Retirement benefit kabilities 37 (56.3) (7a4.2)
Deferred tax liabilities 21 {o.8) {1.1)
Totsl non-turrent Rabillties (341.3) (86.4)
Total Babilitfes 910.3)  (992.1)
et (Rabilities)/assets (24.0) 89.8
Nokes:
1 The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulstive effect method. Under this method, the comparative information s not restated, See Note 1.

2. A3 31 March 2018, contract assets comprises contract fulfiment costs capitalised in accordance with IFRS 15 and the Groug's inbernal accouring palicy.
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Consolidated balance sheet continued

As at 31 March 2018
Restated
ms w17
Notes £m £m
Equity
Share capital 31 23 8.2
Share premium account a2 1306 130.6
Merger reserve 32 104.2 9138
Own shares reserve 32 {43.4) {a2.2)
Other reserves 32 113 103
Hedging and translation reserve 32 2.3) {8.0)
Retained losses {2287) (104.2)
Equity attributable to aquity holders of the parent {24.0) 87.5
Non-controlling interests - 23
Total equity (24.0) 89.8
Note:
1 The Group has applied IFRS 15 ucing the cunwiative effect method. Linder this method, the comparative information ks nat | See Note 1.

The vonsolidated financial statements of Mitke Group ple, company registration number 5C019230 were approved by the Board of

Divrectors and authorised for issue on & June 2018. They were signed on its behalf by:

FoKolra, PLS
Phil Bantley Paul Woolf
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Conzolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Shere Own Hedging and Non-
Share premium  Marger  shares Other  wyansistion  Retasined controlling Towl
opital  account | reserve resene  reserves' reserve  samings Totsl Interects oquity
m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2016 93 1227 B80.1 {4B.8) 9.9 {4.6) 1B5.0 3586 29 3615
Loss for the year - - - - - —  (184.0) (184.0) 08 [1833)
Other compeehensive expense - - - - - (34) (296) {33.0) =~ _ {3340
Total comprehensive expense - - - - - (3.4) (2136} (217.0) 08 (2162}
Shares issued 0.1 29 11.7 - - - - 14.7 - 14.7
Dhvidends paid - - - - - - (374) (374) {0.1) (37.5)
Share buybacks ©2) - - (@2 o4 - (204) (2a4) - e
Share-based payments - - - 68 - - 24 922 - 9.2
Acquisitions and other movements
n nan-controlling interests — - - - -  {16.2) (162} {1.3) {17.5}
At 31 March 2017 9.2 130.6 91.8 {42.2) 103 (8.0) {104.2) .5 23 0
Balance at 1 April 2017 9.2 1306 918 {42.2) 103 {8.:0) (104.2} 875 23 208
Impact of change in accounting
poficy’ - - - - - - {1082) {(108.2) - {1082}
Adjusted balance at 1 April 2017 92 1306 918 (422) 103 (8.0} (2124) (20.9) 23 (18.4)
Loss for the ysar - - - - - - (271} (27.3) 11 (26.0)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 0.7 16.3 17.0 - 17.0
Total comprehensive sxpanse - - - - - 0.7 {108) {10.1) 11 {9.0)
Diwidenxis pald - - - - - - {48) {4.8) - (4.8)
Share-basad payments - - - 69 10 - 03 8.2 - 8.2
Aocquisitions and ather movements
In non-controlling interests 01 - 124 (8.1) - - (L0} 34 (3.4) -
At 31 March 2018 93 1306 1042 (434) 113 (7.3) (287 (24.0) - {240)
Notes:
1. TheGroup has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, parative ik jon is not d. See Note 1.
2. Other resesves iIndude the shere-based pay reserve, the revalustion reserve and the capital redemption resarve. See Note 32,
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 March 2018

Restated
208 2m7
Notes £m £m
Operating loss —conmtinuing operations {8.3) {42.9)
—discontinued operations - {135.2)
Adjustments for:
Share-based payments expense 36 4.6 6.2
Defined benefit pension charge 37 31 43
Past service cost and curtaliments 37 19 -
Defined benefit pension contributions 37 amn (2.4)
Acquisition costs 4 - 12
Deprecistion of property, plant and equipment 15 128 14.1
Amortisation of intangible assets 14 1385 228
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 16 (0.8) (0.6)
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 13,14 450 109.2
Loss oh disposal of businesses 2 304
{Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment fo.1) 1.0
Operating cash flows before movements In working capitat 672 3.1
(\ntrease)/decrease in inventories (0.1) 32
(Increase)/decrease in recelvables 43.2) 60.2
{increase)/decrease in contract assets 3 -
Decrease in deferred income arising on contracts (12.8) ~
(Dacrease)/increase in payables (aL2) 7340
{Decrease)/increase in provisions 45 5.6
Cash {used In)/generated by operations 39 {79) 1511
Income taxes received/{paid)} L6 {15.3)
Interest paid (13.5) (12.n
Acquisition costs 4 - (0.3}
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from operating activities {9.8) 1228
mvesting activities
interest received 02 0.1
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 15 {15.8) {14.5)
Dividends recelved from Joint ventures and associates 06 06
Purchase of other intangible assets 14 (2.0) (12.4)
Dixposals of property, ptant and equipment 16 1.0
Dispozal of subskiiaries, induding cash dispased s {9.7) .7
Net cash outflow from invasting activities {32.1) {26.9)
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Condolidsted statement of cash flows continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Restated
mis 2017
Notes [ £

Financing activities

Repayments of obligations under finance leases (15} {1.6)
Proceeds on Issue of share capital - 01
Private placement notes repakd and associate hedges settled {60.2} -
Proceeds from new borrowings 383 1.7
Proceeds from re-issue of treasury shares 32 34 24
Purchase of non-controMing interests 3 (3.00 (14)
Share buybacks 31 - (24.4)
Equity dividends paid 11 {4.8) (37.4)
Non-controfling interests dividends paid - {0.1)
Other financing tems - 04
Net cash outflow from financing activities (27.8) (60.3)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {69.7) 356
Net cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 129.1 931
Effact of foreign exchange rate changes 0.4 0.4
Net cash and cash squivalents st end of the year 23 598 129.1

The above statement of consolidated cash flows includes cash flows from both continuing and discontinued operations. Further details

of the cash flows relating to discontinued operations are shown in Note 5.

Reconcilistion of net cash fiow to moverments in net debt Notes ﬁ ms’.:
Cash drivers
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalénts (69.7) 356
Increase in bank loans {38.3) an
Movement in private placement notes and associated hedges 60.2 -
Decrease in finance leases 1.5 12
Non-cash drivars
Non-cash movement in bank loans (0.7) -
Non-cash movement in private placement notes and assoclated hedges 03 (4.9)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 04 04
(intrease)/decrease in net debt during the year {46.3) 311
Opening net debt {142.2) {1783)
Closing net debt 30 {193.5) {147.2)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting policies

(a) Basls of preparation

The Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been prepared in acoordance with International Financlal
Reporting Standards {IFRSs) adopted for use in the Furopean Union and therefore the Group's financial statements comply with Article
4 of the EU 1AS Regutation,

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain finandal instruments which are
required to be measured at fair value.

Whilst the Property Management business was previously classified as a discontinued operation in the FY2018 Haff Year Report, there
are no active salss processes at year end and hence It Is no longer classifiad as a discontinued operation.

Prior year restatement

The prior year comparatives have been restated due to an accounting error in respect of an under accrual of costs with a
commesponding increase in accrued income and revenue. The impact on the prior year balance sheet is an increase in accruais and
actrued income of £14.6m and a decrease in revenue and cost of sales of £2.9m within the income statement. The Directors recognise
that the under accrual of costs and understatement of accrued income may also be apparent in the 2016 balance sheet. However as
disciosed in the 2017 acoounts, an extensive review was undertaken, which led to both prior year adjustments to 2016 and matasial
adjustrnents being recognised in 2017 arising from changes to accounting estimates.

In addition, as a resuft of the 2016 financial statements being subject to judigements and estimates made by the then Directors at that
time, the current Directors consider it Is not appropriate or meaningful to attempt to guantify or represent any errors, and as a result
the balance shaet for the year ended 31 March 2016 has not been represented. Notwithstanding this, management note that any
ervor of the nature identified, were it present in the year ended 31 March 2016, would not have any impact on closing net assets for
that year nor wouid it have any impact on the reported loss for the year ended 31 March 2017.

Going concern

As outlined in the Directors’ Repart, the Directors have concluded that whilst the Group is in a net current liabllity position at yearend,
#t has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and can prepare its financial statements on @
going concem basis. The Directors have considered the future prospects and performance of the Group including: the future business
plans of the Group; the potential impact of acquisition activity and possible changes to the composition of the Group; the projfected
future cash flows of the Group; the availabliity of core and ancillary financing facilities and compliance with related covenants; the
projected drawn positions and headroom avallable on the core committed financing facilities; and those matters reviewed in
connection with the Viabillty Statement.

The Directors have also reviewed and considered the disclosures on the matter of going concern and viability in the Annual Report and
Accounts and have considered them to be appropriate.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant acoounting policies continued

Acoounting standards that are newly effective in the current year

The acoounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017 except for the following amendments,
which were effective for the first time In the current year but had no impact on the results or financial position of the Group:

o Amendments to IAS 12 ‘income taxes’- dlarification of requirements on recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses on
debt instrument financial assets measured at fair value;

= Amendments to LAS 7 ‘Cash flow statements’ — disclosure initiative; and

e Amendments resulting from anmsal improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 cycle.

The Group has early adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’. The impacts of adopting the new accounting standard
are detailed below.

Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory andd have not been applied by the Group
The following standards and interpretations have been issued but are not yet mandatorily effective (and in some cases have not yet
been adopted by the EU) and have not been applied by the Group:

* IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’;

¢ IFRS 16 ‘Leases’;

* |FRS 17 ‘Insurance contracts’;

* Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share-basad payment’ — classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions;
* (FRIC 22 ‘Forelgn currency transactions and advance consideration’;

IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over income tax treatments’;

+ Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘Prepayment features with negative compensation”;

+ Amendments to IAS 28 Tong-term Interests in associates and joint ventures’; and

* Annuai improvements to IFRS’s 2015-2017 cydle.

The Directors have considered the impact of IFRS 9 and IFRS 16 as noted below. The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the
other standards listed above will have a material impact on the finandial staterments of the Group in future periods.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instrurents’ Is effective for the Group starting 1 April 2018 and replaces the current reqquirernents of IAS 39

‘Finandial instruments: recognition and measurement’. The main changes introduced by the new standard are new classification and
measurement requirements for certain financial assets, a new expected loss model for the impeirment of financial assets, revisions

to the hedge accounting model, and amendments to disclosures. The changes are generally to be applied retraspectively. Given the
nature of the finandial assets and liabliities currently held by the Group and its hedging armangements, the changes are not expected to
have a significant Impact on the financial statements.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ will be effective for the Group starting 1 April 2019 and will replace the current requirements IAS 17 ‘Leases’, An asset
for the right to use the leased item and a Bability for future lkease payrments will be recognised for all leases, subject to limited
exemptions for short-term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs of leases will be recognised in the income statement split
between depreclation of the lease asset and a finance charge on the lease liability. This is similar to the existing accounting for finance
leases, but substantively different to the existing accounting for operating leases under which no lease asset or lease lability is
recognised and rentals payable are charged to the income statement on & straight-line basis. Following the early adoption of IFRS 15,
the Group Is currently considering the adoption date for IFRS 16 and Is cortinuing its assessment of the impact that the application of
the standard will have on the Group’s financial statements. it remains too early to fully determine the impact on the Group's financlal
staternents as this will be infiuenced by the composition of the lease portfolio and the relevant discount rates at the date of adoption.
Detaiis of future commitments under the Group’s current operating leases are set out in Note 35, Beyond the information above, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of IFRS 1€ until a detalled review has been completed.
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Notes to the consolkiated finandal statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Early adoption of IFRS 15

The Group decided 1o early adopt IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, with a date of initial application of 1 April 2017_ As
a result, the Group has changed its accounting policies and updated hts internal processes and controks relating to revenue recognition.
The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method - Le. by recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS
15 as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2017, calculated only for those contracts that were not completed as at
1 April 2017. Therefore, the comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under IAS 18 ‘Revenue’ and
1AS 11 ‘Construction contracts’.

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all sales contracts as outiined below. It s based on the transfer
of control of goods and sevvices to customers and replaces the separate models for goods, services and construction contracts.

1 ldentify the contract{s) with a customer

2 ldentify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Alocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

Set out below is the revenue recognition policy under IFRS 15 and the five-step mode together with the impact of adopting the standard,

Revenue recognition policy under IFRS 15

The Group operates contracts with a varying degree of complexity across its servioe lines so accordingly, a range of methods are

used for the recognition of revanie based on the principles set out In IFRS 15. Revenue represents income recognised in respect of
services provided during the period based on the delivery of performance obligations and an assessment of when control is transferred
1o the customer.

Step 1 - identify the contract{s) with a customer

For all contracts with customers, the Group determines If the arrangement creates enforceable rights and obligations. This assessment
results in certain Framework arrangements or Master Service Agreements (MSAS) not meeting the definition of a contract under

IFRS 15 unless it specifies the minimum quantities to be ordered, Usually the work order and any change orders together with the
Framework or MSA will constitute the IFRS 15 contract.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Duration of contract

The Group frequently enters into contracts with customers which contain extension periods at the end of the initial terrn, automatic
annual renewals, and/or termination for convenience and break clauses that could impact the actual duration of the contract. As the
term of the contract impacts the period over which amortisation of contract assets and revenue from performance obligations may be
recognised, the Group apphies judgement to assess the impact that such clausas have in determining the relevant contract term. In
forming this judigernent, management considers certain influencing factors including the amount of discount provided, the presence of
significant termination penalties in the contract, and the relationship, experience and performance of contract delivery with the
customer and/or the wider Industry, in understanding the likelihood of extension or termination of the contract.

Controct modifications

The Group's contracts are frequently amended for changes to customer requirements such as change orders and variations. A contract
modification takes place when the amendment creates new enforceable rights and obligations or changes the existing price or scope
(or both) of the contract, and the modification has been approved. Contract modifications can be approved in writing, by oral
agreement, or implied by customary business practices.

If the parties to the contract have not approved a contract modification, revenue is recognised in accordance with the existing

contractual terms. if a change in scope has been approved but the corresponding change in price Is stil being negotiated, the Group
estimates the change to the total transaction price.

Contract modifications are accounted for as a separate contract if the contract scope changes due to the addition of distinct goods or
services and the change in contract price reflects the standaione selling price of the distinct good or service. The facts and
circumstances of any modification are considered in Isolation as these are specific to each contract and may result in different
accounting outcomes.

Step 2 — idantify the pesformance obligations in the contract

Performance obligations are the contractual promises by the Group to transfer distinct goods or services to a customer. For
arrangements with multiple components to be delivered to customers such as in the Group's integrated facliities management
contracts, the Group appiies judgement to consider whether those promised goods and services are:

.  Distinct and accountad for as separate performance obligations;

i. Combined with ather promised goods or services until a bundie is identified that ks distinct; or

#.  Part of a series of distinct goods and services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time i.e.
where the customer is deemed to have simuitanecusly received and consumed the benefits of the goods or services over the life
of the contract, the Group treats the series a5 2 single performance obligation.

Step 3 — Determine the transaction price

At contract Inception, the total transaction price is determined, being the amount to which the Group expects to be entitled and has
rights under the current contract. This Includes the fixed price stated in the contract and an assessment of any variable consideration,
up or down, resulting from e.g. discounts, rebates, servica penalties. Variable consideration is typically estimated based on the
expected value method and Is only recognised to the extent it is highly probable that a subsequent change In its estimate would not
result In a significant revenue reversal.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting polides continued

Step 4 — Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

The Group allocates the total transaction price to the identified performance obligations based on their relative stand-alone selling
prices. This is predominantly based on an observable price or 2 cost plus margin arrangement.

Step 5 — Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

For each performance obligation, the Group determines if revenue will be recognised over time or at a point in time. Where revenue is
recognised over time, the Group applies the relevant output or input revenue recognition method for measuring progress that
faithfully depicts the Group's performance in transferring control of the goods and services to the customer.

Certain long-term contracts use output methods based upon surveys of performance completed, appraisals of results achieved, or
milestones reached which allow the Group to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the valkue to the customer of
the goods and services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods and services under the contract.

Under the input method, measured progress and revenue are recognised in direct proportion to costs incurred where the transfer of
control Is most dosely aligned to the Group”s efforts in delivering the service.,

Where deemed appropriate, the Group will utilise the practical expedient within FRS15, aliowing revenue to be recognised at the
amount which the Group has the right to Involce, where that amaunt corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
Group’s performance completed o date.

If perforrance obligations do not meet the criterla to recognise revenue over time, revenue is recognised at the point in time when
control of the good or service passes 1o the customer. This may be at the point of physical delivery of goods and acceptance by a
customer or when the customer ohtalns control of an asset or service in a contract with customer-specified acosptance criterla.

Long-term complex contracts

The Group has a number of ong-term complex contracts which are predominantly integrated facilities management arrangements.
Typically, these contracts Involve the provision of multiple service lines, with a single management team providing an integrated
service. Such contracts tend to be transformational in nature where the business works with the client to identify and implement cost
saving Inttiatives across the life of the contract.

The Group considers the majority of services provided within integrated facilities management contracts meet the definition of a series
of distinct goods and services that are substantially the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time. The serles constitutes
services provided in distinct time increments {e.g. monthly or quarterly] and therefore the Group treats the series of such services as
one performance obligation.

The Group also delivers major project-based services under fong-term complex contracts that include performance obligations under
which revenue is recognised over time as value from the service is transferred ta the customer, This may be where the Group has a
legally enforceable right to remuneration for the work completed to date, or at milestone periods, and therefore revenue will be
recognised in lne with the associated transfer of control or milestone dates.

Repeat service-based contracts (single and bundied contracts)

The Group operates a number of single or joint-service line arrangements where repeat services meet the definition of a serles of
distinct services that are substantially the sarme (e.g. the provision of cleaning, security, catering. waste, and landscaping services). They
have the same pattern of transfer of value ta the customer as the series constitutes core services provided in distinct time increments
{e.g. monthly or quarterly). The Group therefore treats the series of such services as one performance obligation.

Short-berm service-based arrangements

The Group delivers a range of other short-term service based performance obligations and professional services work across certain
reporting segments for which revenue Is recognised at the point in time when control of the service has transferred to the customer.
This may be at the point when the customer obtains control of the service In a contract with customer-specified acceptance criteria
eg. the delivery of a strategic operating model or report.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and control has passed to the customer,

Other revenue

Interest income ks accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
Is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
camying amount.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Contract assets

Pre-controct costs

The Group incurs pre-contract expenses (e.g. legal costs) when it Is expected to enter into a new contract. The incremental costs to
obtain a contract with a customer are recognised within contract assets if it is expected that those costs will be recoverable. Costs to
obtain a contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense in the
period.

Contract fulfilment costs

Costs incurred to ensure that the project or programne has appropriate organisational, operational and technical infrastructures, and
mechanisms in place to enable the deiivery of full servioes under the contract 1arget operating model, are defined as contract
fulfitment costs. Only costs which meet all three of the criteria below are included within contract assets on the balance sheet:

i. the costs directly relate to the contract (e.g. direct labour, materlals, sub-contrators);
ii. the Group Is building an asset that belongs to the customer that will subsequently be used to deliver contract outcomes; and
M. the costs are expected to be recoverable Le. the contract Is expected 1o be profitable after amortising the caphtalised costs,

Contract fulfilment costs covered within the scope of another accounting standard, such as inventories, intangible assets, or property,
plant and equipment are not tapitalised as contract fulfiiment assets but are treated according to the other standard.
Amortisation ond impairment of contract assets

The Group amortises contract assets (pre-contract costs and contract fulfiiment costs) on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
entity’s transfer of the related goods or services to the customer. The expense is recognised in profit or Joss in the period.

A capitalised pre-contract cost or contract fulfiiment cost is derecognised either when It is disposed of or when no further economic
benefits are expected to flow from its use or disposal.

The Group is required to determine the recoverabllity of contract related assets at each reporting date. An impairment exists if the
carrying amount of any asset exceeds the amount of consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for providing the
assoclated goods and services, less the remaining costs that relate directly to providing those goods and services under the relevant
contract. In determining the estimated amount of consideration, the Group uses the same principles as it does to determine the
contract transaction price which includes estimates around variable consideration. An impalrment Is recognised immediately where
such losses are forecast.

Accrued income and deferred income

The Group’s customer contracts include a diverse range of payment schedules which are often agreed at the inception of long-term
contracts under which it receives payments throughout the term of the arrangement. Payments for goods and services transferred ata
point in time may be at the delivery date, in arrears or part payment in advance.

Whera revenue recognised at the period end date is more than amounts invoiced, the Group records accrued income for the
difference. Where revenue recognised at the period end date ks less than amounts invoiced, the Group recognises deferred income for
the difference.

Ceriain armangements with customers include a contractus) obligation to make redundancies for which the Group is reimbursed for the
costs incurred. Revenue is not recognised on these transactions. instead, the Group expenses all redundancy costs in the period they
are Incurred and any reimbursement credit is matched against the associated cost included in the income statement up to the value of
the redundancy cost incurmed. Any cash payments received from the customer In excess of the reimbursement cost of redundancy are
deferred over the contract term and unwound in kne with the other services being delivered.

Where price step-downs are reguired in a contract and output is not decreasing, revenue ts deferred from initial years to subsequent
years In order for revanue to be recognised on a consistent basis.

Providing the option for a customer to obtain extension periods or other services at a significant discount may lead to a separate
performance obligation where a material right exists. Where this is the case, the Group allocates part of the transaction price from the
original contract to deferred income which Is then amortsed over the discounted extension period or recognised immediately when
the extension right expires.

The following disclosures show the impact of the adoption of IFRS 15 on the Group's primary financial staterments.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Consolidated balance sheet RS 15 acustrnenes £m Ralances
As at 31 March 2018 xs adoptnet  Mestpied
Teported RS 15 201702
£m A 8 c D E F 6 £m £m
Non-current assets
Goodwill 309.6 - - - - - - - 3096 3439
Other intangible assets 383 - - - 10 - - - 393 532
Property, plant and equipment 136 - - - 02 - - - 338 323
interest in joint ventures and associates o8 - - - - - - - os 0.6
Derivative financial instruments 6.1 - - - - - - - 61 -
Trade and other receivables - 182 86 - - - - -~ 268 50.3
Contract assets 18 - - - 1.8 - - - - -
Dafermed tax assets 36.7 - - - - - - (19.0) 177 222
Total non-current assets 4269 182 86 - (06} - - {190} 4381 5025
Curvent assets
Inventories 69 - - - - - - - 69 68
Trade and other recelvables 3860 200 119 {0.2) - 3 - ~ 4488 3956
Contract assets o4 - - - {0.4) - - - - -
Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - - - - 58
Cusrent tax assets 63 - - - - - - (28 35 121
Cash and cash equivalents 598 - — - - - - - 558 1291
Total curvent assets 4594 200 119 0.2} (04) 311 - {2.8} 5190 5794
Total steets 8863 382 205 {0.2) (1.0} 2311 -~ {21.8) 953.1 10819
Current Rebilities
Trade and other payables {4968} (0.9) - (380) - - 0.7 -  {5348) (574.5)
Deferred income {46.2) - - 462 - - - - - -
Financing fiabllities {0.8) - - - - - - - {o.8) [3108)
Provisions {25.2) - - - - - - - (253 (204)
Total current Kabilities {569.0) 0.7} - 8.2 - - 0.7 - {560.8) (905.7)
Net curvent iebilltes {1096) 193 119 8.0 {04) 311 0.7 {2.8) {418) (326.3)
Non-current labilities
Trade and other payables - - - - - - - - - (3.4}
Deferred Inoome (18.8) - - 188 ~ - - - - -
Financing liabiticies (258.6) - - ~ ~ - - - (=86 (13)
Provisions (6.3} - - - ~ - - - {6.3) (6.4)
Retirement benefit Kabiiities (56.8) - - - - - - - (568} (742)
Deferved tax liabiiities {0.8) - - - - - - - {0.8) (1.1)
Total non-carvent labities {341.3) - - 183 - - - - (322.5) (864)
Total Babilities 910.3) (0.7} - 270 - - 07 - {33} (992.1)
Net {({abiities)/assets {240) 3725 205 268 (1.0} 311 0.7 {21.8) 6.8 898
Notes:

1. Tha Group has spplied IFRS 15 Lising the cumulstive effiect method. Under this method, the comparative information is not restated.
2. The Group has restated 2017 Income staterment and balance sheet as per Note 1, page 134,
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting polides continued

Consolidated income statement WFRS, 15 acjustments £m Sulonces
For the year ended 31 March 2018 ”s m Restared
of IFS 15 0072
ém A a C D E F G &m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2,203.7 (76) 056 {31 - 61 [08) - 21991 21234
Cost of sales (1,894.8) - (88} (05) (10} ({15 (0.2) ~ [1,906.6} (1,893.6)
Administrative expenses (220.1) - 36 0.3 - - - -~ [ns2) (236.7)
Share of profit of joint venture
and associates 08 - - - - - - ~ (1] 0.5
Oprating profit/{loss) before other items ~ 89.6 (76) 44 (33) (1L0) 46 [08) ~ 7 (63)
Other ikers (97.9) {5.1) - - - - - - (18.0) {365
Operating profit/{loss) alter other items (83} (1277 (44) (33) (1.0} 46 (08) -  (259) (429)
Net finance costs (16.4} - - - - - - - (64 {153)
Tax {13) - - - - - - 32 19 74
Total from continuing operations (260) (127} (44} (33) (10) 46 (08) 32 (404) (508
Total from discontinued pperations - - - - - - - -~ = {1324)
Loss for the year (2z650) (127) [4A) {(33) (10) 46 {08 32 (A04) {183.2)
Notes:

1. The Group has sppilied IFRS 15 csing the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information is not restated.
2 The Group has restated 2017 income staterment and batance shast as per Note 1, page 134,

The following table details the impact on net assets as at 1 April 2017 and on the revenue and loss for the year recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2018, ag o resuk of the adoption of IFRS 15:

Loss for the

Nat assets Revenue your

£m £m £m

Balances without adoption of IFRS 15 898 2,199.1 {40.4)
JFRS 15 adjustments:

A—POC sccounting {50.2) 76 12.7

B — Moabilisation assets {24.9} {0.6) 4.4

C—Design and development and other upfront fees (30.1) 31 33

D —Contract assets - - 10

E—Work in progress (26.5) (6.1) {4.5)

F = Contracted discounts Including extension discounts {1.5) 0.6 08

G—Tax 5.0 - 32

AS reportad total {18.4) 2,.203.7 {26.0)

Adjustment A — POC accounting

IFRS 15 introduces the concept of performance obligations which are the contractual promises by an entity to transfer goods or
services to a customer, Under IFRS 15, revenue Is recognised on a contract specific basis and in line with the satisfaction of
performance obligations_ This is a change from the Group’s previous accounting policy and the use of a percentage of completion
model % measure the propostion of contract costs incurred for work performed to date compared to the total estimated contract
costs. Perceritage of completion accounting does not provide an appropriate representation of the satisfaction of performance
obligations on these lang-term complex contracts and consequentiy, is no longer applied.

The impact of this is a decrease in reserves of £50.2m to derecognise the percentage of completion asset held as accrued income on
fong-term complex contracts at 1 Apri} 2017 and a £12.7m credit to the koss for the year ended 31 March 2018 comprising £7.6m to
reverse the unwind of the asset movement, and £5.1m to reverse a percentage of completion asset write-off included within other

itemns. The reversal of the asset write-off follows the net impact of a write-off of £6.6m in refation to the loss of two contracts which

was offset by a8 £1.5M credit to reinstate a previously written off asset, These balances, which were presented in Other tems, would
not have been recoghised under IFRS 15 as percentage of completion accounting would not have been applied.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Adjustment B — Maobllisation assets
IFRS 15 specifies that certain costs to filfil a contract are to be capltalised as contract assets if relevant criteria are met. The Group has

determined that the existing mobilisation asset, whilst appropriate under the previous accounting standard, does not meet the more
stringent criteria under IFRS 15.

The Group has therefore derecognised the asset {induding £3.9m recognised in prepayments within trade and other recelvables) as at
1 April 2017 leading to a decrease in reserves of £24.9m.

The adjustment 1o the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 s a credit of £4.4m to reverse additions and write back amortisation on
the mobilisation balance written off.

Adjustment € — Design and development and other upfront fees

On certain contracts, the Group receives upfront, non-refundable payments from the customer to cover significant costs Incurred by
the Group during the initial phase of the contract. Under IFRS 15, costs incurred from these transition and mobilisation activitles, which
are more than administrative In nature, are assessed to determine whether they form a separate performance obligation. Where such
costs do not form a separate performance obligation under the contract, any upfront payments received from the customer are
allocated to the performance obligations of the contract, deferred and recognised aver the life of the other services.

The Group has determined that £30.1m of revenue previously recognised should be presented as deferred income at 1 April 2017
leading to a decrease in reserves by the same amount. The adjustrment to the ioss for the year ended 31 March 2018 is a £3.3m credit
following the rephasing of upfront payments.

Following the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group has presented deferred income from contracts with customers separately on the batance
sheet. The balance of pre-FRS 15 current deferred Income amounting to £46.2m has been reclassified as a result.

Adjustment D — Contract assets

IFRS 15 spacifies that certain costs to fulfil a contract are to be capitalised as contract assets if relevant criteria are met. The Group
capRalised a balance of £1.2m during the year ended 31 March 2018 (comprising £1.0m and £0.2m that would otherwise have been
recorded in other intangible assets and property, piant and equipment respectively) that related to resources to allow it to deliver
services under its contracts for which control had passed to the customer on installation. This amount has been recognised on the
balance sheet as an addition to contract assets under IFRS 15.

During tha year ended 31 March 2018, the Group capitalised costs of £1.0m that were previously expensed and which relate to assets
ta be used to deliver future contract cutcomes.

Adjustment E — Work In progress

Under IFRS 15, revenue is only recognised when control has passed to a customer and it can be reliably measured. incorne which was
previously recognised under IAS 11 and 1AS 18 has been remeasured against the more stringent criteria in IFRS 15, resulting in an
amount being derecognised where it cannot be reliably measured.

The Group has therefore derecognised the asset held on balance sheet within accrued income leading to a reduction in reserves of
£26.5m at 1 April 2017. The impact to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 s a debit of £4.6m.

Adjustment F — Contracted discounts including extension discounts

Where 3 contract provides the option for a customer to obtain an extension period at a significant discount, this may lead to a separate
performance obligation where a matnrial right exists. If a separate performance obligation axists then there would ba an allocation of
the transaction price from the original contract through the option period. A balance is therefore adjusted in reserves and recognised
in deferred income with the unwind recognised over the extension period (or immediately if the option expires).

The Group has recorded a reduction of £1.5m in reserves at 1 April 2017 to refiect the material right with the balance recognised in
defarved Income, which will be unwound as future services are delivered. The impact to the loss for the year ended 31 March 2018k a
credit of £0.8m.

Adjustment G —Tax

Due to the changes in the pattern and timing of revenue recognition under iFRS 15, an additional deferred income Eability is
recognised on the balance sheet from 1 April 2017, via a charge 1o the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2017. Further, certain assets
previously hekd In accrued income and recognised through the income statement in earlier periods have been derecognised from

1 April 2017, again via a charge to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2017.

A tax deduction is available at 1 April 2017 for the one-off transitional adjustments recognised in opening equity. This tax deduction
gives rise to tax losses at 1 April 2017, creating a deductible temporary difference for which a deferred tax asset of £25.0m is
recognised at 1 April 2017, leading to an increase in reserves by the same amount. The tax impact of the IFRS 15 adjustments on the
foss for the year ended 31 March 2018 is a charge of £3.2m, of which £1.0m arises on the adjustment to other items.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting polides continued

b} Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s IFRS finandal information are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial state ments comprise the financial statements of Mitie Group ple and all its subsidiaries. The parent
company has applied FRS 101 ‘Reduced disclosure framework’ in the preparation of its individuai finandal statements, FRS 101 applies
IFRS as adopted by the European Union with certain disclosure exemptions.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control Is transferred to the Group and cease 1o be consolidated from
the date on which control Is transferred out of the Group. The results, assets and liabliities of joint ventures and assodates are
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Where necessary, adjustments ane made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to bring the 2ccounting policies used inte line with those used by the Group.

All inter-company balanoes and transactions, including unrealised profits arising from inber-group transactions, have been eliminated
in full.

Interests of non-controlling Interest shareholders are measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportion of the net fair value of the
assets and kabilities recognised. Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in 2 subsidiary that do not result In a loss of control are
accounted for within shareholders’ equity. No gain or loss Is recognised on such transactions and goodwill Is not re-measured. Any
difference batween the change in the non-controlling interest and the fair value of the consideration pakd or received Is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the parent.

Statutory and non-statutory measures of performance
The financial statements contain all the iInformation and disclosures required by the relevant accounting standards and regulatory
obligations that apply to the Group.

In the financial statements the Group has elected to provide some further disclosures and performance measures, reported as ‘before
other llems’, in order to present Its financial results In 3 way that demonstrates the performance of continuing operations excluding
the results from restructuring and acquisition related costs, and the armortisation or write-off of acquired intangible assets and
goodwill. Results before other items is a non-statutory measure.

‘Other items’ are defined as hems of income or expenditure which, in tha opinion of the: Directors, are materal or unusual in nature or
of such significance that they require separate disclosure on the face of the income statement in accordance with 1AS 1 ‘Presentation
of financial statements’. Should thess kems be reversed disclosure of this would also be as other items.

Separate presentation of these items is Intended to enhance understanding of the financlal performance of the Group in the period
and the extent to which resuits are influenced by material unusual and/or non-recurring items.

Further detail of other items Is set out In Note 4 to the financial statements.

In addition, following the guidelines on Alternative Performance Measures {APMs) issued by the European Securities and Markets
Authorities (ESMA), the Group has included an APM appendix to the financial statements on pages 204 and 205. These APMs are
measures which disclose the adjusted performance of the Group without the adoption of IFRS 15 and excluding specific items which
are regarded as non-recurring. The Directors believe that these are useful for users of the financial statements in helping to provide a
balanced view of, and relevant information on, the Group's financial performance as the Group has appiled IFRS 15 in the 2018
financial staternents using the cumulative effect method through an adiustment 1o the opening balance of equity 2s at 1 April 2017
and has not restated the comparative information for the 2017 financial year. In addition there were a number of significant
restatements recorded in the 2017 financlal statements.

Foreign currency

The financial staternents of each of the Group’s businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business.
Transactions in currencies other than the functional curnency are recorded st the rate of exchange at the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange

prevalling at that date.

Non-monetary items carvied at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair vaiue was determined. Non-monetary itams that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forelgn currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items, and on the retransiation of monetary items, are included in the
income statement for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retransiation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on the retransiation of non-monetary tems In respect of which
galns and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary itemns, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also
recognised directly In equity.
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On consolidation, the assets and llabllities of the Group's foneign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
their acquisition, are translated into sterling at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses are
translated into sterling at average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising are recognised directly in equity in the
Group’s hedging and translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statemerit.

Finance costs

Finance costs consist of Interest and ather costs that are incurred In connection with the borrowing of funds, Finance costs are
recoghised In the income statement in the period In which they are incurred, with the finance charges relating to the direct cost of
debt Issue spread over the period to redemption using the effective interest method.

Taxation
The tax &xpense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and defemred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taabie profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statemnent because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's kabilkty for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted ar
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax Is the tax expectad to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Kabilities in
the financial statements and the cormesponding tax bases wsad in the computation of table profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax Habiiities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and llabilitles are not recognised If the temporary difference arises from goodwii or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tmable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxabile profits will be avaiiable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the lability is settled or the asset

is reslised, basad upon tax rates and kegistation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax Is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to kems charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the defesred tax s also dealt with in equity,

Deferred tax assets and llabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets agalnst current tax
liabilities; or when they relate to income taxes levied by tha same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its curment tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries Is accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of the acquiskion Is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments kssued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition costs incurred are expensed. The acquiree identifiable assets, abilities and
contingent Kabilities that meet the conditions for recognition are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except for non-
current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for resale in accordance with IFRS 5 ‘Non-currernt assets held for sale and
discontinued operations’, which are recognised and measured at falr value less costs to sefl,

Goodwill arising on acquisition s recognised as an assat and initally measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, kabllities and contingent Rabilities recognised. if,
after reazsessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquired identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilitles
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess Is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Where applicable, the consideration for an acquisition Indudes any assets or liabilfities resulting from a contingent consideration
amangement, measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes in such fair values are adjustad against the cost of
acquisition whare they result from additional Information, obtained within one year from the acquisition date, about facts and
dircumstances that existed at the acquisition date. Al other subsequent changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability are recognised in accordance with IAS 39, either in the income statement or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Changes in the fair value of contingent conskleration classified as equity are not recognised.

Any business combinations prior to 1 Aprit 2010 were accounted for using the standards in place prior to the adoption of
IFRS 3 (revised 2008) which differ in the following respects: transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of the
acquisition costs; contingent consideration was recognised if, and only I, the Group had a present obligation, the economic outflow
was more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable; and subsequent adjustrnents to the contingznt consideration were
recognised as part of goodwill.
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1, Basls of preparation and significamt accounting policies continued

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result I the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their refative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controliing
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to cwners
of the Company.

When the Group ioses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss Is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between: (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and (ii) the previous carrying
amout of the assets {including goodwill) and Babilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. Al amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly dispased of the
related assets or Rabllities of the subsidiary L.e. redassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost Is regarded as the fair value on intial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39, when applicable, of an investment inan
associate or a joint venture.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and Rabilities of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and Is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. It is
reviewed for impairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immadiately in the income statement for the period and is
not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units {CGUs} expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. CGUs to which goodwill has been aflocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impatrment loss is alocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then
to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. On disposal of a subsidiary the
attributable amount of goodwill is induded in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost iess accumuiated depreciation and any impaiment in value, Depreciation is charged so
as to write off the tost less expected residual value of the assets over their estimated useful Iives and is calculated on a straight-ine
basis as follows:

Freehold bulldings and long leasehold property 50 years
Leasehold improvements period of the lease
Plant and vehicles 3-10 years

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of Its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
sufferad an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset Is estimated in order to determine the
extent of any impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of falr value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounited to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the assat for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset {or CGU} is estimated to be less than its canrying amount, the canrying amount of the asset
{or OGU} is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impaiment loss is recognised as an expense immediatefy,

Where an impairment loss subsecuently reverses, the carrying amount of the assat {or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but 3o that the Increasad carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had na Impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or CGU) In prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immaediately.
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Notes to the consolidated finandal statermnents continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basls of preparation and significant actounting policies continued

Intangible assets
Intanglble assets identified in a business acquisition are capitalised at fair vaiue as at the date of acquisition.

Customer relationships are amortised aver their useful lives based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate
benefits. These currently range from four to eight years.

Software and development expenditure is capitalised as an Intangible asset if the asset created can be ldentified, If it & probable that
the asset created will generste future economic benefits and if the development cast of the asset can be measured reliably.

Other acquisition related intangibles Include acquired software and technology which ane amortised over their useful fives which
currently range from three to ten years. Software and development costs indudes internally generated intangible assets and are
amortised aver their useful lives of between five and ten years, once they have been brought into use.

Following initial recognition, the carrying amount of an intangible asset s its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impalrment losses. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairment annuatly, or more frequently when there is an
Indication that they may be impaired. Amortisation expense is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement on a
straight-line bas!s over its useful iife,

Joint ventures and associates
The Group has an Interest In joint ventures which are emtities in which the Group has joint control. The Group aiso has an interest in
associates which are entities in which the Group has significant influence.

The Group accounts for its interest in jolnt ventures and associates using the aquity method. Under the equity method the Group's
share of the post-tax result of joint ventures and assoclates is reported as a single line item In the consolidated income statement.
The Group's interest in joint ventures and associates is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost plus past-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of net assets.

Inventories
inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs represant materials, direct labour and overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their present condition and location,
Net realisable value Is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be Incurred to completion and estimated selling
costs. Provision Is made for obsolete, slow moving or defective items where appropriate,

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial Kabilities are recognised on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the Instrument. The Group derecognises financial assets and liabilities only when the contractual rights and
obligations are transferred, discharged or expire.

Assats that are assessed not to be individually Impaired are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of recelvables inciudes the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period as well as obsarvable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on recelvables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is recluced by the impainment loss directly with the exception of trade receivables where the
carrying amount Is reduced through the use of an aflowance account. When a trade recelvable Is considered uncollectable, it is written
off against the allowance acoount. Subseguent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the canrying amount of the allowance acoount are recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets comprise loans and receivables and are measured at initial recognition at fair value and subsequently at amortised
cost. Appropriste allowances for estimated mecoverable amounts are recognised where there Is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

The Group uses a non-recourse customer Involce discounting facility under which certain trade receivable balances are sold to the
Group's relationship banks. The trade receivables sre sold without recourse to the Group, and therefore the trade receivable balance
is derecognised.

Financial abilities comprise trade payables, financing liabilities, bank and other borrowings, and deferred contingent consideration.
These are measured at initial recognition at fair value and subsequantly at amortised cost with the exception of derivative financial
instrumnents which are measured at fair value, and deferred contingent consideration which s measured at the Directors’ best
estimate of the likely future obligation. Bank and other borrowings are stated at the amount of the net proceeds after deduction of
transaction costs. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settiement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for
on an accruals basks in the income statement.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting polidies continued

Included within the Group’s trade creditors balance are amounts relating to payments due to UK suppliers who make use of bank
provided supply chain finance arrangements to allow supplier early payment. Amounts are settied in accordance with each suppliers’
normnal payments terms and payments continue to be classified within cash generated by operations. The Group does not receive any
addnional guarantees and does not pay any interest in relation to these amounts.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directissue costs.

Detivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financlal instruments, including cross-currency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts,
t0 manage the Group’s exposure to financial risks associated with interest rates and foreign exchange. Dervative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contract s entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their

fair value, determined by reference to market rates, at each balance sheet date and included as financial assets ar ksbilities as
appropriate. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which evert the timing of the recognition in the income statement depends on the nature of

the hedge relationship.

The Group may designate certaln hedging instruments including derivatives as either falr value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of
net investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.
At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the refationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
itern, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument that Is used in 2 hedging
relationship & highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged em.

Fair value hedges

Hedges are classified as fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability.
Changes In the fair valye of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the
fair value of the hedging Instrumant and the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the line of the
income statement relating to the hedged item, Hedge accounting s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship,
the hedging instrument expires o is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment
10 the carrying amount of the hedged Item artsing from the hedged risk ks amortised to the income statement from that date.

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in cash flows that are attributable to a particufar
risk associated with either a recognised asset or Bability or a forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity within the Group’s translation and hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to any ineffactive portion is recognised immediately
n the income statement.

Amgunts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are redassified to the income statement in
the periods when the hedged item is recognised in the income statement, in the same fine as the recognised hedged item. However,
when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-finandal asset or a non-financial llability, the gains
and lasses previously accurmulsted In equity are transferred from equity and included In the inidal measurement of the cost of the
nor-financial asset or non-financial Kability. Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised
In cther comprehensive income at that time b accumulated In equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in the Income statement. When a forecast transaction ks no longer expected to occur, the galn or loss accurnulated In
equity Is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basls of preparation and significant accounting pelicies continued

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges are classified as net investment hedges when they hedge the foreign currency exposure to changes in the Group’s share in the net
assets of a foreign operation. Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain

or loss on the hedging Instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the Group's transtation and hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion Is recognised immediately
in the income statement. Gains or losses on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in equity
are reclassified to the income statement in the samne way as exchange differences relating to the foreign operation as described above.

Leasing

Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits inddental to ownership of the leased tem, are
caphtalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased item or, if lower, 3t the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease kabifity so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabRlty. Finance charges are changed directly to the income statement.

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated Iife of the asset or the lease term.

Leases whena the lessor retains substantially ait the risks and banefits incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating
leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an experse In the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Any lease Incentives are amortised on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable period for which the Group has contracted to lease
the asset, together with any further terms for which the Group has the option to comtinue to lease the asset If, at the inception of the
lease, it is judged to be reasonably certain that the Group will exercise the option.

Provislons

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resulkt of a past event and It is probable
that an outtiow of resources embodying econcmic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to sny provision is prasented in the income statement net of any reimbursement. if the effect of the time value of
money Is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks speciic to the Bability. Where discounting Is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a borrowing cost.

Onenous contract provisions (OCPs) arise when the unavoidable costs of meeting contractual obligations exceed the remuneration
expected to be received. Unavoidable costs incdude total contract costs together with a rational allocation of shared costs that can
bedirectly inked to fulfifling contractual obligations which have been systematically aflocated to OCPs on the basis of key cost drivers
except where this is impracticable, where contract revenue is used as a proxy to activity. The provision is calculated as the lower of the
termination costs payable for an early @xit and the expected net cost to fulfil the Group's unavoidable contract obligations. Where a
customer has an option to etend a contract and Rt is ltkely that such an extension will be made, the expected net oost arising during
the extension period ks included within the calculation. However, where a profit can be reasonably expected in the extension period,
no credit is taken on the basts that such profits are uncertain given the potentisl for the customer to either not extend or offer an
extension under lower pricing terms.

Share-based payments

The Group aperates & number of executive and employee share optian schemes, Equity-settied share-based payments to employees
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value exciudes the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions. For grants of share options and swarcds, the fair value as at the date of grant is caloulated using the Black-Scholes
model, Monte Cario mode! or the share price at grant date, and the corresponding expense s recagnised on a straight-iine basis over
the vesting period based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity Instruments axpected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market based vesting conditions. Save
As You Eam {SAYE) options are treated as cancelied when employees caasa to contribute to the scheme, resulting in an acceleration of
the remainder of the related expense. Restricted shares are issued attached with a condition that the refevant recipient continues their
employment with the Group for a fbeed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares If the reciplent leaves
employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.
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1. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Own shares

Own shares relate to shares gifted to the Employes Trust by the Company. The cash cost of own shares creates an own shares reserve,
When options issued by the Employee Trust are exercised the own shares reserve is reduced and a gain or loss Is recognised in
reserves based on proceeds less weighted-average cost of shares inttially purchased now exercised.

Included in the own shares reserve are restricted shares which are issued as part of acquisitions made by the group. The restricted
shares are issued attached with a condition that the relevant recipient continues their employment with the Group for a faed vesting
period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves employment with the Group prior to completion
of the vesting pericd of the shares,

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a number of defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying employees. Payments to the
defined contribution and stakeholder pension schemes are charged as an expense as they fali due.

In addition, the Group operates and participates In a number of defined benefit schemes. in respect of the schemes in which the
Group participates, the Group actounts for its legal and constructive obligations over the period of its participation whichisfora
fived period only.

For the defined benefit pension schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses on obiigatians, the return on scheme assets
(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset celling (if applicable) are recognised In full in the period in which they ocour. They are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Current service cost and past service cost {induding curtailments] are recognised in the income statement, in either administrative
expenses or other items, whilst the net interest cost is recognised in finance costs.

The retirement benefit liabllity recognised in the balance sheet reprasents the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as
reduced by the fair vaiuve of scheme assets, Any asset resulting from this cakculation is imited (o the present value of avallable refunds
and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

The Group participates in four multl-employer pension schemes. For three of these schemes the Group’s share of the assets and
Kabilities Is minirmal. The fourth scheme Is the Plumbing 8 Mechanical Services (UK} Industry Pension Scheme {the Plumbing Scheme)
a funded multi-employer defined benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 employers,
with circa 400 remaining. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the
assets and Habilities of the schema which are attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group acoounts for its contributions as i
they were paid to a defined contribution scheme.

For schermes where sufficient Information is not available to use definred benefit accounting, no liability is recognised on the balance
sheet, however, the obligations are disclosed as contingent Babilities in Note 34,
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Notas to the consolidated finandial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

1. Basls of preparation and significant acoounting policies continued

Revenue under IAS 11 and IAS 18 in relation to prior year

Revenue represents income recognised in respect of services provided during the period (stated net of sales taxes) and is eamed
predominantly within the United Kingdom. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow
to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. When revenue s recognised but has not yet been billed accrued income
arises. Deferred income arises when the Group has billed dients in advance of recognising revenue.

Al bid costs are expensed through the income statement up to the point where contract award or full recovery of the costs is virtually
certain. The confirmation of the preferred bidder for a contract by a dient Is the point at which the award of a contract Is considered to
be virtually cestain.

Revenue from a contract to provide servioes is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract at the balance sheet
date. Revenue from time and material contracts is recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours and tasks are defivered and
direct expenses incurred. In other cases, the Group distinguishes between the following types of contract:

Revenue recognition: repeat service-based contracts {single and bundled contracts)

Revenue is recognised on a straight-iine basis unless this is not an accurate reflection of the work performed. Where a straight-ine
basis Is not appropriate, for example if specific works on contracts reprasent a significant element of the whole, revenue ks recognised
based on the percentage of completion method, based on the proportion of costs incurred at the balance sheat date relative to the
total estimated cost of completing the contracted work.

Costs incurred, after the confirmation of preferred bidder, that are specific casts incurned to ensure that the project or programme has
appropriate onganisational, operstional and technical infrastructures and mechanisms in place 1o enable the dalivery of full services
undar the contract target operating model are defined as mobilisation costs. These costs are iIncluded within trade and other
receivables on the batance sheet provided that the costs relate directly to the contract, are separately identifiable, can be measured
reliably and that the future net cash inflows from the contract are estimated to be no less than the amounts capitalised.

Such costs may be incurred when a contract Is awarded, or when there is a subsequent change in the soope of contracted services. The
mobilisation costs are amortised over the contracted perind {induding any contracted extension periods), generally on a stralght-line
basis, or on a basis to refiect the profile of work to be performed over the contracted period if the straight-line basls is not considered
to be appropriate for the specific contract to which the costs relate. If the contract becomes loss making, any unamortised costs are
written off and the expected loss is provided for immediately.

mm:wmm
The Group has a number of long-tarm contracts for the provision of complex project-based services, predominantly integrated facllities
management contracts. These are contracts which are transformational in nature and usually five years In inttial duration,

In this context, transformational means that the cost to the dlient over the life of the contract is reduced as a result of significant
transformations in service provision. Typicatly, these contracts are priced to average the annual charge to the client over the contract
period and involve the provision of multiple service fines, with a single management team providing an integrated service,

Whene the cutcome of such complex project-based contracts can be measured reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date. This is measured by the proportion of contract costs
incurred for work performed to date compared to the total estimated contract costs using the percentage of completion methodology.

Contract costs used to determine the stage of complation are recognised in the income statement as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred and include transition costs, which are similar in nature to mobilisation costs under repeat service-based contracts. Transition
costs are expanses Incurmed in the performance of transitioning services provided afver confirmation of prefesved bidder and before
commencement of full services under the contract tanget operating modal; no profit mangin Is recognised for these transition costs,

Contract costs also include transition costs arising when there is a subsequent change in the scope of contracted services and include
budgeted cost savings. Where the cutcome of a complex project-based contract cannat be estimated refiably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent that i is probable that contract costs will be recovered. Full provision i made for all known or anticipated
losses on each contract immediately as iosses are forecast. in a number of long-term complex contracts, the achievement of certain
key performance indicators {KPis) is a significant milestone which enables revenue to be recognised. KPis are generally measured
contemporaneously with the performance of the service, rather than being measured over a long period or retrospectively.

150 www.mitis.com | The excaptional, every doy




2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated financial statements under IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect amounts recognised for assets and llabiiitles at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses
incurred during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from these hudgernents, estimates and assumptions.

The judgements and estimates which have the most significant effect on the reported result for the period and upon the carrying value
of assets and Nabilitles of the Group as at 31 March 2018 are described below.

Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue recognition policies, which are set out under IFRS 15 in Note 1(a) for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 and
under IAS 18 and IAS 11 in Note 1({b} in respect of prior years, are central to how the Group measures the work it has performed in
each financlal year.

The Group’s current policy under IFRS 15

Due to the size and complexity of the Group's contracts, management Is required to form a number of key judgements and
assumptions in the determination of the amount of revenue and profits to record, and related balance sheet items such as contract
assets, accrued Incorne and deferred incomea o recognise {refer to Note 1(a)). This includes an assessment of the costs the Group
incurs to deliver the contractual committments and whether such costs should be expensed as incurred or capitalised.

in addition, for certain contracts, key assumptions are made:

i. concerming contract extensions and amendments which, for exampie, directly impact the phasing of upfront payments from
customers which are recognised In deferred income and unwound over the expected contract berm; or
ii. where options are granted to customers leading to the recognition of a material right.

These judgements are inherently subjective and may cover future events such as the achievement of contractual performance targets
and planned cost savings or discounts.

The Group’s prior year policy under IAS 18 and IAS 11

The revenue recognised for certain long-term complex project-based services was based on the stage of completion of the contract
activity. This was measured by comparing the proportion of costs incurred, which include transition costs reflecting costs incurred in
the performance of transitioning services, against the estimatad whole-kfe contract costs, This required significant jucigements to be
made In forecasting the outcomes of the long-term contracts.

Particular judgement was required in evaiuating the operaticnal and financial business plans for these contracts to forecast the
expected whole-life contract billings, costs and margin and to assess the recoverability of any resutting accrued Income through the iife
of the contract. In forming the judgement around expected wholelife contract billings, account was taken of potential deductions
from and increments to revenue arising from the application of performance related reasures under contracts.

This required management to apply udgements and estimates that drew on the knowledge and experience of the Group's project
managers ang delivery teams together with the Group’s commercial and finance professionals. Whiist there may have been a broad
range of possibla outcomes basad on the relevant circumstances of the individual contract, the Group had controlks in place whereby all
significant contracts were reviewed on a monthly basls and reforecast quarterly.

The amounts recognised as revenue, profit and contract assets were sensitive to changes in assumptions, for exampla:

* Revenue measurement — In ine with the Group’s revenue recognition policy for long-term complex contracts, revenue was
recognised on these contracts to the extent that the outcome of the project could be reliably measured. For long-tenm complax
contracts this required judgements to be made on which elements of the contract could be accurately forecast. These contracts
would usually comprise fixed revenue streams, vasiable works and project works. Project works were not included as part of a long-
term complex contract on the basls that these amounts were discretionary and consequently could not be reliably forecast.
Therefore, these projects were accounted for separately. The revenue streams that could be reliably forecast comprised the fixed
elements (for example for ongoing cleaning and security services) and variable works.

* Contract profitability and costs to compiete — long-term complex contracts are transformational in nature and there is 2
commitment to work In partnership with the dient from the outset of the contract to drive significant cost savings and efficiencies
throughout the life of the contract. During the mobilisation of a contract a target operating model is deveioped. This target
operating model shows how the sevvices that are part of the contract will be delivered during the contract and Is subject to a
continuous review/improvement process throughout the duration of the contract. The target operating model, cost saving
initiatives identified and revenue pipeline were combined into a financial plan for the individuil contract. Only cost saving inftlatives
that were considered 1o be reasonably certain in terms of timing and scale were included in the plan. Management's ability to
accurately forecast the costs to complete the contract involved judgements anround cost savings to be achieved over time,
anticipated profitabliity of the contract, as well as contract specific performance KPis. Where a contract was anticipated to make a
loss, these judgements were also relevant in determining whether or not an onerous contract provision was required and how this
was to be measured.
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Notes to the consofidated financial statements continued
For the year andad 31 March 2018

2. Critical accounting Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

* Renegotiation of terms ~ the Group often entered into renegotiations of existing contract terms such as the iming or the
specifications of the services to be deivered. Depending on the outcome of such negotiations, the timing and amount of revenue
recognisad may have been different.

« Recoverability of contract related assets — linked to the profitabliity of contracts above, management was akso required to determine
the recoverability of contract related assets, accrued income and accounts receivable., Judgement was required in determining
whether or not the future economic benefits from contracts were sufficient to recover these contract assets.

Profit before other items

‘Other kbems’ are ems of finandial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the incorme
statement to assist in understanding the underlying financial parformance achieved by the Group, Determining whether an item
should be classified a5 other Items requires jJudgement as to whether an item is or is not part of the underlying performance of

the Group.

Other tems afver tax of £87.2m (2017: £153.5m) were charged 1 the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2018.
An analysis of the amounts included in other items is detalled in Note 4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units {CGUs) to which the
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use talculstion involves an estimation of the future cash flows of CGUs and also the selection
of appropriate discount rates to calculate the present values of those cash flows.

The carrying value of goodwill at 31 March 2018 was £309.6m (2017: £343.9m); see Note 13. A sensitivity analysis has been performed
and the Board has concluded, with the exception of the Property Management OGU, that no reasonably foreseeable change in the ley
assumptions would result in an impairment of the goodwill.

Due to a deterioration in market conditions which is expected to impact the performance of the Property Management CGU further
sensitivity testing was performed. On the basis of this review the Board concluded that a further Impairment of £34.6m was required
and this has been recorded during the year as outiined in Note 13, The impacts of changes in key assumgtions underpinning the
assessment of the carrying value of the Property Management goodwill sre set out In Note 13.

Recoverability of aged debtors and accrued income

The Group has material amounts of billed and unbilled work outstanding at year end as outlined in Note 17 . Where balances become
aged or subject to dispute the risk of recoverability Increases. As a consequence there is significant management judgement involved
In assessing the recoverability of these balances which Involves consideration of Group contractual rights, work performed as well

as the status of ongoing commerdal negotiations. In the current year the Group has recognised a valuation allowance of £17.3m
{2017: £16.2m} in respact of aged and disputed balances.

Provisions and contingent Rabilities

The Company and varlous of ks subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to legal proceedings and ciaims that are in the ordinary course of
business. Judgements ane nequired in order to assess whether these legal proceedings and claims are probable and the liability can be
reasonably estimated, resulting in a provision or, akematively, whether the ltems meet the definition of contingent Babilities.

Provisions are llabilities of uncertain iming or smount and therefore in making a rellabie estimate of the guantum and tming of
Nabilitles judgement Is applied and re-evaluated at each reporting date. The Group recognised provisions at 31 March 2018 of £31.5m
{2017: £26.8m). Further detatls are included in Note 28,

Measurament of defined benefit pansion obligations

The net pension Eability at 31 Manch 2018 was £56.8m (2017: £742m).

The measurement of defined benefit obligations requires judgement. It is dependent on materiai key assumptions inckiding

discount rates, life expectancy rates, and future contribution rates. see Note 37 for further detail and & sensitivity analysis for the

key assumptions.

The Group also participates in four multi-employer defined benefit pension schemes, Including the Plumbing 8 Mechanical Services
{UK) industry Pension Scheme (the Flumbing Scheme). The Group has a potential exposure to Section 75 employer debts in respect of

the Plumbing Scheme. Due to the inherent uncertainty regarding the amount of any liability this has been disclosed as a contingant
liability, see Note 34 and Note 37,
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3. Business segment information

The Group manages its business on a service division basis. At 31 March 2018, the Group has the following seven strategic divisions

which are its reportable segments and the information, as reported, is consistent with information presented to the Board. Revenue,
operating profit hefore other items and operating profit margin before other itkems are the primary measures of performance that are
reported to and reviewed by the Board, who is the Group's chief operating decision maker.

The information presented for the year ended 31 March 2017 has been restated to reflect changes in management reporting,
implemented in 2018, of certain business unit activities transferring between Engineering Services, Security, Professional Services and
Cleaning & Environmental Services and the splitting of Public Services into Care & Custody and Property Management.

Restated
ans 20174
Opamting Optrating
pwofit/foss) Operpiing proii/(los) Opersting
belore  margin before beforeother  marngin before
Raverue other kame® other Thoms* Revenue Toerne? othver kesvs?
£m £m » £m £m %
Engineering Services $40.7 458 54 789.1 {4.5) {0.6)
Security 432.0 5 64 403.7 178 44
Professional Services 90.2 &5 72 96.6 6.7 6.9
Cleaning & Environmental Services 4064 s 53 395.6 65 16
Care & Custady 599 19 a2 454 2.2 4.7
Catering 137.1 5.6 41 134.3 4.7 35
Property Management 237 A 73 31 257.7 {4.5) {1.7)
Corporate centre - (26.5) - - (35.2) -
Total from continuing operations 2.203.7 9.6 4.1 2,123.4 (6.3) {0.3)
Heakhcare - - - 59.2 {12.0 {20.3)
Total from discontinuad operations - - - 59.2 {12.0) {20.3)
Total 2.203.7 9.6 41 2,1826 (18.3) {0.8}
Nabes:
1. The Group has apphed IFRS 15 using the cumulstive effect method. Under this method, the comparstive information Is not restated. See Note 1.
1. Other ltums are a3 described in Note 4,
3. N single customer accounted for more than 10% of essemal revenue in 2018 or 2007,
4 The Group has restaied 2017 income stasemant and balence sheet as per Note 1, page 134,
A reconciliation of sagment operating profit/{loss) before other items to total loss before tax is provided below:
08 20un
m £m
Operating profit/{ioss) before othes items 89.56 {6.3)
Other tems? (979} (36.6}
Net finance cost: (16.4) (15.3)
Total from continuing operations {24.7) (58.2)
Operating loss before other items - (12.0)
Other lems? - {1232)
Total from discontinued operations - (135.2)
Loss before tax {24.7) (193.4}
Notes:

1. The Group has sppkied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information is not restated. See Nowe 1.

2. Othef Hterms sre a3 desaribed in Note 4.

IFRS £ requires that a measure of segment assets should be disclosed only If that ameunt k regularly provided to the chief operating
dedision maker and consequently no segment assets are disclosed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

3. Business segment information continued
Geographical segments

Restated
] wn
Oparating Oparating
profit Oparting flo) Opersting
alore wangin balore before other margin before
Reverns other ere? ather ams® Revenue ttarns® othes Hems?
™ £m % £m Em %
United Kingdom 2,093.7 3 43 2,015.2 (4.8} {0.2)
Other countries 110.0 03 a3 108.2 (1.5} (1.4}
Continuing operations 2,203.7 96 4.1 2,1234 (6.3) {0.3)
United Kingdom - - - 59.2 {12.0) (20.3)
Other countries - - - - - -
Discontinued operations - - - 59.2 {12.0) {20.3)
Total 2,200.7 29.6 4.0 2,182.6 {18.3) {0.8)
Notes:
1. The Group has appliad IFRS 15 uing the cumalative effect method. Under this method, the comparstive info on is not restated. See Note 1.

2. Other items are as described in Note 4,

revenue

The Group disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by sector (government and non-government) and by contract
duration (contracts with a duration from inception of less than two years, and contracts with a duration from inception of more than
two years}. The Group believes this best depicts how the nature, timing and amourit of revenue and cash flows are affected by
economic factors. The following table includes a recondliation of disaggregated revenue with the Group's reportable segments.

20
Sector'  Qontract durstion for timing of revenus recognition
Now- Lam than More then

Govarmment SOverTRTENt Total 2ynany 2ywirs Toual

£m Im [ &m £m fm

Engineering Services 330.6 510.1 840.7 876 7531 840.7

Security s 481 4320 55.7 3763 4320

Professional Services 80 2.2 90.2 61 841 90.2

Cleaning & Enwironmental Services | 1 ] 3166 4064 - 4064 4064

Care & Custody 599 - 599 - 59.9 599

Catering 4.6 1325 1371 16 1355 1371

Property Management 194.4 43.0 2374 4.2 932 2574

Continuing oparstions 72 14325 2,203.7 295.2 1,908.5 2,203.7

Noes:
1. The Group hes applled IFRS 15 using the curnulative effect method. Under this mathod, the comparative information It not restaied and s thered p d as part of
this snelysis. See Note 1.

2. Sectoris defined by the and austomes on any contract e.g, # the Group is 2 sub-contractor to & construcion company for the bullding of a pubilic hospieal, then the contract
woudd be clagsified 235 govasrrnem
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3. Business segment information continued

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The table below shows the forward order book for each segment at the reporting date with the time bands of when the Group expects
o recoghise secured revenue on its contracts with customers. Secured revenye comresponds to fixed work contracted with customers
and excludes the impact of any anticipated contract extensions, and new contracts with customers.

Totl

Lows then Morethan securad

1y 1yeer ravenue

tm tm m

Enginesting Services 3833 16809 20642
Security 300.1 340.7 5403
Professional Services 218 53.7 755
Cleaning & Emvironmental Services 219.0 a3 6613
Care & Custody 100.8 569.3 670.1
Catering 8.2 26.5 34.7
Property Management 107.7 2410 348.7
Total 1,200.9 3,2944 4,4953

4. Otheritems

Other ltams are iterns of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the income
statement to assist in understanding the undertying financial performance achieved by the Group.

The Group separately reports the impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programmes, acquisition and disposal costs
including the write-oif and amartisation of acquisition related Intangible assets, the results of and costs associated with disposals, and
other exceptional items and their related tax effect as Other items:

208
Acapisition & Other
impeimantof  Restruchae dspoisl esceptionsl
goodwll ooels  relkabed coets R Totst
Continuing operations £m &m £m £m £
Administrative expenses {34.5) {82.3) {6.4) {7.6) (972.9)
Other Rems befors tax (34.5) (473) (s4) .8 92.9)
Tax - 3.8 04 1.5 10.7
Other itemas after tax {34.6) {38.5) {8.0) (6.1) (82.2)
297
Accuiskion &
Impairaant of Restructhure disposal Healthcare
[ costs  elated costs disposal Totel
Contirning operstions £m £m £m £m £m
Administrative expenses {15.0) {14.9) {6.7) - {36.6)
Other ems before tax {15.0} {14.9} {6.7) - (36.6)
Tax - 3.0 1.1 - 4.1
Other items after tax (15.0) {11L9) {56} - (325)
Discontinuad cperations
Other tems after tax (81.1) {0.3) (9.2) {304) {121.0)
Total (96.1) {12.2) {14.8) {30.4) {153.5)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

4, Other items continued

Impairment of goodwill
Management has assessed the recoverability of the goodwill allocated to the Property Management GGU and has recognised an
impairment charge of £34.6m (2017: £15.0m). See Note 13 for further details.

Impakrment of goodwill from discontinued operations relates to the lmpairment of the remaining carrying value of goodwill for the
Healthcare CGU of €nll {2017: £81.1m).

Restructure costs

The restructure costs relate to costs of organisational change associated with the Group’s Project Helix transformation programme
inchsding the Lansition costs associated with the outsourcing of certain back-office transactional processes,

These costs are analysed below:

20318 Continuing  Discontinued w7

Totsi  aperations  operations Total

£m £m £m £m

Redundancy payments {including those in respect of Project Hellx

transformation activities?) (a.9) 9.2) {0.3) {9.5)
Cost of change team® (5.5) (3.4 - (3.4)
Expenditure and provisions in respect of propesty closure? (4.8 23) {0.1) 24)
Expenditure In respect of Project Helix transformation activities® {r8) - - -
impairment of intangible assets® (104) - - -
Restructuring costs (47.3) (14.9) (0.4) {15.3)
Taxation &8 30 0.1 3.1
Restructuring costs net of taxstion (38.5) (11.9) {0.3) {12.2)

MNobes:

1 nchades £34.7m In respect of the Project Hellx ransformetion activities.

2. Costs I respect of roles made recundant s a result of the Project Heltx transformation and other projects 40 restructure the Group’s acivities.

3. incremantsl costs of tesms imolved in the design and exoecution of Project Helix transformation

4. Costs In respect of proparly dilspidetions, lease termination, snd asset impairments oystalised following decisions to wacate certain of the Grouy's properties as part of the
overall Project Heltx ransformation.

S Expenditure in respect of Project Helli transformation projects incudes #0 6m nf nnitmant costs in recpect of achieving the new tanget aperating model, ER.7m relied to
Muni.-dhmrmmupmdhw-ﬁdl-mﬂ%dﬁ-wamwrdmdmmh
mdmnmmmwhﬂuwmdum

6 impairmant of intangible sssets relate 4o p mu.nmuwumnhmﬁmh* ding th L3
badk-office activities. Sen Note 14,

ransactionsl

Acquistion and disposal related costs

Acaquisition and disposal relsted costs from continuing npamtions include the impairment and amaortisation charge for acquisition
related intangibles £2.6m (2017: £5.5m), the charge for restricted shares issued per Note 33 of £3.4m (2017: £nil), the accryal of
contingent consideration that is required to be treated 23 remuneration Enll (2017: £0.9m), other acquisition costs £ndl (2017 £0.3m),

vosts of £2.2m {2017: £nil) relating to the aborted disposal of the Proparty Management business, and £0.2m {2017: £30.4m —
inclutied within discontinued operations) related to the disposal of the Healthcare divison.

Acquisition related costs from discontinued operations relate to the impairment and amortisation of acquisition refated intangibles of
£nil (2017: £9.2m).
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4. Other items continued

Other exceptional items
Other exceptional items are analysed below:

ms 2007

£m £m

Contract termination receipt! 20 -
Settlement of contractual dispute? {33} -
Pension scheme past service costs {including curtaiiments)® 1.9 -
Regulatory investigation* 2.3 -
IFRS 15 adoption project® (o8 -
Property dilapidations* (1.3) =
Other axceptional kems (7.5) -
Taxation 1.5 -
Other exceptional ks net of taxation (6.1) -

Notes:

1 mmdmmmhunmnmmmm:mmdmmmwm.m-mnm
separately due 1o the size of the peyments reccived and the fact that the loss of contracts of this stee Is an unusual event for the Group.

2. The settiement oF s long standing contractual dispute for which a provision of £0.7m wits made in the year ended 31 March 2017, which will result In 2 cash outflow of £4m
during the vear ending 31 March 2019, This smount is discosed sepsrately due ta the size of the settiement and the fact that the contract ended several years ago and so
has not contributed 19 the results in either the cument or prior year. in the Interim Fnanciat Statements for the six ths ended 30 Septernber 2017 this t not
separately disdosed 35 Other items within the “Loss from discontinued operations”. Following the decision not ti procsad with the disposal of the Property Maragement
dinigion the results of this sctivity have bean raciacsified a3 continuing aperations snvd consequently seperate disdosure of this smournt a8 Otfver lterms is considered
sppvopriste to enable understanding of the continuing results of the Group.

3. As sresult of the dosure of the Mitie Group Pic Pansion Schema to future acousl, 2 past sarvice cost (induding curtaliments) of £1.9m has been inasved. See Note 37 for
further detalls.

4. Lagsl and professionsl costs of £2.3m have been incurred in respect of the now dosed FRC investigation into the Comparny's tredment of heslthoare goodwil and acorued
k in the Company’s audited for the year ended 31 March 2018, the ongoing FCA Investigation in conmeciion with the timeliness of a profit weming
armounced by the Compary on 19 Septernber J016, the manner of praparation aid content of the Company’s financial information, posttion and results for the period
ended 31 March 2016, ancl regerding the Company’s own investigetion ko the same matters, facts and droumstances which sre subject to FCA snd FRC investigation.

5. Professionsl fees and interim staff msts of £0.8m have beeninosrred In respeet of the project to adopt IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’,

6. As part of tha rationalisation of the Group’s property portichio a review of the potental Kabilities for leasehold property diapidetion costs has been carried out. This review
has resulted n 8 one-off £1.3m charge.

Healthcare disposal
During the year ended 31 March 2017 the Group decided to withdraw from the domiclliary healthcare market and completed the sale
of the Healthcare division on 28 February 2017. See Note 5 for further details.
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Notes to the consolidated finandal statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries

There were no disposals in the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

In the financial year ended 31 March 2017 the Board took the decision to withdraw from the domiciliary healthcare market. The sale of
the Healthcare division completed on 28 February 2017, The disposat resulted in the control of Enars Group Limited {Enara) and
Complete Care Holdings Umited {Complate Care) passing to Apposite Capital LLP {apposite) for £2. in addition, the Group agreed to
contribute £9.5m towards the trading losses of the business and the turnaround plan which was pald In full in the financial year ended
31 March 2018. A further £0.2m was incurred in financlal year ended 31 March 2018,

The trading results of the Heafthcare business were classified as discontinued aperations in the year of disposal as defined by IFRS S
‘Non-currert assets held for sale and discontinued operations’.

The net assets of Healthcare at the date of disposal were as follows:

07
Em
Non-curvent assets
Other intangible assets 15
Property, plant and equipment 1.1
Deferred tax assets 04
Total non-current assets 30
Quirant assets
Trade and other receivables 14.7
Cash and cash equivalents 1.7
Total current assets 164
Total assets 19.4
i Curvent Nabiitles
‘ Trade and other payables {5.3}
Financing liabllities (0.1)
Current tax liabifities t0.4)
Total asrent Rebilitias {5.8)
Net assets 136
Deferred comribution payable to purchaser 9.5
Other costs of disposal 73
Total consideration -
Loss on disposal {30.4)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal:
2007
£m
Consideration on disposal -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of 1.7

1.7
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5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries continued

The resuits of the Healthcare discontinued operations in the year ended 31 March 2017 ane presented below:
2017

Revenus 592
Cost of sales (a8.2)
Gross profit 104
Administrative expenses (22.4)
Operating loss hafore other tems (12.0
Other items {1232)
Operating loss hefore tax (1352}
Tax 28
Loss from discontinued operations for the year (132.4)

Of the £2.8m of tax credits induded in the above resuits, £2 2m relates to other Rems.
The effect of discontinued operations on segment results in 2017 is disclosed in Note 3,

f‘:sh flows from discontinued operations included in the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2017 are as
lows:

o
Net cash flows from operating activities (after tax) (8.8)
Net cash flows from investing activities (04)
Net cash flows from financing activities -

9:2)
6. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit has baen arrived at after charging:

00 7

Continuing and discontinued opart £m £m
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 15) 128 141
Amortisation of other Intangible assets {Note 14) 13.5 238
Impalrment of goodwill (Note 13) 346 96.1
impairment of acquisition related Intangible assats {Note 14) - 101
impalrment of other intangible assets (Note 14) 104 3.0
Loss on dispotal of property, plant and equipment - 1.0
Loss on disposal of subsidiary {Note 5) - 304
impairment loss recognised on trade receivables {Note 17) 23 139
Write-downs of inventories recognised as an expense - 1.4
Impairment loss recognised on accrued Income 03 45
Operating lease rentals 251 321
Note:

1 The Group has applied 1FRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information s not restated. See Note L.
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Nates to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

6. Operating profit/(loss) continued

A detailed analysis of auditor’s remuneration is provided below:

2018 207

£on0 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts — BDO LLP 40 -
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its assoclates for the audit of the Company’s
subsidiaries pursuant to legisiation —8DO LLP 1,151 -
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts — Deloitte LLP - 480
Fees payable to the Compary’s auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company’s
subsidiaries pursuant to legisiation — Deloitte LLP 7 1037
Total sudit fees 1,288 1,077
Other audit related services 1o the Group — 8DO LLP 93 -
Qther audit related services 10 the Group — Deloitte LLP - 70
Tax services ~ BDO LLP 6 -
Tax services ~ Deloltte LLP - 85
Other services — Deloitte LLP - 15
Total non-audit fees 99 370
Total 1387 1,247
7. Staffcosts
Numnber of peapie 2018 2017
The average number of people employed during the financlal year was:
Engineering Services 8176 8545
Security 14,804 13,441
Professional Services 672 333
Cleaning & Environmental Services 22099 24454
Care & Custody 1,051 897
Catering 2,505 2,652
Property Management 230 2,458
Corporate Centre 37 43
Healthcare - 3,416
Total Group 51,666 56,279
The number of people employed at 31 March was:

018 2007
Total Group 48,978 52,798

ams 2017
Astregate remuneration compried o =
Wages and sataries 10207 10689
Social security costs 771 822
Other pension costs 170 16.7
Share-based payments {(Note 36) 12 6.2
Share-based payments acquisition related costs {Notes 4 and 35) 34 -
Toal 11194 1,174.0
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7. Staff costs continued

Details of directors’ remuneration is provided below:

018 017

£m &m

Directors’ emoluments 21 32
Sharebased payments 0.6 13
Toke 27 45

None of the direciors accrued benefits under the defined benefit scheme, or were members of the defined contribution schemes for

the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017.

The total amount payable to the highest paid director in respect of emoluments was £1.1m (2017: £0.5m).

8. Investment revenue

Ipterest on bank deposits

glsd

9. Finance costs

Contiring operstions

2047

Interest on bank facilities

Inttrest on private placement loan notes

Bank fees

Interest an obligations under finance leasas

Unwinding of discounts on provisions

Loss arising on fair value hedges

Net interest on defined benefit pension scheme assets and Rabilities

31
9.6
10
02

0.1
13

Totel

Bleee, peplel

15.3

10. Tax

Comnuing and discontinued operations.

wo0r

Curment tax
Deferred tax {Note 21}

{09)
(93)

Tax charge/(credit) for the year

(10.2)

Comtinuing operations
Discontinued operations {Note 5)

(74)

Tax charge/(credit} for the year

Ble b 1612 %ol

{10.2}

The excaptional, everydoy | www.mitie.com

161



Notes to the consolidated financial staternents continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

10. Tax continued

Corporation tax Is calculated at 19% (2017: 20%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year. A reconcillation of the tax charge to the

elements of loss before tax per the consolidated income statement elements is as follows:

ms 2017
Rafore Othar Before Other

okher Rems ens Totsl  other ltems Hams Total
Continuing and discontinued opertions £m £m £m £ £m Em
{Loss)/profit before tax B2 {97.9) {24.7} (33.6) {159.8) (193.4)
Tax at UK rate of 19% (2017: 20%) 139 {18.6) (%) 6.7) (32.0) (38.7)
Reconciling tax charges for:
Non-tax deductible charges 0.5 11 1.6 04 03 0.7
Share-based payments 0.1) - {o.) 08 - (13 ]
Loss on disposal of business - - - - 6.1 6.1
Impaiment of goodwill - 5.6 86 - 19.2 192
Overseas tax rates 0.3} - {o.3) o1 - 041
Impact of change In statutory tax rates 0.1 0.2 03 1.2 0.1 13
Prior year adjustments {21 - {2.1) 03 - 03
Tax charge/{credit) for the year 120 {10.7) 13 {3.9) (6.3} {10.2)
Effective tax rate for the year 164% 10.9% {sape 11.5% 39% 5.3%
Nota:

1. The Group has applied IFRS 15 wsing the csmulative affect method. Under this method, the: comperailive information is not restated. See Note 1.

In addition to the amounts charged to the consolidated income statement, tax relating to retirement benefit costs amounting to a
£3.4m charge (2017: £5.5m credit} has been taken dinectly to the statement of comprehensive income together with a £0.1m credit

relating to share-based payments and hedged items (2017: £0.3m credit).

The effective tax rate on profit before other items is generally higher than the statutory tax rate due to entertaining costs, commercial
property depreciation and slidte-based payiment dieges not being wholly tax deductible anud Lax ksses incut red uvetseds, However,
as losses were Incurmed in 2018 and 2017 the effective rate is lower than the statiutory tax rate due to permanent differences such as
those described above. In addition the 2018 figure was impacted by prior year adjustments, whilst the 2017 figure was impacted by a

change in tax rates.

The UK corporation tax rate reduced from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017 and will reduce to 17% from 1 April 2020, This will reduce the
Group's future current tax charge accordingly. The UK deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 March 2018 have been adjusted to reflect

these changes. A currem tax provision is recognised when the Group has a present cbligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.

11. Dlvidends

1

Amounts recognised as distributions in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2017 of nil (2016: 6.7p) per share
interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 1.33p (2017: 4.0p) per share

233
141

)

Amounts paid In 2018 and 2017

374

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of 2.67p {2017: nil) per share 98
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12. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earmings per share have been cakulated in accordance with IAS 33 ‘Eamings per share’.
The calculation of the basic and diluted EPS is based on the following data:

m8 017
from tonfimuing operations tm £
Net profit/(loss) before other items attributable to equity holders of the parent 60.1 (19.3)
QOther items net of tax {87.2) {32.5)
Net loss attributable to equity holders of the parent {27.1) {51.6)
" 2017
From cominuing and dscontinued operations tn £m
Net profit/(loss) before other ems attributable to equity holders of the parent 60.1 (30:5)
Other lems net of tax (87.2) {153.5)
Net loss attributable to equity holders of the parent {22.1) {184.0)
2018 07
Nurnber of sheres milllon millon
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic EPS 3579 351.0
Effect of diiutive potential ordinary shares: share options 19 37
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of diluted EPS 3598 354.7
28 2017
» P
From continuing operations:
Basic eamings/{loss) before other items per share? 158 (55)
Basic loss per share [7.6) {14.7)
Diluted eamings/({loss) before other items per share™® i68 (5.5)
Dilutad loss per share 7.6} (14.7)
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic eamnings/(loss) before other Items per share? 168 (8.7}
Bask: loss per share (7.6) {52.4)
Diluted earnings/{loss) before other items per share®® 158 (8.7)
Diluted loss per share (7.6) {52.4)
Notes;

L The Group hat splied FRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comperative information is not restated. See Note 1.
2. Other hems are as describad in Noke 4.
3. Prior year diiuted logs pes share has been restated to enclude the effects of snti-diiutive potentisl ardinary shares.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excludes those accounted for in the own shares reserve (see
Note 32).

The dilutive potential ordinary shares relate to instruments that could potentially dikste basic eamings per share in the future, such as

share options. The loss for the year means that the identifled potentially dilutive shares are anti-diiutive for the purposes of calculating
dilluted eamings per share,
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Notes to the consolidated financia! statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

13. Goodwill
£m

Cost
At 1 April 2016 455
Change In consideration C&C Health (0.1)
Disposal of subsidlary (107.1)
Impact of forelgn exchange 0.6
At 1 April 2017 3589
Impact of foreign exchange 0.3
At 31 March 2018 3592
Accumulsted impalrment losses
At 1 April 2016 26.0
impairment of healthcare goodwill 5 B
Impairment of property goodwiki 150
Disposal of subsidiary (107.1)
At1AprH 2017 15.0
Impairment of property goodwill 346
At 31 March 2018 8.6
Carrying smount
AR 31 March 2018 309.6
At 31 March 2017 339
At 1 April 2016 a3ns

impairment of Mitie Property Management goodwiil

Taking into account the current and forecast market conditions of the Property Management business, the Group has further impaired
the Property Management goodwill by £34.6m in the 2018 financial year.

Further detall on the impalrment, including sensitivity analysis is presented below.

impairment of Healthcare goodwill

in 2017 the Group undertook an Iimpairment review of the goodwill and intangible assets associated with the Healthcare business. This
reassessment of the estimate of the recoverable amount of the Healthcare cash-generating unit (CGU) resulted In impairment of the
remalning tarrying vakse of goodwill and acquisition related intangible assets for the Healthcare CGU in the 2017 financlal year.
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13. Goodwill continued
Goodwill impalrment testing

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is aliocated, at acquisition, to the CGUS that are expected to benefit from that business

combination

Goodwill has been allocated to CGLs, which align with the business segments, as this is how goodwill is monitared by the Group
internally. The goodwill allocated 1o the Public Services CGU, which consisted of the Property Management and Care & Custody
activities in the prior year, related only to Property Management and has been assigned as such in the table below. The Group tests
goudwill at least annually for impalrment or more frequently If there are indicators that goodwill may be impalred.

A summary of the goodwlll balances and the discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from each CGU are as follows:

Pradax  posttax discount Goodwil Goodwil

disoount rets raie 2018 o7

% % £m £m

Engineering Services 98 8.2 1078 1075

Security 9.8 82 10L7 1017

Professional Services 11.0 92 15.7 15.7

Clesning & Environmental Services 9.8 8.2 331 331

Catering 104 87 15.7 157

Property Management 13.0 10.6 356 202

Total 309.6 3439
Key assumptions

The recoverable amounts for each CGU are determined by the value in use which is derived from discourted cash flow calculations,
The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to
revenue and direct costs during the forecast period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The long-term growth rates are based on forecast
inflation. Changes in revenue and direct costs are based on past performance and expectations of future changes in the market,

operating model, and cost base,
Growth rates and terminal values

For all OGUs excluding Property Management tha Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent budgets for the
year ending 31 March 2019 which have been approved by the Bosrd, extrapolated for four future years by an expected growth rate of

1% and a terminal value using a long-term growth assumption of 1.75%.
The assumptions for Property Management are set out below.

Discount rates

The pre-tax discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from CGUs are derived from the Company’s post-tax Weighted
Average Cost of Capital, which was 7.7% at 31 March 2018 (2017: 7.3%), and is adjusted for the risks specific to the business being
assessed and the market in which the CGU operates. All OGUs have the same acoess to the Group’s treasury functions and borrowing

lines to fund their operations.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018

13. Goodwill continued

Sensitivity analysls

A sensitivity analysis has been performed and the Directors have concluded that no reasonably foreseeable change in the key
assumptions would result in an impairment of the goodwill of any of the Group’s 0GUs with the exception of the Property
Management CGU which Is described below. In particular a 13 increase in the discount rate or a 1% decrease in the terminal value
growth rate would not result in any change to the impaimment conclusions in any of the OGUs.

Review of the carrying value of goodwill for the Property Management OGU

During the 2018 financis! yesr the Group was engaged in a process to sell the Property Management CGU, by the half-year this process

was sufficiently well advanced for the division to be reported as a discontinued operation. Subsequently, due to mariet conditions, this
process was terminated on 5 December 2017 and consequently the division was reclassified as a continuing operation. As noted In the

Operating review the Property Management business has had a difficult year with market conditions, particularly in social housing, |
jeading to a reductian in revenue and continued pressure on operating margins.

In this context the Directors have taken a conservative approach to forecasting the future performance of Property Management, with
an assumption of no growth in revenue during the period to 31 March 2023, and an improvement In margins of only 25bps compared
to the budget for the year ending 31 March 2019 over the period to 31 March 2023. An improvement in macket conditions Is
anticipated after 31 March 2023, with growth in the terminal value period being In ine with inflation at 1.75%.

Having considered this scenario alongside a range of other scenarios, the Directors concluded that a further impairment of £34.6m
should be mada against the Property Management goodwill, resulting in a goodwill canrying value of £35.6m at 31 March 2018.

The impairment testing described above in respect of the Property Management CGU is dependent upon the accuracy of the
assumptions made in respect of future performance, the discount rate, and the growth during the tarminal value period.

The table below shows how the iImpalrment test would be impacted, all other factors being equal, by:

* an increase or decrease in the discount rate of 100bps;

» achange Iin market conditions such that year on year revenue growth increases or decreases by 100bps between 31 March 2020
and 31 March 2023;

* achange In projected profitability such that EBIT margin as » percentage of revenue increases or decreases by 100bps between
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2023;

* an Increase or decrease of 100bps in the growth rate in the terminal value period.

Incresse/idecraase in |
npainment
ncresge of Dacresse of
H0bps 100bys
£m £m
Disocount rate 5.1) 65
Year on year revenue growth FY20 to FY23 17 1.7
EBIT as a percentage of revenue FY20 to Fy23 144 {14.4)
Terminal value growth rate 4.7 3.7)

166 www.nide.com | The exceptional, every day




14. Other intangible assets

Actusisition related
Toial  Software and
Customer scouisition  development
relationships Other misted  ewpenditure Total
£m £m £m £m £m

Cost
At 1 April 2016 884 109 99.3 731 1724
Additions - - - 124 124
Disposal of subsidiary - - - (2.9) {2.9)
Reclassifications from propenty, plant and equipment (Note 15) - - - 145 14.5
impact of foreign exchange - - - 02 02
At 1 April 2017 884 109 99.3 973 196.6
Ackitions - - - 2.0 2.0
At 31 March 2018 884 109 95.3 1063 205.6
Amortisation
At 1 April 2016 669 9.2 76.1 31.7 1078
Charge for the year 64 04 68 17.0 238
impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 30 3.0
Impairment of acquisition related intangible assets 10.1 - 10.1 - 10.1
Disposal of subsidiary - - - {14} (14)
Impact of foreign exchangs - - - 01 0.1
At 1 April 2017 834 96 930 504 1434
Charge for the year 22 04 .6 10,9 13.5
impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 104 10.4
At 31 March 2018 856 10.0 95.6 71.7 1673
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2018 28 0.9 3.7 34.6 383
At 31 March 2017 50 13 8.3 46.9 532
At 1 April 2016 215 1.7 3.2 41.4 64.6

Customer relationzhips are amortised over thelr useful livat based on the period of time over which they arc anticlpated to generate

benefits, These currently range from four to eight years. Other acquisition related intangibles include acquired software and

technology which are amortised over their useful lives which currently range from three to ten years. Software and development costs
are amortised over their useful ives of between five and ten years, once they have been brought into use.

During the 2018 financial year the Group has undertaken a reassessment of the useful economic Bife of software and development

expenditure related intangible assets. As a result of the establishment of a new central database and the outsourcing of finance

transactional processes, the decision was taken to impair software and development assats that will no longer be in use going forward.

An impairment of £10.4m was recognised within restructure costs In other items in the financial year (see Note 4).

Following the dedision to withdraw from the domiciliary healthcare market, the customer relationships refating to the heakhcare
business were impairment tested and an impairment of £10.1m was recognised within acquisition and disposal related costs in other

items In the 2017 financial year (see Note 4).

Reclassifications from property, plant and squipment in 2017 relate to completed software and development expenditure which was

held in plant and vehicles whilst being developed,
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15. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold teasehokd Plarit sndt
properties  properties vehices Total
£m £m £m £m

Cost
AL 1 April 2016 16 188 1020 1224
Additions - 03 144 A7
Reclassifications to other intangible assats (Note 14) - - (14.5) {14.5)
Disposals (0.3) (2.3} (253} {z79)
Disposal of subsidiaries - {0-1) {5.3} {54)
Impact of foreign exchange - 0.1 0.2 0.3
At 1April 2017 13 168 715 89.6
Additions 0.2 49 10.7 158
Redlassifications within property, plant and equipment - 0.2 t0.2) -
Disposals {12} (08} 2.4 (4.4)
Impact of foreign exchange = - = =
At 31 March 2018 6.3 21.1 79.6 101.0
Accumulatad deprecigtion and impalment
At 1 April 2016 05 9.8 628 ni
Charge for the year - 15 126 14.1
Disposals {0.1) 0.7 (25.) {25.9)
Disposal of subsidiaries - - {4.3) {4.3)
impact of forelgn exchange - - 0.3 0.3
At 1 April 2017 T 04 10.6 463 573
Charge for the year - 1.7 1.1 128
Reclassifications within property, plant and equipment - 0.2 0.2) -
Disposals (0.3} (03) (2.1) 27
Impact of forelgn exchange - - - -
At 31 March 2018 0.1 12.2 55.1 674
Carrying smount
At 31 March 2018 0.2 8.9 24.5 336
At 31 March 2017 09 6.2 25.2 32.3
At 1 April 2016 11 9.0 39.2 493

The net book value of plant and vehicles held under finance leases included above was £0.7m (2017: £2.8m).
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16. interestin joint ventures and associates

The Group has a 30% interest in an assoclate, Pyramid Plus South LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in the
United Kingdom. The Group's interest in the associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method.

The surnmarised financial information set out below for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been taken from unaudited management
accounts of the associate.

2008 017

£m £m

Revenue 122 123
Operating profit 26 19
Group's share of profit of associste 0.8 06
s 2017

£ £m

Current assets 38 27
Current abillties (1.2) (0.7}
Net assets 26 2.0
Group’s share of interest in assoclate 0.8 0.6

During the 2018 financial year the Group received dividends from Pyramid Plus South LLP of £0.6m {2017: £0.6m).

There are no significant restrictions on the ability to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or
advances made by the Group.

17. Trade and other recelvables

Restatad
2008 27
[ £
Amounts receivable for the sale of services 223 2018
Provision for doubtful debts {12.3) (16.2)
Trade recelvables® 205.0 1856
Accrued income® 1314 1425
Accrued income on long-term complex contracts (Note 18) - 0.2
Amounts recoverable on construction contracts - 151
Mobilisation costs (Note 19} - 210
Prepayments 213 27
Other debtors 283 238
Total 386.0 4459
Inciuded in current assets 38960 31956
Included In non-current assets* - 50.3
Total 286.0 4459
Nakes:

1. The Group has spplied IFAS 1S using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative information is not restated. Sex Mot 1.

2 Asin the prior yess, the Group has made use of 8 nonracourse customes invalce disoounting faciity under which certain trade receivable balsnces are sold to the Group's
relationship banks. The Group reduced the amount of Involas discounting from £130.7m 2s at 31 March 2017 40 £76.3m as at 31 March 2018. As these trade veceivables are
sold without recourse the Group has derecogrised them, and sothey are not Included in trade recehgbles.

3. Accrued income relates 10 revenue recognised, but unbillied st the year and.

4. Non-current trade and other receivebles comprise acoued income on long-term complex contracts of £nil {2017: £40.8m) and mobilisation costs of £nll (2017: £9.5m) which
are further analysad in Notas A8 and 19 respectively.

5. The Group has restated 2017 income stasternestt and balance sheet &5 per Note 1, page 134,
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17. Trade and other receivables continued

Ageing of trade receivables:
008 e
tm £m
Neither impaired nor past due 163.6 1594
Not impaired and less than three months overdue I7A 268
Not impaired and more than three months overdue 213 154
impaired receivables - 0.2
Provision for doubtful debts (17.3) {16.2)
Total 205.0 185.6
Movement in the provision for doubtful debis:
2008 2017
£m £m
At 1 April 152 4.6
Impainment losses recognised 23 139
Amounts written off as uncollectable f12) {0.8)
Disposal of business - {1.5)
At 31 March 17.3 16.2
Note:
1. The Group has sppled IFRS 15 using the cumulative sffect method. Under this method, the comparative information s not restabed. See Nots 1.
The average credit period talen on sales of services was 28 days {restated 2017: 26 days}.
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.
18. Accrued income on long-tarm complex contracts
018 07
m £m
At1Apdl 50.2 0.6
Impact of change to IFRS 152 {50.2) -
Amounts recognised In the income statement - (20.4)
At 31 March - 50.2
Included In current assets - %24
Included in non-current assets® - 408
Total - 50.2
Motes:
1. The Group has applied IFRS 15 uting the curmulitive effect mathod. Under this method, the comparative information is not restarted. See Note L
2. Following the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group ho longer for long-term g the percentage of completion method of sccounting apphied previously under

derecognised
3. At31March 2017, £21.2m of the sccrued Intome: on long-term complex contracts. was attributable to tarsliion costs.
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19. Mobilisation costs

s wmn
£m £m
At 1 Apeil 200 286
Impact of change to WFRS 152 {21.0) -
Additions - 124
Amounts recognised in the income statement - (200)
At 31 March - 210
included in current assets - 115
included in non-current assets - 95
Total - 210
Motes:
1. The Group has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparstive iInformation is not restated. See Note 1
2. Michilartion costY that cBd not meet IFRS 15 criteria weve devecognised as part of the adopsion of the new standird. See Nate 1.
3. Undex IS 15, mohilisation costs ane inchuded as contract assets where they meet the tritesta to capitalise. Ses Note 20.
20. Contract assets
2008
£m
At 1 April -
Additions 23
Amortised in the year {0.1)
At 31 March 2.2
Included in current assets 04
Included in nor-cumrent assets 18
Total 22

Contract assets comprises contract fulfitment costs amounting to £2.2m have been recognised at 31 March 2018. Contract assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the contract ife which Is consistent with the transfer of services 1o the customer to which the
asset relates.

To determine whether future economic benefits from contracts are sufficient to recover the contract assets, management has
performed an assessment of the costs to complete the contract. In comparing the carrying amount of the asset to the remaining
amount of consideration expected to be received less the costs to provide services under the relevant contract, management has
determined no impairment is required at 31 March 2018.
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21. Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets racognised by the Group and movements thereon during the current and
prior reporting period:

Retirement Intangible Short-term
Acctleraned tax beneftt msets dming
Lotses  depredation Rabiljes acquired  Share aptions differences Touwl
£m £m Em £m £m £m £
At 1 April 2016 - 14 6.4 {4.4) 1.3 1.3 6.0
{Change)/credit to income 0.8 51 07 3.3 (0.3) (0.3) 9.3
{Charge}/credit to equity and the
statement of comprehensive income - - 5.5 - {0.3) 0.6 58
At 1 April 2017 0.8 6.5 126 (1.1} 0.7 1.6 21.1
Impact of change to IFRS 15 25.0 - - - - - 25.0
{Charge}/credit to income {7.0) {0.3) 03 03 {0.1) {0.1) 6.9)
(Charge}/credit to equity and the
statement of comprehensive income - - {3.4) - 0.1 - (3.3)
At 31 March 2018 188 6.2 95 (0.8) 0.7 15 359

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilides have been offset. The following Is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for
financial reporting purposes:

ms 7

m £m
Deferred tax sssets 36.7 22
Deferred tax Rabilities {0.5) (L1)
Nat deferred tax ssset 359 211

The Group has unutilised income tax losses of £94.9m (2017: £14.2m) that are available for offset against future profits.
in addition, the Group has £0.8m (2017: £0.8m) of capital losses.

A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of certain unutilised losses and allowances to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be generated in the future and be avallable for utilisation. Defermed tax has been calculated using the corporation
tax rates disclosed in Note 10.

22. Inventories

2ms 7

&m £

Materials 6.9 68

23. Cash and cash equivalents

18 7

£m Em

Cash and cash equivalents 593 129.1

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less. The carrying amount of the assets approximates their fair vaiue.

Included In cash and cash equivalents are deposits totalling £0.4m (2017: £0.6m) held by the Group’s insurance subsidiary, which are
not readily avaitable for the general purposes of the Group.
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24. Trade and other payables

Restated
2m8 0174
£m £m
Payments received on account 02 18
Trade creditors 1913 2447
Other taxes and social security 799 843
Other areditors 292 245
Accruals 196.2 1716
Deferred income? - 4786
Total 4968 5745
Included in current labilities 496.8 5745
Iincluded in non-current Rabllities - 34
Total 4368 5779
Notes:

1. The Group has appiied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effact mathod. Under this method, the comparative informanion is not restatad. See Note 1.
2. Following the adopiion of IFRS 15, the Group has presented deferred income from confracts with customers separately on the balance sheet and is therefore analysed in
Noke 25,

3. Tha Group has restated 2017 income staternent and balance sheet a3 per Note 1, page 134,
Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit
period taken for trade purchases is 59 days (restated 2017: 72 days).

Included within the Group’s trade creditors balance is £45.1m (2017: £39.5m) relating to payments due to UK suppliers which maks
use of bank provided supply chain finance arrangements. During the year ended 31 March 2018 these arrangements were used by
€.200 suppliers, with 2 madmum facility available of £50.0m. The Group setties these amounts in accordance with each suppliers’

agreed payment terms.
The Directors consider that the canying amount of trade and other payables approsdmates their fair value.

25. Deferred income from contracts with customers

=4
Inchxded in curent liabilities {46.2)
Included in non-current llabilities {18.9)
Total (65.0)
Note:

1. The Group has appiied IFRS 15 using the cumclative sffert method. Under this method, the enomparstive: information is not restated. See Note 1.
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26. Financing liabilities

083 w7

£m £m

Bank loans — under committed facilities 54.3 153
Private placement notes 2038 2940
Obligations under finance leases {Note 29) 13 28
Total 2594 3121
included in current Kabifities . 08 3108
included in non-current kabilities 258.6 13
Total 259.4 3121

The £275m bank fadility and the private placement notes are unsecured but have financial and non-financial covenants and obligations
vonmmnunly assoclated with these arvangerments. Subsequent to the prior year end the Group’s lkenders agreed an amendment w the
covenant calculation definitions. th accordance with the reguirements of IAS 1, It was necessary to dassify the drawn amounts on the
funding arrangements as current rather than non-current llabilities as at 31 March 2017. The final maturity dates of all facilities
remained unchanged. The Group was In compliance with these covenants as at 31 March 2018 and bence all amounts are dassified in
line with repayment dates.

Inchuded in current financing liabilities are £0.8m (2017: £1.5m} of obligations under finance leases (see Note 29).

With the excaption of derivative financial Instruments, all financing liabilities are held at amortised cost. Derivative financial
Instruments are initlally recognised at fair value at the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value through profit or loss unless they are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be applied (see Note 27).

At 31 March 2018, the Group had available £219 3m {2017: £257.9m) of undrawn eommitted borrowing facilities in respect of which
all conditions precedent had been met. The facliities have an expiry date of July 2021. The lcans carry interest rates which are currently
determined at 1.3% over the applicable USOR.

Desalls of the Group’s contingent liabiiities are provided in Note 34.
The weighted average interest rates paid during the year on the overdrafts and ioans outstanding were as follows:

201 2017

% 1
Overdrafts 20 21
Bank loans 15 12
Private placement notes 39 38
Private placement notes

Following the ssue on 16 December 2010 of US596.0m and £40.0m of private placement (PP) notes in the United States Private
Placement market, on 13 December 2012, the Group tssued a further US$153.0m and E55.0m of PP notes. The PP notes are unsacured
and rank pari passu with other senior unsecured indebtedness of the Group. in order to manage the risk of foreign currency
fiuctvations and to manage the Group’s finanoe costs through a mix of fixed and variable rate debt, the Group has entered into
cross-curmency interest rate swaps. The swap contracts have the same duration and other critical terms as the borrowings and are
considered o be highly effective. The amount, maturity and interest terms of the PP notes are as shown below. US596m of these

PP notes were settled in December 2017 upon maturity, along with the assoclated swaps.

Tranche Maturity dete Amount Interest terms Swap ntarest
7 year 16 December 2017 US$48.0m USS fixed at 3.38% £ fixed at 3.58%
7 year 16 December 2017 Us$48.0m US$ fixed at3.39% £ UBOR +1.26%
9 year 16 December 2019 £40.0m £ fooed at 4.38% nfa
10 year 16 December 2022 US$76.0m USS fixed at 3.85% £ fixed at 4.02%
10 year 16 December 2022 Us$77.0m US$ fixed at 3.85% £ fived at 4.02%
10 year 16 December 2022 £25.0m £ fixed at 3.37% n/a
12 year 16 December 2024 £30.0m £ fixed at 4.0% n/a
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27. Financial instruments

Classification

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and derivative financial instruments. With the
exception of derivative financial instruments, all financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

The Group's principal financial kabilitles are trade payables and financing Rabikties. With the exception of derivative financial
instruments and deferred contingent consideration, all financial iabilities are held at amortised cost.

Derivative financial instruments are measured inltially at fair value at the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value through the income statement uniess they are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can
be applied.

Detalls of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the bases for recognition of income and expense) for each dlass of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed
inNote 1.

Risk management objectives.

The Group's treasury department monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group. These risks inchude
those arising from interest rates, foreign currendies, liquidity, credit and capital management. The Group seeks to minimise the effects
of these risks by using effective control measures and, where appropriate, derivative financial mstruments to hedge certain risk
expasuras. The use of financial derivatives is governed by Group policies and reviewed regularly, Group policy 1s to not trade in
financial instruments. The risk management policies remain unchanged from the previous year,

Interest rate risk
The Group’s activities expose It to the financial risks of Interest rates. The Group's treasury function reviews its risk managerment
strategy on a regular basis and will appropriately entar into derwvative financial Instruments in onder to manage interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity
The interest rate sensitivity has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative
Instruments at the balance sheet date. Alt financial llablities, other than financing Habilities, are interest free.

If underlying interest rates had been 0,5% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and reserves would decrease/increase by £0.7m (2017: £0.8m).

Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited expasure to transactional foreign currency risk from trading transactions in currencies other than the functional
cumrency of individual group entities and some exposure to translational foreign currency risk from the translation of its foreign
operations. The Group considers the need to hedge its expasures as appropriate and will enter into forward foreign exchange
contracts to mitigate any significant risks.

in addition, the Group has fully hedged the US dollar exposure on its private placement notes into sterling using cross-currency interest
rate swaps (see Hedging activities below).

At 31 March 2018 £9.3m (2017: £6.9m) of cash and cash equivalents were held in foreign currencies. Included in bank loans were
£15.7m (2017 £17.1m} of loans denominated in foreign currency.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

27. Financial instruments continued

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk using a cash flow projection model which considers the maturity of the Group's assets and
liabilities and the projected cash flows from operations. Bank loans under committed facilities, which allow for appropriate headroom
in the Group's dally cash movements, are then arranged. Details of the Group's bank facilities can be found in Note 26.

The tables below summarise the maturity profile (inchuding both undiscounted interest and principal cash flows) of the Group's
financlal Rabilities:

Within  In dhe pacond Ahar
onsyenr o fith yeers e yourx Totel
Fnendal fabilites at 31 March 2018 im m £m
Trade creditors 1913 - - 913
Other creditors 292 - - 22
Financing liabilities 65.6 1989 315 296.0
Financial liabilities™ 286.1 1989 31.5 5155
* Financing Sabliities mutintty profe i Suchnive of the £5. 1rm derivative asset which would naturally offset the sectiernent value of manaring private pla
Withnn  Inthe second Aler
neyess  tofifthyesrs fveyeany Toral
Fnanclal kablites at 31 March 2017 £m £ £m £m
Trade creditors 244.7 - - 244.7
Other creditors 245 - - 245
Financing labilities 106.2 70.2 181.2 3576
Deferred contingent consideration 03 - - 03
Financial liabilities® 375.7 702 181.2 627.1
* FAnencing kabiltties ty profile ks sdusive of the £35 S derivative asset which would neturally offset the sertiement value of matiring private plecsment notes.
Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis and formally reported quarterly. The value of business placed with financial
institutions Is reviewad on a daily basis.

The Group’s cradit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instrumants is limited because the external counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencles and are managed through regular review.

The amounts presented in the batance sheet in relation to the Group’s trade recelvables are net of provisions for doubtful debits.

The Group’s aredit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivebles. Before acoepting a new customer, the Group uses external credit
scoting systerms to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and define an appropriate credit imit which is reviewed regulacly.

In determining the recoverability of a trade recelvable, the Group considers the credit quality of the counterparty. An allowance for
impalrment ks made where there ks an identified loss event which, based on previous experience, Is evidence of a reduction in the
recoverability of the cash flows. The Dirsctors believe that there Is no further provision required in excess of the provision for doubtfil
debts at the balance sheet date.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in retation to trade receivables at the balance sheet date is the fair value of trade receivables. The
Group’s customer base is lange and unrelated and, accordingly, the Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risk with
any one counterparty or group of counterparties.

Capital management risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concerms while maxdmising the
retumn 1o stakeholders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt per Note 30
and equity per the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Group’s capital structure Is reviewed regularly. In 2013, the Board approved 8 share purchase policy to maintaln share numbers at
2 broadly consistent jevel year on year with the aim of ensuring that the interests of shareholders are not dikted by the lssue of shares
that support the Group’s various share schemes, nor by the Issue of shares as consideration for eam outs under the Mitie modal.
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group bought back 9.1m shares at a cost of £24.4m and subsequently cancelied these
shares. The Group has cessed ts practice of buying back shares to offset shares issued under the Mitie Model or future LTIP
armrangements and nil shares were bought biack in the year ended 31 March 2018, Further detalls are provided in Notes 31 and 32.

The Group is not subject to externally imposad regulatory capital requirements with the exception of those applicable to the Group’s
captive Ihsurance subsidiary, which is monitored on a regular basts.
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27. Finandial Instruments continued

Heciging activities

Cash flow hedges

The Group holds a number of cross-currency Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges on U5$153.0m of PP notes. Biannual
fixed interest cash flows denominated in US doliars arising over the periods to December 2022 from the US Private Placement market
are exchanged for ficed Interest cash flows denominated in sterling. Al cash flow hedges were assessed as being highly effective as at
31 March 2018.

Fair value hedges

As at 31 March 2017 the Group held a number of cross-curmency interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges on US$48.0m of
PP notes. Fixed interest cash ficws denominated In US$ from the US Private Placement market were exchanged for floating interest
cash flows denominated in sterling. These fair value hedges were assessed as baing highly effective as at 31 March 2017 and up until
their maturity date in December 2017.

Hedge of net investment In foreign operations

Incheded in bank loans at 31 March 2018 was a borrowing of €9.5m (2017:€9.5m) which has been designated as a hedge of the net
Investment in the Republic of ineland businesz of Dalkia FM, and is being used to hedge the Group’s cxposure to foreign exchange rick
on this investment. Galrs or losses on the transiation of the borrowing are transferred to equity to offset gains or losses on the
translation of the net investment.

Derivative financial instruments
The carrying vahses of derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Ammts Asaats

s 207

2m £m

Cross-curency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges 6.1 27.0
Cross-currency interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges -~ 88
Derivative financlal instruments hadging private placement notes 6.1 35.8
inciuded in current assets - 358
Included in non-current assets 6.1 -
‘Total 61 35.8

Derivative finandal Instruments are measured at fair value. Fair values of derivative financial instruments are calculated based on a
discounted cash fiow analysis using appropriate market information for the duration of the instruments.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, a number of cashflow hedges were settied and ali falr value hadges were settled.
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27. Financlal instruments continued

Finandal instruments fair value disclosure

Fair value measurements are classified into three levels, depending on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
* Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from other obsarvable inputs for the asset or lability; and
s Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques using Inputs that are not based on observable

mariost data.

The Directors consider that the derivative finandial instruments fall into Level 2. There were no transfers between levels during the

year. Al contracts are gross settled.

28. Provisions
Deferred Conract
Lagel Heslthcare: contingent Insurance spediic
costs provisian  Restructuring  consideration reserve costs  Dilapidations Total
£m £m £m £m £ Em £m £m
At 1ApHl 2017 20 6.0 - 0.3 125 6.0 - 268
impact of change In
accounting policy - - - - - {02) - 0.2)
Amourts recognised in the
batance sheet - - - - - - 34 34
Amounis recognised in the
Income statement 3.2 - 12 - 40 {1.3} - 74
Utilised within captive
Insurance subsidtary - - - - (0.1) - - {0.1)
Unwinding of discount - - - - - - 0.2 02
Utllised in the perlod {1.1) {1.1) - {0.3} (1.1) {2.1) - (5.7)
At 31 March 2018 4.1 49 12 - 15.3 24 36 315
Included in current liabilities a1 49 12 - 9.0 24 36 25.2
Included in non-current
Habilities - - - - 6.3 - - 63
Total 4.1 49 1.2 - 153 24 36 35

The prowisions balance includes the following items:
The legal costs provision relates to professional fees psyable and the potential cost of settlement of outstanding clalms against

the Group.

The Healthcare provision relates to the anticipated costs of separation of the Healthcare business from the Group, that are anticipated
to crystallise during the year ending 31 March 2019. See Note 5 for more detall on this disposal.

The restructuring provision relates to costs of organisational change associated with the Group’s Project Helix transformation

programme including the transition costs assoclated with the outsourcing of certain back-office transactional processes.
The insurance reserve provides for the self-insured element of fleet and llability claims that will typically settle over three to five years.

This Includes a provision for claims that are expected but have not yet been reported.
Contract specific cost proviskons relate to various obligations arising in the ordinary course of providing services in line with

commerdal contracts.

The provision for dilapidations relates to the legal obligation for a leased property o be returned to the landlord in the contracted
condition at the end of the lease period. This cost would include repairs of any damage and wear and tear.
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29. Obligations under finance leases

Minimum lease Present value
peyments of lasse payrments
g 2017 2008 2017
£m £m £m £m

Ambunts payable under finanoe leases:
Within one year 08 1.7 08 1.5
In the second to fifth years Inclusive 0S 1.2 0.5 13
13 29 13 28
Less: future finance charges - {0.1) - -
Presant value of lease obligations 13 28 13 28
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months {0.8) {15} 0.8) {1.5)
Amount due for settiement after 12 months 05 13 05 13

The sverage remaining lease term Is 20 months (2017: 22 months). For the year ended 31 March 2018, the average

effective borrowing rate was 1.4% (2017: 1.8%). Interest rates are fheed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis
and no arrangements have been entered Into for contingent rental payments. Ali lease obligations are denominated in sterling.

The fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amount. The Group’s obligations under finance leases are

protected by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.

30, Analysis of net debt

s 2007
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents [Note 23) 59.8 1291
Bank loans {Note 26) {54.3) {153}
Private placement notes (Note 26) (203.8) {254.0)
Derivative financial iInstruments hedging private placement notes {Note 27} 6.1 35.8
Net det before obligations under finance loasses {192.2) (144.4)
Obligations under finance leases (Note 29} (1.3) {2.8)
Net debt {193.5) {147.2)

Net debt excludes amounts in respect of customer invoice discounting referred to in Note 17 and arnounts in respect of Supply Chain

Financing referred to in Note 24.
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31. Share capital

Number

Orcinary shares of 1.5¢ millon £m
Allotted and fully paid

At 1 April 2016 3721 93
Share buybacis 2.1) {0.2)
Issued for acquisitions 6.0 0.1
Issued under share option schemes 0.1 -
At 1 April 2017 369.1 9.2
Issued for acquisitions 4.6 0.1
At 31 March 2018 7.z 9.3

During the year nil shares were purchased {2017: 9.1m ordinary shares of 2.5p were purchased st a cost of £24.4m and
subsequently cancelled).

During the year 4.6m (2017: 6.0m) ordinary shares of 2.5p were allotted in respect of the acquisition of non-controlling interests at an
Ksue price between 266.3p and 278.8p (2017: 244 4p) giving rise to share premium of £nil {2017: £2.9m) and merger reserve of
£€12.4m (2017: £11.7m}.

During the year nil ordinary shares were allotted In respect of share option schemes (2017: 0.1t ordinary shares were allotted at 2.5p
at a price between 201.0p and 260.2p giving rise to share premium of £0.1m).

32. Reserves

Share pramium account
The share premium account represents the premium arising on the kssue of equity shares (see Note 31).

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents amounts relating to premiums arising on shares issued subject to the provisions of Section 612 of
the Companles Act 2006.

The merger reserve increased by £12.4m (2017; £11.7m} in the year ended 31 March 2018 as a resuk of the issue of 4.6m (2017: 6.0m)
ordinary shares of 2.5p for the acquisition of non-controlfing interests,

Own shares reserve

The Group uses shares held In the Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy conditional awards under the Group’s LTIP, CSP and DBP share
schemes and shares held In the SIP Trust t provide matching shares under the SIP scheme. During the year the trust distributed 0.7m
(2017: 1.4m} shares at a cost of £1.6m {2017: £3.4m) to satisfy awards under those schemes.

The Company uses Treasury shares to satisfy share options under the Group’s ESOS and SAYE share schemes. Proceeds from the issue
of 1.5m (2017: 1.2m) Treasury shares to satisfy options under the Group’s share schemes In the year were £3.4m (2017: £2.4m) ata
cost of £4.3m (2017: £3.4m). The loss of £0.9m has been recognised in retained eamings.

The other movements in the own shares reserve comprise £8.1m (2017: £nil) to recognise the restricted shares lssued as part of the
acquisidon of non-controliing interests per Note 33 of which £1.0m (2017: £nil) has been releasad against the share-based payments
reserve when restrictions expired during the year.

The own shares reserve at 31 March 2018 represents the cost of 13.0m (2017: 15.2m) ordinary shares In Mitie Group plc, with a

weighted average of 13.8m {2017: 16.5m) shares during the year, as well as the £7.1m value of the remaining restricted shares issued
as congideration to acquire minority interests that s required to be treated as remuneration.

Other reserves

Other reserves are comprised of the share-based payments reserve of £10.4m (2017: £9.4m), the revaluation reserve of £{0.2)m
(2017 £{0.2)m), the capital redemption reserve of £0.9m (2017: £0.9m) and other resetves of £0.2m {2017: £0.2m).

The share-based payments reserve represents credits In respect of the vesting period of equity-settied share-based payment
transactions {see Note 36) and credits In respect of the vesting period of restricted shares lssued as part of the acquishion of
non-controlling interests per Note 33,
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32. Reserves continued

Hedging and transiation reserve

The hedging and transiation reserve of £{7.3Jm (2017: £{8.0)m} includes balances In respect of the Group's cash flow hedges (see Note 27)
and translation reserves of £{0.5)m (2017 £{0.6)m). A net cash flow hedge credit during the year of £0.1m (2017; £4.8m charge) &
induded within Other comprehensive income. The hedging and transiation reserve also includes balances arising on translation of the
Group’s forelgn operations and in respect of net investment hedges of which the combined movement was a credit of £0.6m during

the year.

33. Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions — purchase of non-controlling interests

On 19 July 2017, the Company purchased the minority 49% shareholding in Source Eight Limited. The consideration paid was £4.0m,
satisfied with £3.0m in cazh and £1.0m in unrestricted shares. A further £5.1m of shares were issued which were subject to sale
restrictions related to continuing employment. Regarding shares issued, 2,196,708 ordinary shares were lssued, with a nominal value
of 2.5p per shara in Mitie Group pic {Mitie shares) at a fair value of 278.8p, of which 1,838,028 Mitie shares were subject to sale
restrictions related to continuing employment.

In addition, on 20 October 2017 the Company purchased the remaining minority shareholdings in five Mite Modal companies,
The consideration paid was £3.4m, satisfied through the issue of unrestricted shares. A further £3.0m of shanes were issued which
were subject to $ale restrictions related to continuing employment. Regarding shares issued, 2,396,381 Mitie shares were kssued
at a fair value of 266.3p, of which 1,139,697 Mitle shares were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing employment.

The shareholdings purchased, primarily held by certain of the employees and senlor management of the relevant subsidiary
companies, are detailed below:

« Mitie Care ang Custody Umited {MCCL) — 6.86% of the Issued share capltal, comprising 42,505 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a
consideration of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of 169,328 Mitle shares;

= Mitie Events & Lebsure Services Limitad {MELSL) — 24.08% of the issued share capital, comprising 205,000 B ordinary shares of £0.01
&ach, for a consideration of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of 144,555 Mitie shares;

* Mitie Facilitiez Management Limited {ireland) (MPML) — 5.63% of the issued share capita(, comprising 146,000 B ordinary shares of
€0.01 each, for a consideration of £0.2m satisfied by the issue of 72,228 Mitie shares;

¢ Mitie Catering Services Limited (MCSL) — 18.55% of the issued share capital, comprising 333,677 D ordinasy shares of £0.01 each, for
a oonsideration of £2.9m satisfied by the issue of 1,072,416 Mitie shares; and

* Mitie Waste & Erwvironmental Services Limited (MWESL) — 27.71% of the issued share capital, comprising 332,500 B ordinary shares
of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £2.5m satisfied by the lssue of 937,854 Mitie shares;

The above acquisitions have been completed based on transfer of consideration of the falr value of the sharehaldings of the
respective entities, As part of the above transactions Mitie Group Issued unrestricted and restricted shares. The restricted shares are
attached with a condition that the relevant reciplent comtinues in employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time.
Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves employrnent with the Group prior to completion of the vesting
period of the shares,

As 2 result of the acquisitions outiined above Mitie Group owns 100% of the Issued share capital of all of the above entities.

Prior year acquisitions — purchase of non-controlling Interests

On 24 August 2016, the Company purchased employee minority shareholdings in three of Its successful ‘Mitie Model businesses:
Mitie Business Services UK Limitad (MBSUKL), Mitie Technical Facilities Management Limited (MTFML), and Mitie Care and Custody
Uimited (MOCL) n accordance with the respective articles of assoclation and shareholders’ agreements of those companies.

The total maximum consideration for all three purchases amounted to £16.1m. This was satisfied with £1.4m in cash and as to the
remaining £14.7m by the issue of 6,015,255 Mitie shares valued at 244.38 p per share. This was the average of the clasing middle
market price for the five banking days immediately preceding 26 July 2016. Earlier in that financial year ended 31 March 2017,
the Company purchased its own shares in the market to offset this share issue, The purchased shares were cancelled following
their acquisition,
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33. Acquisitions continued

As a resylt of these acquisitions the Group owned 100% of the issued share capital of MBSUKL and MTFML, and 93.14% of the issued
share capital of MCCL The shareholdings purchased, primarily heid by certain of the employees and senior management of the
relevant subskdiary companies, are detalled below:

* MBSUKL - 27.29% of the issued share capital, comprising 116,000 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £0.8m.
The consideration was satisfied by £0.1m in cash and £0.7m by the issue of 275,428 Mitie shares;

o MTFML—8.93% of the issued share capital, comprising 952,000 8 ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consigderation of £12.1m.
The consideration was satisfied by £1.0m in cash and £11.1m by the issue of 4,563,029 Mite shares; and

» MCCL— 27.42% of the issued share capital, comprising 170,022 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration of £3.2m.
The consideration was satisfied by £0.3m in cash and £2.9m by the lssue of 1,176,798 Mitle shares.

34. Contingent Habilitles

Contractual disputes, guarantees and indemnities

The Company and various of Its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to contractual disputes that arise in the ordinary course of
business. There is an ongoing contractusal dispute with a client of Mitle"s Property Management business which is potentiatly of 3
material nature (although formal legal proceedings have not been commenced]. Discussions are ongoing between the Company and
the counterparty to determine both kabliity and potential gquantum. The Directors do not anticipate that the outoome of this dispute
will have & material adverse effect on the Group’s financlal position, other than as already provided for in the accounts, In appropriate
Cases, a provision Is recognised hased on best estimates and management Judigement but there ¢can be no guarantee that these
provisions {which may be subject to patentially material revision from time to time) will result in an accurate prediction, due to the
uncertainty of the actual costs and Uabilities that may be incurred. The Directors will continue to monitor events as matters progress.

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries have provided guarantees and Indemnnities in respect of performance, issued by financial
Institutions on ks behalf, amounting to £21.7m (2017: £23.8m) in the ordinary course of business. These are not expected to result
in any material financial loss.

Multi-employer pension schemes

The Group participates in several Industry multiemployer defined benefit schemes, Including the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (Ux)
Industry "Pension Scheme” (Plumbing Scheme). The total contributions to these schemes for the financial year ending 31 March 2019
are amticipated to be £0.1m. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee Is unable at this time to identify
the assets and Eabilities of the scheme which are attributable to the Group. Consequentiy, the Group accounts for its contributions as if
they were paid to a defined contribution scheme.

When the Group {or a subsidlary of the Group) exits such schemes (typically by ceasing to have any active employees in the scheme),
pension legisiation may require the Group to fund the Groug’s share of the total amount of net Habilities with a one-oif cash payment
{a Section 75 debt under the Pensions Act 1995},

On 27 March 2018, the trustee of the Plumbing Scheme provided participating employers with a summary of the draft actuarial
valuation of the Plumbing Scheme as at 5 April 2017. That summary detailed the results of the vaksation on three measuves:

« technical provisions - the amount of money the Plumbing Scheme needs to meet all its obligations and pay benefits In respect of
past service as they fall due, based on the scheme assets and the economic position as at 5 April 2017. This measure showed a
surplus of £45m on liabilities of £1.885bn;

* Pension Protection Fund (PPF) - the amount used ta set the Plumbing Scheme’s PPF levies. The benefits under this basis are lower
than the schame’s own benefits and the assumptions are prescribed by the Penslon Regulator. This measure showed 2 deficlt of
£412m on Uabllities of £2.342bn; and

+ solvency ~ this Is an estimate of the cost of insuring afl of the Plumbing Scheme’s benefits as at 5 April 2017 with an insurer and is
the basis required for Section 75 debt calculations. This measure showed a deficit of £658m on liabilities of £2.588bn.

The trustee of the Plurnbing Scheme has recently conducted an employer consultation regarding the allocation of Section 75 debts
including orphan liabilities {i.e. liabilities in respect of Plumbing Scherme members whose employers or former empiloyers are no
longer membars of the Plumbing Scheme or are Insolvent). This is the second employer consultation carried out by the Plumbing
Scheme In respect of the alfocation of Section 75 debts. The trustee has stated that it is unlikely that any Section 75 debit notices will
be Issued before early 2019, as the Plumbing Scheme’s actuary cannot be instructed in this regard until the calculation methedology
has been agreed.

Given these uncertainties it has not been possible to estimate the Group’s potential exposure to Saction 75 employer debts in respect
of the Plumbing Scheme within a reasonable range and so the Issue ks disclosed as a contingent labllity as set out in Note 37,
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34. Contingent liabliities continued

Employment daims

There are currently two enquiries being carried out by HMRC in respect of the Group’s complance with the Nationa) Minimum Wage:
both enquiries are at an early stage. At this time due to the natune and complexity of assessing compliance, it is not possibie to
estimate the potential exposure. In common with other UK businesses with a large number of employees operating near the minimum
wage, the Group is at risk of potential deficency in respect of cusrent and past employees. Work is ongoing to enhance the Group's
payvoll systems and processes to reduce the risk of non-compliance In future.

n addition to specific enquiries in respect of compliance with the National Minimum Wage, the Company and is subsidiaries are,
from time to) time, party to employment disputes, claims, and cther potential Babilities which arise in the ordinary course of business.
1'heDkemndommmﬁamofﬂnmmmrswmmrbetosewemem,emﬂmuuallyoﬂnagmumu\
will have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial pasition.

FAnandal Conduct Authority

On 29 August 2017 the Company announced that the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) had Informed the Company of its investigation
in connection with i) the timaliness of a profit warning announced by the Company on 19 September 2016, and Ii) the manner of
preparation and content of the Company’s financiai information, position and resuits for the period ended 31 March 2016.

The Company continues to fully co-operate with the FCA during their ongoing investigation. At this time, the Directors have not received
any notification from the FCA that they will exercise their regulatory enforcement powers against the Company. Accordingly, the Directors
are unable to determine whether the investigation will lead to the imposition of any fine or other penatties against the Company.

35. Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had ttal outstanding aggregate commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

ms 2007

£m £m

Within ane yesr 237 24.7
iIn the second to fifth years inclusive 392 30.6
Afver five years 132 7.6
Total 76.1 629

Operating lease payments represant rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties and hire of vehicles and other
equipment. These jeases have average durations ranging from three to ten years. No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

Operating lease commitments have increased during the year, mainly due to new leases entered into as part of the rationalisation of
the Group’s property portfolio.

36. Share-based payments

The Company has six aquity-settied shane schemes. The Group has atso awarded performance-related bonuses for Executive Directors
which are deferved in conditional shares under the Mitie Group pic 2010 Deferred Bonus Plan (DBP) and are accounted for as a share-
based payment charge.

Discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group pic Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

The LTIP was introduced in 2007. The conditional awards of shares or rights to acquire shares {the awards) are offered to a small
number of key senior management. Where offered as options the exercise price is £nil. The vesting period Is three years, although for
awards granted in 2015 and subsequently some are subject to a holding period of up to a further two years. If the awards remain
unexerdsed after a period of twelve months from the date of vesting the awards expire. The awards may be forfelted if the employee
leaves the Group. Befare the awards can be exercised, performance conditions must be satisfied which are based on movements in a
range of market and non-market measures over a three-year period.

The Mitie Group plc 2001 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)

The ESOS exercise price is equal to the average market value of the shares over the five-day period immediately preceding the date of
grant. The vesting period is three years, If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options
expire. Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.
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36. Share-based payments continued

The Mitie Group plc 2011 Executive Share Option scheme {ESOS)

Tha ESOS exercise price is equal to the average market value of the shares on the business day preceding grant or, if the Remuneration
Committee decides, the average market value of shares over a number of preceding business days (not to exceed 20). The vesting
period is theee years, If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options expire. Options
may be forfeitad if the employee leaves the Group, Befors options can be exercised, 2 performance condition must be satisfied; the
performance condition is linked to the percentage growth in eamings per share over a three-year period.

The Conditional Share Plan {CSP)

The CSP was introducad in 2014, The conditional awards of shares or the rights to acguire shares {the award) are offered to a small
number of key senior management. Where offered as options the exercise price is £nil. The vesting period is detarmined at the
discretion of the Remuneration Committee and is generally two or three years. if the awands remain unexercised after a period of ten
years from the date of grant the awards expire. The awards may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.

Non-discretionary share pians:

The Mitie Group pic 2011 SAYE scheme

The SAYE scheme is open to eligible UK resident employees. The exercise price is not less than B0% of the market value of the shares
detarmined using either: the share price preceding the date on which invitations to participate in the scheme are issued or an average
share price over five days preceding the invitation date. The vesting period is three years. If the options remain unexercised after a
period of six months from the date of vesting, the options expire. Options may be forfeited ¥ the employee leaves the Group.

The Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

The SIP was introduced in 2011 and is open to all efigible UK resident employees. Under the scheme, eligible employees are invited to
Ivest in partnership shares which are purchased in the market on their beha¥ and held in a separate UK trust. One conditional
matching share Is awarded for every ten partnership shares purchased and has a holding period of three years. Matching shares are
funded by way of market purchases,

Restricted Shares
In addition, in certain cases restricted shares are issued to individuals. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the

relevant recipient continues their employrment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to
the shares if the recipient leaves smployment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.

Details of the awards and share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

s mz 208 17

Nuwberof Number of Weightad Weighted

condionst conditiorsl Number of svarnge Nurnber of avrage

share snmrds shave swards sham optiors anrces price share options emarcise price

{mision) (milllon) {millon) [ {rmilion} ]

Outstanding at 1 April 9.0 a3 119 258 131 262
Granted during the year 43 46 227 29 29 an
Forfaited during the year (4.5) {25} s 267 {2.9) 258
Exercised during the year {0.7) {1.4) {1.5) 39 (1.2) 210
Outshndkglt 31 March 8.1 8.0 82 247 11.9 258
Exercisable at the end of the year 32 240 35 213
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36. Share-based payments continued

The Group recognised the following expenses related to share-based payments:

xn7
£m

48
14

6.2

Discretionary share plans
Non-discretionary share plans
Share-based payments acquisition related costs

slL s Rk

The moverent on the share-based payments reserve, which is part of other reserves, relates to the charge to the income statement
for the year of £4,6m (2017; £6.2m}. This comprises of 1) £3.4m In respect of the vesting period of restricved shanes issued as part of the
acquisition of minority interests per Note 33 and if} £1.2m of equity-settied share-based payment transactions. The share-based
payments charge for the year i net of Income statement credits of £2.9m relating to changes in assumptions relating to the bkelihood
of optians vesting.

in addition, there has been 1) a release of £1.0m against the own shares reserve on the expiry of restrictions attached to restricted
shares issued and li) a release of £2.7m to retained earnings regarding shares options that were previously exercised, lapsed, forfeited
or cancelled.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for awands and share options exercised during the year was 252p (2017: 234p).
The conditional share awards and share options outstanding at 31 March 2018 had exercise prices (other than nil in the case of the
LTIP, CSP, DBP and the matching shares under the SIP) ranging from 201p - 254p (2017: 201p — 319p) and a weighted average
remaining contractual ife of 3.6 years (2017 4.0 years). In the year ended 31 March 2018, options were granted in respect of the
SAYE, LTIP, CSP and SIP. The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted on those dates was £10.6m (2017: £11.1m).

The fair value of options Is measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo models.
The inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows:

s 2017
Share price (p) 258-318 276-318
Exercise price {p) 0-260 0-319
Expected volatikty (%) 23-25 23-30
Expected Wz {years) 3-4 3-4
Risk-free rate (%) 03)-11 013-11
Expected dividends (%) 16-47 35-47
The inputs into the Monte Carlo model are as follows:

2008 2017
Share price (p) 180-267 247-319
Average correlation with TSR benchmark {%) 23-27 26-35
Expected volatility (%) 34-37 18-23
Expected e {(years) 3 3
Risk-free rate (%) 022-068 0.16-1.29

Expected volatikty was based upon the historical volatility over the expected iife of the schemes. The expected life is based upon
historical data and has been adjusted based on management’s best estimates for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions
and behavioural considerations.
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Notes to the consolidated finandal statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

37. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group has a number of pension arrangements for employees:

* Defined contribution schemes for the majority of its employees; and
« Defined benefit schemes which indude a group scheme and other smaller schemes.

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension schemes for qualifying employees. The Group has a defined benefit
pension scheme called the Mitie Group pic Pension Scheme {Group scheme) where Mitie Group pic s the principal employer.

The Group participates in a number of other defined benefit schemaes {Other schemes) in respect of certain employees who joined
the Group under the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) or through the acquisition of
subsidiary companies.

Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution scheme is a pension scheme under which the Group pays contributions to an independently administered fund;
such contributions are based upon a fixed percentage of employees’ pay. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions to the fund once these contributions have been paid. Members” benefits are determinad by the amount of
contributions paid, together with investment returns eamed on the cortributions arising fram the performance of each Individuat’s
chosen investmemts and the type of pension the member chooses to take at retirement. As a result, actuarial risk {that pensian will be
lower than expected} and investment risk (that the assets Invested in do not perform in fine with expectations) are borne by the
employee.

The Group’s contributions are recognised as an employee banefit expanse when they are due.

The Group operates three separate schemes: a stakeholder defined contribution plan, which Is closed to new members; a self-invested
personal pension plan, which is dosed to new members; and a group personal pension {GPP} plan. Employer contributions are payable
to each on a matched basis requiring employee contributions to be paid. Employees have the option to pay their share via a salary
sacrifice arrangement. The scheme used to satisfy auto-enrokment compliance is a master trust, The People’s Pension.

During the year, the Group macie a total contribution to the defined contribution schemes of £9.0m {2017: £8.9m) and contributions to
the auto-enroiment scheme of £4.3m (2017: £4.3mj, which are included in the income statemernt charge, The Group expects to make
contributions of a simiiar amount in the coming year.

Defined benefit schemes
Group scheme

The Group scheme provides banefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life. The level of benefits
provided depends on members’ length of service and their finat pensionable pay.

The Group scheme closed to new members in 2006, with new employees able to join one of the defined contribution schemaes.
The main Group scheme has now been dosed as of October 2017.

Pensions in payment are generally increased in line with RPI inflation, subject to certain caps and floors. Benefits are payable on death
and other events such as withdrawal from active service.

The Group scheme Is operated under the UK regulatory framework. Benefits are pald ta members from the trust-administered fund,
where the Trustee is responsible for ensuring that the scheme is sufficiently funded to meet current and future benefit payments. Plan
assets are held in trust and are govermned by pension legistation. If investment experience is worse than expected or the actuarial
assessment of the scheme’s Hahilities increases, the Group's financial obligations to the scheme rise.

The nature of the relationship betwaen the Group and the Trustee Is also governed by regulations and practice. The Trustee must
agree a funding plan with the sponsoring company such that any funding shortfall is expected to be met by additional contributions
and investment outperformance. In order to assess the level of contributions required, triennial valuations are carried out with the
scheme’s obligations measured using prudent assumptions (which are determined by the Trustee with atvice from the scheme
actuary). The most recent triennlal valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2017 and is pending approval.

The Trustee's other duties Include managing the investment of the schemne’s assets, administration of plan benefits and exercising of
discretionary powers. The Group works closely with the Trustee to manage the scheme.

186 www.itlecom | The exceptiond, every day




37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Other defined benefit schemes

Grouped together under Other schemes are 2 number of schemes to which the Group makes contributions under Admitted Body
status to dients” (generally local government or government entities) defined benefit schemes in respect of certain employees who
transferred to Mitie under TUPE. The valuations of the Other schemes are updated by an actuary at each balance sheet date.

For the Admitted Body schemes, which are largely sections of the Local Government Pension Scheme, the Group will only participate
for a finite period up to the end of the relevant contract. The Group s required 1o pay regular contributions, as decided by the relevant
scheme actuaries and detailed In each scheme’s Contributions Certificate, which are calculated every three years as part of a triennlal
valuation. tn a number of cases contribtions payable by the emplayer are tapped and any sxcess Is recovered from the entity that the
employees transferred from. In addition, in certain cases, at the end of the contract the Group will be required to pay any deficit (as
determined by the scheme actuary) that is assessed for its notlonal section of the scheme.

Mult-employer schemes

As & result of historic acquisition activity and staff transfers following contract wins, the Group participates in four multi-employer
pension schemes. The total contributions to these schemes for the financial year ending 31 March 2019 are anticipated to be £0.1m.
For three of these schemes, the Group’s share of the assets and liabllities is minimal.

The fourth scheme is the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK) Industry Pension Scheme (the ‘Plumbing Scheme’) a funded mutti-
emplover defined benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 employers, with circa
400 remaining. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee ks unable at this time to identify the assets and
Wabiltties of the scherne which are attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as If they were
paid to a defined contribution scheme.

The April 2014 valuation of tha Plumbing Scheme indicated a surplus on a technical provisions basis of £19m, on liabiiities of £1.47bn.
The Annual Member update issued by the Pluntbing Scheme in October 2017 stated that an interim valuation prepared as at April 2016
indicated a defickt, howaver the draft triennial valuation as at 5 April 2017 continues 1o show a surplus on a technical provisions basks.
Details of the draft triennial valuation as at 5 April 2017 ane set out In Note 34,

As set out In Note 34 the Group has a potential exposure to Section 75 employer debts in respect of the Plumbing Scheme, which has
been disclosed as a contingent Eability.

Further information in respect of the Group scheme and Other schemes
The table below sets out the details of the latest funding vakuation of the Group scheme as at 31 March 2017,

The Group made a total contribution to the Group scheme of £4.4m during the year (2017: £2.0m), including an additional payment of
£3.0m in rajation to payment on a letter of cradit against the funding deficit. The Group expects to make contributions of around
£5.6m to the Group scheme in the year ending 31 March 2019, including £4.2m against the funding deficit. Employees’ contribwtion to
the cost of the scheme is generally settied through a salary sacrifice arrangement.

The Group made contributions to the Other schemes of £0.3m In the year (2017: £0.3m). The Group expects to make contributions of
around £nll to the Other schemes In the year ending 31 March 2019,

Detalls of latest funding valuation

Group scheme
Date of latest funding valuation 31 March 2017
Assets at valuation date £178.7 million
Funding Eabilities at valuation date £225.3 milkon
Deficit at veluation date £46.6 millon
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Notes to the consolidated finandal statemaents continuad
For the year ended 31 March 2018

37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

The total contribution rate is between 40.5% and 44.9% of annual pay for the remaining active members. The employer contribution
rate is the balance of the total cost after the deducting the employee rate, which ranges depending oh status and earmings. The total
contribution excludes any allowances for expenses met by the scheme.

To eliminate the funding deficit the Trustee and the Group agreed that additional contributions (L.e. over and above those required to
cover benefits being accrued) will be paid into the scheme of £58.0m by 31 March 2027, of which £11.9m are due by 31 March 2020,
On 27 November 2017, the Group paid the first of these additional contributions amounting to £3.0m. Under this recovery plan, if the
assumptions made are borne out in practice, the deficit woukd be eliminated by 31 March 2027.

The following table sets out details of the membership of the Group schame at 31 March 2017:

Group schame
Active members — by number 182
Active members — by proportion of funding liability 204%
Total pensionable salary roll p.a. £B.4m
Deferred members — by number 853
Deferred members — by proportion of funding kabiity 52.0%
Total deferred pensions p.a. (at date of leaving scheme) £4.6m
Pensioner members - by number 640
Pensioner members — by proportion of funding liabllity 27.6%
Total pensions in payment p.a. £2.7m

Accounting assumptions
The assumptions used in calculating the accounting costs and obligations of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemas, as detailed
below, are set after consultation with independent, professionally qualified actuaries.

The disoount rate used to determine the present value of the obligations is set by reference to market ylelds on high quality corporate
bonds. The assumptions for price inflation are set by reference to the difference between yiekis on longer-term conventional
government bonds and index-linked bonds. The assumption for increases in pensionable pay takes into account expected salary
inflation, the cap at CP|, and how cften the cap is likely to be exceeded.

The assurnptions for jife expectancy have been sat with reference to the actuarial tables used in the latest funding valuations, with a
lower ‘best-estimate’ allowance for future Improvements to mortality.

Principal accounting assumptions at balance sheet dates

Group scheme: Dther schewnes.
2018 2017 ame 27
* % % %

Key assurnptions used for 1AS 19 valuation:
Oiscount rate 260 265 .60 265
Expected rate of pensionable pay increases a1 200 310 340
Retall price inflation .10 3.40 310 340
Consumer price inflation 210 240 210 240
Future pension increases 340 3.40 3.40 3.40
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Group scherme
e 2017
Yaaes Years
Post retirement life expectancy:
CQuirent pensioners at 65 ~ male 8.0 88,0
Current pensioners at 65— female 89.0 200
Future pensioners at 65 — male 89.0 89.0
Future pensioners at 65 —fernale 90.0 $1.0
Life axpectancy for the other schemes is that used by the relevant scheme actuary.
The sensikivity of defined benefit obligations to changes in principal actuarial assumptions is shown below.
Sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to key assumptions
impect on defined benelt obligarions
Chang in Incressa/{decrense) in incresse/{decresse) in
asmamption obligetions abigations
% £m
Incréase in discount rate 0.1% {2.00% {s.0)
Increase in RPI inflation* 0.1% 1.5% 38
Increase in CPI inflation (excluding pay) 0.1% 0.7% 18
Increase in salary growth 0.1% 0.0% -
InCrease in life expectancy 1year 3.9% a3

*  Including other Inflation-nked atsurmptions (CP1 Inflation, pension increases and satary growth)
The sensitivity Information shown above has been prepared using the same method as adopted when adjusting the results of the
latest funding valuation to the balance sheet date.

Some of the above changes in assumptions may have an impact on the value of the schemne’s investment holdings. For @ample, the
Group scheme hokis a proportion of its assets in UK corporate bonds. A fall in the discount rate as a result of lower UK corporate bond
yields would tead to an increase in the value of these assets, thus mitigating the increase In the defined benefit obligation to some extent.

The duration, or average tarm to payment for the benefits due, welghted by liability, is around 22 years for the Group scheme.

Amounts recognised in financial statements
The table below outfines where the Group’s post-employment amounts are included in the financial statements.

2008 2017

Sroup Other Group Other
nchame schemes Totel scheme schames Totsd
m m [ £m £m £m
Current service cost {1.7} {0.3) {2.0) {3.2) (0.3) {3.5)
Tota! administration expense (1.1} - {1.1) {0.8) - {0.8}
Amoaurits recognised in operating profit (r2)] (0.3} 31 (4.0) 0.3) {a3)
Past service eost (including curtailiments) 1.9 - {1.9) - - -
Net interest cost {1.9) {0.1) {2.0) (1.3} - {13}
Amaunts recognised in profit before tax {6.6} {0.4) {7.0) {5.3) {0.3) (5.6}

The past service cost {including curtailments) ks as a result of an increase in liabllities driven by the closure of the main Group scheme.
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Notes to the consclidated finandial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Amounts recognised in the consofidated statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

2008 017
Group Ot Ghoup Other
scharme schomes Total scheme: schermes. Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising due to changes in
financial assumptions 86 08 94 {52.5) an {56.2)
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from liability experience (11) os {0.3} 08 - 08
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic
assumptions 59 0.2 6.1 - - -
Effect of asset celling - {0.5) {0.5) - - -
Retum on scheme assets, excluding interest income 46 0.4 5.0 18.7 13 200
180 17 19.7 {33.0) {2.4) {35.4)

The amounts included in the balance sheet in respect of the Group’s defined benefit retirement benefit schemes are as follows:

018 2017

Sroup Othar Group Other
schams schamas Tatal scheme: schemes Total
m £m im £m £m £m
Fair value of scheme assets 1823 121 1944 1778 11.3 1891
Present value of defined bepefit Wtbm {237.1) {14.1) {251.2) (248.5) {14.8) {263.3)
Net pension Kabifty (54.8) {20} (568 (r0.7 (3.5) (74.2)

All figures above are shown before deferred tax.

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations In the year in respect of both the Group and other schemes were
as follows:

a0 x07

Smoup Other Group Other
[ schemas Toml scheme schames Total
£m m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 248.5 us 2633 1913 10.6 2019
Current servioe cost 17 0.3 20 3.2 03 s
Interest cost 85 0.4 69 6.8 0.4 72
Contributions from scheme members - 0.1 0.1 0.1 01 0.2

Actuarial (gains)/losses arising due to changes in
financial assumptions {8.6) {o.8) {99) 525 37 56.2

Actuarial losses/f{gains) arising from experience 11 {0.8) 03 {0.8) - (0.8)
Actyarial gains due to changes in demographic

assumptions ) 0-2) {61) - - -
Effect of asset ceiling - 0s 05 - - -
Benefits paid (&) (0.2) (8.3) {4.6) {0.3) (4.9)
Past service cost (including curtailments) 19 - 19 - - -
AL 31 March 2371 M1 251.2 2485 148 263.3
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

The defined benefit obligations of the Group scheme are analysed by participant status below:

ans w7
£ £m
Active 483 850
Deferred 1233 1031
Pensioners 655 604
At 31 March 2371 2485
Movements in the fair vakue of scheme assets were as follows:
01 2007
Groug Other Group Other
scheme schames Total schame schemes Total
m £m £&m £m £m £m
At 1 April 1778 113 189.1 156.9 95 1664
Interest Incorme 4.6 03 49 55 04 59
Actuarial gains on assets 4.6 04 5.0 187 13 200
Contributions from the sponsoring companies 44 03 4.7 20 03 23
Contributions from scheme members - - - 01 01 0.2
Expenses pald (1.0 - {1.0) (08) - (0.8}
Benafits paid {8.1) (0.2} @.3) (4.6) (0.3} (4.9
At 31 March 1823 121 194.4 1778 11.3 189.1
The history of experience adjustments is as follows:
Group scheme
2018 2017 016 s 2014
£m £m £m £m £m
Falr value of scheme assets 18523 177.8 1569 1622 1438
Present value of defined benefit obligations {232.1) {2438.5) {191.3) {197.1) (160.8)
Deficit in the scheme (54.8) (70.7) (34.4) (34.9) {17.0)
Experience (losses)/gains on schame labilities {11 08 31 12 01
Percentage of scheme |iabliities 0.5% {0.3y% {1L6)% (0.6}% 0.1p%
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets 4.6 18.7 62) 13.0 36
Percentage of scheme assets 2.5% 10.5% (4.0p% 8.0% 2.5%
Other schemes
2018 2m7 2016 s 2084
£m £m £m £m £m
Falr value of scheme assets 12.1 11.3 95 95 16.2
Presert value of defined benefit obligations {14.1) {14.8) (10.6) {10.4) (18.3)
Deficit in the scheme {2.0} {3.5) {1.1) {0.9) {2.1)
Experience gains/{losses) an schame (iabilities 08 - - (0.1} 03
Percentage of scheme liabilities (5.6)% - - 0.9% (1.8)%
©Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets o4 13 {0.6) 08 {0.3)
Percentage of scheme assats 3.3% 115% {6.1)% B.4% {19)%
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Notes to the consolidated finandal staternents continued
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37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Fair values of the assets held by the schemes were 85 follows:

2008 2007

Group Other Group Other
schems achemas Tord scheme sthemes Total
m m £m £m £m £m
Equitties 663 7.0 73 66.4 76 740
Government bonds 26.9 - 269 268 16 284
Corporate bonds 220 38 258 217 08 225
Property 25 09 104 16.2 [+ ) 17.0
Diversified growth fund 456 - 456 46.6 - 466
Lash 120 04 124 01 05 0.6
Total fair value of assets 1K2.3 12.1 1944 177.8 11.3 189.1

The investment portfolios are diversified, investing in 2 wide range of assets, in order to provide reasonable assurance that no single asset
or type of asset could have a matarially adverse impact on the total portfolio. To reduce volatifity, certain assets are held in a matching
portfolio, which largely consists of govemment and corporate bonds, designed to mirror movements in corresponding Yabilities.

Around 67% {2017: 73%) of the assets are held in equities, property and pooled investmaent wehicles which seek 3 higher axpected level
of return over the jong term.

£nll (2017: £7m) of the property assets represent freehokd property; the rest are quoted property investments.

Risks and risk management
The Group scheme, In common with the majority of UK plans, has a number of risks. These areas of risk and the ways in which the
Group has sought to manage them, are set out in the table below.

The risks are considered from both a funding perspective, which drives the cash commitments of the Group, and from an accounting

perspactive, i.e. the extent to which such risks affect the amounts recorded in the Group’s financial staterents:

Pisk Description

Asset The funding labilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to government bond yields, with aliowance

volatility for additional return to be generated from the investment portfofio. The defined benefit obligation for accounting is
calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate bond yields. The Group scheme holds a large proportion
of its assets (67%) In equities and other retum-seeking assets (principally diversified growth funds (DGFs) and property).
The retums on such assets tend to be volatile and are not correlated to government bonds. This means that the funding
level has the potential to be volatile In the short term, potentially resulting in short-term cash requirements or
akernative security offers, which are acceptable to the Trustee and an increase in the net defined benefit lability
recorded on the Group’s balance sheet. Equities and DGFs are considered to offer the best returns over the long tarm
with an acceptable level of risk and hence the scheme holds 2 significant proportion of these types of asset. However,
the scheme’s assets are well-diversified by Investing In a range of asset classes, including property, govemnment bonds
and corporate bonds. The Group scheme holds 25% of its assets in DGFs which seek to maintain high levels of return
whiist achleving iower volatility than direct equity funds. The allocation to return seeking assets is monitored to ensure it
remains appropriate given the scheme’s long-term objectives. The investment in bonds is discussed further below.

Changes in  Falling bond yields tend to increase the funding and accounting obiigations. However, the investment In corporate and

bond yiekis  govemnment bonds offers a degree of matching, Le. the movement in assets arking from changes in bond ylelds partially
matches the movement in the funding or accounting obligations. in this way, the exposure to movements in bond yields
is reduced.

inflation risk The majority of the scheme’s benefi obligations are tinked to Inflation. Higher Inflation will lead to higher labilities
{although caps on the levet of inflationary Increases are In place to protect the plan against extreme inflation). The
majority af the Group scheme’s assets are elther unaffected by inflation (fixed Interest bonds) or foosely comelated with
hﬂaﬁun(qﬂths),meanﬁg_ﬂmatmlnmsemmﬂauonwllabomm&ﬁdt

Ufe The majority of the scheme’s obligations are to provide a pension for the iife of the member, so increases in life

expectancy  expectancy will result in an increase in the obligations.

192 www.mitiecom | The exceptional, every doy




37. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Areas of risk management

Although investrnent decisions in the scheme are the responsibllity of the Trustee, the Group takes an active interest to ensure that
pension plan risks are managed efficiantly. The Group and Trustee have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investment risk
where appropriate.

Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP} is a portion of pension that was accrued by individuals who were contracted out of the State
Second Pension prior to 6 April 1997, At present there ks an inequality of benefits between male and female membess who have GMP,
The Government intends to Implemnent legislation to equalise benefits, which could resut in an increase in the value of GMP for males.
This would increase the defined benefit obligations. At this stage, it s not possible to quantify the impact of this change, and therefore
no provision has been made,

Certain benefits payable on death before retirement are insured.

38. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Gompany and its subsidiaries, which are retated parties, have been eliminated on consolidation
and are not disclosed in this Note,

During the year, the Group derived £0.8m (2017 £0.2r) of revenue from contracts with joint ventures and associated undertakings
and received £0.6m (2017: £0.6m) of dividends. At 31 March 2018 trade and other receivables of £0.2m (2017; £nil) were outstanding
and loans to joint ventures and associates of £nil {2017: Enil) were included in financing assets.

Mitle Group plc has a related party relationship with the Mitie Foundation, a charitable company. During the year, the Group made
donations and gifts in kind of £0.3m {2017: £0.3m) to the Foundation. At 31 March 2018 £nil (2017: £nil) was due to the Foeundation
and the Foundation had £n {2017; £nil) held within creditors as an amount owed to Mitie Group plc.

No materisl contract or arrangement has been entered Into during the year, nor existed at the end of the year, In which a Director
had a material interest.

The Group's key management personnel include the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and the Executive Leadership team.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration Is included in Note 7. The underlying remuneration for other key management personnel,
Including the share-based payments charge is £5.6m (2017: £4.1m).

In the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company noted that, as a consequence of prior year
adjustments to the acoounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee would determine what rights
might be avatlable to the Company to recover the bonus and other awards made to each of Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter
in respect of FY16. The mattars which gave rise to the prior year adjustments are now the subject to the on-going investigation by the
Financial Conduct Authority (the “FCA"}, which the Company disclosed in its announcement on 29 August 2017. in that announcement,
the Company reported that the FCA had commenced an investigation in connection with the timeliness of a profit waming announced
by the Company on 19 September 2016 and the manner of preparation and content of the Company’s financlal informatian, position
and results for the period ending 31 March 2016. The Company has been advised by its external lawyers that as any dlaim against
Ruby McGregor-Smith and Suzanne Baxter would cover the same matters, facts and droumstances which are the subject of the

FCA investigation, any formal steps to recover bonuses or other awards should be deferred until after the FCA have reached their
findings. It Is currently anticipated that the FCA will conclude Its investigation during the course of FY19.

Details of transactions with Mitie Group plc Pension Scheme, and other smaller pension schemes, are given in Note 37,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

39. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

2008 017
Contiruing  Discontinued Continuing  Discontinued
oparations Tot§  operations operstions Totd
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash conversion
Operating loss {83) - 83) (42.9) {135.2) {178.1)
Depraciation 1ns - 128 13.6 0.5 141
Amortisation 135 - 135 24 14 238
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 45.0 - 45.0 18.0 912 109.2
Earmings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amostisation (EBITDA) 63.0 - 630 111 {42.1) (31.0)
Cash (used in)/generated by operations {7.9) - (7.9} 159.9 {8.8) 1511
Free cash flow
Cash (used In)/generated by operations 7.9) 1511
Purchase of propesty, plant and equipment (15.8) {14.5)
Purchase of other intangible assets s.0) (12.4)
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 16 1.0
Income taxes received/{pald) 116 (15.3)
Interest paid {(13.5) (12.7)
Free cash flow {33.0) 97.2
2018
Other non-
Opaning Totai cash Meclesification Totsl FX Total falr velue cash Closing
balance movemant ofsenfordeit  movements chengis  mcwements belence
&m im m £m &m fm £&m
Cagh ficws Non-cach changss
Long-term borrowings — bank loans - (38.3) {15.3) (03} - (o4) (543}
Long-term borrowings — private placement
loan notes - - {216.8) - 13.1 [ 1] (203.8)
Short-term borrowings — bank loans {15.3) - 153 - - - -
Short-term borrowings — private
placement loan notes* {294.0) 18 2168 - 54 - -
Finance lease obligations (2.8) 15 - - - - {L3)
Financing Rabilities 912.1) 35.0 - {0.3) 185 {0.5) (255.4)
Derivative financial instruments* 358 {10.6)} - - {18.1) - [ %]
Net financing labilities (276.3) 234 | - (0.3) 04 {05)  (2533)
Note:
¢ Cash flow movernent on these kems incudas both of private placement losn notis and setthernent of sssociated hedges with & net Gish flow of £50.2m (2017: Enlf).
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40, Subsidiaries

The companies set out below are those which were part of the Group at 31 March 2018,

%% voting rights and lna::
Company Country of incorporation ownarship interest walue cuned
Care & Custody (Health) Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Cole Motors Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Cregtivevents Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Direct Enquiries Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Jabez Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Aviation Security Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Belgium BVBA Belgium 100% 100%
Mitie Beigium Security BVBA Belgium 100% 100%
Mitie Buikt Erwironment Umited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Business Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 2100%
Mitie Business Services UK Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Care and Custody Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Catering Services Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cleaning & Environmental Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cleaning Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Client Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Company Secretarial Services Limived* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie CompKance Ltd* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Deutschland GmbH 1 Germany 100% 100%
Mitie Document Solutions Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Bristol) Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Guernsey) Uimited Guemsey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Jersey) Limited Jersey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Northern Region) Limited® United Xingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Wales) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitia Ervironmental Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Espafia, S.L. Spain 100% 100%
Mitie Events & Leisure Services Limited®™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitje Facilities Management Limnited* irefand 100% 100%
Mitia Facilities Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie France SAS France 100% 100%
Mitie Group Penslon Scheme Trustee Company LUimited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Infrastructure Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie integrated Facilithes Management Limited™ United Gngdom 100% 100%
Mitie International Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie investments Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Justice Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Landscapes Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Uimited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Local Services Limied*® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Managed Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Nederiand B.V. Netherands 100% 100%
Mitie Norge Aksjeselskap Norway 100% 100%
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Notes to the consolidated finandal staternents continued

For the year ended 31 March 2018

40. Subsidiaries continued

2008 1

% voting rights and 9% worninal
Compeny [« y of rath ownership interast walua owmad
Mitie Pest Control {London) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Pest Control Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie PFI Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Palska $p. 2 0.0. Poland 100% 100%
Mitie Property Management Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Property Services {UK) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Relnsurance Company Limited Guemsey 100% 100%
Mitie Resources Uimited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Schwelz GmbH Switzerland 100% 100%
Mitie Scotgate Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security (London) Limited* United Kingdom 200% 100%
Mitie Security Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 200% 100%
Mitie Security Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Services [Retall) Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Shared Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitle Suoml Oy Finland 100% 100%
Mitie Sverige AB Sweden 100% 100%
Mitie T 5 2 timited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Technical Facliities Management Holdings Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Technical Faciities Management Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Tilley Roofing Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Transport Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Treasury Management Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Trustee Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Waste & Environmental Servioes Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Work Wise Umited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Parkersell Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Procius Limited** United Kingdom 100% 100%
Robert Prettie & Co Umited® Unhed Kingdom 100% 100%
Service Management International Asia Pacific PTE. Ltd. Singapare 100% 100%
Source Eight Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Sources Africa Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
SourceR Delivery (Nigeria) Limited Nigeria 100% 100%
Sources Servicas FZLLC United Arab Emirates 100% 100%
UK CRBS Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Asset Management Limied* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Asset Management Projects Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Broking Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Healthcare Enargy Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilyx Hoidings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utilvx Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Unityx Risk Management Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Wealthy Thoughts Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%

* These antities were dormant during the yesr ended 31 March 2018 srwd will take the sxernption from praparing and fiing finencis] statements for the year ended 31 March
Act

20138 {lyy virtue of saction 4484 of the

2006},
§ These pubsiciaries have taken advantage of the audit exemption under 4794 of tha Connpanies At 2006 for the period ended 31 March 2018. As such, Mille Group Pic has
& guarantes against all deivs and kabiities in these subsiciaries as st 31 March 2018,

provided
+ Held directly by tha Company.
% Tha Company holds direct minority #iterast in these compenies.
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40, Subsidiaries continued

The registered office of all subsidiaries is The Shard, Leve! 12, 32 London Bridge Street, London, SE1 95G with the exception of

the following:

Compeny Negistered office sddress

Mitle Belgium BVBA Regus Brussek South Station, Marcel Broodthaersplein 8 (box 5), 1060 Brussek
{Sint-GMllis), Belgium

Mitie Beigium Security BVRA Regus Brussels South Station, Marcel Broodthaerspiein 8 (box 5, 1060 Brussais
(Sint-Gillls), Belgium

Mitie Deutschland GmbH MeRstetter StraBe 8, , 70567, Stuttgart, Germany

Mitie Engineering Services {Guermsey)
Limited

Mitie Engineering Servics {lersey) Limited

Mitie Espafa, S.L.

Mitle Facilities Management Limied
Mitle France SAS

Mitie NI Limited

Mitie Nederland B.V.

Mitie Norge Aksjeselskap

Mitle Polska Sp. z 0.0.

Mitie Reinsurance Company Limited
Mitie Schwelz GmbH

Mitie Suomi Oy

Mitie Sverige AB

Service Management Intemational
Asia Pacific PTE. Ltd.

Sourceg Delivery (Nigeria) Limited
Source8 Services FZLLC

Martello Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, GY1 3HB, Guemsey

13 Castle Street, St Heller, JE4 SUT, lersey

Osborne Clarke, Avenida Diagonal, 477, Planta 20, 08036, Barcelona, Spain
108 Q House, Furze Road, Sandyford, Dublin 18, Ireland

259 rue 5t Honore, 75001, Paris, France

Clara House , Office BS, Dunmurry Office Park, 37A Upper Dunmurry Lane, Belfast,

Northem Ireland, BT17 GAA, United Kingdom

Hoofdweg 52A, 3067 GH Rotterdam, P.0O. Box 8540, 3009 AM Rotterdam, 3009 AM

Rotterdam, Netherfands

Kongensgate 9, 0153, Oslo, Norway, Norway

Solec 22, 00-410, Warsaw, Poland

Maison Trinlty, Trinity Square, St. Peter Port, GY1 4AT, Guernsey
Brandschenkestrasse 90, CH-8027, Zurich, Switzeriand

cfo Ov Visma Services Infocon Ab, Pormestarinrine B, 00160 Helbsinki, Fintand
Kungsgatan S5, 111 22 Stockholm, Sweden, Sweden

65 Chulia Streat, #38-02/03, OCBC Centre, Singapore, 049513

235 Ikorodu Road, llupeju, Lagos, Nigeria
17 The Ieidium Buliding, Um Suqueim Road, Al Barsha, Dubai, PO BOX 391186,
United Arab Emirates

No subsidiaries have non-tontrolling interests that are material to the Group.

The Group has 8 30% interest in its associata, Pyramid Plus South LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in the
United Kingdom with Its registered office at The Point, 37 North Wharf Road, London, W2 1BD.

41. Events after the reporting period . P .

There are no material post balance sheet events that require adjustment or disclosure in the anmual report.
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2018
2018 017

Notas £m £m
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidlary undertakings 44 557.0 589.5
Deferred tax asset 46 0.8 0.3
Total non-current assets 5578 589.8
Current assets
Debtors 45 982 36.9
Total current assats 98.2 369
Total assets 656.0 626.7
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 47 {82.2) {44.6)
Yotal current labliities (82.2) {44.6)
Net aurrent assets 16.0 {7.7
Net assets 5738 582.1
Caphial and reserves
Share capital 31 93 22
Share premium account 32 1306 130.6
Maerger reserve 32 1042 918
Owm shares reserve 12 {43.4) (42.2)
Other reserves 29 253
Loss for the year {12.7) (42.6)
Retained earnings 3629 4100
Equity shareholders’ funds 5738 5821

The Company reported a loss for the financlal year ended 31 March 2018 of £12.7m (2017: £42.6m).

The financial statements of Mitie Group pic, company registration number S0019230, were approved by the Board of Directors and

authorised for issue on 6 June 2018. They were signed on its behalf by:

LS, LT

Phil Bantiey Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer

Chief Executive Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2018
Share Profe
Share préslum Merges Own shares Other ad loss
capital account resarve raserve resarvas scoount Tolal

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 April 2016 93 127.7 80.1 {48.8) 211 474.4 6633
Loss for the year - - - - - (42.6) (a2.6}
Shares issued 0.1 29 11.7 - - - 147
Share-based payments - - - 68 a3 2.5} 81
Share buybacks (0.2} - - {02) 04 (24.4) {24.4)
Dividends paid - - - - - (37.5) {37.5)
At 31 March 2017 9.2 1306 918 {42.2) 253 3674 582.1
Loss for the year - - - - - (12.2) {127
Share-based payments - - - 69 {2.4) 03 48
Acquisitions and other movements 0.1 - 124 8.1) - - 44
Dividervis paid - — - - - {4.8) (4.8}
At 31 March 2019 9.3 130.6 1042 {43 4) 229 350.2 5738
As at 31 March 2018, the Company had distributable reserves of £117.5m (2017: £137.3m).
Details of dividends paid to shareholders are given in Note 11 of the consolidated financial statements.

—.T‘G
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2018

42. Significant accounting policles

{a) Basis of accounting

The separate financlal statements of the Company are presented as required by company law, They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law. The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ as issued by the Financial
Reporting Council.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard
in refation to share-based payments, financial instruments, presentation of a cash flow statement, impairment of assets, standards not
yet effective, and related party transactions.

Where relevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the Group accounts.
As more fully detalled In the Directors” report, the Company’s financiat staterents have been prepared on a going concern basks.

(b) Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding
year.

investments
Fived assat Investments in subsidiaries are shown at cost less any provision for impairment.

Investments In subsidiaries are reviewed on an ongoing basis for any indication of impalrment and, if any such indication exists, the
investiment’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss Is recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying value
of an asset exceads its recoverable amount.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as 2 resuk of a past event and It is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation and a rellable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to any provision is charged to the profit and loss account, net of any reimbursement. i the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the llability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a bormowing cost.

Taxation
Current tax is provided at amounts expected 1o be paid {or recoverad) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheat date.

Deferred tax Is provided In full on temporary differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, ora
right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystaliise based upon tax rates and legislation that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Temporary differences arise from the inclusion of lems of income
and expenditure in tax computations in periods different from those in which they are included in the finandlal stataments. Deferred
tax k& nat provided on temporary differances, or on unremitted eamings of subsidiaries and associates where there ks no commitment
to remit these eamings. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that It is regarded as more likely than not that they will be
recovered. Deferred tax assets and fiabilities are not discounted,
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42. Significant accounting policies continued

Finandial instruments

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in the profit and loss acoount where there is objective evidence that the asset s impaired.

interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are secorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, incuding
premicms payable on settiement or vedemption and riract isuis costs, are accounted for on an accruats basis in the profit and loss acoount
and are added to the camrying amount of the Instrument to the extent that they are not settied in the period in which they arise.

Trade payabies are measured at amortised cost.
Equity instrumerits issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financie! assets and finandlal kobilities are recognised on the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the
comtractual provisions of the instrument.

Share-based payments

The Compary operates a number of executive and employee share option schemes. Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value excludes the effect of non-market based vesting
oondidons. For grants of share options and awands, the (ol value as at the date of granl b Laloulated using the Bladk-Schokes un Mutile
Carlo modeis or the share price ot grant date, and the corresponding expense k recogniced on 3 Straight line basie over the vesting period
based on the Company’s estimate of shares that will evertually vest. At each balance sheet date, the Company revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expectad to vest as a result of the effect of non-market based vesting conditions. Save As You Eam (SAYE)
options are treated as cancelled when employees cease to contribute to the scheme, resulting in an acceleration of the remainder of the
related expense.

The costs of options and conditional awards over the Company’s shares granted to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries are
accountad for as a capital contribution within the canying value of investments in subsidiary undertakings.

Pensions
The Company participates in the Mitie Group pic Pension Scheme. All group companies account for the contributions to the defined

benefit scheme In respect of their employees and as part of a group amangement one of the Company’s subsiciaries accounts for the
other costs, Income, assets and liabilities of the scheme. Nota 37 to the consolidated financial staterents sets out detalls of the IAS 19

‘Employee benefits’ net pension liability of the scheme amounting to £54.8m (2017: £70.7m).

43. Loss for the year

As permitted by Sertion 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company has elected not to present its own statement of comprehensive
income {Inchuding the profit and 1033 account] for the year. Mitic Group plc reported a loss after taxation for the financlal year ended
31 March 2018 of £12.7m (2017: £42.6m}.

The auditor’s remuneration for audit services to the Company was £40,000 (2017: £40,000).

Detalled disclosures of Directors’ remuneration and share interests are given in the audited section of the Directors’ remuneration
repott on pages 101 to 109,
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Notes to the Company financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2018

44. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Shares at cost

At 1 April 2017 6909

Restructuring 4973

Acquisitions 73

Capital contribution re share-based payments 10

Disposals {580.0)
At 31 March 2018 6165

Provision for impairment

At 1 April 2017 1014

Charged to income statement -
Disposals {41.9)
Az 31 March 2018 59.5

Net book value

At 31 March 2018 557.0

At 31 March 2017 589.5

A listing of subsidiaries is given In Note 40 10 the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, the Company underwent a process to rationalise and simpliify the corporate structure which included the acquisition

of minarity shareholder interests in the remaining Mitle Model companies (see Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements). The
reorganisation was faciltated through Mitle Treasury Management Limited (MTML), an existing entity held by the Company acquiring
the majority of the Company’s Investments, Including Its principal holding companies, through share for share exchanges. in addition,

mninority Interests held by the Company In other Group companies were transferred to the majority shareholder for consideration left
outstanding on Intercompany account. No gain or loss arose in the Company as a result of these steps.

45. Debtors
E T ] m?
£m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 93 312
Other debtors 1.8 0.7
Prepayments and accrued income ot 02
Corporation tax - a8
28.2 36.9
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of debtors approximates their fair value.
46. Deferred tax
Share-bmed
PEaR
thming
ciffgrance
[ 1)
Defermed tax asset at 1 April 2017 03
Change to income statement 0.5
Deferred tax asset 3t 31 March 2018 08
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47. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

018 2017

F ™ £m

Overdrafts U8 54
Trade creditors 4.4 22
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertaidngs s 5.2
Corporation tax liability 0.5 -
Other taxes and social security 0. 0.2
Accruals and deferred income 93 190
Provisions s 12.6
822 446

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of creditors
approsimates their fair value.

The Company’s bank overdrafts are part of the Group’s banking arrangements and are offset against credit balances within the Group.
The Company has adequate Nquidity to discharge all current obligations.

For detatls of Group borrowings, see Note 26 1o the consolidated financial statements.

48. Contingent Habilities

Per Note 40, Mitie Group pic has taken the audit exemption for a number of subsidiaries by virtue of s479A of the Companies Act.
A parent company guarantes has been provided for these entities under s479C of the Companies Act:

49. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schemes as described in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company recognised an expense of £0.4m (2017: £2.4m) refated to the share-based payment charge for discretionary
share option schemes.

The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Scholes arnd Monte Carlo models. The inputs into the Black-Scholes and
Monte Carlo models are as described in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

50. Related parties

The Company makes management charges to all of its subsidiaries, whether they are wholly-owned or otherwise, and receives
dwidends from its subskdaries, according to their ability to remit them, Other detaiis of related party transactions have been given in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,

Under FRS 101 the Company s &xempt from disclosing key management personnel compensation and transactions with other
companies wholly owned by Mitle Group plc. There were no other related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2018
{2017: £nil).
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Appendix ~ Alternative Performance Measures {APMs)

The Group presents APMs as the Group has applied IFRS 15 in the 2018 financial staterments using the cumulative effect method through
an adjustrnent to the opening balance of equity at 1 April 2017 and has not restated the comparative information for the 2017 financial
year, In addition, there were a number of significant restatements recorded in the 2017 financial statements. The Group presents various
APM: as the Directors balieve that these are useful for users of the financlal statements in helping to provide a balanced view of, and
relevant information on, the Group’s financlal performance. These APMs are measures which disclose the adjusted performance of the
Group without the adoption of IFRS 15 {see Note 1 (a)) and excluding specific lems which are regarded as non-recuiring. The Group
sepacately reports the impairment of goodwil, the cost of restructuring programmes, acquisition and disposal costs, amaortisation of

acquisition related intangible assets, exceptional iems and other spedific items in the Income statament which, in the Directors’

judgement, need to be disclosed separately (see Notes 3, 4 and 5 ] by virtue of their nature, size and incidence In order for users of the
financial staterents to obstain a proper understarciing of the finandial information and the underlying performance of the business.

Restated
ams mr
APM; presented £m £m
Revenue
Adjusted revenue 2,199.1 2,140.0
impact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 4.6 -
One-offs:
Adjustrnent to accrued income on long-term complex contracts - {20.4)
Accrued Income, debtors, prepayments included in trade & other receivables - {7.4)
Effects of forelgn curmency - 11.2
Other one-off ltems - -
Before other kams 2,203.7 2,1234
Other tems - -
Total revenue a3 reported 2,208.7 21234
Operating profk
Adjusted operating profit 771 820
Impact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 125 -
Ore-offs:
Impairment and amortisation of intangible assets (Note 14} - {10.5)
Adjustment to accrued income on long-term complex contracts - {204)
Accrued income, debtors, prepayments included in trade & other receivables - {364)
Impalrment of mobillisation asset - (5.7)
Other provisions & accruals - {4.6)
Other one-off tems - {10.7)
Befora other items 89.6 {6.3)
Adiusted other iterns {103.0) {36.6)
Impact as a result of the adoption of IFRS 15 5.1 -
Other Iterns as reported {97.9) {36.6)
Total operating pr profit as reported (8.3) {42.9)
The total adjustments presented above Impact business segments as follows:
08 m»r
Adjusyments to revenue m £m
Engineering Services 16.9) 146
Security (0.3) -
Professional Services 0.6 -
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services {0.9) a6
Care & Custody 14 -
Catering - (1.6)
Property Management 0.5 -
Total adjustments 4.6) 16.6

1. The Group has restated 2017 income statarnere and balance sheet a5 par Nots 1, page 134.
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Appendix — Atermative Performance Measures {APMs) continued

2018 2017
Adipsstrents to operating profit = £m
Engineering Services (103) EYE)
Security (23) 38
Professional Services 0S5 2.6
Cleaning & Environmental Sendces .n 144
Care & Custody 13 07
Catering (0.5) 06
Property Management 4.6 16.8
Corporate Centre - 119
Total adjustments {12.5) 883
m8 2017
impacts of Adpastad One-of Adjsbed
As reported ms1s amhfious  Asreported Herns cash flows
Adjustments to cash flows £m £m m £m £m £m
Operating loss  — continuing operations 8.3} {17.8) (5.9 (42.9) 883 45.4
—discontinued operations - - - {135.2) - {135.2)
Adjustments for non-cash and non-operating items 75.5 - 75.5 187.2 (88.3) 989
Operating cash flows before movements
In working capital 672 (17.6) 1] 9.1 ~ 91
{Increase}/decrease in inventories {0.1) - {o.1) 32 - 3.2
{Increase)/decrease in receivables {43.2) 131 {30.1) 60.2 - 60.2
{Increase)/decrease In contract assets (2.9 23 - - - -
(Decrease)/increase In deferred income arising
On contracts (12.9) 128 - - - -
(Decrease)/increase in payables {21.2) (9.2} {30.3) 73.0 ~ 730
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions 4.5 (0.2} 43 5.6 ~ 54
Cath {used in)/genersted by apurations (7.9) 13 (6.6) 1511 ~ 1511
Income taxes, interest and acquisition costs
received/(paid) {19) = .9 {28.3) = {28.3)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (9.9) 13 (8.5) 1228 ~ 1228
investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (15.8) ©0.2) {16.0) (14.5) - {14.5)
Purchase of other intangible assets 9.0 {11) {10.1) (12.4) - (124)
Other investing activities {7.3) - (2.3) - -~ -
Net cash outflow from investing activities {32.1) 13} 33.4) (26.9) - (26.9)
Net cash inflow from financing activities {22.8) - (27.8) (60.3) - (60.3)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cath equivalents {68.7) - {63.7) 356 ~ 35.6
Adjustments to the batance sheet are shown in Note 1 on page 140,
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Shareholder information

i ' Owvendew Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIF)
i HY 18/19 half-yearly results 22 November 2018 Mitie has st up & dividend relnvestment
i plan (DRIP) to enable you to build your
: Dividends shareholding by using your cash dividends
P17]38 ivrie i (.33 i TrbnanaE  eredsecmihy
2018 final dividend (2.67p proposed): like to receive further information,
—exdiv date 21 June 2018 including details of how to apply, please
= record date 22 June 2018 call Link Asset Services on 020 8639 3402
: ~last date for receipt/revocation of DRIP mandate 9July 2018 or contact them by sending an email to:
5 — payment date 6 August 2018 shares@linkgroup.co.uk
: Mitie online share portal
) i General Mitie has launched a shareholder portal
2018 Annual Genera! Meeting 31 july 2018 where shareholders can register and can:
= access information on shareholdings
i and movemnents;
= update address detalls;
Ragistered office Registrars nayments recelved
Miltie Group plc Link Asset Services * v:m’:‘dmm Instru cuon:"d
35 Duchess Rd The Reglstry sel \ ’
Ruthergien 34 Beckenham Road » sell Mitie shares;
Glasgow Beckenham « complete an onfine proxy voting form;
S73 1AL oy ::;ster fol ications allowing
. BR3 4TV . F e-COmiITIin ns

) Email: group@mitie.com
| Website: www.mitle.com

i Registered in Scotiand under
company number: SC019230

Telephone; 0871 6564 0300"
Website: www.mitle-shares.com

* calls cost 12p a minute plus natwork
extras, lines are open 9.00am - 5.30pm
Mon —Frl.

206 www.itle.com | The exceptional, every day

that certain documents are available to
view on its website. This will further
reduce Mitie's carbon footprint as well
as reduce costs.

If you wish to register, please sign up at
www.mitie-shares.com

Corporsts webelte

This report can be downloaded in PDF
from the Mitle website, which also
contalns additional general information
about Mitie. Please visit www.miltle.com




Cautlonary statement - :

Certaln stagtements contained in this document constitite or may constitute ‘forward-looking statements”.

In some cases, these forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology,
Iincluding the terms ‘believes’, ‘estimates’, ‘projects’, ‘aims’, ‘plany’, ‘predicts’, ‘preparas’, ‘anticipates’, ‘expects’,
‘inkends’, ‘may’, ‘wilf’ or ‘should” or, in each case, their negative or other variations or comparable terminology.
or by discussions of strategy, plans, objectives, goals, future events or Intentions. Such forward-Hooking
statements Involve known and unknown isks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the actual
results, performance or achievements of the Group to be materially different from any future results,
performance or achievemnents expressed or implled by such forward-looking staternants. Such forwand-ooking
statements are based on numerous assumptians regarding the Group’s present and future business strategies
and the environment In which the Group will operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak
only as at the date of this documnent. Except as required by applicable law, rule or regulation, the Group
expressly disciaims any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates ar revisions to any forward-
laokdng statements contained in this document to reflect any change In Its expertations with regard thereto
or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based. By their nature,
forward-ooking statements involve risks and uncartainties because they retate to evertts and depend on
circumstances that may or may not occur In the future or are beyond the Group’s control. Ferward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance. Mitie’s actual resutts of operations, financial condition
and the development of the business sector in which the Group operates may differ materially from the
expectations disclosed or implied by the forward-looking staternents contalned in this document. in addition,
even if the Group's actual results of operations, finandal condition and the development of the business sector
in which the Group operates are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this document,
those results or developmeants may not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent pericds. The
forward-looking statements cortalned in this document speak only as at the date of this document.
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MITIE GROUP AT A GLANCE

Investing in our strengths
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